
           

 

CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

City Council Meeting
Regular Session

April 25, 2022
6:00 P.M.

City Hall - Council Chambers - 6131 Taylorsville Road

 

           
1. Call The Meeting To Order - Mayor Jeff Gore   
 

2. Invocation - Pastor Randy Griffith Of The Free Methodist Church At 6875 Old Troy
Pike, Huber Heights, Ohio

  

 

3. Flag Ceremony - Wayne High School Junior ROTC Honor Guard   
 

4. Pledge Of Allegiance   
 

5. Roll Call   
 

6. Approval Of Minutes   
 

A. City Council Meeting Minutes - March 28, 2022
 

B. City Council Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2022
 
7. Special Presentations/Announcements   
 

A. Wayne High School Men's And Women's Bowling Teams Recognition And Proclamation



A. Wayne High School Men's And Women's Bowling Teams Recognition And Proclamation
Presentation - Mayor Jeff Gore

 
8. Citizens Comments   
 

9. Citizens Registered to Speak on Agenda Items   
 

10. City Manager Report   
 

11. Pending Business   
 

12. New Business   
 

CITY COUNCIL
Anthony Rodgers, Clerk of Council

  

 

A. A Motion To Appoint Matthew Shomper, Ronald Deak, Jen Sirucek, Scott Davidson, And
Jeffrey Held To The 2022 Comprehensive Development Plan Steering Committee.

 
B. A Motion To Appoint Bayram Gulalieu To The Culture And Diversity Citizens Action

Commission For A Term Ending December 31, 2023.
 

C. A Motion To Direct The Clerk Of Council To Respond To The Ohio Division Of Liquor
Control With No Objections In Reference To New Liquor Permit #0055605 For Action
Palace At 5605 Old Troy Pike, Huber Heights, Ohio 45424.

 
D. A Resolution Authorizing The Law Director To Register An Objection To A Liquor Permit

Renewal And Request A Hearing.
(first reading)

 
E. A Public Hearing Scheduled For April 25, 2022 By The Huber Heights City Council

For Zoning Case 21-45.  The Applicant Is Kirmon Khalilov.  The Applicant Is Requesting
Approval Of A Major Change To The Basic And Detailed Development Plan In A PC
(Planned Commercial) District For The Property Located At 5840 Old Troy Pike And
Further Described As Parcel ID P70 01923 0004 On The Montgomery County Auditor's
Map (Zoning Case 21-45).

 
F. A Public Hearing Scheduled For April 25, 2022 By The Huber Heights City Council

For Zoning Case BDP 22-07.  The Applicant Is Charles Simms Development.  The
Applicant Is Requesting Approval Of A Basic Development Plan For Property Located At
Brandt Pike North Of The Reserves At The Fairways (Zoning Case BDP 22-07).

 
G. A Public Hearing Scheduled For April 25, 2022 By The Huber Heights City Council



G. A Public Hearing Scheduled For April 25, 2022 By The Huber Heights City Council
For Zoning Case BDP 22-08.  The Applicant Is Amarjit Takhar.  The Applicant Is
Requesting Approval Of A Basic Development Plan And A Rezoning To PC (Planned
Commercial) For Property Located At State Route 235 and Center Point 70 Boulevard
And Further Identified As Parcel Numbers P70 03903 0005 And P70 03903 0079 On
The Montgomery County Auditor's Map.

 
H. A Public Hearing Scheduled For April 25, 2022 By The Huber Heights City Council

For Zoning Case CBDP 22-11.  The Applicant Is Campbell Berling Huber Heights, LLC. 
The Applicant Is Requesting Approval Of A Combined Basic And Detailed Development
Plan For 22.38 Acres And A Rezoning To Planned Residential (PR) On The East Side Of
Bellefontaine Road And South Of Chambersburg Road And Further Described As Parcel
Number P70 03908 0126 On The Montgomery County Auditor's Map.

 
I. A Public Hearing Scheduled For April 25, 2022 By The Huber Heights City Council

For Zoning Case BDP 22-12.  The Applicant Is Horizon Line Development.  The
Applicant Is Requesting Approval Of A Basic Development Plan And A Rezoning To
Planned Mixed (PM) For Property Located At 7125 Executive Boulevard And
Further Described As Parcel ID P70-03910-0005 On The Montgomery County Auditor's
Map.

 
J. A Public Hearing Scheduled For April 25, 2022 By The Huber Heights City Council

For Zoning Case ORD 22-16.  The Applicant Is The City Of Huber Heights.  The
Applicant Is Requesting Approval Of Proposed Changes To Sidewalks Requirements.

 
ADMINISTRATION
Bryan Chodkowski, Interim City Manager

  

 

K. An Ordinance To Approve A Major Change To The Basic And Detailed Development
Plan For The Property Located At 5840 Old Troy Pike And Further Identified As Parcel
Number P70-01923-0004 On The Montgomery County Auditor’s Map And Rejecting The
Recommendation Of The Planning Commission (Zoning Case 21-45).
(first reading)

 
L. An Ordinance To Approve A Basic Development Plan For The Property Located On

Brandt Pike North Of The Reserves At The Fairways And Further Identified As Parcel
Number P70-03910-0057 On The Montgomery County Auditor’s Map And Accepting The
Recommendation Of The Planning Commission (Zoning Case BDP 22-07).
(first reading)

 
M. An Ordinance To Approve A Basic Development Plan And Rezoning To Planned

Commercial (PC) For A 35 Acre Parcel Of Property Located On The East Side Of The
Intersection Of State Route 235 And Center Point 70 Boulevard And Further Identified
As Parcel Numbers P70-03903-0079 And P70-03903-0005 On The Montgomery County
Auditor’s Map And Accepting The Recommendation Of The Planning Commission
(Zoning Case BDP 22-08).
(first reading)

 
N. An Ordinance To Approve A Combined Basic And Detailed Development Plan And



N. An Ordinance To Approve A Combined Basic And Detailed Development Plan And
Rezoning To Planned Residential (PR) For 22.968 Acres For The Property Located On
The East Side Of Bellefontaine Road And South Of Chambersburg Road And Further
Identified As Parcel Number P70-03908-0126 On The Montgomery County Auditor’s Map
And Accepting The Recommendation Of The Planning Commission (Zoning Case CBDP
22-11).
(first reading)

 
O. An Ordinance To Approve A Basic Development Plan And Rezoning To Planned Mixed

Use (PM) For The Property Located At 7125 Executive Boulevard And Further Identified
As Parcel Number P70-03910-0005 On The Montgomery County Auditor’s Map And
Accepting The Recommendation Of The Planning Commission (Zoning Case BDP 22-12).
(first reading)

 
P. An Ordinance Amending Part Eleven – Planning And Zoning Code, Title One –

Subdivision Regulations; Chapter 1109 – Subdivision Design Standards; Section 1109.15
– Sidewalks; 1109.08 – Official Thoroughfare Design Standards; And Table 4 Of The
Codified Ordinances Of The City Of Huber Heights (Zoning Case ORD 22-16).
(first reading)

 
Q. A Resolution Establishing And/Or Amending The City Of Huber Heights Organizational

Chart And Authorizing The New Personnel Staffing Levels As Detailed Below.
(first reading)

 
R. A Resolution Establishing And/Or Amending The Salary Ranges And Wage Levels For

Employees Of The City Of Huber Heights, Ohio.
(first reading)

 
S. An Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 By Making Supplemental

Appropriations For Expenses Of The Fire Division Of The City Of Huber Heights, Ohio
For The Period Beginning January 1, 2022 And Ending December 31, 2022.
(first reading)

 
T. A Resolution Authorizing The Execution Of A Termination Of The Land Use Restriction

Agreement In Connection With The City’s Multifamily Housing Mortgage Revenue Bonds
(Alcore Huber LLC Project) Series 2012A.
(first reading)

 
U. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into A Community Reinvestment

Area Agreement With Flyer Red Properties II, LLC Under Certain Terms And Conditions.
(first reading)

 
V. An Ordinance Authorizing Advances And Transfers Between Various Funds Of The City

Of Huber Heights, Ohio And Amending Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 By Making
Supplemental Appropriations For Expenses Of The City Of Huber Heights, Ohio For The
Period Beginning January 1, 2022 And Ending December 31, 2022.
(first reading)

 
W. An Ordinance Approving Individual Assessments Amounts And Directing The Director Of



W. An Ordinance Approving Individual Assessments Amounts And Directing The Director Of
Finance Or His/Her Designee To Certify The Amounts To The Applicable County Auditor
For Collection, And Declaring An Emergency.
(first reading)

 
X. A Resolution Authorizing The Acceptance Of State Of Ohio Funding And Establishing

The OneOhio Opioid Settlement Fund.
(first reading)

 
Y. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into A Contract For The 2022

Rehabilitation Of Sewer Lines Project.
(first reading)

 
Z. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Solicit, Advertise, And Receive Bids From

Qualified Firms For The 2022 Water Main Replacement Program.
(first reading)

 
13. City Official Reports and Comments   
 

14. Executive Session   
 

15. Adjournment   
 



   
AI-8364     Minutes      A.        
City Council Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
Approval of Minutes - 3/28/22
Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers
Department: City Council
Council Committee Review?: None
Date(s) of Committee Review: N/A  
Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No
Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

N/A

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
City Council Meeting Minutes - March 28, 2022

Purpose and Background
Approval of the minutes from the March 28, 2022 City Council Meeting.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:
There are no financial implications to this agenda item.

Attachments
Minutes 



 

1.   Call The Meeting To Order - Mayor Jeff Gore

 
  The Huber Heights City Council met in a Regular Session on March 28, 2022.  Mayor

Jeff Gore called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

 
2.   Invocation - Pastor Randy Griffith Of The Free Methodist Church At 6875 Old

Troy Pike, Huber Heights, Ohio

 
3.   Flag Ceremony - Wayne High School Junior ROTC Honor Guard

 
4.   Pledge Of Allegiance

 
5.   Roll Call

Present:  Richard Shaw, Kathleen Baker, Mark Campbell, Nancy Byrge,
Glenn Otto, Ed Lyons, Anita Kitchen, Don Webb, Jeff Gore 

6.   Approval Of Minutes

 
  A.    City Council Meeting Minutes - March 14, 2022   

 
7.   Special Presentations/Announcements

 
  A.    Presentation Of Newly Hired Police Officers Within The Police Division – Police Chief

Mark Lightner And Mayor Jeff Gore
  

 
  Police Chief Mark Lightner said 2021 was an extremely busy year for the Police

Division as there were two funded positions to fill and six veteran officers retired,
leaving eight vacancies.  

Police Chief Lightner introduced Officer Brent Waler, who was hired on June 21,
2021.  He said after attending Bethel High School, Brent Waler began his career in
public safety as a wildland firefighter with the U.S. Forest Service.  He said in 2013 he
transitioned into law enforcement and attended Clark State Community College.  He
said Brent Waler has worked as a Police Officer for Kettering Health Network,
Columbus State Community College, and the City of Riverside.  

Police Chief Lightner introduced Officer Bryce Hodges, who was hired on June 22,
2021.  He said Bryce Hodges previously worked for the Miami County Sheriff's
Office for seven years.

Police Chief Lightner introduced Officer Warren Perkins, who was hired on July 11,
2021.  He said Warren Perkins graduated from New Albany High School, and in 2015
he graduated from Eastland Police Academy, Groveport, Ohio.  He said Warren
Perkins took a position as an auxiliary Police Officer for the Village of Lithopolis for
one year.  He said Warren Perkins was a part-time Police Officer for the Village of
Utica from 2016 until 2018, and in March 2018 he took a full-time police position
with Otterbein University while also working as a part-time Police Officer for the
Village of St. Louisville. 

Police Chief Lightner introduced Officer Kyle Beatty, who was hired on July 12,
2021.  He said Kyle Beatty graduated from Fairborn High School and then Sinclair
Community College.  He said Kyle Beatty graduated from Sinclair's Police Academy
and then the Columbus Police Academy.  He said Kyle Beatty worked as a Columbus
Police Officer for the past ten years.  

1 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

March 28,     2022



Police Chief Lightner introduced Officer Jared Bailey, who was hired on August 15,
2021.  He said Jared Bailey graduated from Shawnee High School in 2016 and
attended Rhodes State Community College where he obtained an Associate Degree in
Criminal Justice.  He said Jared Bailey was hired by the Allen County Sheriff's
Department as a full-time Deputy Sheriff in 2018.  

Police Chief Lightner introduced Officer Caleb Harper, who was hired on August 16,
2021.  He said Caleb Harper attended Indiana Wesleyan University and graduated with
a Bachelor's Degree in Criminal Justice.  He said the Greenville Police Department
sent Caleb Harper through the Ohio State Highway Patrol Academy Basic Class 139
and he then worked for the Greenville Police Department for three and a half years. 
He said he was a backup Student Resource Officer and part of the Quick Response
Team that responded to overdoses and provided persons on scene with options for
where to seek help.  

Police Chief Lightner introduced Officer Reagan Morrett, who was hired on
September 27, 2021.  He said Reagan Morrett graduated from Edison State Police
Academy in 2019 and worked for Sinclair Community College Police Department for
one year before coming to Huber Heights.  

Police Chief Lightner introduced Officer Zachary Williams, who was hired on
January 31, 2022.  He said Zachary Williams graduated from Wayne High School in
2008 and was a member of the Huber Heights Explorer Program.  He said Zachary
Williams attended Sinclair Community College where he became a Level II
Firefighter and an EMT and worked for numerous fire departments within
Montgomery County.  He said Zachary Williams took the Civil Service Test with the
Dayton Police Department and was hired and worked on both the east and west sides
of Dayton before being selected to become a Detective.  He said Zachary Williams
worked with the Special Victims Unit for two and a half years.  He said Zachary
Williams was moved to the homicide unit and worked as lead investigator on many
cases.  He said Zachary Williams has experience on the Dayton S.W.A.T. team, the
Dayton Regional Bomb Squad, he is crisis intervention team trained, and he has
training and knowledge in crowd management.  

All of the Police Officers were sworn in by Police Chief Mark Lightner.

 
  B.    Mayoral Proclamation Presentation To Ms. Chelsie Ashburn For Special Olympics

Representation - Mayor Jeff Gore
  

 
  Mayor Jeff Gore read the proclamation and presented it to Chelsie Ashburn for her

participation in the Special Olympics.  

Ms. Ashburn thanked Mayor Gore and Council.

 
  C.    Wayne High School Women's Indoor Track Team Recognition And Proclamation

Presentation - Mayor Jeff Gore
  

 
  Mayor Jeff Gore read the proclamation and presented proclamations to the Wayne

High School Women's Indoor Track Team and coaches.

 
  D.    Wayne High School Men's Indoor Track Team Recognition And Proclamation

Presentation - Mayor Jeff Gore
  

 
  Mayor Jeff Gore read the proclamation and presented proclamations to the Wayne

High School Men's Indoor Track Team and coaches.

 
  E.    National League Of Cities/Service Line Warranty Program Advocate Award And Check

Presentation To The City Of Huber Heights And The Wayne Township/Huber Heights
Historical Society - Mr. Richard Shaw, Ward 1 Councilmember, And Mayor Jeff Gore

  

 

2 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

March 28,     2022



  Councilmember Richard Shaw and Mayor Gore joined Mrs. Pat Stephens and Mrs.
Judy Blankenship representing the Wayne Township/Huber Heights Historical Society
for the presentation.  Mr. Shaw said through the Savings and Solutions Program with
the National League of Cities, the residents of the City of Huber Heights have saved
over $174,000.00 through participation in various programs.  He said the National
League of Cities honored Huber Heights in Washington D.C. this year with a Program
Advocate Award.  He said with this award comes a check to an organization of the
City's choosing.  He said he reached out to Mayor Gore and they agreed the best
organization to receive this award is the Wayne Township/Huber Heights Historical
Society.  He said the check would be in the amount of $500, which would be mailed
directly to the Wayne Township/ Huber Heights Historical Society.  Mr.
Shaw presented the award to Mayor Gore to accept on behalf of the City.

 
8.   Citizens Comments

 
  Ms. Julie Reese said she is a new Bethel Township Trustee and she said she is strongly

against annexation.  She said her personal opinion as a Bethel Township citizen is that
she is against creating a Carriage Trails 2.0 and she stated her reasons are the number
of students will be increased, the roads do not support the amount of traffic, and that it
is changing the culture of the township.  She said recently a township member likened
the annexation to Russia invading the Ukraine.  She said the Bethel Township
residents do not have a choice, and it is up to the City of Huber Heights to put a stop
to this annexation and not take their land.  She said Huber Heights and Bethel
Township are neighbors, and she is asking the City of Huber Heights not to be Russia
and to be good to Bethel Township and to not take their land and lifestyle away.

Mayor Gore said he was offended that Ms. Reese called the City of Huber Heights,
Russia.  He said there would be a meeting where all these things could be discussed. 
He said Ms. Reese is a township trustee and she will have the opportunity to be at that
meeting.  He said, as the Mayor of this City, it is highly offensive that she came into
this Council Chambers and called Huber Heights, Russia when a landowner in Bethel
Township made the decision to sell their property.  He said that it was not the City
taking property, it is someone selling their property.

Mr. Otto said he was not offended and said he understood the gist of what Ms. Reese
was trying to say and he quite frankly agrees.  He thanked her for coming out and said
he looked forward to working with her.  

Mayor Gore said the joint meeting between the City of Huber Heights and Bethel
Township to discuss annexation is scheduled for Thursday, April 7, 2022 at 6:00 p.m.

Ms. Reese said she did not call the City of Huber Heights, Russia.  She said a resident
likened annexation to what is happening in Russia.

 
9.   Citizens Registered to Speak on Agenda Items

 
  There were no Citizens Registered To Speak On Agenda Items.

 
10.   City Manager Report

 
  Interim City Manager Bryan Chodkowski said the water main replacement on

Chippingdon Drive will begin on April 4, 2022.  He said the City is 90 percent
engineered with regard to the East Water Main Extension Project and City Staff will
be submitting to the EPA for permitting.  He said the annual Water Main Replacement
Program is also 90 percent complete with the engineering work.  He said City Staff is
on schedule to release bids next week for this program.  He said last week's meeting
between the City of Huber Heights, the City of Riverside, and the Oakes Tree
Development was very fruitful.  He said a potential resolution had been reached to
address the concerns expressed in Council Chambers.  He said the group will work
through the conversation that was had and memorialize some items on paper and will
be back to Council to talk about that issue.  He said today ground was broken in

3 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

March 28,     2022



Thomas Cloud Park for the EV charging stations which were purchased with a grant to
the City.  He said the new sign at Monita Field Park is going in tomorrow.  He said,
after an extended absence for medical reasons, Community Engagement Specialist
Sarah Williams is back to work today.

Mrs. Byrge asked if next month's event from the Arts and Beautification Commission
could be advertised from the dais in meetings and be listed on the digital boards and
the City's website.

Mr. Chodkowski said that request will be taken up at tomorrow's City Staff meeting.

Mr. Lyons said regarding ZC 22-11, he and Mr. Chodkowski had received a lot of
emails about the development from the citizens who live in The Oaks.  He thanked
Mr. Chodkowski for responding to each individual personally.  

Mr. Shaw asked if Mr. Chodkowski had any updates on additional EV infrastructure
throughout the community in addition to the EV and hybrid vehicles.

Mr. Chodkowski said two or three electric vehicles were ordered under the Enterprise
Fleet Management to introduce these vehicles to the fleet and to see how they work. 
He said City Staff are waiting on modifications from AES in order to support EV
charging stations and are continuing to monitor that issue.  He said with respect to the
broader scope, that is not a subject he and City Staff have had, but he is happy to
follow up.

Mr. Shaw asked that Council consider adding the topic of EV infrastructure to a
Council Work Session.  He said Broad Reach is starting demolition work and, with the
acquisition of Marian Meadows, he feels moving forward, Council should heavily
consider installing that infrastructure in various locations in the City.

Mayor Gore said that item will be added to a future Council Work Session.

 
11.   Pending Business

 
  A.    An Ordinance Approving The Editing And Inclusion Of Certain Ordinances And/Or

Resolutions As Parts Of The Various Component Codes Of The City Code Of Huber
Heights, Ohio; Providing For The Adoption And Publication Of New Matter In The
Updated And Revised City Code As Supplement 9; And Repealing Ordinances And
Resolutions In Conflict Therewith.
(second reading)

  

 
  Clerk of Council Anthony Rodgers said this item is a standard legislation Council sees

regularly as part of updates to the City Code.  He said this item is Supplement 9 for the
period of October 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021.  

Mayor Gore said the Council Work Session recommendation was to adopt this item.

Mrs. Byrge moved to adopt; Mr. Campbell seconded the motion.  On a call of the
vote, Ms. Baker, Mr. Campbell, Mrs. Byrge, Mr. Otto, Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, Mr.
Webb, and Mr. Shaw voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes 8-0.

 
  B.    An Ordinance To Approve A Rezoning To Planned Residential And A Basic

Development Plan For The Property Located At 6502 Old Troy Pike And Further
Identified As Parcel Number P70 04004 0003 On The Montgomery County Auditor’s
Tax Map And Accepting The Recommendation Of The Planning Commission (Zoning
Case 21-34).
(seventh reading)

  

 
  Interim City Manager Bryan Chodkowski said the Annex Group had been looking to

4 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

March 28,     2022



  Interim City Manager Bryan Chodkowski said the Annex Group had been looking to
evaluate its financial model and its need for assistance from the City to make its
proposed project work.  He said City Staff received some information back from the
Annex Group prior to the Council Work Session and he had shared that information
with the City Council.  He said based on the conversations this body had previously as
well as communications with the Annex Group, City Staff would recommend Council
move to table this item indefinitely.

Mr. Campbell moved to postpone action indefinitely on Item 11-B at the seventh
reading; Ms. Baker seconded the motion.  

Mr. Otto said it feels to him that tabling it indefinitely takes it off the table indefinitely,
but he would prefer to just vote on this item and be done with it completely.  

Mr. Rodgers said this motion is basically a kill motion.  

Mr. Shaw said he would agree a vote taking place on this item would be more
appropriate, but he is fine moving forward with tabling the item.  

Mr. Webb said he would like to hear from legal counsel as to the implications of one
consideration or the other.  

Law Director Gerald McDonald said postponing action indefinitely on this item will
kill it.  He said voting no would kill the item, but someone could appeal that decision.  

On a call of the vote, Mr. Campbell, Mrs. Byrge, Mr. Otto, Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen,
Mr. Webb, Mr. Shaw, and Ms. Baker voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes
8-0.   

 
12.   New Business

 
  CITY COUNCIL

Anthony Rodgers, Clerk of Council

 
  A.    A Motion To Appoint Carla Staigl To The Culture And Diversity Citizen Action

Commission For A Term Ending December 31, 2024.
  

 
  Clerk of Council Anthony Rodgers said the background check on Ms. Staigl had been

completed, and he said this appointment was the recommendation of the interview
panel.  

Mayor Gore said the Council Work Session recommendation was to adopt this item.

Mr. Webb moved to adopt; Mrs. Kitchen seconded the motion.  On a call of the vote,
Mrs. Byrge, Mr. Otto, Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb, Mr. Shaw, Ms. Baker, and
Mr. Campbell voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes 8-0.

 
  B.    A Motion To Appoint Steve Zbinden And Herman Karhoff To The 2022

Comprehensive Development Plan Steering Committee.
  

 
  Mr. Rodgers said the recommendation was to make these two appointments this

evening.  He said the background checks have been completed on the individuals.  He
said there was a third individual who has been out of town and unable to complete the
release for the background check.  

Mayor Gore said the Council Work Session recommendation was to adopt this item.

Mrs. Byrge moved to adopt; Mr. Campbell seconded the motion.  On a call of the
vote, Mr. Otto, Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb, Mr. Shaw, Ms. Baker, Mr.
Campbell, and Mrs. Byrge voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes 8-0.

 

5 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

March 28,     2022



  C.    A Motion To Appoint Mayor Jeff Gore And Two Councilmembers To The 2022
Comprehensive Development Plan Steering Committee.

  

 
  Mr. Rodgers said this item was discussed at the Council Work Session and at that time

there were three Councilmembers who expressed an interest in serving on this
Steering Committee.  He said this item would be a discussion as to who to appoint of
the three individuals - Mrs. Byrge, Mr. Webb, and Mrs. Kitchen.

Mr. Campbell moved to appoint Mrs. Byrge, Mrs. Kitchen, and Mayor Gore to the
2022 Comprehensive Development Plan Steering Committee; Mr. Otto seconded the
motion.  On a call of the vote, Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb, Mr. Shaw, Ms.
Baker, Mr. Campbell, Mrs. Byrge, and Mr. Otto voted yea; none voted nay.  The
motion passes 8-0.

 
  ADMINISTRATION

Bryan Chodkowski, Interim City Manager

 
  D.    A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Increase The 2022 Not To Exceed

Amount With Vendor Landscape Structures/Penchura For The Purpose Of Purchasing
And Installing Playground Equipment For The City Of Huber Heights And Waiving
The Competitive Bidding Requirements.
(first reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski said this legislation is before Council due to a technical language

issue in Resolution No. 2022-R-7079 where City Staff tied both the purchase of the
equipment and the installation of the equipment together.  He said the
initial legislation was the authorization of money from a 2021 purchase order to
purchase the equipment, and now the City needs to pay for the installation.  He said
there is money in the 2022 City Budget to pay for that cost.  He said, based on this
technical issue, City Staff is asking Council to approve this item so that when the
product arrives, it can be installed as quickly as possible.  

Mr. Campbell moved to adopt; Mrs. Baker seconded the motion.  On a call of the vote,
Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb, Mr. Shaw, Ms. Baker, Mr. Campbell, Mrs. Byrge, Mr. Otto,
and Mr. Lyons voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes 8-0.

 
  E.    A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Apply For And Accept Grant Funds

From The Bureau Of Justice Assistance Bulletproof Vest Partnership For The Purpose
Of Purchasing Replacement Protective Body Armor.
(first reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski said this legislation is to authorize the grant application for the

bulletproof vest grant.  He said, if successfully awarded, the City will incur an
out-of-pocket expense of just under $6,000.  He said this money is available in the
2022 City Budget.  

Mr. Shaw moved to adopt; Mr. Otto seconded the motion.  On a call of the vote, Mr.
Webb, Mr. Shaw, Ms. Baker, Mr. Campbell, Mrs. Byrge, Mr. Otto, Mr. Lyons, and
Mrs. Kitchen voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes 8-0.

 
  F.    A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Award And Enter Into Contracts For

The 2022 Street Program.
(first reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski said this item is annual recurring legislation and he asked Council to

6 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

March 28,     2022



  Mr. Chodkowski said this item is annual recurring legislation and he asked Council to
adopt the item so City Staff may engage contractor John R. Jurgensen for this work in
2022.  He said the bids received were just over 7.4 percent above the City Engineer's
estimate.  He said at the last meeting, Council passed the related supplemental
appropriations, so sufficient funds will be available.  

Mr. Otto moved to adopt; Mr. Webb seconded the motion.  

Mrs. Kitchen said she wanted to state on the record again from Ward 4, she wants to
make sure the City looks at that area before doing any work regarding what is going
on with the water issues.

On a call of the vote, Mr. Shaw, Ms. Baker, Mr. Campbell, Mrs. Byrge, Mr. Otto, Mr.
Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, and Mr. Webb voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes
8-0.

 
13.   City Official Reports and Comments

 
  Mr. Otto welcomed the eight new police officers.  He said, with the athletic teams'

accomplishments, the City will have to expand the gateway signs to brag it up a little. 
He congratulated the Wayne Township/Huber Heights Historical Society and said he
and Mr. Shaw have probably written its name down so many times over the years to
get that money.  

Mr. Shaw said his complete report and analysis from his National League of Cities trip
in Washington D.C. will be available to Council as he has done for numerous years. 
He said he would be sending a lot of information via email to City Staff.  He said he
will be having additional conversations with in-state aides from Senator Portman's
office on different projects in the City which he thinks the City will receive a lot of
assistance on, one item being EV installations.

 
14.   Executive Session

 
  Mayor Gore said there is a need for an Executive Session.

Mr. Rodgers stated this is a motion to go into Executive Session to discuss pending or
imminent litigation.  

Mr. Campbell moved to go into Executive Session to discuss pending or imminent
litigation; Mrs. Kitchen seconded the motion.  On a call of the vote, Ms. Baker, Mr.
Campbell, Mrs. Byrge, Mr. Otto, Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb, and Mr. Shaw
voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes 8-0.

City Council went into Executive Session at 6:58 p.m.

City Council adjourned from Executive Session at 7:17 p.m.

Mr. McDonald read a motion to authorize the City Manager to enter into a mediation
settlement agreement in Montgomery County Case No. 2022 CV 00517 for RJK
Associates versus the City of Huber Heights Planning Commission.

Mr. Campbell moved to adopt the motion; Mr. Shaw seconded the motion.  On a call
of the vote, Mr. Campbell, Mrs. Byrge, Mr. Otto, Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb,
Mr. Shaw, and Ms. Baker voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes 8-0.

 
15.   Adjournment

 
Mayor Gore adjourned the Regular Session City Council Meeting at 7:18 p.m.  

7 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

March 28,     2022



Mayor Gore adjourned the Regular Session City Council Meeting at 7:18 p.m.  

  
____________________________
Clerk of Council

   ____________________________
Date

     
____________________________
Mayor

  ____________________________
Date

8 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

March 28,     2022



   
AI-8365     Minutes      B.        
City Council Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
Approval of Minutes - 4/11/22
Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers
Department: City Council
Council Committee Review?: None
Date(s) of Committee Review: N/A  
Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No
Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

N/A

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
City Council Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2022

Purpose and Background
Approval of the minutes from the April 11, 2022 City Council Meeting.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:
There are no financial implications to this agenda item.

Attachments
Minutes 



 

Present: Don Webb, Jeff Gore 

Absent: Richard Shaw, Kathleen Baker, Anita Kitchen, Mark Campbell, Ed Lyons, Nancy
Byrge, Glenn Otto 

 

1.  Call The Meeting To Order - Mayor Jeff Gore

 
  The Huber Heights City Council was scheduled to meet in Regular Session on April 11, 2022. 

Mayor Jeff Gore opened the meeting at 6:00 p.m.

Mayor Gore said the scheduled Public Hearings for Items 11-B, 11-C, and 11-D are hereby opened
for the sole purpose of continuing the Public Hearings until the April 25, 2022 City Council
Meeting due to lack of a quorum for the April 11, 2022 City Council Meeting.  He said due to the
lack of a quorum, the April 11, 2022 City Council Meeting has been cancelled.

Mayor Gore adjourned the Regular Session City Council Meeting at 6:00 p.m.

 

 

  
____________________________
Clerk of Council

  ____________________________
Date

   
____________________________
Mayor

 ____________________________
Date

1 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

April 11,      2022



   
AI-8331     Special Presentations/Announcements      A.        
City Council Meeting City Council    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
WHS Men's and Women's Bowling Teams Recognition and Proclamation Presentation
Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers
Department: City Council
Council Committee Review?: None
Date(s) of Committee Review: N/A  
Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No
Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

N/A

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
Wayne High School Men's And Women's Bowling Teams Recognition And Proclamation Presentation - Mayor Jeff Gore

Purpose and Background
Mayor Jeff Gore will be presenting proclamations and City coins to the players of the Wayne High School Men's and Women's
Bowling Teams in recognition of the Men's Bowling Team placing seventh and the Women's Bowling Team placing thirteenth
in the Ohio High School Athletic Association (OHSAA) Division 1 State Tournament. 

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Proclamation 



WHEREAS, the City of Huber Heights wishes to express its appreciation and 
admiration for a group of very special individuals who are most worthy of this highest 
mark of our favor; and 

WHEREAS, the Wayne High School Men’s and Women’s Bowling Teams
demonstrated high levels of competitive spirit and good sportsmanship by competing 
recently in the Ohio High School Athletic Association (OHSAA) Division 1 State 
Tournament on March 11-12, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the Men’s Bowling Team placed seventh and the Women’s Bowling Team placed
thirteenth in the Ohio High School Athletic Association (OHSAA) Division 1 State 
Tournament.  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jeff Gore, Mayor of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio do 
hereby extend our very best wishes for health, happiness, and continued success to: 

Wayne High School
Men’s and Women’s Bowling Teams

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this recognition is sealed by presenting to these
honored individuals a City coin fromthe City of Huber Heights as a token of our esteem.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the 
City of Huber Heights to be affixed this twenty-fifth day of April in the Year of Our 
Lord, Two Thousand and Twenty-Two.

JEFF GORE
MAYOR

City of Huber Heights
Mayoral Proclamation

SPECIAL RECOGNITION 



   
AI-8332     New Business      A.        
City Council Meeting City Council    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
2022 Comprehensive Development Plan Steering Committee - Citizen Appointments
Submitted By: Bryan Chodkowski
Department: Planning Division: Planning
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 03/22/2022 and
04/05/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

2022-M-452

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Motion To Appoint Matthew Shomper, Ronald Deak, Jen Sirucek, Scott Davidson, And Jeffrey
Held To The 2022 Comprehensive Development Plan Steering Committee.

Purpose and Background
The City has engaged YARD & Company to prepare an update to the City's Comprehensive
Development Plan (Comp Plan).  The Comp Plan is a document that looks at how the City has
developed over the last ten years, marries that data with various community perspectives about what
the community should look like in the future, and presents recommendations on how the City might want
to support or encourage growth over the next ten years.   While this effort will involve public input, a
steering committee is necessary to help the consultant and City Staff understand and prioritize public
input, fill in any informational gaps, as well as provide context to the vision of Huber Height’s future.

The City Council approved the establishment of the steering committee on March 14, 2022.  The City
Council recommends the appointment of Matthew Shomper, Ronald Deak, Jen Sirucek, Scott
Davidson, and Jeffrey Held as citizen members to the 2022 Comprehensive Development Plan
Steering Committee.  The City has completed background checks on all of these individuals through
Human Resources.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Application - M. Shomper 
Application - R. Deak 
Application - J. Sirucek 
Application - S. Davidson 
Application - J. Held 



























Board or Commission Applied For:       Date Applied: 
 

Application For  
City Boards and Commissions 

PLEASE COMPLETE ALL SECTIONS AND EACH QUESTION              
COMPLETELY AND ACCURATELY 

 
  

6131 Taylorsville Road 
Huber Heights, Ohio 45424 

Phone: (937) 233-1423 
Fax: (937) 233-1272 

www.hhoh.org 
An Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
 

Last Name             First Name         Middle Name 

Address             City        State    Zip Code 

EDUCATION 

Home Phone Number   Daytime Phone Number   E-mail Address  

 
      SCHOOL    COURSE OF STUDY 
          OR DEGREE EARNED 

     HIGH SCHOOL 

     COLLEGE 

     GRADUATE SCHOOL 

     OTHER (Specify) 

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

Please list all civic, community, or non-profit organizations to which you have belonged or         
currently do belong, and your dates of service. 

                  Organization       Dates of Service 

      

      

      

      

      
             
              
  

Jeffrey Held
Comprehensive Development Plan Steering Committee

Jeffrey Held
3/28/2022

Jeffrey Held
Held

Jeffrey Held
Jeffrey

Jeffrey Held
Franklin

Jeffrey Held
3203 Dry Run St

Jeffrey Held
Tipp City

Jeffrey Held
OH

Jeffrey Held
45371

Jeffrey Held
757-912-3852

Jeffrey Held
held.jeffrey@yahoo.com

Jeffrey Held
Pennsylvania State University

Jeffrey Held
BA Psychology

Jeffrey Held
Community College of the Air Force

Jeffrey Held
Associates of Intelligence Studies
Associates of Education

Jeffrey Held
H2Grow

Jeffrey Held
06/01/2019

Jeffrey Held
USAF Wright-Patterson Top 3

Jeffrey Held
10/1/2017

Jeffrey Held
E.L. Meyers High School



EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 

     Name of Employer                          Position(s) Held                    Dates of Employment 

      

      

      

      

      

REFERENCES 

Name                  Address             Telephone Number 

Name               Address            Telephone Number 

Name                 Address           Telephone Number 

STATEMENT OF INTEREST 

      
             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please tell us why you are interested in serving on this board or commission 

      
             
 

Jeffrey Held
USAF

Jeffrey Held
Superintendent

Jeffrey Held
2003-Present

Jeffrey Held
Danna Plewe

Jeffrey Held
6958 Charlesgate Rd, Huber Heights

Jeffrey Held
Don Webb

Jeffrey Held
Jeff Gore

Jeffrey Held
8801 Classic Ct, Huber Heights

Jeffrey Held
6967 Charlesgate Rd
Huber Heights�

Jeffrey Held
937-672-7272

Jeffrey Held
937-478-5231

Jeffrey Held
937-510-5772

Jeffrey Held
 

Jeffrey Held
     My wife and I plan to make Huber Heights our home.  I care very deeply about the future of Huber Heights,

and would be honored to help shape the future of it.  


     I believe the city is in a great position to take advantage of the numerous opportunities available to them.  The

Dayton are is become an area know for new technology development, Wright-State is graduating engineers and

other STEM and medical professionals every year, our proximity to interstate highways and the Dayton Airport

makes Huber Heights a community that can grow even more prosperous.  I would like to put what talent, skills,


and ideas I have to the benefit of our community.
�



REQUIREMENTS AND APPLICANT STATEMENT 

Are you at least 18 years of age?    □ Yes     □ No 
 
Do you currently reside in the City of Huber Heights?    □ Yes     □ No 
 
Have you resided in the City of Huber Heights for at least one year prior to making this  
application?    □ Yes     □ No 
 
Are you a registered voter?    □ Yes     □ No 
 
Are you willing to sign a release to allow the City of Huber Heights to perform a background screening and 
criminal records check?    □ Yes     □ No 

 
 
I certify that all of the information furnished in this application and its addenda are true and complete to the best of my knowledge.  
I understand that the City of Huber Heights may investigate the information I have furnished and I realize that any omissions,   
misrepresentation or false information in this application and/or its addenda may lead to revocation of any volunteer appointment. 
 
I hereby acknowledge that I, voluntarily and of my own free will, have applied for a volunteer position with the City of Huber 
Heights with the understanding that the City may use a variety of screening procedures to evaluate my qualifications and           
suitability for appointment.  I have been advised that these screening procedures might include, but are not limited to, interviews, 
criminal record checks, driving records checks and reference checks.  I also acknowledge that any such screening procedures, as 
reasonably required by the City of Huber Heights, are prerequisites to my appointment to a volunteer position with the City of  
Huber Heights.  
 
In addition, I also hereby understand that the City of Huber Heights cannot guarantee the confidentiality of the results of, or       
information obtained through the aforementioned screening procedures.  Decisions of the Ohio Supreme Court regarding the     
Ohio Public Records Act indicate that, with certain enumerated exceptions, records maintained by a governmental entity are a  
matter of public record and, should a proper request be made by a member of the public for such records, the governmental entity 
would be required to make such records available to that member of the public within a reasonable time.  Additionally, all        
information furnished in this application is subject to disclosure under the Ohio Public Records Act. 
 
Therefore, in consideration of my application being reviewed by the City of Huber Heights, under no legal disability, and on behalf 
of my heirs and assigns, hereby release and agree to hold harmless the City of Huber Heights and any of its agents, employees, or 
related officials from any and all liability, whatever the type and nature resulting from the administration of any such screening 
procedures and/or release of the results therefrom. 
 
 
 
 Signature                                    Date 

Jeffrey Held
x

Jeffrey Held
x

Jeffrey Held
x

Jeffrey Held
x

Jeffrey Held
I am currently in the process of changing my residency to Ohio and will register to vote as soon as I can

Jeffrey Held
x

Jeffrey Held
3/28/22



   
AI-8363     New Business      B.        
City Council Meeting City Council    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
Culture and Diversity Citizen Action Commission Appointment - B. Gulalieu
Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers
Department: City Council
Council Committee Review?: Council Work Session
Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/19/2022  
Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No
Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

2022-M-453

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Motion To Appoint Bayram Gulalieu To The Culture And Diversity Citizens Action Commission For A
Term Ending December 31, 2023.

Purpose and Background
The City's interview panel recommends the appointment of Bayram Gulalieu to the Culture and
Diversity Citizen Action Commission for a term ending December 31, 2023.  A background check on
Mr. Gulalieu was completed through Human Resources.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Application - B. Gulalieu 









   
AI-8362     New Business      C.        
City Council Meeting City Council    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
Liquor Permit #0055605 - Action Palace - 5605 Old Troy Pike
Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers
Department: City Council
Type of 
Liquor Permit:

New  

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

2022-M-454

Agenda Item Description
A Motion To Direct The Clerk Of Council To Respond To The Ohio Division Of Liquor Control With No
Objections In Reference To New Liquor Permit #0055605 For Action Palace At 5605 Old Troy Pike,
Huber Heights, Ohio 45424.

Review and Comments - Police Division
The Police Division has no objections to the approval of this liquor permit.

Review and Comments - Fire Division
The Fire Division has no objections to the approval of this liquor permit.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Liquor Permit 





   
AI-8369     New Business      D.        
City Council Meeting City Council    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
Liquor Permit Objection - Marathon - 7851 Old Troy Pike
Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers
Department: City Council
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/19/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

2022-R-7113

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Authorizing The Law Director To Register An Objection To A Liquor Permit Renewal And
Request A Hearing.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
This legislation is to authorize the City to object to the renewal of the liquor permit for the Marathon gas
station at 7851 Old Troy Pike.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-

AUTHORIZING THE LAW DIRECTOR TO REGISTER AN OBJECTION TO A LIQUOR 
PERMIT RENEWAL AND REQUEST A HEARING.

WHEREAS, Ohio Revised Code provides the City with the right to object to the renewal of a 
liquor permit and request a hearing by passing a Resolution specifying the reason for objecting; 
and

WHEREAS, the Law Director has recommended that the City object to the renewal of the liquor 
permit for Hai Radhe LLC DBA 7851 Marathon at 7851 Old Troy Pike, Huber Heights Ohio for 
the reason that the owners have operated the premises in a manner that demonstrates a disregard 
for the laws, regulations, or local ordinances and is so located with respect to the neighborhood 
that substantial interference with public decency, sobriety, peace or good order would result from 
the renewal of the permit and operation by the applicant.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The Law Director, or his designee, is authorized to object to the renewal of a 
liquor permit for Hai Radhe LLC DBA 7851 Marathon at 7851 Old Troy Pike, Huber Heights 
Ohio and request a hearing regarding same for the reason that the owners have operated the 
premises in a manner that demonstrates a disregard for the laws, regulations, or local ordinances 
and because the premises is so located with respect to the neighborhood that substantial 
interference with public decency, sobriety, peace or good order would result from the renewal of 
the permit and operation by the applicant.

Section 2.  It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal 
action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including 
Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022;
______  Yeas; ______  Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



   
AI-8333     New Business      E.        
City Council Meeting City Council    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
ZC 21-45 - Major Change - Basic and Detailed Development Plan - Kirmon Khalilov - 5840 Old Troy
Pike - Public Hearing
Submitted By: Geri Hoskins
Department: Planning Division: Planning
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/05/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

N/A

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Public Hearing Scheduled For April 25, 2022 By The Huber Heights City Council For Zoning Case
21-45.  The Applicant Is Kirmon Khalilov.  The Applicant Is Requesting Approval Of A Major Change To
The Basic And Detailed Development Plan In A PC (Planned Commercial) District For The Property
Located At 5840 Old Troy Pike And Further Described As Parcel ID P70 01923 0004 On The
Montgomery County Auditor's Map (Zoning Case 21-45).

Purpose and Background
The applicant, Kirmon Khalilov, is requesting approval of a Major Change to the Basic and Detailed
Development Plan for property located at 5840 Old Troy Pike (ZC 21-45).

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
AI-8334     New Business      F.        
City Council Meeting City Council    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
ZC BDP 22-07 - Basic Detailed Development - The Gables - Brandt Pike - Public Hearing
Submitted By: Geri Hoskins
Department: Planning
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/05/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

N/A

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Public Hearing Scheduled For April 25, 2022 By The Huber Heights City Council For Zoning Case
BDP 22-07.  The Applicant Is Charles Simms Development.  The Applicant Is Requesting Approval Of
A Basic Development Plan For Property Located At Brandt Pike North Of The Reserves At The
Fairways (Zoning Case BDP 22-07).

Purpose and Background
The applicant, Charles Simms Development, is requesting approval of a Basic Development Plan for
the property located on Brandt Pike and further identified as Parcel Number P70-03910-0057 on the
Montgomery County Auditor's Tax Map (ZC BDP 22-07).

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
AI-8323     New Business      G.        
City Council Meeting City Council    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
ZC BDP 22-08 - Amarjit Takhar - Rezoning/Basic Development Plan - State Route 235 - Public Hearing
Submitted By: Geri Hoskins
Department: Planning Division: Planning
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 4/19/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: SmartBoard Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

N/A

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Public Hearing Scheduled For April 25, 2022 By The Huber Heights City Council For Zoning Case
BDP 22-08.  The Applicant Is Amarjit Takhar.  The Applicant Is Requesting Approval Of A Basic
Development Plan And A Rezoning To PC (Planned Commercial) For Property Located At State Route
235 and Center Point 70 Boulevard And Further Identified As Parcel Numbers P70 03903 0005 And
P70 03903 0079 On The Montgomery County Auditor's Map.

Purpose and Background
The applicant, Amarjit Takhar, is requesting approval of a Basic Development Plan and a Rezoning to
PC (Planned Commercial) for 9 acres of a 35-acre parcel of property located at State Route 235 and
Center Point 70 Boulevard (Zoning Case BDP 22-08).

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
AI-8327     New Business      H.        
City Council Meeting City Council    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
ZC CBDP 22-11 - Campbell Berling Huber Heights, LLC - Rezoning/Combined Basic and Detailed
Development Plan -Bellefontaine Road - Public Hearing
Submitted By: Geri Hoskins
Department: Planning Division: Planning
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/19/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: SmartBoard Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

N/A

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Public Hearing Scheduled For April 25, 2022 By The Huber Heights City Council For Zoning Case
CBDP 22-11.  The Applicant Is Campbell Berling Huber Heights, LLC.  The Applicant Is Requesting
Approval Of A Combined Basic And Detailed Development Plan For 22.38 Acres And A Rezoning To
Planned Residential (PR) On The East Side Of Bellefontaine Road And South Of Chambersburg
Road And Further Described As Parcel Number P70 03908 0126 On The Montgomery County
Auditor's Map.

Purpose and Background
The applicant, Campbell Berling Huber Heights, LLC, is requesting approval of a Combined Basic and
Detailed Development Plan and a Rezoning for property located on Bellefontaine Road (Zoning Case
CBDP 22-11).

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
AI-8330     New Business      I.        
City Council Meeting City Council    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
ZC BDP 22-12 - Horizon Line Development - Rezoning/Basic Development Plan - 7125 Executive
Boulevard - Public Hearing
Submitted By: Geri Hoskins
Department: Planning Division: Planning
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/19/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: SmartBoard Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

N/A

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Public Hearing Scheduled For April 25, 2022 By The Huber Heights City Council For Zoning Case
BDP 22-12.  The Applicant Is Horizon Line Development.  The Applicant Is Requesting Approval Of A
Basic Development Plan And A Rezoning To Planned Mixed (PM) For Property Located At 7125
Executive Boulevard And Further Described As Parcel ID P70-03910-0005 On The Montgomery
County Auditor's Map.

Purpose and Background
The applicant, Horizon Line Development, is requesting approval of a Basic Development Plan and a
Rezoning to Planned Mixed (PM) for property located at 7125 Executive Boulevard (BDP 22-12).

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
AI-8335     New Business      J.        
City Council Meeting City Council    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
ZC ORD 22-16 Sidewalk Requirements - Public Hearing
Submitted By: Geri Hoskins
Department: Planning Division: Planning
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/05/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

N/A

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Public Hearing Scheduled For April 25, 2022 By The Huber Heights City Council For Zoning Case
ORD 22-16.  The Applicant Is The City Of Huber Heights.  The Applicant Is Requesting Approval Of
Proposed Changes To Sidewalks Requirements.

Purpose and Background
The applicant, the City of Huber Heights, is requesting approval of the Proposed Changes to the
Ordinance for Sidewalk Requirements (ZC ORD 22-16).

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
AI-8336     New Business      K.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
ZC 21-45 - Kirmon Khalilov - Major Change - Basic and Detailed Development Plan - 5840 Old Troy
Pike
Submitted By: Geri Hoskins
Department: Planning Division: Planning
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/05/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: SmartBoard Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Passed to
a Second
Reading

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
An Ordinance To Approve A Major Change To The Basic And Detailed Development Plan For The
Property Located At 5840 Old Troy Pike And Further Identified As Parcel Number P70-01923-0004 On
The Montgomery County Auditor’s Map And Rejecting The Recommendation Of The Planning
Commission (Zoning Case 21-45).
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
The applicant, Kirmon Khalilov, is requesting approval of a Major Change to the Basic and Detailed
Development Plan in a PC (Planned Commercial) District for the property located at 5840 Old Troy Pike
and further identified as Parcel Number P70-01923-0004 on the Montgomery County Auditor's Tax Map
(ZC 21-45).

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Drawing 
Picture 
Fire Assessment 
Staff Report 
Opposition Letters 
Decision Record 
Minutes 
Ordinance 









                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 

 

 
Administrative  Office:  7008 Brandt  Pike Huber Heights ,  Ohio  45424  

Telephone:   (937)  233 -  1564      Fax Number:  (937)  233 -  4520  

 

 Huber Heights Fire Division 
          

Plans reviewed by the Huber Heights Fire Division are reviewed with the intent they comply in ALL respects to this code, as prescribed in SECTION (D) 
104.1 of the 2017 Ohio Fire Code. Any omissions or errors on the plans or in this review do not relieve the applicant of complying with ALL applicable 
requirements of this code. These plans have been reviewed for compliance with the Ohio Fire Code adopted by this jurisdiction. There may be other 
regulations applicable under local, state, or federal statues and codes, which this department has no authority to enforce and therefore have not been 
evaluated as part of this plan review. 

 

 

Inspections require two business days advance notice! (OAC)1301:7-7-09(A)(5) 
 
 

Occupancy Name: Sarach – Proposed Car Lot 

Occupancy Address: 5840 Old Troy Pike 

 

Type of Permit: HHP&D Site Plan 

Additional Permits: Choose an item. 

Additional Permits: Choose an item. 

 

MCBR BLD: Not Yet Assigned HH P&D:  

MCBR MEC:  HHFD  Plan: 21-232 

MCBR ELE:  HHFD Box:  

REVIEWER: Susong DATE: 11/22/2021 
 

Fire Department Comments: 
The Huber Heights City Code Part 15 Refers to Fire Code Requirements and has adopted by reference OFC and IFC Appendices 

 

These comments are based only on the proposed site work, fire department access and 
basic fire protection concept at this time. A full plan review of the building systems, fire 
protection, egress and life safety will need to be conducted once the architectural plans 
have been submitted.  

 
Requirements: (Site Plan) 
 

• Driveways are existing and acceptable and appear to meet Ohio Fire Code 
requirements for turn radius. Parked cars shall not block fire department 
access. 

• A certificate of occupancy shall be applied for with Montgomery County 
Building Regulations, along with a permit application for any modifications 
to the building. 

 
 
 
   
 

Please reference contact information below for questions or concerns with this document. 
 
 
 



1

Memorandum
Staff Report for Meeting of February 15, 2022

To:                 Huber Heights City Planning Commission

From:             Aaron K. Sorrell, Interim City Planner
Community Planning Insights

Date:              February 9, 2022

Subject:         ZC 21-45 (Major Change to the Basic and Detailed Development Plan in a 
Planned Commercial District – 5840 Old Troy Pike.

Updated plans received January 12, 2022

Department of Planning and Zoning                        City of Huber Heights

APPLICANT/OWNER: Kirmon Khalilov – Applicant / Owner

DEVELOPMENT NAME:

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 5840 Old Troy Pike

ZONING/ACREAGE: Planned Commercial / 2.55 acres

EXISTING LAND USE: Auto detailing service

ZONING
ADJACENT LAND: North: O-1 & R-6; East: R-6; South: PC; West: PC 

REQUEST:                                   The applicant requests a major change to the Basic 
and Detailed Development Plan for a car dealer and 
auto service to prep the for-sale vehicles.   

ORIGINAL APPROVAL:              

APPLICABLE HHCC:    Chapter 1176, 1182

CORRESPONDENCE:               In Favor – None Received
                                           In Opposition – None Received



2

Overview 

This application was heard and tabled at the December 14, 2021 Planning Commission 
meeting. Based on the minutes, there was discussion about whether vehicles would be 
serviced on site, existing buffering between the adjacent funeral home, and moving the 
parking setback significantly closer to Old Troy Pike. 

The applicant has submitted a revised plan which:
 Includes auto sales and service as the primary use;
 Added a masonry dumpster enclosure to the rear of the lot;
 Added a 42-inch hedge as screening between the front parking area and the 

funeral home parking area;
 Illustrates possible building expansion for garage bays and/or possible office; and 
 Added three 25-foot light poles (two in front, one at the rear). 

No other substantial changes were submitted.

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION:

This analysis will focus on the changes to the proposal since the application was tabled 
at the December 14, 2021 meeting:

Vehicle Display and Landscaping 
The revised plan includes a 42” hedge, 60-feet long, between the display area and the 
property line. While this does help buffer the display area from the adjoining property, 
the proposed plan reduces the existing required yard buffer from 15-feet (required in the 
PC District) to approximately 7-feet. 

The code states:
1176.03 (b)(1):  All yards within the development plan except those abutting a Business 
or Industrial District shall be maintained in landscaping and not used for parking, to the 
extent of a minimum of 15 feet along property lines.

Both the original and revised plan locate the vehicle display area 25-feet from the right-
of-way. While this meets the zoning standards for a parking area, the proposed plan 
shows three tightly packed display rows. This will have a greater visual impact along 
Old Troy Pike than a traditional parking area with one row of parked vehicles, separated 
by a 20-foot drive aisle. Additionally, parking areas of this size would be required to 
have interior parking landscaping to break up the mass of the vehicles and reduce 
storm water runoff. There are little to no recently developed uses within the vicinity that 
have such concentrated vehicular display or parking areas.



3

Conformance with Zoning Regulations
The proposed vehicle sales and service uses are permitted uses within the Planned 
Commercial district, if the Planning Commission approves such uses.  At this time, there 
are no vehicle sales uses in this area of Old Troy Pike.  

The proposed site plan brings the site out of conformance with the yard standards set in 
1176.03(b)(1), described above.  

If the Planning Commission deems the vehicle display area as a parking area, the site 
plan is not in conformance with the parking requirements found in Chapter 1185. 

Standards for Approval

1171.06 General Standards For Approval

The Planning Commission shall review the application, prepared development plan and the facts 
presented at the hearing. The applicant shall have the burden of proof. No approval shall be given 
unless the Commission shall find by a preponderance of the evidence that such PUD on the
proposed locations:

(a) Is consistent with official thoroughfare plan, comprehensive development plan and other 
applicable plans and policies;

(b) Could be substantially completed within the period of time specified in the schedule of 
development submitted by the developer;

(c) Is accessible from public roads that are adequate to carry the traffic that shall be imposed upon 
them by the proposed development. Further, the streets and driveways on the site of the proposed 
development shall be adequate to serve the residents or occupants of the proposed development;

(d) Shall not impose an undue burden on public services such as utilities, fire and police 
protection, and schools;

(e) Contains such proposed covenants, easements and other provisions relating to the proposed 
development standards as may reasonably be required for the public health, safety and welfare;

(f) Shall be landscaped or otherwise improved and the location and arrangement of structures, 
parking areas, walks, lighting and appurtenant facilities shall be compatible with the existing 
intended uses, and any part of a PUD not used for structures, parking and loading areas, or 
accessways;

(g) Shall preserve natural features such as water courses, trees and rock outcrops, to the degree 
possible, so that they can enhance the overall design of the PUD;

(h) Is designed to take advantage of the existing land contours in order to provide satisfactory road 
gradients and suitable building lots and to facilitate the provision of proposed services;

(i) Shall place underground all electric and telephone facilities, street light wiring and other wiring 
conduits and similar facilities in any development which is primarily designed for or occupied by 
dwellings, unless waived by the Commission because of technical reasons;



4

(j) Shall not create excessive additional requirements at public cost of public facilities and services 
and shall not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community;

(k) Shall not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment and conditions of operation 
that shall be detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare by reason of excessive 
production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors; and

(l) Rezoning of the land to the PUD District and approval of the development plan shall not 
adversely affect the public peace, health, morals, safety or welfare.

Staff Analysis
As proposed, it is the staff’s opinion that the site becomes less conforming to the zoning 
code than it currently exists.  This includes yard standards, and parking layout and 
design. 

Additional Comments:

Fire:  

City Engineer:

Planning Commission Action

The Planning Commission may:
1) Approve the Basic and Detailed Development Plan;
2) Deny the Basic and Detailed Development Plan; or 
3) Table the decision.









Planning Commission Decision Record

WHEREAS, on November 2, 2021, the applicant, Kirmon Khalilov, requested 
approval of a Major Change to the Basic and Detailed Development Plan in a PC
(Planned Commercial) District for the property located at 5840 Old Troy Pike, 
further identified as Parcel Number P70-01923-0004 on the Montgomery County 
Auditor’s Tax Map (Zoning Case 21-45); and

WHEREAS, on March 15, 2022, the Planning Commission did meet and fully 
discuss the details of the request.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission hereby 
recommended approval of the request.

Ms. Thomas moved to recommend approval of the Major Change application 
submitted by the applicant, Kirmon Khalilov, requesting approval of a Major 
Change to the Basic Development Plan in a PC (Planned Commercial) District for 
the property located at 5840 Old Troy Pike, further identified as Parcel Number 
P70-01923-0004 on the Montgomery County Auditor’s Tax Map (Zoning Case 21-
45), with the following conditions:

1. The approved plans shall be the plans stamped received by the City of Huber 
Heights Planning Department on March 15, 2022, except as modified herein.  

2. The applicant shall comply with all Fire and Building Codes prior to occupancy.

3. The parking lot shall have a minimum of 11 parking spaces striped with 1 of 
those designated ADA accessible.

4. Lighting shall meet the requirements of City Code 1181.21.

5. The only use approved in this decision record is the sale and service of
automobiles.



Decision Record ZC 21-45                                                                          Page - 2

2

6. All automobiles shall be parked on a paved or concrete surface.

Seconded by Ms. Vargo. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo. NAYS: Mr. 
Jeffries, Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. Motion to recommend approval denied
3-1.

_____________________________ _______________
Terry Walton, Chair Date
Planning Commission

  



Planning Commission
March 15, 2022, Meeting

City of Huber Heights

I. Chair Terry Walton called the meeting to order at approximately 6:01 p.m.

II. Present at the meeting:  Mr. Jeffries, Ms. Thomas, Ms. Vargo and Mr. Walton.

Members absent: Ms. Opp

Staff Present: Aaron K. Sorrell, Interim City Planner, and Geri Hoskins, Planning 
& Zoning Administrative Secretary.

III. Opening Remarks by the Chairman and Commissioners

IV. Citizens Comments

None.

V. Swearing of Witnesses

Mr. Walton explained the proceedings of tonight’s meeting and administered the 
sworn oath to all persons wishing to speak or give testimony regarding items on 
the agenda. All persons present responded in the affirmative.

VI. Pending Business

1. MAJOR CHANGE – The applicant, Kirmon Khalilov, is requesting 
approval of a Major Change to the Basic and Detailed Development 
Plan in a Planned Commercial District for 2.55 acres at 5840 Old Troy 
Pike (ZC 21-45).

Mr. Sorrell stated that this application was heard and tabled at the December 14, 
2021, Planning Commission meeting. Based on the minutes, there was 
discussion about whether vehicles would be serviced on site, existing buffering 
between the adjacent funeral home, and moving the parking setback significantly 
closer to Old Troy Pike. 

The applicant has submitted a revised plan which:
 Includes auto sales and service as the primary use;
 Added a masonry dumpster enclosure to the rear of the lot;
 Added a 42-inch hedge as screening between the front parking area and the 

funeral home parking area;
 Illustrates possible building expansion for garage bays and/or possible office; 

and 
 Added three 25-foot light poles (two in front, one at the rear). 

No other substantial changes were submitted.



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

2

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION:

This analysis will focus on the changes to the proposal since the application was 
tabled at the December 14, 2021, meeting:

Vehicle Display and Landscaping 
The revised plan includes a 42” hedge, 60-feet long, between the display area 
and the property line. While this does help buffer the display area from the 
adjoining property, the proposed plan reduces the existing required yard buffer 
from 15-feet (required in the PC District) to approximately 7-feet. 

The code states:
1176.03 (b)(1):  All yards within the development plan except those abutting a
Business or Industrial District shall be maintained in landscaping and not used for 
parking, to the extent of a minimum of 15 feet along property lines.

Both the original and revised plan locate the vehicle display area 25-feet from the
right-of-way. While this meets the zoning standards for a parking area, the 
proposed plan shows three tightly packed display rows. This will have a greater 
visual impact along Old Troy Pike than a traditional parking area with one row of 
parked vehicles, separated by a 20-foot drive aisle. Additionally, parking areas of 
this size would be required to have interior parking landscaping to break up the 
mass of the vehicles and reduce storm water runoff. There are little to no recently 
developed uses within the vicinity that have such concentrated vehicular display 
or parking areas.

Conformance with Zoning Regulations
The proposed vehicle sales and service uses are permitted uses within the 
Planned Commercial district, if the Planning Commission approves such uses.  
At this time, there are no vehicle sales uses in this area of Old Troy Pike.  

The proposed site plan brings the site out of conformance with the yard 
standards set in 1176.03(b)(1), described above.  

If the Planning Commission deems the vehicle display area as a parking area, 
the site plan is not in conformance with the parking requirements found in 
Chapter 1185. 

Staff Analysis
As proposed, it is the staff’s opinion that the site becomes less conforming to the 
zoning code than it currently exists.  This includes yard standards, and parking 
layout and design. 
#5 in the Decision Record would read the only use approved is the sale and 
service automobiles.
Strike # 7 from the Decision Record.
Revise to March 15, 2022.

Chad spoke on behalf of the applicant.



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

3

Action

Ms. Thomas moved to approve the request by the applicant Kirmon Khalilov, for 
approval of a Major Change to the Basic and Detailed Plan in a Planned 
Commercial District for 2.55 acres at 5840 Old Troy Pike (ZC 21-45).

Seconded by Ms. Vargo. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo. NAYS: Mr. Jeffries, 
Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. Motion to approve denied 3-1.

All three Nays stated no similar uses in the area.
Case moves to City Council

VII. New Business

1. MINOR CHANGE - The applicant, Atlantic Sign Company, is requesting 
approval of a Minor Change for Signage at Camping World located at 8001 
Old Troy Pike (MC 22-09).

Mr. Sorrell stated that the applicant requests approval to replace existing wall 
signs due to the acquisition of Gander Outdoors by Camping World.  The net 
effect of the change is an overall reduction in wall sign area.  

Original Approval
As you can see below, the amount of approved and/or installed wall sign area 
has changed over the years:

September 2004 962 SF
July 2012 666 SF
September 2018 562 SF

Current Application
The applicant seeks a minor change to replace one internally illumined wall sign 
and remove one existing internally illuminated wall sign. Two existing wall signs 
remain unchanged. The total wall sign area will be reduced from approximately 
562 SF to approximately 429 SF. 

The applicant seeks a minor change to replace one internally illumined wall sign 
and remove one existing internally illuminated wall sign. Total wall sign area will 
be reduced from approximately 562 SF to approximately 429 SF, a reduction of 
approximately 23%. 

Brooke Alini from Atlantic Sign Company was there for any questions.

Action

Ms. Vargo moved to approve the request by the applicant Atlantic Sign Company
for approval of a Minor Change for Signage at Camping World located at 8001 
Old Troy Pike (MC 22-09) in accordance with the recommendation of Staff’s 



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

4

Memorandum dated March 8, 2022, and the Planning Commission Decision 
Record attached thereto.

Seconded by Mr. Jeffries. Roll call showed: YEAS: Mr. Jeffries, Ms. Thomas,
Ms. Vargo, and Mr. Walton.  NAYS: None.  Motion to approve carried 4-0.

2. BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN - The applicant, Charles V. Simms 
Development, is requesting approval of a Basic Development Plan for the 
Gables of Huber Heights, located on Brandt Pike North of the Reserves at 
the Fairways (BDP 22-07).

Mr. Sorrell stated that the applicant requests approval of a basic development 
plan to construct 74 condominiums in 11 buildings on 15.93 acres, which yields 
an average density of 4.64 units/acre. Approximately 64% of the site is open 
space (10.20 acres).

This land was originally approved as part of The Reserves at the Fairways, a 
similar condominium development immediately south of the project site.  

Conformance with Zoning Regulations
The proposal largely conforms to the regulations outlined in Chapter 1179, 
Planned Mixed Use District (PM):

 Residential uses are permitted in the district and the buildings meet the setback 
requirement of 15-feet between residential buildings. 

 Buildings are clustered and a large, usable greenspace area is proposed in the 
development. Approximately 64% of the site is open space, including detention 
areas.

 Walking paths are included throughout the development.
 Site access is limited to one private drive from Brandt Pike.  A secondary 

emergency exit is proposed at the cul-de-sac terminus and connects to an 
existing private street (Salon Circle). 

 Parking will be provided through a mixture of garage and driveway spaces and 
various guest parking areas.  A total of 334 spaces are provided, 222 are 
required. 

 A six-foot high landscaping mound is provided to buffer the open space area 
from the existing development to the south.

 Lighting will be provided through a combination of exterior building lights and 
lamp posts along walking and parking areas.

 Proposed building elevations indicate substantial use of masonry products on the 
front elevations of the buildings.

Other Considerations
 The applicant has agreed to enlarge the private street width to 27 feet, as 

required by 1111.04 of the subdivision regulations. 

Staff Analysis

As outlined above, this land was originally envisioned and approved as a 
condominium development and has sat fallow for nearly 20-years. Staff feels the 
proposed basic development plan meets the requirements of the PM District and 
the general standards for approval outlined in Section 1171.06.  



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

5

Additional Comments:

Fire:  See Attached.  The applicant will comply will all fire code requirements.

City Engineer:
 The water and sanitary sewer lines are to be public lines made of City standard 

materials and they are to be in easements.
 The entrance off of Brandt Pike should be a minimum 36’ wide with one lane in 

and two lanes out.  

Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the basic development plan submitted on January 
28, 2022, with the following conditions:

 Applicant shall comply will all fire code requirements.
 The minimum private street pavement width shall be 27 feet.
 The water and sanitary sewer lines are to be public lines made of City standard 

materials and they are to be in easements.
 The entrance off of Brandt Pike should be a minimum 36’ wide with one lane in 

and two lanes out.

Planning Commission Action

Planning Commission may take the following actions with a motion to: 
1) Approve the basic development plan application, with or without conditions.
2) Deny the basic development plan.
3) Table the application in order to gather additional information.

Robert Simms
John Moore
Barry Payne
James Moore
Christine Olinsky

Amended Decision Record to add #5, Brandt Pike road improvements may 
be needed subject to approval by the City Engineer for changing stripping 
and painting of future left lane.

Action

Mr. Jeffries moved to approve the request by the applicant Charles V. Simms 
Development, for approval of a Basic Development Plan for the Gables of Huber 
Heights, P70 03910 0057 of the Montgomery County Records Map (BDP 22-07)
in accordance with the recommendation of Staff’s Memorandum dated March 7, 
2022, and the Planning Commission Decision Record attached thereto.

Seconded by Ms. Thomas. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo, Mr. Jeffries,
Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: None.  Motion to approve carried 4-0.

Move to City Council



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

6

3. BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN - The applicant, Amarjit Takhar, is requesting 
approval of a Basic Development Plan and Rezoning to (Planned 
Commercial) PC for 35 acres at State Route 35 for a Service Station (BDP 
22-08).

Mr. Sorrell stated that the applicant has provided some preliminary revised plans.  
The applicant requests approval of a basic development plan and rezoning to 
Planned Commercial District to construct a fueling center, convenience store, 
truck stop and diesel repair facility on approximately nine (9) acres of a 35-acre 
parcel. The site is adjacent to the I-70 / SR 235 interchange.

The land is currently zoned “I-1” Light Industrial and Mixed-Use District.   The 
surrounding lands are predominantly zoned I-1 and used for manufacturing or 
logistics purposes.  There is a significant amount of agricultural / vacant land 
immediately east of this site in Clark County that has development potential but 
limited access to SR 235 and I-70.

The proposed service station and diesel repair facilities are Special Uses within 
the existing I-1 zoning district.  The convenience store is not a principally 
permitted use in the existing I-1 zoning district.  

There is an existing service station with convenience store adjacent to this site 
zoned Planned Commercial.

On-Site Uses and Facilities
The applicant is proposing two buildings, one 6,720 SF building containing a 
convenience store and restaurant, and the second 6,642 SF diesel truck repair 
facility.  Both buildings are proposed to be clad with a mix of brick and stucco 
EFIS.

Fuel will be dispensed through one five-pump island in front of the convenience 
store, and a second five-pump island located at the rear of the property for semi-
trucks and large oversized vehicles. Both fueling islands will be covered by large 
canopies.

Parking is provided throughout the site.  The applicant is proposing 62 parking 
spaces, including 10 for semi-trucks.  

Applicable Zoning Regulations
The appliable zoning chapters include: 1171 General Provisions, 1176 Planned 
Commercial District, 1181 General Provisions, 1182 Landscaping and Screening, 
1185 Parking and Loading.  The relevant sections are citied below: 

Staff Analysis
The analysis below is based on the application and drawings originally submitted 
as a Planned Industrial District.  Staff realized this application was in error, but 
not in time to enable the applicant to revise the drawings for this meeting.  
Additionally, staff has been in discussion with the applicant to reconfigure the site 
plan to allow for a future extension of Center Point 70 Blvd.  The applicant has 
agreed to make these accommodations and is working on these revisions.



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

7

Conformance with Zoning Regulations:

1176 (PC) Planned Commercial District

The proposed uses are principally permitted in the PC district.  The current plan
indicates a 10-foot perimeter buffer yard, which must be 15-feet. All other 
standards for this Chapter are met. 

Chapter 1181 General Provisions

The proposal meets the requirements of Chapter 1181, with the exception of the 
following items are not in compliance or not illustrated on the Basic Development 
Plan:

 Street trees shall be placed every 40-feet along the public street.
 No exterior lighting plan was submitted.  Unless otherwise directed by the 

Planning Commission, parking light fixtures shall not exceed 25 feet in height.

Chapter 1182 Landscaping and Screening Standards

The Basic Development Plan indicates potential locations for landscape islands 
and trees within the parking areas.  Additional detail shall be provided during the 
detailed development plan phase. 

Chapter 1185 Parking and Loading

The proposal generally meets the requirements of Chapter 1185.  The applicant 
is illustrating parking island landscaping. The maximum required number of 
parking spaces required is approximately 67 total spaces.  The plan indicates 62 
proposed spaces.  The number of required parking spaces is likely to decrease 
once the final area of the convenience store (less storage) and restaurant are 
determined. 

Chapter 1193 Trailers, Trucks, Recreational Vehicles, Boats, Farm or 
Construction Equipment

The proposal meets the requirements of this chapter which limits the number of 
semi parking spaces to no more than ten spaces.  The plans indicate ten spaces 
that are correctly dimensioned. 

Other Considerations:

The original submission illustrates a driveway that aligns with Center Point 70 
Boulevard.  This alignment would severely limit any future expansion of the 
roadway to the east.  Staff has asked the applicant to redesign the site to allow a 
future extension of Center Point 70 by moving the gas pumps and store further 
south and/or changing their alignment.  This will enable the roadway to be 
extended in the future with less disruption to the business.  This extension would 
also provide hundreds of acres of potential development lands with better access 
to I-70.  The applicant has agreed, and is currently working on these revisions.    



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

8

Additional Comments:

Fire:  See Attached.  The applicant will comply will all fire code requirements.

City Engineer:
  
Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning from I-1 to Planned Commercial and 
approval of the basic development plan with the following conditions:

 A 15-foot buffer yard shall be illustrated on the basic development plan
 Street trees shall be placed every 40-feet
 The applicant shall revise the alignment and location of the gas pumps and 

convenience store to allow for a future extension of Center Point 70 Boulevard.
 Applicant shall comply with all fire code requirements.
 Prior to submission to City Council for review and approval, applicant shall 

resubmit a basic development plan that conforms with the conditions above.

Planning Commission Action

Planning Commission may take the following actions with a motion to: 
4) Approve the rezoning and basic development plan application, with or without 

conditions.
5) Deny the basic development plan.
6) Table the application in order to gather additional information.

Chris Besecker

Action

Mr. Jeffries moved to table the request by the applicant Amarjit Takhar, for 
approval of a Basic Development Plan and Rezoning to Planned Commercial 
(PC) to construct a fueling center, convenience store, truck stop and diesel repair 
facility on approximately nine (9) acres of a 35-acre parcel located on the East 
side of intersection of SR 235 and Center Point 70 Blvd, Parcel Numbers P70-
03903-0079 and P70-03903-0005 of the Montgomery County Records Map (BDP 
22-08) in accordance with the recommendation of Staff’s Memorandum dated 
March 10, 2022, and the Planning Commission Decision Record attached 
thereto.

Seconded by Ms. Thomas. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo, Mr. Jeffries,
Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: None.  Motion to table carried 4-0.

4. BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN - The applicant, DEC Land Co., I LLC, is 
requesting approval of a Detailed Development Plan and Final Plat for 
Section 7, Phase 5 of the Carriage Trails Development (DDP 22-10).



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

9

Mr. Sorrell stated that the applicant requests approval of the detailed 
development plan and final plat for section seven, phase five of the Carriage 
Trails subdivision.  This phase contains 65 lots on approximately 17.34 acres. 

Conformance with Zoning Regulations
The detailed development plan conforms to the regulations outlined in Chapter 
1179, Planned Mixed Use District and the basic development plan approved by 
City Council.  

The mixture of lot sizes (approximately) are:

60 feet x 130 feet: 53 lots
66 feet x 130 feet: 3 lots
70 feet x 130 feet: 3 lots
77 feet x 130 feet: 6 lots

Minimum yard setbacks: 
Front & Rear: 25 feet

  Side:    5 feet

The HOA covenants have the following applicable requirements and restrictions:

 Uses: Limited to a single-family residence
 Building material:  The covenants require a minimum of 50% of the single-family 

homes within each subareas shall have front façade of no less than 25% 
masonry materials. 

 Accessory Buildings:  No larger than 10’ x 10’ shed.
 Fences: Limited to the rear yard, no higher than 4-feet. Chain link fencing is 

prohibited.

The HOA will be responsible for the care and maintenance of all common areas. 

Staff Analysis
The applicant requests approval of the detailed development plan and final plat 
for section seven, phase five of the Carriage Trails subdivision.  This phase 
contains 65 lots on approximately 17.34 acres, which is approximately 3.7 units 
per acre. 

It is important to note that the current municipal boundary bisects lots 1 – 36 
because the annexation has not yet been completed.  The developer plans to 
build out the street infrastructure, but not fully plat lots 1 - 36 until the annexation 
is complete.  Staff is supportive of this approach on the condition that no zoning 
permit shall be issued for lots 1 – 36 until such time as these lots are fully platted
and recorded within the City of Huber Heights.     

Additional Comments:

Fire:  See attached



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

10

City Engineer:
 The temporary cul-de-sac near the intersection of Arrowwood Street and 

Woodmint Drive is not required and can be removed if desired. 

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of the detailed development plan submitted on 
February 18, 2022, with the condition that that no zoning permit shall be issued 
for lots 1 – 36 until such time as these lots are fully platted and recorded within 
the City of Huber Heights.     

Planning Commission Action

Planning Commission may take the following actions with a motion to: 
7) Approve the Detailed Development Plan; or,
8) Deny the Detailed Development Plan.

Ken Conaway

Action

Mr. Jeffries moved to approve the request by the applicant DEC Land Co. I LLC, 
for approval of the Detailed Development Plan and Final Plat for section 7, Phase 
5 of the Carriage Trails subdivision (DDP 22-10) in accordance with the 
recommendation of Staff’s Memorandum dated March 8, 2022, and the Planning 
Commission Decision Record attached thereto.

Seconded by Ms. Thomas. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo, Mr. Jeffries,
Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: None.  Motion to approve carried 4-0.

VIII.     Additional Business

1. Proposed Change to an Existing Ordinance for Planning Commission 
Recommendation for Sidewalks and Curb Associated with all New 
Development within the City (ORD 22-16).

Action

Ms. Vargo moved to approve the request by the applicant The City of Huber 
Heights, for a proposed change to an Existing Ordinance for Sidewalks and Curb 
Associated with all New Development within the City (ORD 22-16).

Seconded by Ms. Thomas. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo, Mr. Jeffries,
Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: None.  Motion to approve carried 4-0.

IX. Approval of the Minutes

Without objection, the minutes of the January 25, 2022, and February 15, 2022, 
Planning Commission meeting are approved.



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

11

X. Reports and Calendar Review

Rezoning State Route 235
Basic Development Plan Brandt Pike, North of the Reserves
Comprehensive Plan Mid-April, Yard, Inc.

XI. Upcoming Meetings

March 15, 2022
March 29, 2022

XII. Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting
was adjourned at approximately 8:05 p.m.

__________________________________ _____________________________
Terry Walton, Chair Date

__________________________________ _____________________________
Geri Hoskins, Administrative Secretary Date



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-O-

TO APPROVE A MAJOR CHANGE TO THE BASIC AND DETAILED DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 5840 OLD TROY PIKE AND FURTHER IDENTIFIED 
AS PARCEL NUMBER P70-01923-0004 ON THE MONTGOMERY COUNTY AUDITOR’S
MAP AND REJECTING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION
(ZONING CASE 21-45).

WHEREAS, the citizens of Huber Heights require the efficient and orderly planning of land uses 
within the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Planning Commission has reviewed Zoning Case 21-45 and on March 15, 
2022, recommended denial by a vote of 3-1 of the Major Change to the Basic and Detailed 
Development Plan; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the issue.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The application requesting approval of a Major Change to the Basic and Detailed 
Development Plan in a PC (Planned Commercial) District (Zoning Case 21-45) is hereby approved 
with the following conditions:

1. Uses shall be limited to automobile sales and minor service of for-sale vehicles only.
2. The applicant shall comply with all Fire and Building Codes prior to occupancy.
3. The parking and display area shall be designed and striped to meet the parking 

requirements of Chapter 1185.
4. Lighting shall meet the requirements of City Code 1181.21.

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Ordinance shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the_____ day of _________, 2022;
          Yeas;           Nays.

Effective Date:  

AUTHENTICATION:

_____________________________ _____________________________
Clerk of Council Mayor

_____________________________ ______________________________
Date Date



   
AI-8337     New Business      L.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
ZC BDP 22-07 - Charles Simms Development - The Gables - Basic Development Plan - Brandt Pike
Submitted By: Geri Hoskins
Department: Planning Division: Planning
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/05/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: SmartBoard Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Passed to a
Second
Reading

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
An Ordinance To Approve A Basic Development Plan For The Property Located On Brandt Pike North
Of The Reserves At The Fairways And Further Identified As Parcel Number P70-03910-0057 On The
Montgomery County Auditor’s Map And Accepting The Recommendation Of The Planning Commission
(Zoning Case BDP 22-07).
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
The applicant, Charles Simms Development, is requesting approval of a Basic Development Plan.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Drawings 
Elevations 
Traffic Impact Study 
Stormwater Memorandum 
Fire Assessment 
Resident Letter 
Staff Report 
Decision Record 
Minutes 
Ordinance 



BR
AN

DT
 P

IK
E 

(O
H-

20
1

LY
ON

 S
T 

(P
RI

VA
TE

)

SA
LO

N 
CI

R 
(P

RI
VA

TE
)

MONTE CARLO WAY (PRIVATE)

SALON CIR (PRIVATE)

SALON CIR (PRIVATE)

EX 24" INV = 942.08

EX STREAM

EX 36" INV  = 942.48

EX 36" INV  = 942.97 EX 12" INV  = 944.68

EX 4' X 6' ELLIPTICAL RCP
 INV = 934.18

EX STM MH
RIM= 942.73

EX STM CB
RIM= 943.27

EX STM CB
RIM= 943.26

EX STM MH
RIM= 943.95

EX STM CB
RIM= 943.75

EX BUILDING
EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

EX STM CB
RIM= 944.08

EX STM CB
RIM= 944.15

EX STM CB
RIM= 944.79

EX STM MH
RIM= 945.52

EX STM CB
RIM= 944.90

EX STM CB
RIM= 946.74

EX STM CB
RIM= 946.26

EX STM CB
RIM= 945.79

EX STM MH
RIM= 945.36

EX STM CB
RIM= 944.96

EX STM MH
RIM= 944.34

EX STM CB
RIM= 943.79

EX STM CB
RIM= 944.23

EX STM CB
RIM= 945.84

EX STM MH
RIM= 945.83

EX STM CB
RIM= 946.63

EX STM CB
RIM= 946.41

EX STM MH
RIM= 947.32

EX STM MH
RIM= 948.35

EX STM CB
RIM= 946.98

EX STM CB
RIM= 942.86

EX STM CB
RIM= 942.73

EX STM CB
RIM= 942.80

EX STM MH
RIM= 943.39

EX STM CB
RIM= 943.22

EX STM CB
RIM= 943.28

EX STM CB
RIM= 943.36

EX STM CB
RIM= 940.62 EX 24" INV =935.94

EX 24" STM

EX 12" STM

EX 12" STM

EX 24" STM

EX SAN MH
RIM = 942.56

EX SAN MH
RIM = 943.88

EX SAN MH
RIM = 945.06

EX SAN MH
RIM = 946.16

EX SAN MH
RIM = 945.81

EX SAN MH
RIM = 944.14

EX SAN MH
RIM = 944.23

EX ASPHALT ROAD

EX ASPHALT ROAD

EX
 A

SP
HA

LT
 R

OA
D

EX
 A

SP
HA

LT
 R

OA
D

EX ASPHALT ROAD

EX ASPHALT ROAD

EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

EX ASPHALT ROADEX DUMPSTER

BR
AN

DT
 P

IK
E

(O
H-

20
1)

EX PVMT
MARKING

EX 8' SIDEWALK

EX BARE FIELD

EX BRUSH

EX BRUSH

EX TREES

EX TREES
EX BARE FIELD

EX LAWN AREA

EX BARE FIELD

PN: P70 03910 0057
OWNER: TREBEIN LIMITED ADK IV

10.959 ACRES
ZONED: PM

PN: P70 00320 0020
OWNER: TREBEIN LIMITED ADK IV

1.294 ACRES
ZONED: PM

PN: P70 00320 0012
OWNER: TREBEIN LIMITED ADK IV
0.088ACRES
ZONED: PM

PN: P70 00320 0018
OWNER: TREBEIN LIMITED ADK IV

2.670 ACRES
ZONED: PM

PN: P70 00320 0019
OWNER: TREBEIN LIMITED ADK IV

0.757 ACRES
ZONED: PM

PN: P70 00320 0011
OWNER: TREBEIN LIMITED ADK IV

0.009 ACRES
ZONED: PM

PN: P70 00320 0010
OWNER: TREBEIN LIMITED ADK IV
0.064 ACRES
ZONED: PM

PN: P70 03910 0056
OWNER: CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS

13.327 ACRES
ZONED: PM

PN: P70 03910 0056
OWNER: MONTGOMERY COUNTY

PARK DISTRICT
141.140 ACRES

PN: P70 03910 0010
OWNER: CITY OF
HUBER HEIGHTS

10.637 ACRES

PN: P48-000949
OWNER: WCT DAYTON LLC

14.217 ACRESPN: P48-000949
OWNER: DEF LAND CO I LLC

24.679 ACRES

15" STNM

S 84° 37' 20" E  3680.22'

S 84° 37' 20" E  3680.22'

94194
2

943

944

945946

947

948

94995
0

951

95
2

951

951

950

950
95

0 951

957

951

94
8

949

94
9

94
8

950

951

952

953

961

953 952

951
950

949 948
947

946

944

943

942

941

94
4

946

946

947
948

945

944

943

942

940

938
939

947

954

955

954

946

94
7

95
0

95
6957

948

947

946

94
6

945

944

942

943

94
4

DATE

JOB NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

CHECKED

DRAWN

DESIGNED

RELEASED FORREV DATE
c  1985-2021 LJB Inc. This drawing contains information that

is proprietary to and property of LJB Inc. and shall be kept
confidential. No publication or distribution of this drawing may be

made without the express written consent of LJB Inc. except
for the limited purposes set forth in the contract between

LJB Inc. and party for whom this drawing was made.

0

www.LJBinc.com
info@LJBinc.com
(866) 552-3536

LJB Inc.
We think bigger.

CHARLES SIMMS
DEVELOPMENT

2785 ORCHARD RUN RD
DAYTON, OH 45449

THE GABLES OF
HUBER HEIGHTS

BRANDT PIKE
HUBER HEIGHTS, OH 45424

0121637A.01

1/18/22
MTP
PSB

MTP

D
W

G
 N

AM
E:

 Q
:\S

im
m

s 
D

ev
\0

12
16

37
A.

00
 - 

Th
e 

R
es

er
ve

-re
de

si
gn

\D
ev

\D
ra

w
in

gs
\0

12
16

37
-B

D
P-

C
10

0.
dw

g 
 S

AV
E 

D
AT

E:
 1

/2
8/

20
22

 1
:4

0 
PM

 S
AV

ED
 B

Y:
 m

pa
to

n

50 100

EXISTING CONDITIONS
PLAN

C100

  

  

  

   

  

  

  

   

 

 

N



EX STREAM

WET RETENTION POND

DRY DETENTION POND

BUILDING 1
6 UNITS

BUILDING 2
4 UNITS

BUILDING 11
8 UNITS

BUILDING 10
8 UNITS

BUILDING 3
8 UNITS

BUILDING 4
8 UNITS

BUILDING 5
8 UNITS

BUILDING 9
6 UNITS

BUILDING 6
8 UNITS

BUILDING 7
4 UNITS

BUILDING 8
6 UNITS

PROPOSED
LANDSCAPE MOUNDING

GREENSPACE AREA

GREENSPACE AREA

20' BUILDING SETBACK

10' PARKING SETBACK

20' BUILDING SETBACK

10' PARKING SETBACK

20
' B

UI
LD

IN
G 

SE
TB

AC
K

10
' P

AR
KI

NG
 S

ET
BA

CK

20
' B

UI
LD

IN
G 

SE
TB

AC
K

10
' P

AR
KI

NG
 S

ET
BA

CK

24'

14
'

14
'

6'

10'(TYP)18'

(TYP)

24'

4'

24
'

24'

24'

24
'

25'

25'

25'

57
.1'

48
.2'

29.3'

29
.5'

29
.5'

29
.5'

28
.8'

14
1.8

'

146.9'

46
.2'

62
.7'

20.2'

29'

29.1'

4'

4'

4'

20
'

TY
P

20
'

TY
P

20
'

TY
P

20
'

TY
P20'

TYP

20'
TYP

14'

PROPOSED EMERGENCY
ACCESS PAVERS

PROPOSED
TURN LANE

BR
AN

DT
 P

IK
E 

(O
H-

20
1

LY
ON

 S
T 

(P
RI

VA
TE

)

SA
LO

N 
CI

R 
(P

RI
VA

TE
)

MONTE CARLO WAY (PRIVATE)

SALON CIR (PRIVATE)

SALON CIR (PRIVATE)

PRIVATE DRIVE

PRIVATE DRIVE

PR
IV

AT
E 

DR
IV

E

PRIVATE DRIVE

EX BUILDING
EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

EX BUILDING

20
' B

UI
LD

IN
G 

SE
TB

AC
K

10
' P

AR
KI

NG
 S

ET
BA

CK

20' BUILDING SETBACK
10' PARKING SETBACK

DATE

JOB NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

CHECKED

DRAWN

DESIGNED

RELEASED FORREV DATE
c  1985-2021 LJB Inc. This drawing contains information that

is proprietary to and property of LJB Inc. and shall be kept
confidential. No publication or distribution of this drawing may be

made without the express written consent of LJB Inc. except
for the limited purposes set forth in the contract between

LJB Inc. and party for whom this drawing was made.

0

www.LJBinc.com
info@LJBinc.com
(866) 552-3536

LJB Inc.
We think bigger.

CHARLES SIMMS
DEVELOPMENT

2785 ORCHARD RUN RD
DAYTON, OH 45449

THE GABLES OF
HUBER HEIGHTS

BRANDT PIKE
HUBER HEIGHTS, OH 45424

0121637A.01

1/18/22
MTP
PSB

MTP

D
W

G
 N

AM
E:

 Q
:\S

im
m

s 
D

ev
\0

12
16

37
A.

00
 - 

Th
e 

R
es

er
ve

-re
de

si
gn

\D
ev

\D
ra

w
in

gs
\0

12
16

37
-B

D
P-

C
30

0.
dw

g 
 S

AV
E 

D
AT

E:
 1

/2
8/

20
22

 1
:2

6 
PM

 S
AV

ED
 B

Y:
 m

pa
to

n

50 100

SITE
PLAN

C300

  

  

  

   

  

  

  

   

 

 

N

SITE DATA TABLE
TOTAL SITE AREA = 15.93 ACRES

TOTAL EXISTING LOTS= 7

PID NUMBERS = P70 03910 0057

P70 00320 0010

P70 00320 0011

P70 00320 0012

P70 00320 0018

P70 00320 0019

P70 00320 0020

CURRENT ZONING = PLANNED MIXED USE
DISTRICT

PROPOSED ZONING = PLANNED MIXED USE
DISTRICT

BUILDING SETBACK = 20'

PARKING SETBACK= 10'

OPEN SPACE AREA = 10.20 ACRES

DETENTION AREA = 0.50 ACRES

% OPEN SPACE = 64%

TOTAL BUILDINGS = 11

TOTAL UNITS = 74

PROPOSED DENSITY = 4.64 UNITS/ACRE

PARKING PROVIDED =

2 GARAGE SPACES PER UNIT =148 SPACES

2 DRIVEWAY SPACES PER UNIT = 148 SPACES

ADA PARKING = 2 VAN ACCESSIBLE SPACES

GUEST PARKING SPACES = 36 SPACES

TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED = 334 SPACES



     
 

FRONT ELEVATION 
THE GABLES

 OF HUBER HEIGHTS



     
 

RIGHT SIDE ELEVATION 
        THE GABLES             
     OF HUBER HEIGHTS



     
 

LEFT SIDE  REAR ELEVATION 

OF HUBER HEIGHTS
THE GABLES



     
 

REAR ELEVATION 

OF HUBER HEIGHTS
THE GABLES



     
 

 RIGHT SIDE  REAR ELEVATION 

OF HUBER HEIGHTS
THE GABLES



     
 

LEFT SIDE  ELEVATION 

OF HUBER HEIGHTS
THE GABLES



 

 

1 February 2022 

Russell Bergman, P.E. 

City Engineer 

City of Huber Heights 

Government Center 

6131 Taylorsville Road 

Huber Heights, OH 45424 

Re: Traffic Impact Study:  The Reserves (Simms Development) Proposed Access Point on SR 201 (625’ North of 

Shull Rd.) 

Dear Mr. Bergman,  

LJB has finished analysis of the subject access point on SR 201.  The following is a summary of the analysis and our 

recommendations.   

> LJB collected 24-hour vehicular volume/speed/classification data on SR 201 in front of the proposed 

development 12-14 January 2022.  Analysis of that data indicated that the AM and PM peak hours were at 

07:00 and 16:45, respectively.  Further, the recorded 85th percentile speed was 50.2 mph.   

> The proposed development is 66 multifamily housing units. Site generated trips were estimated using data 

and methodologies from the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual, 10th 

Edition for Land Use code 220 – Multifamily Housing (Low-Rise).  The total expected AM peak hour trips 

= 21 and the total expected PM peak hour trips = 41.   

> Trips to/from the proposed development were based on the directional distribution of vehicles on SR 201 

during the respective peak hour.  For example: during the AM peak, 74.7% of the vehicles were going 

southbound and during the PM peak, 62.0% of the vehicles were going northbound.   

> To determine if turn lanes on SR 201 would be needed, LJB used ODOT turn lane warrant procedures and 

criteria.  Based on this analysis, a southbound right turn lane is not warranted.  However, a northbound left 

turn lane is warranted.  The recommended turn lane should be 225’.  (The 225’ length includes the 50’ 

taper.) 

> Traffic operation (capacity) of the proposed intersection, including the proposed northbound left turn lane, 

was evaluated using HCS software.  The calculated delays and the associated levels of service (LOS) for 

the AM and PM peak hours do not indicate that there should be any appreciable delays experienced by 

northbound or southbound vehicles on SR 201.  The LOS for both the AM and PM peak hours is an “A”.   

 

Respectfully, 

 

Jason Oaks, P.E.   

Traffic Engineer   

LJB Inc.   

 

 

Attachments: Proposed Development Site Plan, Count Data, Trip Generation, Turn Lane Warrants, HCS Reports 



EX STREAM

8 UNITS

8 UNITS

8 UNITS

8 UNITS
8 UNITS

8 UNITS

8 UNITS

6 UNITS

WET RETENTION POND

DRY DETENTION POND

4 UNITS

44.9'

42.7'

DATE

JOB NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

CHECKED

DRAWN

DESIGNED

GRAPHIC SCALE

RELEASED FORREV DATE
c   1985-2020 LJB Inc. This drawing contains information that

is proprietary to and property of LJB Inc. and shall be kept
confidential. No publication or distribution of this drawing may be

made without the express written consent of LJB Inc. except
for the limited purposes set forth in the contract between

LJB Inc. and party for whom this drawing was made.

LJB Inc.
2500 Newmark Drive

Miamisburg, OH 45342
(937) 259-5000 tel
(937) 259-5100 fax

LJBinc.com

SIMMS DEVELOPMENT
 

THE RESERVES
 

BRANDT PIKE
HUBER HEIGHTS, OH 45424

 
DLF
MTP

0121637

8/12/21

D
W

G
 N

AM
E:

 Q
:\S

im
m

s 
D

ev
\0

12
16

37
A.

00
 - 

Th
e 

R
es

er
ve

-re
de

si
gn

\D
ev

\D
ra

w
in

gs
\C

iv
\D

es
ig

n\
01

21
63

7-
C

Z-
01

.d
w

g 
 S

AV
E 

D
AT

E:
 1

/1
9/

20
22

 3
:3

2 
PM

 S
AV

ED
 B

Y:
 m

pa
to

n

50 100

 
 
 

CONCEPT PLAN 8

C-108

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
__

AutoCAD SHX Text
__



OAKS Engineering, LLC
dba Traffic Data Collection

Vandalia, OH
LOCATION: SR201 965' N OF SHULL

1

Direction: Combined

12-Jan-22
0 - 228 in.

P

> 228 -
360 in.

SU-30,M
H

> 360 -
429.6 in.
S-Bus 36

> 429.6 -
474 in.
SU-40

> 474 -
480 in.
CITY-
BUS

> 480 -
504 in.

P/B

> 504 -
546 in.
WB-40

> 546 -
584.4 in.

P/T

> 584.4 -
660 in.
WB-50

> 660 -
720 in.
A-BUS

> 720 -
828 in.
WB-62

> 828 -
867.6 in.
WB-67D

> 867.6
in.

Total Total Total

Time Vehicles Buses
Trucks
+Buses

00:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
01:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
02:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
03:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
04:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
05:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
06:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
07:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
08:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
09:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
10:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
11:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
12:00 83 4 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 0 0 93 1 10
13:00 658 24 5 2 0 1 1 1 0 1 2 1 1 697 5 39
14:00 715 43 8 0 0 2 1 1 1 1 0 0 1 773 8 58
15:00 873 41 6 4 0 2 1 0 0 1 0 1 1 930 6 57
16:00 983 56 3 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1044 3 61
17:00 978 53 3 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 1036 3 58
18:00 784 28 2 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 818 2 34
19:00 488 23 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 513 0 25
20:00 337 18 2 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 361 2 24
21:00 271 17 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 288 0 17
22:00 142 8 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 151 1 9
23:00 70 6 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 79 1 9
Total 6382 321 32 10 0 7 7 4 4 4 5 2 5 6783 32 401

% Total 94.1% 4.7% 0.5% 0.1% 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.0% 0.1% 100.0% 0.5% 5.9%
AM Peak

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
MID Peak 15:00 14:00 14:00 15:00 14:00 13:00 12:00 12:00 12:00 13:00 13:00 13:00 15:00 14:00 14:00

873 43 8 4 * 2 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 930 8 58
PM Peak 16:00 16:00 14:00 15:00 14:00 16:00 12:00 12:00 12:00 13:00 13:00 13:00 16:00 14:00 16:00

983 56 8 4 * 2 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1044 8 61



OAKS Engineering, LLC
dba Traffic Data Collection

Vandalia, OH
LOCATION: SR201 965' N OF SHULL

2

Direction: Combined

13-Jan-22
0 - 228 in.

P

> 228 -
360 in.

SU-30,M
H

> 360 -
429.6 in.
S-Bus 36

> 429.6 -
474 in.
SU-40

> 474 -
480 in.
CITY-
BUS

> 480 -
504 in.

P/B

> 504 -
546 in.
WB-40

> 546 -
584.4 in.

P/T

> 584.4 -
660 in.
WB-50

> 660 -
720 in.
A-BUS

> 720 -
828 in.
WB-62

> 828 -
867.6 in.
WB-67D

> 867.6
in.

Total Total Total

Time Vehicles Buses
Trucks
+Buses

00:00 39 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 41 0 2
01:00 16 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 0 2
02:00 19 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 21 0 2
03:00 30 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 33 0 3
04:00 78 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 84 0 6
05:00 189 6 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 199 0 10
06:00 382 18 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 404 1 22
07:00 572 39 0 3 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 617 0 45
08:00 483 32 3 4 0 3 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 529 3 46
09:00 492 22 4 3 0 2 2 2 1 1 2 1 1 533 4 41
10:00 490 39 4 2 1 0 0 0 0 2 3 0 0 541 5 51
11:00 576 31 6 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 3 0 0 618 6 42
12:00 616 35 3 3 0 1 0 1 3 2 1 1 0 666 3 50
13:00 622 40 10 2 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 1 0 685 11 63
14:00 725 40 7 2 1 2 1 1 3 1 2 0 2 787 8 62
15:00 776 51 5 4 0 0 1 1 0 2 2 0 0 842 5 66
16:00 926 52 3 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 983 4 57
17:00 977 41 2 1 0 2 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 1027 2 50
18:00 718 29 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 751 0 33
19:00 516 24 2 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 545 2 29
20:00 362 19 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 383 1 21
21:00 230 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 244 0 14
22:00 155 6 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 163 0 8
23:00 80 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 86 0 6
Total 10069 553 51 26 4 15 8 9 14 13 28 5 5 10800 55 731

% Total 93.2% 5.1% 0.5% 0.2% 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.3% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.5% 6.8%
AM Peak 11:00 07:00 11:00 08:00 10:00 08:00 09:00 09:00 06:00 05:00 08:00 04:00 06:00 11:00 11:00 10:00

576 39 6 4 1 3 2 2 1 2 4 1 1 618 6 51
MID Peak 15:00 15:00 13:00 15:00 10:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 12:00 10:00 13:00 09:00 14:00 15:00 13:00 15:00

776 51 10 4 1 2 2 2 3 2 4 1 2 842 11 66
PM Peak 17:00 16:00 13:00 15:00 13:00 14:00 13:00 12:00 12:00 12:00 13:00 12:00 14:00 17:00 13:00 15:00

977 52 10 4 1 2 2 1 3 2 4 1 2 1027 11 66



OAKS Engineering, LLC
dba Traffic Data Collection

Vandalia, OH
LOCATION: SR201 965' N OF SHULL

3

Direction: Combined

14-Jan-22
0 - 228 in.

P

> 228 -
360 in.

SU-30,M
H

> 360 -
429.6 in.
S-Bus 36

> 429.6 -
474 in.
SU-40

> 474 -
480 in.
CITY-
BUS

> 480 -
504 in.

P/B

> 504 -
546 in.
WB-40

> 546 -
584.4 in.

P/T

> 584.4 -
660 in.
WB-50

> 660 -
720 in.
A-BUS

> 720 -
828 in.
WB-62

> 828 -
867.6 in.
WB-67D

> 867.6
in.

Total Total Total

Time Vehicles Buses
Trucks
+Buses

00:00 48 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 51 0 3
01:00 21 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 23 0 2
02:00 28 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 29 0 1
03:00 27 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 29 0 2
04:00 58 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 60 0 2
05:00 166 7 1 1 0 0 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 178 1 12
06:00 344 12 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 360 1 16
07:00 552 25 1 2 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 583 2 31
08:00 472 29 5 2 1 2 3 0 1 0 2 0 2 519 6 47
09:00 488 37 4 3 0 1 0 1 1 0 2 0 0 537 4 49
10:00 484 36 8 2 0 0 1 2 1 0 1 1 1 537 8 53
11:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
12:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
13:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
14:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
15:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
16:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
17:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
18:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
19:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
20:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
21:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
22:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
23:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0 0 0
Total 2688 153 20 12 2 4 6 5 4 1 6 2 3 2906 22 218

% Total 92.5% 5.3% 0.7% 0.4% 0.1% 0.1% 0.2% 0.2% 0.1% 0.0% 0.2% 0.1% 0.1% 100.0% 0.8% 7.5%
AM Peak 07:00 09:00 10:00 09:00 07:00 08:00 08:00 10:00 06:00 05:00 08:00 07:00 08:00 07:00 10:00 10:00

552 37 8 3 1 2 3 2 1 1 2 1 2 583 8 53
MID Peak 09:00 09:00 10:00 09:00 09:00 10:00 10:00 09:00 09:00 10:00 10:00 09:00 10:00 10:00

488 37 8 3 * 1 1 2 1 * 2 1 1 537 8 53
PM Peak

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
Grand Total 19139 1027 103 48 6 26 21 18 22 18 39 9 13 20489 109 1350

% Grand
Total

93.4% 5.0% 0.5% 0.2% 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.2% 0.0% 0.1% 100.0% 0.5% 6.6%



OAKS Engineering, LLC
dba Traffic Data Collection

Vandalia, OH
LOCATION: SR201 965' N OF SHULL

1

Direction: Combined
12-Jan-22

0 - 15 MPH
> 15 - 20

MPH
> 20 - 25

MPH
> 25 - 30

MPH
> 30 - 35

MPH
> 35 - 40

MPH
> 40 - 45

MPH
> 45 - 50

MPH
> 50 - 55

MPH
> 55 - 60

MPH
> 60 - 65

MPH
> 65 - 70

MPH > 70 MPHTime Total
0:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
1:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
2:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
3:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
4:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
5:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
6:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
7:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
8:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
9:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0

10:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
11:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
12:00 1 0 0 0 3 13 30 29 15 2 0 0 0 93
13:00 0 0 0 2 10 88 237 240 98 21 1 0 0 697
14:00 0 0 0 4 15 90 269 244 129 16 5 0 1 773
15:00 0 0 0 1 15 115 310 326 135 21 4 1 2 930
16:00 0 0 0 3 19 107 293 419 173 27 2 1 0 1044
17:00 0 0 0 3 13 135 331 397 129 23 2 3 0 1036
18:00 0 0 0 1 19 168 311 251 54 12 1 1 0 818
19:00 0 0 1 1 18 96 180 174 35 7 0 1 0 513
20:00 0 0 0 0 11 64 149 100 30 7 0 0 0 361
21:00 0 0 0 1 8 53 116 76 29 2 3 0 0 288
22:00 0 0 0 1 2 27 55 44 14 5 2 0 1 151
23:00 0 0 0 0 3 12 27 20 12 4 0 0 1 79
Total 1 0 1 17 136 968 2308 2320 853 147 20 7 5 6783

% Total 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.3% 2.0% 14.3% 34.0% 34.2% 12.6% 2.2% 0.3% 0.1% 0.1%



OAKS Engineering, LLC
dba Traffic Data Collection

Vandalia, OH
LOCATION: SR201 965' N OF SHULL

2

Direction: Combined
13-Jan-22

0 - 15 MPH
> 15 - 20

MPH
> 20 - 25

MPH
> 25 - 30

MPH
> 30 - 35

MPH
> 35 - 40

MPH
> 40 - 45

MPH
> 45 - 50

MPH
> 50 - 55

MPH
> 55 - 60

MPH
> 60 - 65

MPH
> 65 - 70

MPH > 70 MPHTime Total
0:00 0 0 0 1 2 5 13 10 8 1 1 0 0 41
1:00 0 0 0 0 0 6 4 4 1 1 1 1 0 18
2:00 0 0 0 0 2 5 8 4 2 0 0 0 0 21
3:00 0 0 0 0 0 10 12 9 2 0 0 0 0 33
4:00 0 0 0 0 4 11 30 26 10 3 0 0 0 84
5:00 0 1 0 0 8 25 59 69 29 7 1 0 0 199
6:00 0 0 0 0 7 66 130 123 62 15 1 0 0 404
7:00 0 0 0 2 19 81 208 200 84 21 2 0 0 617
8:00 0 0 1 0 11 57 156 203 91 8 2 0 0 529
9:00 0 0 0 0 3 56 174 216 67 15 1 1 0 533

10:00 0 0 0 4 3 52 201 195 72 10 3 1 0 541
11:00 0 0 0 0 13 75 170 257 85 12 6 0 0 618
12:00 0 0 0 1 30 95 219 210 92 15 4 0 0 666
13:00 0 0 1 0 11 70 206 255 98 34 5 2 3 685
14:00 0 0 0 0 6 77 240 324 117 21 2 0 0 787
15:00 0 0 0 0 10 88 273 305 135 24 6 1 0 842
16:00 0 0 0 0 7 68 298 416 152 38 2 2 0 983
17:00 0 0 0 0 7 119 381 374 120 24 2 0 0 1027
18:00 0 0 0 6 27 117 333 205 54 8 1 0 0 751
19:00 0 0 4 1 17 126 176 171 43 7 0 0 0 545
20:00 0 0 0 4 6 65 155 108 36 7 1 0 1 383
21:00 0 0 0 0 7 39 95 69 24 8 1 0 1 244
22:00 0 0 0 0 7 36 51 42 20 5 0 1 1 163
23:00 0 0 0 0 4 15 27 22 12 3 1 0 2 86
Total 0 1 6 19 211 1364 3619 3817 1416 287 43 9 8 10800

% Total 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 0.2% 2.0% 12.6% 33.5% 35.3% 13.1% 2.7% 0.4% 0.1% 0.1%



OAKS Engineering, LLC
dba Traffic Data Collection

Vandalia, OH
LOCATION: SR201 965' N OF SHULL

3

Direction: Combined
14-Jan-22

0 - 15 MPH
> 15 - 20

MPH
> 20 - 25

MPH
> 25 - 30

MPH
> 30 - 35

MPH
> 35 - 40

MPH
> 40 - 45

MPH
> 45 - 50

MPH
> 50 - 55

MPH
> 55 - 60

MPH
> 60 - 65

MPH
> 65 - 70

MPH > 70 MPHTime Total
0:00 0 0 0 0 1 10 17 19 2 1 0 0 1 51
1:00 0 0 0 0 2 5 7 8 0 1 0 0 0 23
2:00 0 0 0 0 2 10 4 6 5 2 0 0 0 29
3:00 0 0 0 0 4 6 13 4 2 0 0 0 0 29
4:00 0 1 0 0 0 12 23 16 5 2 1 0 0 60
5:00 0 0 0 1 3 22 68 56 24 4 0 0 0 178
6:00 0 0 0 0 3 53 117 115 51 19 1 1 0 360
7:00 0 0 0 3 12 75 197 209 76 7 3 0 1 583
8:00 0 0 0 1 12 69 174 176 66 18 2 1 0 519
9:00 0 0 0 1 8 69 194 169 72 20 3 1 0 537

10:00 0 0 0 5 7 79 189 175 75 3 3 1 0 537
11:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
12:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
13:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
14:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
15:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
16:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
17:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
18:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
19:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
20:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
21:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
22:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
23:00 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 0
Total 0 1 0 11 54 410 1003 953 378 77 13 4 2 2906

% Total 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.4% 1.9% 14.1% 34.5% 32.8% 13.0% 2.6% 0.4% 0.1% 0.1%
Grand Total 1 2 7 47 401 2742 6930 7090 2647 511 76 20 15 20489

% Grand
Total

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.2% 2.0% 13.4% 33.8% 34.6% 12.9% 2.5% 0.4% 0.1% 0.1% 100.0%

Speed Percentile 15th 50th 85th 95th
Speed 39.7 45.3 50.2 53.3

Mean Speed (Average) 45.2
10 MPH Pace Speed 40-49

Number in Pace 13933
Percent in Pace 68.0%

Number > 35 MPH 20031
Percent > 35 MPH 97.8%



OAKS Engineering, LLC
dba Traffic Data Collection

Vandalia, OH
LOCATION: SR201 965' N OF SHULL

1

12-Jan-22 SB, Lane 1 NB, Lane 2 Combined
Time Wednesday Total

00:00 * * 0
00:15 * * 0
00:30 * * 0
00:45 * * 0
01:00 * * 0
01:15 * * 0
01:30 * * 0
01:45 * * 0
02:00 * * 0
02:15 * * 0
02:30 * * 0
02:45 * * 0
03:00 * * 0
03:15 * * 0
03:30 * * 0
03:45 * * 0
04:00 * * 0
04:15 * * 0
04:30 * * 0
04:45 * * 0
05:00 * * 0
05:15 * * 0
05:30 * * 0
05:45 * * 0
06:00 * * 0
06:15 * * 0
06:30 * * 0
06:45 * * 0
07:00 * * 0
07:15 * * 0
07:30 * * 0
07:45 * * 0
08:00 * * 0
08:15 * * 0
08:30 * * 0
08:45 * * 0
09:00 * * 0
09:15 * * 0
09:30 * * 0
09:45 * * 0
10:00 * * 0
10:15 * * 0
10:30 * * 0
10:45 * * 0
11:00 * * 0
11:15 * * 0
11:30 * * 0
11:45 * * 0
12:00 0 0 0
12:15 0 0 0
12:30 0 0 0
12:45 52 41 93
13:00 94 75 169
13:15 84 115 199
13:30 77 73 150
13:45 82 97 179
14:00 74 92 166
14:15 78 109 187
14:30 111 105 216
14:45 82 122 204
15:00 107 115 222



OAKS Engineering, LLC
dba Traffic Data Collection

Vandalia, OH
LOCATION: SR201 965' N OF SHULL

2

15:15 96 152 248
15:30 106 142 248
15:45 83 129 212
16:00 110 155 265
16:15 110 153 263
16:30 106 145 251
16:45 104 161 265
17:00 100 169 269
17:15 98 183 281
17:30 101 163 264
17:45 98 124 222
18:00 109 125 234
18:15 89 121 210
18:30 105 113 218
18:45 65 91 156
19:00 51 83 134
19:15 47 99 146
19:30 47 69 116
19:45 41 76 117
20:00 31 54 85
20:15 33 63 96
20:30 39 50 89
20:45 27 64 91
21:00 22 65 87
21:15 38 48 86
21:30 22 44 66
21:45 15 34 49
22:00 18 28 46
22:15 11 19 30
22:30 20 33 53
22:45 8 14 22
23:00 14 12 26
23:15 7 16 23
23:30 4 8 12
23:45 7 11 18
Total 2823 3960 6783

Percent 41.6% 58.4%
AM Peak

Volume
Peak Factor

Mid Peak 14:15 14:15 14:15
Volume 378 451 829

Peak Factor 0.851 0.924 0.934
PM Peak 16:00 16:45 16:45

Volume 430 676 1079
Peak Factor 0.977 0.923 0.960



OAKS Engineering, LLC
dba Traffic Data Collection

Vandalia, OH
LOCATION: SR201 965' N OF SHULL

3

13-Jan-22 SB, Lane 1 NB, Lane 2 Combined
Time Thursday Total

00:00 4 10 14
00:15 4 8 12
00:30 6 4 10
00:45 5 0 5
01:00 1 3 4
01:15 2 3 5
01:30 3 3 6
01:45 2 1 3
02:00 0 3 3
02:15 1 1 2
02:30 4 6 10
02:45 2 4 6
03:00 1 2 3
03:15 4 5 9
03:30 5 3 8
03:45 5 8 13
04:00 12 2 14
04:15 6 7 13
04:30 12 5 17
04:45 30 10 40
05:00 28 8 36
05:15 33 15 48
05:30 43 11 54
05:45 40 21 61
06:00 57 20 77
06:15 66 16 82
06:30 84 27 111
06:45 104 30 134
07:00 115 31 146
07:15 99 38 137
07:30 128 34 162
07:45 119 53 172
08:00 95 45 140
08:15 90 43 133
08:30 83 50 133
08:45 69 54 123
09:00 92 49 141
09:15 93 57 150
09:30 74 41 115
09:45 77 50 127
10:00 85 54 139
10:15 83 55 138
10:30 73 75 148
10:45 70 46 116
11:00 64 58 122
11:15 93 84 177
11:30 88 67 155
11:45 89 75 164
12:00 94 82 176
12:15 94 79 173
12:30 73 78 151
12:45 90 76 166
13:00 85 91 176
13:15 77 105 182
13:30 81 78 159
13:45 76 92 168
14:00 89 96 185
14:15 77 99 176
14:30 108 107 215
14:45 91 120 211
15:00 96 89 185



OAKS Engineering, LLC
dba Traffic Data Collection

Vandalia, OH
LOCATION: SR201 965' N OF SHULL

4

15:15 60 115 175
15:30 110 143 253
15:45 86 143 229
16:00 90 138 228
16:15 95 151 246
16:30 95 134 229
16:45 103 177 280
17:00 102 170 272
17:15 107 173 280
17:30 92 138 230
17:45 92 153 245
18:00 82 121 203
18:15 87 117 204
18:30 88 87 175
18:45 69 100 169
19:00 48 86 134
19:15 59 107 166
19:30 51 71 122
19:45 50 73 123
20:00 36 69 105
20:15 28 67 95
20:30 38 61 99
20:45 28 56 84
21:00 18 39 57
21:15 31 42 73
21:30 19 32 51
21:45 22 41 63
22:00 12 32 44
22:15 15 27 42
22:30 20 24 44
22:45 13 20 33
23:00 11 15 26
23:15 6 16 22
23:30 3 15 18
23:45 9 11 20
Total 5349 5451 10800

Percent 49.5% 50.5%
AM Peak 07:00 10:30 07:00

Volume 461 263 617
Peak Factor 0.900 0.783 0.897

Mid Peak 14:15 14:00 14:00
Volume 372 422 787

Peak Factor 0.861 0.879 0.915
PM Peak 16:30 16:45 16:45

Volume 407 658 1062
Peak Factor 0.951 0.929 0.948



OAKS Engineering, LLC
dba Traffic Data Collection

Vandalia, OH
LOCATION: SR201 965' N OF SHULL

5

14-Jan-22 SB, Lane 1 NB, Lane 2 Combined
Time Friday Total

00:00 7 12 19
00:15 8 9 17
00:30 1 7 8
00:45 1 6 7
01:00 2 2 4
01:15 2 5 7
01:30 4 2 6
01:45 3 3 6
02:00 4 5 9
02:15 3 4 7
02:30 2 6 8
02:45 2 3 5
03:00 5 1 6
03:15 2 3 5
03:30 7 4 11
03:45 5 2 7
04:00 3 6 9
04:15 8 9 17
04:30 9 3 12
04:45 16 6 22
05:00 24 10 34
05:15 30 10 40
05:30 42 11 53
05:45 38 13 51
06:00 45 16 61
06:15 46 20 66
06:30 87 23 110
06:45 95 28 123
07:00 87 37 124
07:15 106 53 159
07:30 115 44 159
07:45 93 48 141
08:00 82 43 125
08:15 80 35 115
08:30 88 42 130
08:45 95 54 149
09:00 80 46 126
09:15 83 45 128
09:30 94 64 158
09:45 76 49 125
10:00 72 61 133
10:15 88 66 154
10:30 88 69 157
10:45 50 43 93
11:00 * * 0
11:15 * * 0
11:30 * * 0
11:45 * * 0
12:00 * * 0
12:15 * * 0
12:30 * * 0
12:45 * * 0
13:00 * * 0
13:15 * * 0
13:30 * * 0
13:45 * * 0
14:00 * * 0
14:15 * * 0
14:30 * * 0
14:45 * * 0
15:00 * * 0



OAKS Engineering, LLC
dba Traffic Data Collection

Vandalia, OH
LOCATION: SR201 965' N OF SHULL

6

15:15 * * 0
15:30 * * 0
15:45 * * 0
16:00 * * 0
16:15 * * 0
16:30 * * 0
16:45 * * 0
17:00 * * 0
17:15 * * 0
17:30 * * 0
17:45 * * 0
18:00 * * 0
18:15 * * 0
18:30 * * 0
18:45 * * 0
19:00 * * 0
19:15 * * 0
19:30 * * 0
19:45 * * 0
20:00 * * 0
20:15 * * 0
20:30 * * 0
20:45 * * 0
21:00 * * 0
21:15 * * 0
21:30 * * 0
21:45 * * 0
22:00 * * 0
22:15 * * 0
22:30 * * 0
22:45 * * 0
23:00 * * 0
23:15 * * 0
23:30 * * 0
23:45 * * 0
Total 1878 1028 2906

Percent 64.6% 35.4%
AM Peak 06:45 09:45 07:15

Volume 403 245 584
Peak Factor 0.876 0.888 0.918

Mid Peak 09:00 09:45 09:30
Volume 333 245 570

Peak Factor 0.886 0.888 0.902
PM Peak

Volume
Peak Factor
Grand Total 10050 10439 20489
Percentage 49.1% 50.9%



13-Jan-22 Combined

Time Thursday Total

00:00 4 10 14

00:15 4 8 12

00:30 6 4 10

00:45 5 0 5

01:00 1 3 4

01:15 2 3 5

01:30 3 3 6

01:45 2 1 3

02:00 0 3 3

02:15 1 1 2

02:30 4 6 10

02:45 2 4 6

03:00 1 2 3

03:15 4 5 9

03:30 5 3 8

03:45 5 8 13

04:00 12 2 14

04:15 6 7 13

04:30 12 5 17

04:45 30 10 40

05:00 28 8 36

05:15 33 15 48

05:30 43 11 54

05:45 40 21 61

06:00 57 20 77

06:15 66 16 82

06:30 84 27 111

06:45 104 30 134

SB PEAK 

HR

NB PEAK 

HR

TOT 

PEAK HR SB, %-Dir NB, %-Dir

07:00 115 31 146

07:15 99 38 137

07:30 128 34 162

07:45 119 53 172 461 156 617 74.7% 25.3%

08:00 95 45 140 480 160 630

08:15 90 43 133

08:30 83 50 133

08:45 69 54 123

09:00 92 49 141

09:15 93 57 150

09:30 74 41 115

09:45 77 50 127

10:00 85 54 139

10:15 83 55 138

10:30 73 75 148

10:45 70 46 116

11:00 64 58 122

11:15 93 84 177

11:30 88 67 155

11:45 89 75 164

OAKS Engineering, LLC

dba Traffic Data Collection

Vandalia, OHLOCATION: SR201 965' N OF SHULL

SB, Lane 1 NB, Lane 2

<< 2023 Vol's (2% Growth)



12:00 94 82 176

12:15 94 79 173

12:30 73 78 151

12:45 90 76 166

13:00 85 91 176

13:15 77 105 182

13:30 81 78 159

13:45 76 92 168

14:00 89 96 185

14:15 77 99 176

14:30 108 107 215

14:45 91 120 211

15:00 96 89 185

15:15 60 115 175

15:30 110 143 253

15:45 86 143 229

16:00 90 138 228

16:15 95 151 246

16:30 95 134 229

SB PEAK 

HR

NB PEAK 

HR

TOT 

PEAK HR SB, %-Dir NB, %-Dir

16:45 103 177 280

17:00 102 170 272

17:15 107 173 280

17:30 92 138 230 404 658 1062 38.0% 62.0%

17:45 92 153 245 420 680 1090

18:00 82 121 203

18:15 87 117 204

18:30 88 87 175

18:45 69 100 169

19:00 48 86 134

19:15 59 107 166

19:30 51 71 122

19:45 50 73 123

20:00 36 69 105

20:15 28 67 95

20:30 38 61 99

20:45 28 56 84

21:00 18 39 57

21:15 31 42 73

21:30 19 32 51

21:45 22 41 63

22:00 12 32 44

22:15 15 27 42

22:30 20 24 44

22:45 13 20 33

23:00 11 15 26

23:15 6 16 22

23:30 3 15 18

23:45 9 11 20

Total 5349 5451 10800

Percent 49.5% 50.5%

AM Peak 07:00 10:30 07:00

Volume 461 263 617

Peak Factor 0.900 0.783 0.897

Mid Peak 14:15 14:00 14:00

Volume 372 422 787

Peak Factor 0.861 0.879 0.915

PM Peak 16:30 16:45 16:45

Volume 407 658 1062

Peak Factor 0.951 0.929 0.948

<< 2023 Vol's (2% Growth)



ex
Typewriter
= 66



ex
Typewriter
= 66



ex
Typewriter
= 66



Variable

Multifamily Housing 66 ADT 220 T=7.56(X)-40.86 460 50% 50% 230 230

(Low-Rise) Units AM Peak 220 Ln(T)=0.95Ln(X)-0.51 21 23% 77% 5 16

Peak Hour of Adjacent Street Traffic PM Peak 220 Ln(T)=0.89Ln(X)-0.02 41 63% 37% 26 15

TOTAL ADT 460 230 230

AM TOTAL 21 5 16

PM TOTAL 41 26 15

ADT 50% 50% 115 115 115 115

EbR 

Exiting
% NB % SB

NbL 

Entering

SbR 

Entering

EbL 

Exiting
Directional Distribution Time Period

% Trips 

Entering

% Trips 

Exiting

THE RESERVES (SIMMS DEVELOPMENT) - HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO

Land Use

Traffic Impact Study

Trip Generation Rates

Institute of Transportation Engineer, 10th Edition

Total 

Trips

Trips 

Entering

Trips 

Exiting
ITE LUC ITE FormulaTime Period

ADT 50% 50% 115 115 115 115

AM Peak 25% 75% 4 1 4 12

PM Peak 62% 38% 16 10 6 9

Note: Italics indicate volumes assumed to come/go mostly from the south.

31-01-22





Project:

Location:

Scenario:

Analyst:

Date:

6:00 AM

7:00 AM 164 4 2.4 481 NO

8:00 AM

9:00 AM

10:00 AM

11:00 AM

12:00 PM

1:00 PM

2:00 PM

3:00 PM

4:00 PM

5:00 PM 696 16 2.3 430 YES

6:00 PM

7:00 PM

8:00 PM

Points plotted above the corresponding decision line indicate that the warrant is met

*A highway is considered divided as long as median width is adequate for full storage of a left turn vehicle

**Includes Left Turns

Number of Lanes

2

Median Type

Divided*

Northbound

Left/Right Turn

Left Turn

Posted Speed

> 40 mph

Advancing 

Traffic**

Turning 

Volume

Percent 

Turning

Opposing 

Volume

Warrant 

Met?

Direction
Start Time

THE RESERVES (SIMMS DEVELOPMENT) - HUBER HEIGHTS, OH

SR 201 AT "THE RESERVES" PROP'D ACCESS (~625' N OF SHULL)

2023 OPENING DAY

JDO

31 JAN. 2022

1%

2%

5%

10%

15%

30%

7:00 AM (2.4%)
5:00 PM (2.3%)

7:00 AM

5:00 PM

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200

A
d

va
n

ci
n

g
 T

ra
ff

ic
*

*
 (

d
h

v)

Opposing Traffic (dhv)

SR 201 AT "THE RESERVES" PROP'D ACCESS (~625' N OF SHULL) 

Northbound Left Turn Lane Warrant

All warrants in accordance with ODOT State Highway Access Management Manual, Issued 12/2001, Version 8/15/2003



Project:

Location:

Scenario:

Analyst:

Date:

6:00 AM

7:00 AM 481

8:00 AM

9:00 AM

10:00 AM

11:00 AM

12:00 PM

1:00 PM

2:00 PM

3:00 PM

4:00 PM

5:00 PM 430

6:00 PM

7:00 PM

8:00 PM

Points plotted above the corresponding decision line indicate that the warrant is met

10 NO

1

Right Turn

Posted Speed

> 40 mph

Number of Lanes

2

Advancing Volume

Left/Right Turn

Start Time
Direction

Southbound

THE RESERVES (SIMMS DEVELOPMENT) - HUBER HEIGHTS, OH

SR 201 AT "THE RESERVES" PROP'D ACCESS (~625' N OF SHULL)

2023 OPENING DAY

JDO

31 JAN. 2022

Warrant Met?

NO

Turning Volume

7:00 AM

5:00 PM

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400

R
ig

h
t 

T
u

rn
in

g
 V

o
lu

m
e

 (
d

h
v)

Advancing Traffic* (dhv)

SR 201 AT "THE RESERVES" PROP'D ACCESS (~625' N OF SHULL) 

Southbound Right Turn Lane Warrant

All warrants in accordance with ODOT State Highway Access Management Manual, Issued 12/2001, Version 8/15/2003



Movement NBLT

Design Speed 50 mph

Cycle Length 60 seconds

Control (Stop or Signal) Stop

Through Volume 680 vph

Number of Through Lanes 2

Turning Volume 16 vph

Number of Turning Lanes 1

Design Condition B A, B, or C

Turning Percentage 2%

Vehicles Per Cycle 0.3

Storage Length 50 feet

Deceleration/Taper 225 feet

Calculated Turn Lane Length 225 feet

No Block Distance N.A. feet

No Block Turn Lane Length N.A. feet

* - No Block Turn Lane Length adds a 50' taper to No Block Distance

MOVEMENT:NB Left Turn

THE RESERVES (SIMMS DEVELOPMENT) - HUBER HEIGHTS, OH

Turn Lane Length Calculations

SR 201 AT "THE RESERVES" PROP'D ACCESS (~625' N OF SHULL)

AM Peak hour volumes

C:\Users\joaks\Desktop\JDO Projects\Huber\Simms\03-Turn Lane Warrants-Calcs\TurnLaneLengths-NBL.xls

01-02-22



HCS7 Two-Way Stop-Control Report

General Information Site Information

Analyst JDO Intersection SR 201 AT THE RESERVES

Agency/Co. LJB INC Jurisdiction HUBER HEIGHTS, OH

Date Performed 31-Jan-22 East/West Street Prop'd Access

Analysis Year 2023 North/South Street SR201

Time Analyzed AM PEAK Peak Hour Factor 0.90

Intersection Orientation North-South Analysis Time Period (hrs) 0.25

Project Description THE RESERVES (SIMMS DEVELOPMENT) - HUBER HEIGHTS

Lanes

Major Street: North-South

Vehicle Volumes and Adjustments

Approach Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

Movement U L T R U L T R U L T R U L T R

Priority 10 11 12 7 8 9 1U 1 2 3 4U 4 5 6

Number of Lanes 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 2 0

Configuration LR L T T TR

Volume (veh/h) 4 12 0 4 160 480 1

Percent Heavy Vehicles (%) 2 2 0 2

Proportion Time Blocked

Percent Grade (%) 0

Right Turn Channelized

Median Type | Storage Undivided

Critical and Follow-up Headways

Base Critical Headway (sec) 7.5 6.9 4.1

Critical Headway (sec) 6.84 6.94 4.14

Base Follow-Up Headway (sec) 3.5 3.3 2.2

Follow-Up Headway (sec) 3.52 3.32 2.22

Delay, Queue Length, and Level of Service

Flow Rate, v (veh/h) 18 4

Capacity, c (veh/h) 612 1030

v/c Ratio 0.03 0.00

95% Queue Length, Q₉₅ (veh) 0.1 0.0

Control Delay (s/veh) 11.1 8.5

Level of Service (LOS) B A

Approach Delay (s/veh) 11.1 0.2

Approach LOS B

Copyright © 2022 University of Florida. All Rights Reserved. HCS™ TWSC Version 7.8.5 Generated: 31-Jan-22 7:06:48 PM

SR201@TheReserves-Huber-AM(TWSC1).xtw



HCS7 Two-Way Stop-Control Report

General Information Site Information

Analyst JDO Intersection SR 201 AT THE RESERVES

Agency/Co. LJB INC Jurisdiction HUBER HEIGHTS, OH

Date Performed 31-Jan-22 East/West Street Prop'd Access

Analysis Year 2023 North/South Street SR201

Time Analyzed PM PEAK Peak Hour Factor 0.90

Intersection Orientation North-South Analysis Time Period (hrs) 0.25

Project Description THE RESERVES (SIMMS DEVELOPMENT) - HUBER HEIGHTS

Lanes

Major Street: North-South

Vehicle Volumes and Adjustments

Approach Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

Movement U L T R U L T R U L T R U L T R

Priority 10 11 12 7 8 9 1U 1 2 3 4U 4 5 6

Number of Lanes 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 2 0

Configuration LR L T T TR

Volume (veh/h) 6 9 0 16 680 420 10

Percent Heavy Vehicles (%) 2 2 0 2

Proportion Time Blocked

Percent Grade (%) 0

Right Turn Channelized

Median Type | Storage Undivided

Critical and Follow-up Headways

Base Critical Headway (sec) 7.5 6.9 4.1

Critical Headway (sec) 6.84 6.94 4.14

Base Follow-Up Headway (sec) 3.5 3.3 2.2

Follow-Up Headway (sec) 3.52 3.32 2.22

Delay, Queue Length, and Level of Service

Flow Rate, v (veh/h) 17 18

Capacity, c (veh/h) 451 1081

v/c Ratio 0.04 0.02

95% Queue Length, Q₉₅ (veh) 0.1 0.1

Control Delay (s/veh) 13.3 8.4

Level of Service (LOS) B A

Approach Delay (s/veh) 13.3 0.2

Approach LOS B

Copyright © 2022 University of Florida. All Rights Reserved. HCS™ TWSC Version 7.8.5 Generated: 31-Jan-22 7:05:17 PM

SR201@TheReserves-Huber-PM(TWSC1).xtw







                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 

 

 
Administrative  Office:  7008 Brandt  Pike Hu ber Heights ,  Ohio  45424  

Telephone:   (937)  233 -  1564      Fax Number:  (937)  233 -  4520  

 

 Huber Heights Fire Division 
          

 

 

Inspections require two business days advance notice! (OAC)1301:7-7-09(A)(5) 
 
 
 

Occupancy Name: The Gables of Huber Heights 

Occupancy Address: Brandt Pike 

 

Type of Permit: HHP&D Site Plan 

Additional Permits: Choose an item. 

Additional Permits: Choose an item. 

 

MCBR BLD: Not Yet Assigned HH P&D:  

MCBR MEC:  HHFD  Plan: 22-032 

MCBR ELE:  HHFD Box: 55 

REVIEWER: Susong DATE: 2/25/2022 
 

Fire Department Comments: 
The Huber Heights City Code Part 15 Refers to Fire Code Requirements and has adopted by reference OFC and IFC Appendices 

These comments are based only on the proposed site work, fire department 
access and basic fire protection concept at this time. A full plan review of the 

building systems, fire protection, egress and life safety will need to be conducted 
once the architectural plans have been submitted. The proposed development 
will need to meet the requirements of the Ohio Fire Code 2017, Ohio Building 

Code 2017 and the Huber Heights Codified Ordinance.  Based on the drawings 
provided the following requirements need to be met. 

Requirements: 

• Hydrants in multi-family and commercial districts shall be placed not more 
than 300 feet apart, measured on the main and not more than 400 feet from 
any opening in any building.  All new fire hydrants and any existing fire 
hydrants that are in need of replacement, shall meet the Huber Heights 
hydrant standard for this district of two (2), five (5) inch diameter steamer 
nozzles.  These steamer nozzles shall have a five (5) inch STORTZ quick 
connection and one steamer shall have a four (4) inch STORTZ connection 
approved by the Code Official.  Huber Heights Codified Ordinance 
1521.06(c). (A utility drawing has not been provided at this time.) 

• Unobstructed access to fire hydrants shall be maintained at all times. The 
fire department shall not be deterred or hindered from gaining immediate 



Plans reviewed by the Huber Heights Fire Division are reviewed with the intent they comply in ALL respects to this code, 
as prescribed in SECTION (D) 104.1 of the 2017 Ohio Fire Code. Any omissions or errors on the plans or in this review 
do not relieve the applicant of complying with ALL applicable requirements of this code. These plans have been reviewed 
for compliance with the Ohio Fire Code adopted by this jurisdiction. There may be other regulations applicable under 
local, state, or federal statues and codes, which this department has no authority to enforce and therefore have not been 
evaluated as part of this plan review. 
 

access to fire protection equipment or fire hydrants. Ohio Fire Code 
507.5.4. (See below.) 

• A 3-foot (914 mm) clear space shall be maintained around the 
circumference of fire hydrants except as otherwise required or approved. 
(No trees, bushes, plantings, etc.) Ohio Fire Code 507.5.5. 

• The water supply shall be capable of providing required fire flows for fire 
protection.  Ohio Fire Code 507.1 & 507.3.  Calculations and findings will 
need to be determined and provided. (Refer to Ohio Fire Code Appendix B 
for required flows.)  

• Verify that proposed trees do not obstruct fire department access and 
access roads.  The minimum clear vertical height for fire apparatus access 
roads shall be 13 feet 6 inches, in accordance with Ohio Fire Code 503.2.1.  

• Fire department access roads shall be capable of supporting the imposed 
load of fire apparatus weighing up to 75,000 lbs. Refer to Ohio Fire Code 
Appendix D102.1.  

• Fire department access roads with fire hydrants shall be a minimum of 26 
feet in width exclusive of shoulders.  Refer to Ohio Fire Code Appendix 
D103.1. (Roads need to be increased from 24 feet to 26 feet.) 

• Multi-family residential developments with more than 100 dwelling units 
shall be equipped throughout with two separate and approved fire access 
roads. Refer to OFC Appendix D106.1. (Current drawing indicates 74 units 
and a secondary emergency access off cul de sac.) 

• Buildings where the vertical distance between the grade plane and the 
highest roof surface exceeds 30 feet, shall be provided with approved 
aerial fire apparatus access roads.  OFC Appendix D105.1. Refer to D105.2, 
D105.3 and D105.4 for additional requirements. (Elevations of units has not 
been provided.) 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Please reference contact information below for questions or concerns with this document. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



The Gables of Huber Heights – Charles Simms Development Comments and Questions

Emergency Access Point:

According to Fire Department comments, two access roads are required only when there are 
more than 100 dwelling units.  The Gables is to have 74; thus, it appears that an emergency 
access would not be required.  

The concern is that there appears not to be any way to prevent traffic coming from the Gables 
on to Salon Circle in the Reserve via the proposed exit.  Ours is a gated community with only
one entry/exit point.  If extra traffic from the Gables uses Salon it will increase maintenance 
requirements on our pavement and the automated exit gate.  The Reserve HOA should not 
have to bear the cost of the increased maintenance.  

Our request is that the emergency access be eliminated from the Simms plan.

Separation Mound:

Will there be any landscaping on the six feet high mound that separates the two 
developments? 

If it is merely a mound of soil without any vegetation and silt barrier, the muddy runoff will go 
on the surface of Salon Circle.

Our preference is that the mound be adequately mulched or grassed to prevent mud from 
forming.  Trees, especially evergreens, planted on the mound would be desirable.  This would 
enhance the appearance for both communities, reduce mowing, and help control erosion.

The drawings do not show a mound extending along the Reserve’s buildings Monte Carlo Way 
and the Simms buildings.  Since the developer will be removing soil in that area for the 
retention pond, it could be used to build the separation mound there.  This would reduce his 
expense for removing the soil from the area while providing privacy for both communities.

Completion Date:

What is the anticipated completion date for the development?  

The buildings appear to be very beautiful and will be a positive addition to Huber Heights when 
completed.

Submitted by:  James and Sue Bartrum

6994 Salon Circle, Huber Heights, OH

937-506-7781



1

Memorandum
Staff Report for Meeting of March 15, 2022

To:                 Huber Heights City Planning Commission

From:             Aaron K. Sorrell, Interim City Planner
Community Planning Insights

Date:              March 7, 2022

Subject:        Basic Development Plan: The Gables of Huber Heights

� Application dated January 28, 2022

Department of Planning and Zoning                        City of Huber Heights

APPLICANT/OWNER: Charles V. Simms Development – Applicant
Trebein Limited ADK IV, LLC - Owners

DEVELOPMENT NAME: The Gables of Huber Heights

ADDRESS/LOCATION: Brandt Pike, north of The Reserves at the Fairways and 
the Aquatic Center.

ZONING/ACREAGE: Planned Mixed Use / 15.93 Acres

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

ZONING
ADJACENT LAND: Planned Mixed Use (north and south)

R-7 (west)
Agriculture (East – Carriage Hill MetroPark 

REQUEST:                                   The applicant requests approval of the basic 
development plan to construct 74 for sale residential 
units within 11 buildings.   

ORIGINAL APPROVAL:              This land was originally intended to be developed as a 
later phase of the Reserves at the Fairways approved 
in early 2000.

APPLICABLE HHCC:    Chapter 1171, 1179

CORRESPONDENCE:               In Favor – None Received
                                           In Opposition – None Received



2

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION:

Overview 
The applicant requests approval of a basic development plan to construct 74 
condominiums in 11 buildings on 15.93 acres, which yields an average density of 4.64
units/acre. Approximately 64% of the site is open space (10.20 acres).

This land was originally approved as part of The Reserves at the Fairways, a similar 
condominium development immediately south of the project site.  

Conformance with Zoning Regulations
The proposal largely conforms to the regulations outlined in Chapter 1179, Planned 
Mixed Use District (PM):

 Residential uses are permitted in the district and the buildings meet the setback 
requirement of 15-feet between residential buildings. 

 Buildings are clustered and a large, usable greenspace area is proposed in the 
development. Approximately 64% of the site is open space, including detention 
areas.

 Walking paths are included throughout the development.
 Site access is limited to one private drive from Brandt Pike.  A secondary 

emergency exit is proposed at the cul-de-sac terminus and connects to an 
existing private street (Salon Circle). 

 Parking will be provided through a mixture of garage and driveway spaces and 
various guest parking areas.  A total of 334 spaces are provided, 222 are 
required. 

 A six-foot high landscaping mound is provided to buffer the open space area 
from the existing development to the south.

 Lighting will be provided through a combination of exterior building lights and 
lamp posts along walking and parking areas.

 Proposed building elevations indicate substantial use of masonry products on 
the front elevations of the buildings.

Other Considerations
 The applicant has agreed to enlarge the private street width to 27 feet, as 

required by 1111.04 of the subdivision regulations. 



3

Standards for Approval
1171.06 – General Standards For Approval

The Planning Commission shall review the application, prepared development plan and 
the facts presented at the hearing. The applicant shall have the burden of proof. No 
approval shall be given unless the Commission shall find by a preponderance of the 
evidence that such PUD on the proposed locations: 

(a) Is consistent with official thoroughfare plan, comprehensive development plan and 
other applicable plans and policies; 

(b) Could be substantially completed within the period of time specified in the schedule 
of development submitted by the developer; 

(c) Is accessible from public roads that are adequate to carry the traffic that shall be 
imposed upon them by the proposed development. Further, the streets and 
driveways on the site of the proposed development shall be adequate to serve the 
residents or occupants of the proposed development; 

(d) Shall not impose an undue burden on public services such as utilities, fire and 
police protection, and schools; 

(e) Contains such proposed covenants, easements and other provisions relating to the 
proposed development standards as may reasonably be required for the public 
health, safety and welfare; 

(f) Shall be landscaped or otherwise improved and the location and arrangement of 
structures, parking areas, walks, lighting and appurtenant facilities shall be 
compatible with the existing intended uses, and any part of a PUD not used for 
structures, parking and loading areas, or accessways; 

(g) Shall preserve natural features such as water courses, trees and rock outcrops, to 
the degree possible, so that they can enhance the overall design of the PUD; 

(h) Is designed to take advantage of the existing land contours in order to provide 
satisfactory road gradients and suitable building lots and to facilitate the provision 
of proposed services; 

(i) Shall place underground all electric and telephone facilities, street light wiring and 
other wiring conduits and similar facilities in any development which is primarily 
designed for or occupied by dwellings, unless waived by the Commission because 
of technical reasons; 

(j) Shall not create excessive additional requirements at public cost of public facilities 
and services and shall not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the 
community; 

(k) Shall not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment and conditions 
of operation that shall be detrimental to any persons, property or the general 
welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or 
odors; and 

(l) Rezoning of the land to the PUD District and approval of the development plan 
shall not adversely affect the public peace, health, morals, safety or welfare.



4

Staff Analysis

As outlined above, this land was originally envisioned and approved as a condominium 
development and has sat fallow for nearly 20-years. Staff feels the proposed basic 
development plan meets the requirements of the PM District and the general standards 
for approval outlined in Section 1171.06.  

Additional Comments:

Fire:  See Attached.  The applicant will comply will all fire code requirements.

City Engineer:
 The water and sanitary sewer lines are to be public lines made of City standard 

materials and they are to be in easements.
 The entrance off of Brandt Pike should be a minimum 36’ wide with one lane in 

and two lanes out.  

Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the basic development plan submitted on January 28, 
2022 with the following conditions:

 Applicant shall comply will all fire code requirements.
 The minimum private street pavement width shall be 27 feet.
 The water and sanitary sewer lines are to be public lines made of City standard 

materials and they are to be in easements.
 The entrance off of Brandt Pike should be a minimum 36’ wide with one lane in 

and two lanes out.

Planning Commission Action

Planning Commission may take the following actions with a motion to: 
1) Approve the basic development plan application, with or without conditions.
2) Deny the basic development plan.
3) Table the application in order to gather additional information.



BDP 22-07 – Decision Record

1

Planning Commission Decision Record

WHEREAS, on January 28, 2022, the applicant, Charles V. Simms Development, 
requested approval of the Basic Development Plan for property located at Brandt 
Pike, Parcel Number P70-03910-0057 of the Montgomery County, Ohio Records
(Case BDP 22-07); and

WHEREAS, on March 15, 2022, the Planning Commission did meet and fully 
discuss the details of the request.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission hereby
recommended approval of the request.

Mr. Jeffries moved to recommend approval of the request by the applicant, 
Charles V. Simms Development, for a Basic Development Plan for property 
located at Brandt Pike, Parcel Number P70-03910-0057 of the Montgomery 
County, Ohio Records (Case BDP 22-07) in accordance with the recommendation 
of Staff’s Memorandum dated March 7, 2022, and the amended Planning 
Commission Decision Record:                                

1. Applicant shall comply with all fire code requirements.

2. The minimum private street pavement width shall be 27 feet.

3. The water and sanitary sewer lines are to be public lines made of City 
standard materials and they are to be in easements.

4. The entrance off of Brandt Pike shall be a minimum 36’ wide with one 
lane in and two lanes out.



BDP 22-07 – Decision Record

2

5. Brandt Pike road improvements may be needed subject to approval by 
the City Engineer for changing stripping and painting of future left lane.

Seconded by Ms. Thomas. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo, Ms. Thomas, Mr. 
Jeffries, and Mr. Walton.  NAYS: None. Motion to recommend approval carried 
4-0.

_____________________________ _______________
Terry Walton, Chair Date
Planning Commission



Planning Commission
March 15, 2022, Meeting

City of Huber Heights

I. Chair Terry Walton called the meeting to order at approximately 6:01 p.m.

II. Present at the meeting:  Mr. Jeffries, Ms. Thomas, Ms. Vargo and Mr. Walton.

Members absent: Ms. Opp

Staff Present: Aaron K. Sorrell, Interim City Planner, and Geri Hoskins, Planning 
& Zoning Administrative Secretary.

III. Opening Remarks by the Chairman and Commissioners

IV. Citizens Comments

None.

V. Swearing of Witnesses

Mr. Walton explained the proceedings of tonight’s meeting and administered the 
sworn oath to all persons wishing to speak or give testimony regarding items on 
the agenda. All persons present responded in the affirmative.

VI. Pending Business

1. MAJOR CHANGE – The applicant, Kirmon Khalilov, is requesting 
approval of a Major Change to the Basic and Detailed Development 
Plan in a Planned Commercial District for 2.55 acres at 5840 Old Troy 
Pike (ZC 21-45).

Mr. Sorrell stated that this application was heard and tabled at the December 14, 
2021, Planning Commission meeting. Based on the minutes, there was 
discussion about whether vehicles would be serviced on site, existing buffering 
between the adjacent funeral home, and moving the parking setback significantly 
closer to Old Troy Pike. 

The applicant has submitted a revised plan which:
 Includes auto sales and service as the primary use;
 Added a masonry dumpster enclosure to the rear of the lot;
 Added a 42-inch hedge as screening between the front parking area and the 

funeral home parking area;
 Illustrates possible building expansion for garage bays and/or possible office; 

and 
 Added three 25-foot light poles (two in front, one at the rear). 

No other substantial changes were submitted.



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

2

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION:

This analysis will focus on the changes to the proposal since the application was 
tabled at the December 14, 2021, meeting:

Vehicle Display and Landscaping 
The revised plan includes a 42” hedge, 60-feet long, between the display area 
and the property line. While this does help buffer the display area from the 
adjoining property, the proposed plan reduces the existing required yard buffer 
from 15-feet (required in the PC District) to approximately 7-feet. 

The code states:
1176.03 (b)(1):  All yards within the development plan except those abutting a
Business or Industrial District shall be maintained in landscaping and not used for 
parking, to the extent of a minimum of 15 feet along property lines.

Both the original and revised plan locate the vehicle display area 25-feet from the
right-of-way. While this meets the zoning standards for a parking area, the 
proposed plan shows three tightly packed display rows. This will have a greater 
visual impact along Old Troy Pike than a traditional parking area with one row of 
parked vehicles, separated by a 20-foot drive aisle. Additionally, parking areas of 
this size would be required to have interior parking landscaping to break up the 
mass of the vehicles and reduce storm water runoff. There are little to no recently 
developed uses within the vicinity that have such concentrated vehicular display 
or parking areas.

Conformance with Zoning Regulations
The proposed vehicle sales and service uses are permitted uses within the 
Planned Commercial district, if the Planning Commission approves such uses.  
At this time, there are no vehicle sales uses in this area of Old Troy Pike.  

The proposed site plan brings the site out of conformance with the yard 
standards set in 1176.03(b)(1), described above.  

If the Planning Commission deems the vehicle display area as a parking area, 
the site plan is not in conformance with the parking requirements found in 
Chapter 1185. 

Staff Analysis
As proposed, it is the staff’s opinion that the site becomes less conforming to the 
zoning code than it currently exists.  This includes yard standards, and parking 
layout and design. 
#5 in the Decision Record would read the only use approved is the sale and 
service automobiles.
Strike # 7 from the Decision Record.
Revise to March 15, 2022.

Chad spoke on behalf of the applicant.



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

3

Action

Ms. Thomas moved to approve the request by the applicant Kirmon Khalilov, for 
approval of a Major Change to the Basic and Detailed Plan in a Planned 
Commercial District for 2.55 acres at 5840 Old Troy Pike (ZC 21-45).

Seconded by Ms. Vargo. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo. NAYS: Mr. Jeffries, 
Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. Motion to approve denied 3-1.

All three Nays stated no similar uses in the area.
Case moves to City Council

VII. New Business

1. MINOR CHANGE - The applicant, Atlantic Sign Company, is requesting 
approval of a Minor Change for Signage at Camping World located at 8001 
Old Troy Pike (MC 22-09).

Mr. Sorrell stated that the applicant requests approval to replace existing wall 
signs due to the acquisition of Gander Outdoors by Camping World.  The net 
effect of the change is an overall reduction in wall sign area.  

Original Approval
As you can see below, the amount of approved and/or installed wall sign area 
has changed over the years:

September 2004 962 SF
July 2012 666 SF
September 2018 562 SF

Current Application
The applicant seeks a minor change to replace one internally illumined wall sign 
and remove one existing internally illuminated wall sign. Two existing wall signs 
remain unchanged. The total wall sign area will be reduced from approximately 
562 SF to approximately 429 SF. 

The applicant seeks a minor change to replace one internally illumined wall sign 
and remove one existing internally illuminated wall sign. Total wall sign area will 
be reduced from approximately 562 SF to approximately 429 SF, a reduction of 
approximately 23%. 

Brooke Alini from Atlantic Sign Company was there for any questions.

Action

Ms. Vargo moved to approve the request by the applicant Atlantic Sign Company
for approval of a Minor Change for Signage at Camping World located at 8001 
Old Troy Pike (MC 22-09) in accordance with the recommendation of Staff’s 



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

4

Memorandum dated March 8, 2022, and the Planning Commission Decision 
Record attached thereto.

Seconded by Mr. Jeffries. Roll call showed: YEAS: Mr. Jeffries, Ms. Thomas,
Ms. Vargo, and Mr. Walton.  NAYS: None.  Motion to approve carried 4-0.

2. BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN - The applicant, Charles V. Simms 
Development, is requesting approval of a Basic Development Plan for the 
Gables of Huber Heights, located on Brandt Pike North of the Reserves at 
the Fairways (BDP 22-07).

Mr. Sorrell stated that the applicant requests approval of a basic development 
plan to construct 74 condominiums in 11 buildings on 15.93 acres, which yields 
an average density of 4.64 units/acre. Approximately 64% of the site is open 
space (10.20 acres).

This land was originally approved as part of The Reserves at the Fairways, a 
similar condominium development immediately south of the project site.  

Conformance with Zoning Regulations
The proposal largely conforms to the regulations outlined in Chapter 1179, 
Planned Mixed Use District (PM):

 Residential uses are permitted in the district and the buildings meet the setback 
requirement of 15-feet between residential buildings. 

 Buildings are clustered and a large, usable greenspace area is proposed in the 
development. Approximately 64% of the site is open space, including detention 
areas.

 Walking paths are included throughout the development.
 Site access is limited to one private drive from Brandt Pike.  A secondary 

emergency exit is proposed at the cul-de-sac terminus and connects to an 
existing private street (Salon Circle). 

 Parking will be provided through a mixture of garage and driveway spaces and 
various guest parking areas.  A total of 334 spaces are provided, 222 are 
required. 

 A six-foot high landscaping mound is provided to buffer the open space area 
from the existing development to the south.

 Lighting will be provided through a combination of exterior building lights and 
lamp posts along walking and parking areas.

 Proposed building elevations indicate substantial use of masonry products on the 
front elevations of the buildings.

Other Considerations
 The applicant has agreed to enlarge the private street width to 27 feet, as 

required by 1111.04 of the subdivision regulations. 

Staff Analysis

As outlined above, this land was originally envisioned and approved as a 
condominium development and has sat fallow for nearly 20-years. Staff feels the 
proposed basic development plan meets the requirements of the PM District and 
the general standards for approval outlined in Section 1171.06.  



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

5

Additional Comments:

Fire:  See Attached.  The applicant will comply will all fire code requirements.

City Engineer:
 The water and sanitary sewer lines are to be public lines made of City standard 

materials and they are to be in easements.
 The entrance off of Brandt Pike should be a minimum 36’ wide with one lane in 

and two lanes out.  

Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the basic development plan submitted on January 
28, 2022, with the following conditions:

 Applicant shall comply will all fire code requirements.
 The minimum private street pavement width shall be 27 feet.
 The water and sanitary sewer lines are to be public lines made of City standard 

materials and they are to be in easements.
 The entrance off of Brandt Pike should be a minimum 36’ wide with one lane in 

and two lanes out.

Planning Commission Action

Planning Commission may take the following actions with a motion to: 
1) Approve the basic development plan application, with or without conditions.
2) Deny the basic development plan.
3) Table the application in order to gather additional information.

Robert Simms
John Moore
Barry Payne
James Moore
Christine Olinsky

Amended Decision Record to add #5, Brandt Pike road improvements may 
be needed subject to approval by the City Engineer for changing stripping 
and painting of future left lane.

Action

Mr. Jeffries moved to approve the request by the applicant Charles V. Simms 
Development, for approval of a Basic Development Plan for the Gables of Huber 
Heights, P70 03910 0057 of the Montgomery County Records Map (BDP 22-07)
in accordance with the recommendation of Staff’s Memorandum dated March 7, 
2022, and the Planning Commission Decision Record attached thereto.

Seconded by Ms. Thomas. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo, Mr. Jeffries,
Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: None.  Motion to approve carried 4-0.

Move to City Council



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

6

3. BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN - The applicant, Amarjit Takhar, is requesting 
approval of a Basic Development Plan and Rezoning to (Planned 
Commercial) PC for 35 acres at State Route 35 for a Service Station (BDP 
22-08).

Mr. Sorrell stated that the applicant has provided some preliminary revised plans.  
The applicant requests approval of a basic development plan and rezoning to 
Planned Commercial District to construct a fueling center, convenience store, 
truck stop and diesel repair facility on approximately nine (9) acres of a 35-acre 
parcel. The site is adjacent to the I-70 / SR 235 interchange.

The land is currently zoned “I-1” Light Industrial and Mixed-Use District.   The 
surrounding lands are predominantly zoned I-1 and used for manufacturing or 
logistics purposes.  There is a significant amount of agricultural / vacant land 
immediately east of this site in Clark County that has development potential but 
limited access to SR 235 and I-70.

The proposed service station and diesel repair facilities are Special Uses within 
the existing I-1 zoning district.  The convenience store is not a principally 
permitted use in the existing I-1 zoning district.  

There is an existing service station with convenience store adjacent to this site 
zoned Planned Commercial.

On-Site Uses and Facilities
The applicant is proposing two buildings, one 6,720 SF building containing a 
convenience store and restaurant, and the second 6,642 SF diesel truck repair 
facility.  Both buildings are proposed to be clad with a mix of brick and stucco 
EFIS.

Fuel will be dispensed through one five-pump island in front of the convenience 
store, and a second five-pump island located at the rear of the property for semi-
trucks and large oversized vehicles. Both fueling islands will be covered by large 
canopies.

Parking is provided throughout the site.  The applicant is proposing 62 parking 
spaces, including 10 for semi-trucks.  

Applicable Zoning Regulations
The appliable zoning chapters include: 1171 General Provisions, 1176 Planned 
Commercial District, 1181 General Provisions, 1182 Landscaping and Screening, 
1185 Parking and Loading.  The relevant sections are citied below: 

Staff Analysis
The analysis below is based on the application and drawings originally submitted 
as a Planned Industrial District.  Staff realized this application was in error, but 
not in time to enable the applicant to revise the drawings for this meeting.  
Additionally, staff has been in discussion with the applicant to reconfigure the site 
plan to allow for a future extension of Center Point 70 Blvd.  The applicant has 
agreed to make these accommodations and is working on these revisions.



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

7

Conformance with Zoning Regulations:

1176 (PC) Planned Commercial District

The proposed uses are principally permitted in the PC district.  The current plan
indicates a 10-foot perimeter buffer yard, which must be 15-feet. All other 
standards for this Chapter are met. 

Chapter 1181 General Provisions

The proposal meets the requirements of Chapter 1181, with the exception of the 
following items are not in compliance or not illustrated on the Basic Development 
Plan:

 Street trees shall be placed every 40-feet along the public street.
 No exterior lighting plan was submitted.  Unless otherwise directed by the 

Planning Commission, parking light fixtures shall not exceed 25 feet in height.

Chapter 1182 Landscaping and Screening Standards

The Basic Development Plan indicates potential locations for landscape islands 
and trees within the parking areas.  Additional detail shall be provided during the 
detailed development plan phase. 

Chapter 1185 Parking and Loading

The proposal generally meets the requirements of Chapter 1185.  The applicant 
is illustrating parking island landscaping. The maximum required number of 
parking spaces required is approximately 67 total spaces.  The plan indicates 62 
proposed spaces.  The number of required parking spaces is likely to decrease 
once the final area of the convenience store (less storage) and restaurant are 
determined. 

Chapter 1193 Trailers, Trucks, Recreational Vehicles, Boats, Farm or 
Construction Equipment

The proposal meets the requirements of this chapter which limits the number of 
semi parking spaces to no more than ten spaces.  The plans indicate ten spaces 
that are correctly dimensioned. 

Other Considerations:

The original submission illustrates a driveway that aligns with Center Point 70 
Boulevard.  This alignment would severely limit any future expansion of the 
roadway to the east.  Staff has asked the applicant to redesign the site to allow a 
future extension of Center Point 70 by moving the gas pumps and store further 
south and/or changing their alignment.  This will enable the roadway to be 
extended in the future with less disruption to the business.  This extension would 
also provide hundreds of acres of potential development lands with better access 
to I-70.  The applicant has agreed, and is currently working on these revisions.    



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

8

Additional Comments:

Fire:  See Attached.  The applicant will comply will all fire code requirements.

City Engineer:
  
Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning from I-1 to Planned Commercial and 
approval of the basic development plan with the following conditions:

 A 15-foot buffer yard shall be illustrated on the basic development plan
 Street trees shall be placed every 40-feet
 The applicant shall revise the alignment and location of the gas pumps and 

convenience store to allow for a future extension of Center Point 70 Boulevard.
 Applicant shall comply with all fire code requirements.
 Prior to submission to City Council for review and approval, applicant shall 

resubmit a basic development plan that conforms with the conditions above.

Planning Commission Action

Planning Commission may take the following actions with a motion to: 
4) Approve the rezoning and basic development plan application, with or without 

conditions.
5) Deny the basic development plan.
6) Table the application in order to gather additional information.

Chris Besecker

Action

Mr. Jeffries moved to table the request by the applicant Amarjit Takhar, for 
approval of a Basic Development Plan and Rezoning to Planned Commercial 
(PC) to construct a fueling center, convenience store, truck stop and diesel repair 
facility on approximately nine (9) acres of a 35-acre parcel located on the East 
side of intersection of SR 235 and Center Point 70 Blvd, Parcel Numbers P70-
03903-0079 and P70-03903-0005 of the Montgomery County Records Map (BDP 
22-08) in accordance with the recommendation of Staff’s Memorandum dated 
March 10, 2022, and the Planning Commission Decision Record attached 
thereto.

Seconded by Ms. Thomas. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo, Mr. Jeffries,
Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: None.  Motion to table carried 4-0.

4. BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN - The applicant, DEC Land Co., I LLC, is 
requesting approval of a Detailed Development Plan and Final Plat for 
Section 7, Phase 5 of the Carriage Trails Development (DDP 22-10).



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

9

Mr. Sorrell stated that the applicant requests approval of the detailed 
development plan and final plat for section seven, phase five of the Carriage 
Trails subdivision.  This phase contains 65 lots on approximately 17.34 acres. 

Conformance with Zoning Regulations
The detailed development plan conforms to the regulations outlined in Chapter 
1179, Planned Mixed Use District and the basic development plan approved by 
City Council.  

The mixture of lot sizes (approximately) are:

60 feet x 130 feet: 53 lots
66 feet x 130 feet: 3 lots
70 feet x 130 feet: 3 lots
77 feet x 130 feet: 6 lots

Minimum yard setbacks: 
Front & Rear: 25 feet

  Side:    5 feet

The HOA covenants have the following applicable requirements and restrictions:

 Uses: Limited to a single-family residence
 Building material:  The covenants require a minimum of 50% of the single-family 

homes within each subareas shall have front façade of no less than 25% 
masonry materials. 

 Accessory Buildings:  No larger than 10’ x 10’ shed.
 Fences: Limited to the rear yard, no higher than 4-feet. Chain link fencing is 

prohibited.

The HOA will be responsible for the care and maintenance of all common areas. 

Staff Analysis
The applicant requests approval of the detailed development plan and final plat 
for section seven, phase five of the Carriage Trails subdivision.  This phase 
contains 65 lots on approximately 17.34 acres, which is approximately 3.7 units 
per acre. 

It is important to note that the current municipal boundary bisects lots 1 – 36 
because the annexation has not yet been completed.  The developer plans to 
build out the street infrastructure, but not fully plat lots 1 - 36 until the annexation 
is complete.  Staff is supportive of this approach on the condition that no zoning 
permit shall be issued for lots 1 – 36 until such time as these lots are fully platted
and recorded within the City of Huber Heights.     

Additional Comments:

Fire:  See attached



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

10

City Engineer:
 The temporary cul-de-sac near the intersection of Arrowwood Street and 

Woodmint Drive is not required and can be removed if desired. 

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of the detailed development plan submitted on 
February 18, 2022, with the condition that that no zoning permit shall be issued 
for lots 1 – 36 until such time as these lots are fully platted and recorded within 
the City of Huber Heights.     

Planning Commission Action

Planning Commission may take the following actions with a motion to: 
7) Approve the Detailed Development Plan; or,
8) Deny the Detailed Development Plan.

Ken Conaway

Action

Mr. Jeffries moved to approve the request by the applicant DEC Land Co. I LLC, 
for approval of the Detailed Development Plan and Final Plat for section 7, Phase 
5 of the Carriage Trails subdivision (DDP 22-10) in accordance with the 
recommendation of Staff’s Memorandum dated March 8, 2022, and the Planning 
Commission Decision Record attached thereto.

Seconded by Ms. Thomas. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo, Mr. Jeffries,
Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: None.  Motion to approve carried 4-0.

VIII.     Additional Business

1. Proposed Change to an Existing Ordinance for Planning Commission 
Recommendation for Sidewalks and Curb Associated with all New 
Development within the City (ORD 22-16).

Action

Ms. Vargo moved to approve the request by the applicant The City of Huber 
Heights, for a proposed change to an Existing Ordinance for Sidewalks and Curb 
Associated with all New Development within the City (ORD 22-16).

Seconded by Ms. Thomas. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo, Mr. Jeffries,
Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: None.  Motion to approve carried 4-0.

IX. Approval of the Minutes

Without objection, the minutes of the January 25, 2022, and February 15, 2022, 
Planning Commission meeting are approved.



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

11

X. Reports and Calendar Review

Rezoning State Route 235
Basic Development Plan Brandt Pike, North of the Reserves
Comprehensive Plan Mid-April, Yard, Inc.

XI. Upcoming Meetings

March 15, 2022
March 29, 2022

XII. Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting
was adjourned at approximately 8:05 p.m.

__________________________________ _____________________________
Terry Walton, Chair Date

__________________________________ _____________________________
Geri Hoskins, Administrative Secretary Date



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-O-

TO APPROVE A BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED ON 
BRANDT PIKE NORTH OF THE RESERVES AT THE FAIRWAYS AND FURTHER 
IDENTIFIED AS PARCEL NUMBER P70-03910-0057 ON THE MONTGOMERY COUNTY 
AUDITOR’S MAP AND ACCEPTING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION (ZONING CASE BDP 22-07).

WHEREAS, the citizens of Huber Heights require the efficient and orderly planning of land uses 
within the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Planning Commission has reviewed Zoning Case BDP 22-07 and on March 
15, 2022, recommended approval by a vote of 4-0 of the Basic Development Plan; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the issue.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The application requesting approval of a Basic Development Plan (Zoning Case BDP 
22-07) is hereby approved in accordance with the Planning Commission’s recommendation and 
following conditions:

1. Applicant shall comply with all Fire Code requirements.
2. The minimum private street pavement width shall be 27 feet.
3. The water and sanitary sewer lines are to be public lines made of City standard materials 

and they are to be in easements.
4. The entrance off Brandt Pike shall be a minimum 36 feet wide with one lane in and two 

lanes out.
5. Brandt Pike road improvements may be needed subject to approval by the City Engineer 

for changing striping and painting of future left lane.

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Ordinance shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the ________  day of ______________, 2022;
          Yeas;           Nays.

Effective Date:  

AUTHENTICATION:

______________________________ ______________________________
Clerk of Council Mayor

______________________________ ______________________________
Date Date



   
AI-8359     New Business      M.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
ZC BDP 22-08 - Amarjit Takhar - Rezoning/Basic Development Plan - State Route 235
Submitted By: Geri Hoskins
Department: Planning Division: Planning
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/19/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: SmartBoard Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

2022-O-2525

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
An Ordinance To Approve A Basic Development Plan And Rezoning To Planned Commercial (PC) For
A 35 Acre Parcel Of Property Located On The East Side Of The Intersection Of State Route 235 And
Center Point 70 Boulevard And Further Identified As Parcel Numbers P70-03903-0079 And
P70-03903-0005 On The Montgomery County Auditor’s Map And Accepting The Recommendation Of
The Planning Commission (Zoning Case BDP 22-08).
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
The applicant, Amarjit Takhar, is requesting approval of a Basic Development Plan and a Rezoning to
Planned Commercial (PC) (ZC BDP 22-08)..

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Drawings 
Fire Assessment 
Staff Report 
Decision Record 
Minutes 
Ordinance 
Ordinance - Amended 



REVISION TABLE
NUMBER DATE REVISED BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET:

SCALE: DATE: 12/29/2021PAP OIL COMPANY LLC
4365 Lisa Dr

Tipp City, OH 45371

BERGER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
50 Walnut Rd
Medway, OH 45341
937.727.4515

CLIENT:

01 of 12
TRUCK STOP, TRUCK REPAIR, & C-STORE HUBER HEIGHTS, OH

COVER SHEET

LOCATION / VICINITY MAP

RENDERING OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

TRUCK STOP, DIESEL REPAIR SHOP, & C-STORE
ST RT 235, HUBER HEIGHTS, OH

BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN

PROPOSED USES

SERVICE STATION

CONVENIENCE STORE

DRIVE-THRU STORE

RESTAURANT

PROPOSED REZONING

FROM I-1 (LIGHT INDUSTRIAL USE)

TO PI (PLANNED INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT)

--

0 0

03

04

09

N/A

09

06-08

10

10

10

10

I/P

C/P

C/P

C/P

01

11-14

--

--

--

N/A NOT APPLICABLE
I/P IN PROCESS
C/P TO BE PERFORMED AND/OR PROVIDED BY CONTRACTOR OR OTHER PARTY PENDING 

RESULT OF REZONING AND ZONING APPROVAL STATUS



REVISION TABLE
NUMBER DATE REVISED BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET:

SCALE: DATE: 12/29/2021PAP OIL COMPANY LLC
4365 Lisa Dr

Tipp City, OH 45371

BERGER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
50 Walnut Rd
Medway, OH 45341
937.727.4515

CLIENT:

LAND RECORDS
MONTGOMERY COUNTY ENGINEER'S OFFICE

02 of 12
TRUCK STOP, TRUCK REPAIR, & C-STORE HUBER HEIGHTS, OH

COVER SHEET



REVISION TABLE
NUMBER DATE REVISED BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET:

SCALE: DATE: 12/29/2021PAP OIL COMPANY LLC
4365 Lisa Dr

Tipp City, OH 45371

BERGER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
50 Walnut Rd
Medway, OH 45341
937.727.4515

CLIENT:

TRUCK STOP, TRUCK REPAIR, & C-STORE HUBER HEIGHTS, OH
ABUTTING PROPERTIES 03 of 12



REVISION TABLE
NUMBER DATE REVISED BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET:

SCALE: DATE: 12/29/2021PAP OIL COMPANY LLC
4365 Lisa Dr

Tipp City, OH 45371

BERGER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
50 Walnut Rd
Medway, OH 45341
937.727.4515

CLIENT:

WATER & SEWER CONNECTIONS

CP70WaterSewerExt-01_003.PDF WaterSupply.PDF

PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS

water&sewer connections.JPG

TRUCK STOP, TRUCK REPAIR, & C-STORE HUBER HEIGHTS, OH
EXISTING UTILITY LOCATIONS 04 of 12



68.22'

128.68'

9.63'

155.61'

200'

200'

51.61'

218.59'

368.68'

24
1.

57
'

588.15'

914.66'

200'

196.92'

199.92'

200'

247.3'

177.55'

373.46'

886.28'

806.67'

812.75'

N

45'

80'

18'

10'

8'

15'

20'

15'

28'-6"

16'-5"

40'

55'

18'

15'

101'-4"

70'

108'

132'

24'

28'

5' 20'7'-6"

48'

88'

60'

24'

60'

10'

4'

8'

6'

7'

93'

54'

12'

20'
81'109'

25'

45'

205'-9"

75'

67'

26'-4"

25'

10'

15'

15'

15'

15'

40'40'40' 40'

32'

32'

98'-7"

40'

30' 15'

15'

40'

40'

24'

24'

40'

10'

25'

18'

26'-10"

ARTZ RD

CE
NT

ER
 P

T 
70

 B
LV

D

ON RAMP SR23
5 N

ON RAMP SR4 S

EX
IT

 4
1

SR235

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

PROPOSED BUILD
TRUCK REPAIR SHOP

6,642 SQ FT

PROPOSED BUILD

DIESEL PUMP, TYP.

TRUCK CANOPY OUTLINE

12'-0" X 24'-0" 
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

C-STORE
5,280 SQ FT

TENANT
1,440 SQ FT

GAS CANOPY OUTLINE

12'-0" X 12'-0" 
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

EXISTING R.O.W.

PROPERTY LINE

R-30'

R-30'

R-50'

R-50'

DIESEL/DEF TANKS

GAS PUMP AND BOLLARDS, TYP.

LANDSCAPED AREA
(ISLAND)

7
(1)

10
(2)

10

PROPOSED STRUCTURE

CONCRETE PAVEMENT
PER CITY SPEC

CONCRETE SIDEWALK
PER CITY SPEC

LANDSCAPED AREA

LOADING AREA

COMMERCIAL DRIVE
PER CITY SPEC

*ALL PAVEMENT DIMENSIONS REFERENCE THE FACE OF CURB WHERE
CURB IS REQUIRED

*ALL SETBACK DIMENSIONS REFERENCE THE BACK OF CURB OR
THE EXTERNAL FACE OF THE BUILDING, WHERE APPLICABLE

FUEL TANK LOCATION

8

4

7

12

22

(63) PARKING SPACES
(3) HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE

REVISION TABLE
NUMBER DATE REVISED BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET:

SCALE: DATE: 3/18/2022PAP OIL COMPANY LLC
4365 Lisa Dr

Tipp City, OH 45371

BERGER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
50 Walnut Rd
Medway, OH 45341
937.727.4515

CLIENT:

1" = 80' 0"
TRUCK STOP, TRUCK REPAIR, & C-STORE HUBER HEIGHTS, OH

FULL SITE PLAN 05 of 12



68.22'

128.68'

200'

200'

51.61'

200'

196.92'

199.92'

200'

247.3'

177.55'

373.46'

886.28'

N

45'

80'

18'

10'

8'

15'

20'

15'

28'-6"

16'-5"

40'

55'

18'

15'

101'-4"

70'

108'

132'

24'

28'

5' 20'7'-6"

48'

88'

60'

24'

60'

10'

4'

8'

6'

7'

93'

54'

12'

20'
81'109'

25'

45'

205'-9"

75'

67'

26'-4"

25'

10'

15'

15'

15'

15'

40'40'40' 40'

32'

32'

98'-7"

40'

30' 15'

15'

40'

40'

24'

24'

40'

10'

25'

18'

10'

26'-10"

ARTZ RD

CE
NT

ER
 P

T 
70

 B
LV

D

SR235

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

PROPOSED BUILD
TRUCK REPAIR SHOP

6,642 SQ FT

PROPOSED BUILD

DIESEL PUMP, TYP.

TRUCK CANOPY OUTLINE

12'-0" X 24'-0" 
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

C-STORE
5,280 SQ FT

TENANT
1,440 SQ FT

GAS CANOPY OUTLINE

12'-0" X 12'-0" 
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

EXISTING R.O.W.

PROPERTY LINE

R-30'

R-30'

R-50'

R-50'

DIESEL/DEF TANKS

GAS PUMP AND BOLLARDS, TYP.

LANDSCAPED AREA
(ISLAND)

7
(1)

10
(2)

10

PROPOSED STRUCTURE

CONCRETE PAVEMENT
PER CITY SPEC

CONCRETE SIDEWALK
PER CITY SPEC

LANDSCAPED AREA

LOADING AREA

COMMERCIAL DRIVE
PER CITY SPEC

*ALL PAVEMENT DIMENSIONS REFERENCE THE FACE OF CURB WHERE
CURB IS REQUIRED

*ALL SETBACK DIMENSIONS REFERENCE THE BACK OF CURB OR
THE EXTERNAL FACE OF THE BUILDING, WHERE APPLICABLE

PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING R.O.W.

PROPOSED R.O.W.

EDGE OF ROADWAY

ROAD MARKING
BETWEEN LANES

LEGEND

FUEL TANK LOCATION

8

4

7

12

22

(63) PARKING SPACES
(3) HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE

REVISION TABLE
NUMBER DATE REVISED BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET:

SCALE: DATE: 3/18/2022PAP OIL COMPANY LLC
4365 Lisa Dr

Tipp City, OH 45371

BERGER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
50 Walnut Rd
Medway, OH 45341
937.727.4515

CLIENT:

TRUCK STOP, TRUCK REPAIR, & C-STORE HUBER HEIGHTS, OH
DIMENSIONED DEVELOPMENT SITE PLAN - UPDATED 06 of 12



 -1
8 

 -1
7 

 -1
6 

 -1
6 

 -1
5 

 -1
5 

 -1
4 

 -1
4 

 -1
4 

 -1
4 

 -1
4 

 -1
3 

 -13 

 -1
3 

 -1
3 

 -1
3 

 -1
2 

 -1
2 

 -1
2 

 -1
1 

 -1
1 

 -1
0 

 -1
0 

 -1
0 

 -1
0 

 -9
 

 -8
 

 -8  -7 

 -7
 

 -6 

 -6
 

 -6
 

 -5
 

 -5 

 -5
 

 -4 

 -4
 

 -4
 

 -4
 

 -4
 

 -3
 

 -3
 

 -3
 

 -3
 

 -2
 

 -2
 

 -2
 

 -2
 

 -1
 

 -1
 

 0
 

 0
 

 0 

 1
 

 1 

 2 

 2
 

 3
 

 3  4 

 5 

 6 

 7 

 8 

 9  10  11 

-1
'

-2
'

-3
' -4
'

-5
' -6

'

-1
0'

-7
'

-8
'

-9
'

-1
0'

-1
2.

05
'

0'

-1
'

-1
'

-4
'

-1
4'

-1
0'

-1
'

0'

0'

-1
0'

-1
0'

68
.2

2'

128.68'

9.
63

'

155.61'

20
0'

200'

51
.6

1'

218.59'

368.68'

241.57'

588.15'

91
4.

66
'

20
0'

196.92'

19
9.

92
'

200'

24
7.

3'

177.55'

37
3.

46
'

886.28'

80
6.

67
'

812.75'

N

45'

80'

18'

10'

8'

15'

20'

15'

28'-6"

16'-5"

40'

55'

18'15'

101'-4"

70'

108'

132'
24'

28'

5'
20'

7'-6"
48'

88'

60'

24'

60'

10'
4'

8'

6'

7'

93'

54'12'

20'

81'

109'

25'

45'

205'-9"

75'

67'

26'-4"

25'

10'

15'

15'

15'

15'

40'

40'

40'

40'

32'32'

98'-7"

40'

30'

15'

15'

40'

40'

24'

24'

40'

10'

25'

26'-10"

ARTZ RD

CENTER PT 70 BLVD

ON RAMP SR235 N
O

N RAM
P SR4 S

EXIT 41

SR235

15' UTILITY EASEM
ENT

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

ILD
TR

U
C

K
 R

E
PA

IR
 S

H
O

P
6,642 S

Q
 FT

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
U

ILD

DIESEL PUM
P, TYP.

TR
U

C
K

 C
A

N
O

P
Y

 O
U

TLIN
E

12'-0" X
 24'-0" 

D
U

M
P

S
TE

R
 E

N
C

LO
S

U
R

E

C
-S

TO
R

E
5,280 S

Q
 FT

TE
N

A
N

T
1,440 S

Q
 FT

G
A

S
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 O

U
TLIN

E

12'-0" X
 12'-0" 

D
U

M
P

S
TE

R
 E

N
C

LO
S

U
R

E

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 R

.O
.W

.

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 LIN

E

R
-30'

R
-30'

R
-50'

R
-50'

D
IE

S
E

L/D
E

F TA
N

K
S

G
A

S
 P

U
M

P
 A

N
D

 B
O

LLA
R

D
S

, TY
P.

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

D
 A

R
E

A
(IS

LA
N

D
)

7(1)

10
(2)

10

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

S
TR

U
C

TU
R

E

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L D
R

IV
E

P
E

R
 C

ITY
 S

P
E

C

*A
LL

PAV
E

M
E

N
T

D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

R
E

FE
R

E
N

C
E

TH
E

FA
C

E
O

F
C

U
R

B
W

H
E

R
E

C
U

R
B

IS
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

*A
LL

S
E

TB
A

C
K

D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

R
E

FE
R

E
N

C
E

TH
E

B
A

C
K

O
F

C
U

R
B

O
R

TH
E

E
X

TE
R

N
A

L
FA

C
E

O
F

TH
E

B
U

ILD
IN

G
,W

H
E

R
E

A
P

P
LIC

A
B

LE

FU
E

L TA
N

K
 LO

C
ATIO

N

8

4

7

12

22

REVISION TABLE
NUMBER DATE REVISED BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET:

SCALE: DATE: 3/18/2022PAP OIL COMPANY LLC
4365 Lisa Dr

Tipp City, OH 45371

BERGER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
50 Walnut Rd
Medway, OH 45341
937.727.4515

CLIENT:

TRUCK STOP, TRUCK REPAIR, & C-STORE HUBER HEIGHTS, OH
EXISTING & PROPOSED ELEVATIONS 1" = 100' 0" 07 of 12

SOIL TYPES



 -15 

 -14 

 -13 

 -13 

 -13 

 -13 

 -12 

 -12 

 -11 

 -10 

 -10 

 -10 

 -8 
 -7 

 -6
 

-6

 -6 

-5

 -5 

 -5 

 -4 

 -4 

 -4 

 -4 

 -4 

 -3 

 -3 

 -3 

-2

 -2 

 -2 

 -2 

-1

 -1 

 0 

 0  1 

 2 

 3 

-1'

-2'

-3'

-4'

-5'

-6'

-10'

-7'
-8'

-9'

-10'

-12.05'

0'

-1'

-1'

-4'

-10'

-1'

0'

0'

-10'

-10'

68.22'

128.68'

200'

200'

51.61'

200'

196.92'

199.92'

200'

247.3'

177.55'

373.46'

886.28'

N

45'

80'

18'

10'

8'

15'

20'

15'

28'-6"

16'-5"

40'

55'

18'

15'

101'-4"

70'

108'

132'

24'

28'

5' 20'
7'-6"

48'

88'

60'

24'

60'

10'

4'

8'

6'

7'

93'

54'

12'

20'
81'109'

25'

45'

205'-9"

75'

67'

26'-4"

25'

10'

15'

15'

15'

15'

40'40'40' 40'

32'

32'

98'-7"

40'

30' 15'

15'

40'

40'

24'

24'

40'

10'

25'

26'-10"

ARTZ RD

CE
NT

ER
 P

T 
70

 B
LV

D

SR235

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

PROPOSED BUILD
TRUCK REPAIR SHOP

6,642 SQ FT

PROPOSED BUILD

DIESEL PUMP, TYP.

TRUCK CANOPY OUTLINE

12'-0" X 24'-0" 
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

C-STORE
5,280 SQ FT

TENANT
1,440 SQ FT

GAS CANOPY OUTLINE

12'-0" X 12'-0" 
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

EXISTING R.O.W.

PROPERTY LINE

R-30'

R-30'

R-50'

R-50'

DIESEL/DEF TANKS

GAS PUMP AND BOLLARDS, TYP.

LANDSCAPED AREA
(ISLAND)

7
(1)

10
(2)

10

PROPOSED STRUCTURE

CONCRETE PAVEMENT
PER CITY SPEC

CONCRETE SIDEWALK
PER CITY SPEC

LANDSCAPED AREA

LOADING AREA

COMMERCIAL DRIVE
PER CITY SPEC

*ALL PAVEMENT DIMENSIONS REFERENCE THE FACE OF CURB WHERE
CURB IS REQUIRED

*ALL SETBACK DIMENSIONS REFERENCE THE BACK OF CURB OR
THE EXTERNAL FACE OF THE BUILDING, WHERE APPLICABLE

FUEL TANK LOCATION

8

4

7

12

22

(63) PARKING SPACES
(3) HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE

REVISION TABLE
NUMBER DATE REVISED BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET:

SCALE: DATE: 3/18/2022PAP OIL COMPANY LLC
4365 Lisa Dr

Tipp City, OH 45371

BERGER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
50 Walnut Rd
Medway, OH 45341
937.727.4515

CLIENT:

TRUCK STOP, TRUCK REPAIR, & C-STORE HUBER HEIGHTS, OH
PROPOSED GRADING PLAN 1" = 40' 0" 08 of 12



4" 2"
26'-8" 15'-9" 43'-11"

4" 3"
24'-7"

10" 2" 4"

Grade Level
0.0'

Bottom of Footing
5.3'

Top of Footing
6.0'

Top of Foundation
10.0'

Top of Lower Pony Wall
13.0'

Header
19.5'

Top of Wall
22.1'

Ridge
23.8'

Ridge
25.5'

Highest Ridge
37.3'

Grade Level
0.0'

Bottom of Footing
5.3'

Top of Footing
6.0'

Top of Foundation
10.0'

Top of Lower Pony Wall
13.0'

Header
19.5'

Top of Wall
22.1'

Ridge
28.8'

Ridge
36.6'

Highest Ridge
37.3'

Exterior Elevation Front

4" 2"
24'

4" 3"
86'-11"

10" 2" 4"

Grade Level
0.0'

Bottom of Footing
5.3'

Top of Footing
6.0'

Top of Foundation
10.0'

Top of Lower Pony Wall
13.0'

Header
16.9'

Top of Wall
22.1'

Ridge
28.8'

Ridge
36.6'

Highest Ridge
37.3'

Grade Level
0.0'

Bottom of Footing
5.3'

Top of Footing
6.0'

Top of Foundation
10.0'

Top of Lower Pony Wall
13.0'

Header
16.9'

Top of Wall
22.1'

Ridge
23.8'

Ridge
25.5'

Highest Ridge
37.3'

Exterior Elevation Back

4" 3"
59'-6"

3" 4"
2'-4" 9"

3" 4"

Grade Level
0.0'

Bottom of Footing
5.3'

Top of Footing
6.0'

Top of Foundation
10.0'

Top of Lower Pony Wall
13.0'

Top of Wall
22.1'

Ridge
36.6'

Highest Ridge
37.3'

Grade Level
0.0'

Bottom of Footing
5.3'

Top of Footing
6.0'

Top of Foundation
10.0'

Top of Lower Pony Wall
13.0'

Header
17.2'

Top of Wall
22.1'

Ridge
25.5'

Ridge
28.8'

Exterior Elevation Left

4" 3"
60'-3"

3" 4"
2'-4"

3" 4"

Grade Level
0.0'

Bottom of Footing
5.3'

Top of Footing
6.0'

Top of Foundation
10.0'

Top of Lower Pony Wall
13.0'

Header
18.9'

Top of Wall
22.1'

Ridge
25.5'

Ridge
28.8'

Grade Level
0.0'

Bottom of Footing
5.3'

Top of Footing
6.0'

Top of Foundation
10.0'

Top of Lower Pony Wall
13.0'

Top of Wall
22.1'

Ridge
36.6'

Highest Ridge
37.3'

Exterior Elevation Right

REVISION TABLE
NUMBER DATE REVISED BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET:

SCALE: DATE: 12/29/2021PAP OIL COMPANY LLC
4365 Lisa Dr

Tipp City, OH 45371

BERGER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
50 Walnut Rd
Medway, OH 45341
937.727.4515

CLIENT:

TRUCK STOP, TRUCK REPAIR, & C-STORE HUBER HEIGHTS, OH
C-STORE ELEVATIONS 1/8" = 1' 0" 09 of 12



140"
4"

971"
4"

Bottom of Footing
-1.0'

Top of Footing
-0.3'

Grade Level
0.0'

Top of Foundation
0.0'

Top of Lower Pony Wall
4.0'

Header
6.7'

Top of Wall
22.1'

Ridge
35.7'

Bottom of Footing
-1.0'

Top of Footing
-0.3'

Grade Level
0.0'

Top of Foundation
0.0'

Top of Lower Pony Wall
4.0'

Top of Wall
22.1'

Highest Ridge
40.9'

Exterior Elevation Front

1115"

Bottom of Footing
-1.0'

Top of Footing
-0.3'

Grade Level
0.0'

Top of Foundation
0.0'

Top of Lower Pony Wall
4.0'

Top of Wall
22.1'

Highest Ridge
40.9'

Bottom of Footing
-1.0'

Top of Footing
-0.3'

Grade Level
0.0'

Top of Foundation
0.0'

Top of Lower Pony Wall
4.0'

Top of Wall
22.1'

Ridge
35.7'

Exterior Elevation Back

635" 237 15/16"
12" 4"

Bottom of Footing
-1.0'

Top of Footing
-0.3'

Grade Level
0.0'

Top of Foundation
0.0'

Top of Lower Pony Wall
4.0'

Header
16.3'

Top of Wall
22.1'

Ridge
35.7'

Highest Ridge
40.9'

Bottom of Footing
-1.0'

Top of Footing
-0.3'

Grade Level
0.0'

Top of Foundation
0.0'

Top of Lower Pony Wall
4.0'

Header
16.3'

Top of Wall
22.1'

Highest Ridge
40.9'

Exterior Elevation Left

4"
253 15/16" 631"

Bottom of Footing
-1.0'

Top of Footing
-0.3'

Grade Level
0.0'

Top of Foundation
0.0'

Top of Lower Pony Wall
4.0'

Header
16.3'

Top of Wall
22.1'

Highest Ridge
40.9'

Bottom of Footing
-1.0'

Top of Footing
-0.3'

Grade Level
0.0'

Top of Foundation
0.0'

Top of Lower Pony Wall
4.0'

Header
16.3'

Top of Wall
22.1'

Ridge
35.7'

Highest Ridge
40.9'

Exterior Elevation Right

REVISION TABLE
NUMBER DATE REVISED BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET:

SCALE: DATE: 12/29/2021PAP OIL COMPANY LLC
4365 Lisa Dr

Tipp City, OH 45371

BERGER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
50 Walnut Rd
Medway, OH 45341
937.727.4515

CLIENT:

TRUCK STOP, TRUCK REPAIR, & C-STORE HUBER HEIGHTS, OH
TRUCK REPAIR SHOP ELEVATIONS 1/8" = 1' 0" 10 of 12



19'

6"

15
'-4

"

4'-8 3/8"

76'

DIESEL CANOPY ELEVATION

GAS CANOPY FRONT ELEVATION

GAS CANOPY SIDE ELEVATION

REVISION TABLE
NUMBER DATE REVISED BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET:

SCALE: DATE: 12/29/2021PAP OIL COMPANY LLC
4365 Lisa Dr

Tipp City, OH 45371

BERGER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
50 Walnut Rd
Medway, OH 45341
937.727.4515

CLIENT:

TRUCK STOP, TRUCK REPAIR, & C-STORE HUBER HEIGHTS, OH
CANOPY ELEVATIONS 1/8" = 1' 0" 11 of 12

TYP. BUMPER POST (BOLLARD)
SCALE: NONE



REVISION TABLE
NUMBER DATE REVISED BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET:

SCALE: DATE: 12/29/2021PAP OIL COMPANY LLC
4365 Lisa Dr

Tipp City, OH 45371

BERGER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
50 Walnut Rd
Medway, OH 45341
937.727.4515

CLIENT:

TRUCK STOP, TRUCK REPAIR, & C-STORE HUBER HEIGHTS, OH
FOUNDATION & WALL SECTIONS 1/8" = 1' 0" 12 of 12

PERIMETER FOUNDATION DOOR POUR THROUGH COLUMN FOUNDATION

WALL SECTION WALL SECTION

BRICK COLOR PER OWNER (TYP.)

BEIGE EIFS,

EXACT COLOR PER OWNER (TYP.)



                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 

 

 
Administrative  Office:  7008 Brandt  Pike Hu ber Heights ,  Ohio  45424  

Telephone:   (937)  233 -  1564      Fax Number:  (937)  233 -  4520  

 

 Huber Heights Fire Division 
          

 

 

Inspections require two business days advance notice! (OAC)1301:7-7-09(A)(5) 
 
 
 

Occupancy Name: Truck Stop, Diesel Repair Shop & C-Store 

Occupancy Address: State Route 235 

 

Type of Permit: HHP&D Site Plan 

Additional Permits: Choose an item. 

Additional Permits: Choose an item. 

 

MCBR BLD: Not Yet Assigned HH P&D:  

MCBR MEC:  HHFD  Plan: 22-031 

MCBR ELE:  HHFD Box:  

REVIEWER: Susong DATE: 3/7/2022 
 

Fire Department Comments: 
The Huber Heights City Code Part 15 Refers to Fire Code Requirements and has adopted by reference OFC and IFC Appendices 

These comments are based only on the proposed site work, fire department 
access and basic fire protection concept at this time. The proposed development 

will need to meet the requirements of the Ohio Fire Code 2017, Ohio Building 
Code 2017, and the Huber Heights Codified Ordinance.  Based on the drawings 

provided the following requirements need to be met. 
 
Requirements: 
 

• Please review requirements for fire service features in Ohio Fire Code 
(OFC), Rule 5. 

• Canopy clearance shall be a minimum height of 13 feet 6 inches in 
accordance with Ohio Fire Code 503.2.1. 

• The turning radius for fire department access roads shall meet 
requirements for Huber Heights Fire Division (HHFD) vehicles. Contact 
HHFD to obtain information.  OFC 503.2.4 and Appendix D103.3. (This 
applies to access to buildings as well.) 

• Fire department access roads shall not have dead ends over 150 feet 
without an approved turnaround. OFC 503.2.5 and Appendix D103.4. (This 
applies to access to buildings as well.) 

• The water supply for fire protection shall meet the requirements of OFC 
507 and Appendix B. Calculations and findings will need to be determined 



Plans reviewed by the Huber Heights Fire Division are reviewed with the intent they comply in ALL respects to this code, 
as prescribed in SECTION (D) 104.1 of the 2017 Ohio Fire Code. Any omissions or errors on the plans or in this review 
do not relieve the applicant of complying with ALL applicable requirements of this code. These plans have been reviewed 
for compliance with the Ohio Fire Code adopted by this jurisdiction. There may be other regulations applicable under 
local, state, or federal statues and codes, which this department has no authority to enforce and therefore have not been 
evaluated as part of this plan review. 
 

and provided. Water Main and hydrant extension sizes and spacing will 
also need to be shown in detail. Fire flow requirements shall be 
determined in accordance with Ohio Fire Code, Appendix B, Fire Flow 
Requirements for Buildings.  Once the fire flow has been determined the 
minimum number of required fire hydrants can be confirmed. (Building 
Construction Classification and Square Footage will need to be 
determined first).  

• Fire hydrant spacing shall also meet the requirements of HHCO 1521.  

• Buildings provided with fire sprinkler systems will need to have a fire 
department connection located within 75 feet of a fire hydrant in 
accordance with Huber Heights Codified Ordinance 1521.01(e). The 
connection shall be a 4” Storz fitting with a 30-degree turn-down. 
(Engineer/Architect shall determine if buildings will be required to be 
sprinklered.)   

 
  
 

Please reference contact information below for questions or concerns with this document. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



1 

 

 

 

Memorandum 
Staff Report for Meeting of March 29, 2022 

 
To:                 Huber Heights City Planning Commission 
 
From:             Aaron K. Sorrell, Interim City Planner 
   Community Planning Insights 
 
Date:              March 22, 2022 
 
Subject:         Basic Development Plan and Rezoning - Takhar Oil 
 (Truck Stop, Diesel Repair Shop and Convenience Store) 
 Revised Site Plan Review 
   

 Application dated January 27, 2022 
 
Department of Planning and Zoning                          City of Huber Heights 
 

APPLICANT/OWNER: Amarjit Takhar  – Applicant 
 Patrick Burrowes-  Owners 

  
DEVELOPMENT NAME:  Takhar Oil LLC 
 
ADDRESS/LOCATION: East side of the intersection of SR 235 and Center 

Point 70 Blvd. 
 

ZONING/ACREAGE: I-1 Light Industrial Mixed Use - 35 acres 
 
EXISTING LAND USE:  Vacant / Agricultural 
 
ZONING 
ADJACENT LAND:   North and South: I-1 
     West: B-3 / PC  
     East:  Agricultural (Clark County) 
 
REQUEST:                                    The applicant requests approval of a basic 

development plan and rezoning to Planned 
Commercial to construct a fueling center, 
convenience store, truck stop and diesel repair facility 
on approximately nine (9) acres of a 35-acre parcel.  
Applicant seeks to rezone all 35 acres to Planned 
Commercial. 

 



2 

 

 

 

     
ORIGINAL APPROVAL:              N/A  
 
APPLICABLE HHCC:      Chapter 1171, 1176, 1181,  
 
 
CORRESPONDENCE:                In Favor – None Received 
                                             In Opposition – None Received 
 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Overview  
The applicant requests approval of a basic development plan and rezoning to Planned 
Commercial District to construct a fueling center, convenience store, truck stop and 
diesel repair facility on approximately nine (9) acres of a 35-acre parcel. The site is 
adjacent to the I-70 / SR 235 interchange.  
 
This case was tabled at the March 15, 2022, to allow time to review the revised 
development plan that was submitted shortly before the meeting.  The crux of the 
revision reconfigures the western access point to allow for a future extension of Center 
Point 70 Boulevard, and meet the development standards of the Planned Commercial 
District.  
 
On-Site Uses and Facilities 
The applicant is proposing two buildings, one 6,720 SF building containing a 
convenience store and restaurant, and the second 6,642 SF diesel truck repair facility.  
Both buildings are proposed to be clad with a mix of brick and stucco EFIS. 
 
Fuel will be dispensed through one five-pump island in front of the convenience store, 
and a second five-pump island located at the rear of the property for semi-trucks and 
large oversized vehicles.  Both fueling islands will be covered by large canopies. 
 
Parking is provided throughout the site.  The revised site plan illustrates 76 parking 
spaces, including 10 for semi-trucks.  This is an increase from 62 automobile parking 
spaces.  
  



3 

 

 

 

Applicable Zoning Regulations 
The appliable zoning chapters include: 1171 General Provisions, 1176 Planned 
Commercial District, 1181 General Provisions, 1182 Landscaping and Screening, 1185 
Parking and Loading, and Chapter 1193 Trailers, Trucks, Recreational Vehicles, Boats, 
Farm or Construction Equipment.  The relevant sections are citied below:  
 

Chapter 1171 General Provisions 

1171.01 Purpose. 

Planned Unit Developments Districts may be permitted as amendments to the zoning map, after 
application and approval of specific and detailed plans, where tracts suitable in location and character 
for the uses and structures proposed are to be planned and developed as units. The provisions of this 
chapter are adopted to unify planning and development in such districts. Applications for rezoning of 
land into a Planned Unit Development District shall be granted only when the basic development plan for 
the project is such that the public health, safety and morals shall not be jeopardized by a departure from 
the restrictions on corresponding uses in the standard zoning district. PUD rezonings may be approved 
only when a basic development plan for the area has been approved by Council. A detailed development 
plan shall then be approved for zoning permit to be approved for development in the District. Normally 
the detailed development plan shall be approved by the Planning Commission after the rezoning and 
basic development plan have been approved by Council. Owners shall have the option however, of 
submitting a combined basic and detailed development plan ("combined development plan") if they 
should so desire for some or all of the site.  

(Ord. 93-O-602, Passed 3-22-93) 

1171.05 Contents of basic development plan. 

(a) The basic development plan shall consist of at least the following information together with such 
other data and materials as may be required by the City:  

(1) Site plan showing the actual shape and dimensions of the lot to be built upon or to be changed 
in its use together with the location of the existing and proposed structures with approximate 
square footages, number of stories including heights of structures;  

(2) Typical elevation views of the front and side of each type of building;  

(3) Planning location and dimensions of all proposed drives, service access road, sidewalks and 
curb openings;  

(4) Parking lot areas (show dimensions of a typical parking space), unloading areas, fire lanes and 
handicapped parking;  

(5) Landscaping plan, walls and fences;  

(6) Storm water detention and surface drainage;  

(7) Exterior lighting plan;  

(8) Vehicular circulation pattern;  

(9) Location and square footage of signs;  



4 

 

 

 

(10) Topographic survey; and  

(11) Listing of proposed uses taken from the list of permitted and special uses of the PUD zoning 
district to which rezoning is being sought.  

(b) The Planning Commission shall schedule both the proposed rezoning and the issue of approval of 
the basic development plan for a combined public hearing, following which it shall make its 
recommendation indicating approval, approval with modification or disapproval.  

(Ord. 2006-O-1655, Passed 9-25-05) 

 

1176 (PC) Planned Commercial District 

1176.01 Principal permitted uses. 

The following principal uses are permitted provided that they are approved as provided for in this 
chapter:  

(a) Retail, office and commercial establishments;  

(b) Personal service commercial establishments;  

(c) Motels and hotels;  

(d) Filling stations;  

(e) Service stations; and  

(f) Public garages.  

(g) Sweepstakes cafe.  

(Ord. 2012-O-1948, Passed 3-12-12) 

1176.02 Accessory uses. 

Only the following accessory uses shall be permitted in this District:  

(a) Uses customarily incident to all principal permitted uses; and  

(b) Temporary buildings and uses for construction purposes, not to exceed 12 months.  

(Ord. 89-O-339, Passed 2-6-89) 

1176.03 Development standards. 

Except when specifically modified herein, the provisions of Chapter 1181, "General Provisions" shall 
govern. In addition, the following development standards shall apply:  

(a) Minimum Land Area Requirement. 

(1) No minimum land area shall be required.  

(b) Site Planning. 



5 

 

 

 

(1) All yards within the development plan except those abutting a Business or Industrial District 
shall be maintained in landscaping and not used for parking, to the extent of a minimum of 15 
feet along property lines.  

(2) The parking and loading facilities shall be a distance of at least 25 feet from the established 
right-of-way line, and the building(s) or the structure(s) at least 75 feet from the established 
right-of-way line per the Official Thoroughfare Plan or the recorded plat.  

(Ord. 2006-O-1656, Passed 10-5-05) 

1176.04 Parking and loading. 

The provisions of Chapter 1185, "Parking and Loading" shall apply, except that off-street loading 
space shall be provided with area, location, and design appropriate to the needs of the development and 
specific uses within it, and the space designated for off-street loading shall not be used for off-street 
parking.  

(Ord. 89-O-339, Passed 2-6-89) 

Chapter 1181 General Provisions 

1181.17 Street trees. 

Any property that is zoned commercial, industrial, institutional, or multi-family and that abuts a 
public street right-of-way and is being developed shall have one street tree per 40 feet of frontage 
planted at least four feet from the edge of the sidewalk on private property as determined appropriate 
by the City Engineer. If the location of the proposed street trees is determined inappropriate by the City 
Engineer, the City Engineer shall determine a location that is appropriate for the planting of the street 
trees. The City Engineer shall also approve the type of and the caliper of street trees that are to be 
planted. A list of appropriate trees and required caliper is available in the City Engineer's office.  

(Case 389; Ord. 2001-O-1240, Passed 2-12-01) 

1181.18 Screening of service structures. 

Service structures shall be screened in all zoning districts. For the purposes of this section, service 
structures shall include but not be limited to loading docks, storage tanks, dumpsters, electrical 
transformers, utility vaults which extend above the surface, cooling towers, roof top units and other 
equipment or elements providing service to a nonresidential (excluding agricultural uses) or multi-family 
building or site. Structures may be grouped together; however, screening height shall be based upon the 
tallest of the structures. Service structures located in the public right-of-way or public right-of-way 
easement shall be exempt from these provisions.  

(a) Screening Requirements. 

(1) Rooftop utilities screening. All mechanical equipment located on the roof or around the 
perimeter of the building shall be screened by the following means and with materials that 
are comparable and compatible with that of the exterior building materials. Roof top 
mechanical units must be screened to the full height of the unit and also be fully screened 
from view from surrounding public rights-of-way. A sight distance analysis may be required 
by the City to determine the necessary height or design of rooftop utilities screening. If due 



6 

 

 

 

to factors unique to the property or the project, it is physically impossible or impractical to 
screen these utilities, the Board of Zoning Appeals, may approve alternative solutions that 
render them aesthetically compatible with the principal structure, except for development 
within a planned unit development district for which the Planning Commission would have 
authority to approve any alternative solutions.  

A. A raised parapet or other architectural feature is an integral part of the building as a 
method of screening for rooftop mechanical equipment or to soften rooftop view.  

B. Screening for rooftop mechanical equipment shall incorporate similar architectural 
features of the building and/or be constructed of a material and color compatible with 
other elements of the building.  

 

(2) Waste Handling Screening. All waste, recycling and related handling equipment shall be 
stored and kept in four-sided enclosure constructed of a brick, stone, decorative concrete 
material, or a material compatible with the material of the principle structure.  

A. Curbs to protect screening material. Whenever screening materials is placed around any 
trash disposal unit or waste collection unit which is emptied or removed mechanically on 
a regularly occurring basis, a curb to contain the placement of the container shall be 
provided within the screening material on these sides where there is such material. The 
curbing shall be at least one foot from the material and shall be designed to prevent 
possible damage to the screening when the container is moved or emptied.  

(3) Screening of other service structures. A continuous (having 100 percent opacity) planting, 
hedge, fence, wall of earth, which would enclose any service structure on all sides is required, 
unless such structure must be frequently moved, in which case screening on all but one side 
is required. The height of the screening material shall be one foot more than the height of 
the enclosed structure, but shall not be required to exceed 12 feet in height. Whenever a 
service structure is located next to a building wall or landscaping material, such walls or 
screening material, may fulfill the screening requirement for that side of the service structure 
if that wall or screening material is of sufficient height to meet the height requirement set 
out in this section. Plant material used to screen a service structure shall be an evergreen 
species which retains its needles throughout the year. Deciduous plant material cannot be 
used to fulfill this screening requirement. The height of the evergreen plant material at 
installation must be equal to, or greater than, two-thirds of the height of the service 
structure(s), and meet the height and opacity requirements within four years. 

 

1181.21 Lighting standards. 

(a) Intent. This section intends to regulate outdoor lighting in order to: establish appropriate minimum 
levels of illumination, prevent unnecessary glare, and reduce both spill-over onto adjacent 
properties and unnecessary transmission of light into the night sky. It is not intended to eliminate 
the need for an applicant to seek professional assistance to determine appropriate lighting for the 
use and design proposed.  

(b) Approved Lighting Plan. Whenever the installation or modification of outdoor lighting is proposed 
or, for a commercial, industrial, multi-family or special use of a site plan approval, the enforcing 



7 

 

 

 

officer shall review and approve all proposed lighting as part of the approval process. These 
standards shall also apply to modifications to existing lighting fixtures, whether or not site plan 
approval is required.  

(1) A lighting plan submitted for review shall contain the following:  

A. A site plan showing the location of all existing and proposed buildings, landscaping, streets, 
drives, parking areas and exterior lighting fixtures;  

B. Specifications for all proposed and existing lighting fixtures. These include: photometric data, 
fixture height, mounting and design, glare control devices, type and color rendition of lamps, 
and hours of operation. A photometric plan illustrating the levels of illumination at ground 
level shall account for all light sources that impact the subject site, including spill-over 
illumination from neighboring properties; and  

C. Relevant building elevation drawings showing all fixtures, the portions of the walls to be 
illuminated, illuminance levels of walls and the aiming of points of any remote fixtures.  

(2) A proposed lighting plan shall be reviewed based upon the following considerations:  

A. Whether the lighting is designed to minimize glare;  

B. Whether light will be directed beyond the boundaries of the area to be illuminated or onto 
adjacent properties or streets;  

C. Whether the lighting will cause negative impacts on residential districts and uses;  

D. Whether the plan will achieve appropriate levels of illumination for the use proposed;  

E. Whether the lighting is in harmony with the character of the surrounding area and the 
illumination levels of neighboring properties; and  

F. Whether the lighting is in keeping with the city' s goal of prohibiting unnecessary 
illumination of the night sky.  

(c) Required Conditions. When site plan or zoning permit approval is required for the installation or 
modification of exterior lighting, the following conditions shall apply:  

(1) Light fixtures shall not be mounted in excess of the maximum height limitation of the district 
in which they are located. Those maximum heights are listed below:  

•  B-1, B-2, B-3, and EP  25' maximum mounting height  

•  O-1  20' maximum mounting height  

•  I-1 and I-2  35' maximum mounting height  

•  Planned Unit Developments  Established by the City at the detailed 
plan approval stage (if not addressed, 
maximum mounting height shall be 25')  

 

Electrical service to light fixtures shall be placed underground.  

(3) No flashing lights or intermittent illumination shall be permitted.  

(4) Glare control shall be accomplished primarily through the proper selection and application of 
lighting equipment. Only after those means have been exhausted shall landscaping, fencing 
and similar screening methods be considered acceptable means for reducing glare.  



8 

 

 

 

(5) Outdoor lighting shall be designed to achieve uniform illumination levels. The ratio of the 
average light level of the surface being lit to the lowest light level of the surface being lit, 
measured in foot-candles, shall not exceed 4:1. One foot-candle is equal to the amount of light 
generated by one candle shining on a square foot surface one foot away. The average 
illumination is determined by: adding the foot-candle value of all the points in the photometric 
grid, and dividing the sum by the total number of points.  

(6) The use of true color rendering lamps, such as metal halide, is required instead of the 
utilization of high and low pressure sodium lamps.  

(7) Only necessary lighting for security purposes and limited operations shall be permitted after a 
site's hours of operation.  

(8) Lighting for security purposes shall be directed only onto the area to be secured.  

A. All fixtures shall be located, shielded and aimed so that light is not cast toward adjacent 
properties or streets or unnecessarily transmitted into the night sky.  

B. Fixtures mounted on the building and designed to illuminate the facade are preferred.  

(9) Parking lot lighting shall be designed to provide the minimum illumination necessary to 
ensure adequate vision and comfort in parking areas. Full cut-off fixtures shall be used to 
prevent glare and direct illumination away from adjacent properties and streets. Designs that 
result in even levels of illumination across a parking area are preferred 

 

 
Cut-off fixture as defined by IESNA. 
 

 

(10) The illumination of gasoline service stations and convenience stores shall be the minimum 
level necessary to facilitate such uses. Unnecessary lighting for the purposes of attraction and 
advertising shall not be permitted.  



9 

 

 

 

A. Areas away from gasoline pump islands that are used for parking and vehicle storage shall 
be illuminated in accordance with the parking area requirements of subsection (9) above.  

B. Light fixtures mounted on canopies shall be recessed or flush with the bottom of the 
canopy. Where a drop-down fixture is used, the lens shall be flush with (i.e., no more than 
one inch beyond) the casing so that light is directed down and not sideways. All canopy 
lighting shall be shielded to provide a cut-off angle of 85 degrees. Fixtures shall not be 
mounted on the top or sides of canopies.  

 
 
This illustration provides an example of a fixture with an 85 degree cut-off. Other designs that 
achieve the same cut-off requirement are also acceptable. 

 

Chapter 1182 Landscaping and Screening Standards 

1182.01 General information. 

(a) Applicability. All of the requirements of this chapter of the Zoning Code are applicable to all new 
developments located in all zoning districts except for those located in ER, R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, R-4B, 
RMV, A, WO, and C districts. For new developments located in ER, R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, R-4B, RMV, A, 
WO, and C districts, only the requirements listed in the schedule of required buffers, detailed in 
figure 4 in Section 1182.05, shall apply. Property owners are under a continuing obligation to 
ensure that their property is maintained in accordance with these requirements.  

(b) Application Process. For PUD applications and standard zoning permit applications certain 
landscape information must be provided.  

(1) In a PUD application, proposals in the re-zoning and basic development plan stage need to 
illustrate conceptual buffering and screening requirements on the basic development plan.  

(2) In a PUD application in the detailed development plan stage and final plat stage, a detailed 
landscape plan shall be submitted as outlined in 1182.02.  

 
 



10 

 

 

 

Chapter 1185 Parking and Loading 

1185.02 Off-street parking standards. 

(a) General Standards. Off-street parking facilities shall be used solely for the parking of motor vehicles 
except as otherwise permitted in this chapter. Other approved accessory structures such as 
landscaping islands, light poles, shopping cart racks, and ATM's are considered as part of the off-
street parking facilities. All motor vehicles shall be in operating condition by persons on the 
premises in connection with any use of the premises allowed by the Zoning Ordinance.  

(b) Parking of motor vehicles on a residentially zoned premises shall be on a continuous hard surface, 
as defined by the term "hard surface driveway" in Chapter 1123.  

(c) Garage sales may be conducted on off-street parking facilities located on a residentially zoned 
premises.  

(d) Festival and fund raising activities sponsored by nonprofit organizations, as well as activities/events 
organized by government agencies, may be conducted on off-street parking facilities.  

(e) Planned unit developments may be approved to permit other uses of off-street parking facilities.  

(Case 293; Ord. 90-O-450, Passed 12-3-90; Ord. 96-O-922, Passed 10-28-96) 

1185.03 Size and design. 

(a) Off-street parking spaces shall meet or exceed the minimum design standards for parking lot 
layouts as set forth in this chapter. The minimum size for an off-street parking space shall be 18 feet 
in length by ten feet wide.  

(b) Off-street parking requirements and limitations for semis are defined in HHCO Chapter 1193.  

(c) Minimum Design and Construction Standards.  

(1) Off-street parking may be open to the sky, or enclosed in a building or structure, either above 
or below ground. Off-street parking areas shall meet City and, as set forth by the City 
Engineer, Southwest Ohio Engineers Association (S.W.O.E.A) standards. Such standards shall 
include, but not be limited to, driveway widths, island design, curbs, barriers, grades, turning 
radii, vertical clearance, stacking, and waiting areas and drainage.  

(2) Nonresidential uses (including multi-family residential uses).  

A. Each off-street parking space shall open directly into an aisle or driveway of adequate width 
and design for safe and efficient vehicular access to the parking space. No parking space 
shall open directly onto any public street.  

B. An aisle or driveway shall not be used for parking of vehicles.  

C. All off-street parking areas shall be graded and have a continuous hard surface of asphalt or 
concrete. When approved by the City Engineer the off-street parking areas for impound lots, 
junked vehicle yards, dormant semi-truck parking areas, and certain storage areas may be 
composed of granular aggregate and a double chip seal or a fabric type pavement with 
aggregate base and surface stabilization or a slurry seal pavement with aggregate base as 
shown on the attached sketches. A chip sealed lot or a slurry seal lot or a fabric type lot shall 
be resealed at a minimum of five year intervals or as designated by the City Engineer.  



11 

 

 

 

1185.06 Landscaping required. 

All parking lots exceeding 20 parking spaces shall have interior landscaped areas in the overall 
design. This requirement shall be satisfied only by those landscaped areas encompassed by the perimeter 
of the parking lot. Required parking or paving setbacks, screening areas, or other landscaping required 
by this Zoning Ordinance shall not be utilized to meet any requirement of these landscaping provisions.  

(a) Any parking lot having a capacity of at least 20 parking spaces shall be required to have not 
less than five percent of the interior of the parking lot landscaped.  

(b) The landscaped area shall include at least one tree (not less than one and three-fourths inch 
caliper, measured at chest height of a species approved by the City Engineer or his designee) 
for every 100 square yards of interior landscaped area, living plantings aesthetically located 
and maintained.  

(c) All landscaped areas shall be designed and located in a manner that clearly defines internal 
streets, traffic lanes and parking areas and to standards acceptable to the Department of 
Engineering, Zoning and Planning.  

(1) Landscaped areas shall have a minimum width of five feet.  

(2) A turning radius shall be constructed where a landscaped area defines an intersection of 
streets, traffic lanes or parking stalls.  

(3) Concrete curbing shall be placed around the perimeter of all landscaped areas.  

(4) Intersection sign distance shall be maintained at all entrance and exit points to a public 
street and all internal intersections of streets and traffic lanes.  

(Ord. 90-O-450, Passed 12-3-90) 

1185.12 Computation. 

(a) Number of Spaces Rounded Up. When determination of the number of off-street parking spaces 
required by this chapter results in a fraction that is less than a whole, such fraction shall be rounded 
up to a whole number and counted as one parking space.  

(6) Road service and commercial entertainment uses. 

A. Automobile accessories sale or installation: two spaces for every service bay, plus one space 
for every 400 square feet of sales area.  

B. Automobile filling station and auto repair, painting, and body shop: two spaces for each 
service bay, plus one space for each employee on the largest shift, and also one space for 
each service vehicle; with a minimum of six spaces, plus one space for every 125 square feet 
of retail floor area if a convenience store is an accessory use.  

C. Automobile washing facility: one space for each employee with a minimum of four spaces, 
plus five off-street waiting spaces for each car-washing device or stall, or 15 off-street 
waiting spaces for an assembly-line type washing establishment, and two parking spaces at 
the end of each washing bay for drying and hand-finishing vehicles.  

 
 



12 

 

 

 

Chapter 1193 Trailers, Trucks, Recreational Vehicles, Boats, Farm or 
Construction Equipment 

1193.01 Definitions. 

Trailer means any receptacle or means of transport in which something is carried or conveyed or travels, 
moves on skids, wheels or runners, without its own motive power and is designed so that it can be drawn 
by other means of motive power. Trailers include, but are not limited to nonpowered recreational 
vehicles. 

1193.04 Off-street parking in commercial and office areas. 

(a) Semis or semitrailers as defined in HHCO Chapter 1123 shall not be parked outside on properties in 
commercial or office zoning districts and properties being used as commercial and/or office in any 
industrial zoning district, except as provided below:  

(1) Semis or semitrailers may be parked in designated loading spaces on properties in a 
commercial or office zoning district and properties being used as commercial and/or office in 
any industrial zoning district provided the loading spaces meet the applicable requirements in 
HHCO Section 1185.13 and are approved by the City. Said parking of semis or semitrailers in 
the loading spaces shall not exceed a length of time reasonably necessary to load or unload 
the semis or semitrailers.  

(2) Semis may be parked in a parking lot on a property used for a restaurant, hotel, motel, moving 
service/lease company or filling station that provides fuel for semis as long as all the following 
conditions are met:  

A. A zoning certificate has been issued for the property showing the location of a designated 
parking space(s) for semis meeting the following requirements:  

1. The designated semi parking space(s) shall be at least 15 feet in width by 80 feet in 
length and provide adequate area for ingress and egress;  

2. The designated semi parking space(s) shall not be located in the front yard of the 
property;  

3. The designated semi parking space(s) shall not adversely affect the traffic circulation in 
the parking lot;  

4. The designated semi parking space(s) shall be clearly marked "FOR SEMI PARKING" and, 
the parking surface striped in accordance with HHCO Section 1185.05;  

5. A semi(s) shall only be parked in designated semi parking space(s) and shall not be 
parked in any other required off-street parking as required by the parking and loading 
regulations in HHCO Chapter 1185.  

6. Semi parking space(s) and area used as ingress and egress shall be constructed of 
material and base able to support the daily use of semis as approved by the city 
engineer;  

7. A semi(s) shall only be parked in designated parking space(s) on a business property 
while the operator or passenger is using the facilities on the business property;  



13 

 

 

 

8. Semi parking space(s) shall only be permitted on property(s) for a restaurant, hotel, 
motel, moving service/lease company, or filling station that contains at least one acre. 
Each business property shall have no more than five semi parking spaces for each acre of 
the business property. In no case shall a business property have more than ten semi 
parking spaces. Properties shall be prorated by acreage for the number of semi parking 
spaces as outlined in the following scale:  

 

Required Minimum Acres  Number of Semi Parking Spaces Permitted  

1 (43,560 sq. ft.)  5  

1.2 (52,272 sq. ft.)  6  

1.4 (60,984 sq. ft.)  7  

1.6 (69,696 sq. ft.)  8  

1.8 (78,408 sq. ft.)  9  

2 (87,120 sq. ft.) or greater  10  

 

For the purposes of this section, all parcels in common ownership and adjacent to 
the property on which the business is located shall be considered one property.  

9. A filling station that provides fuel for semis is permitted to have semi(s) parked at a semi 
designated fueling pump(s) or parked waiting in line for the purpose of refueling, in 
addition to the number of semi parking spaces permitted in subsection 8 of this chapter.  

B. The property must be a single tenant property. On properties with multi-tenants, including, 
but not limited to shopping centers or office buildings, the parking of semis shall be 
prohibited.  

(3) Semitractors may be parked in a parking lot owned by and used for a sales company as long 
as the semitractors are owned and are for sale or lease by the concerned sales company.  

(b) Vehicles that are unlicensed or inoperative shall not be parked off-street and outside on properties 
in any Commercial or Office Zoning District and properties being used as commercial and/or office 
in any industrial zoning district.  

(Case 146, 7-10-89, Effective 8-9-89; Case 323; Ord. 89-O-363, Passed 7-10-89; Ord. 91-O-517, Passed 
11-4-91; Ord. 98-O-1071, Passed 9-28-98) 

 

Standards for Approval 

1171.06 – General Standards For Approval 

The Planning Commission shall review the application, prepared development plan and the facts 
presented at the hearing. The applicant shall have the burden of proof. No approval shall be given unless 
the Commission shall find by a preponderance of the evidence that such PUD on the proposed locations:  

(a)  Is consistent with official thoroughfare plan, comprehensive development plan and other 
applicable plans and policies;  

(b)  Could be substantially completed within the period of time specified in the schedule of 
development submitted by the developer;  



14 

 

 

 

(c)  Is accessible from public roads that are adequate to carry the traffic that shall be imposed upon 
them by the proposed development. Further, the streets and driveways on the site of the proposed 
development shall be adequate to serve the residents or occupants of the proposed development;  

(d)  Shall not impose an undue burden on public services such as utilities, fire and police protection, 
and schools;  

(e)  Contains such proposed covenants, easements and other provisions relating to the proposed 
development standards as may reasonably be required for the public health, safety and welfare;  

(f) Shall be landscaped or otherwise improved and the location and arrangement of structures, 
parking areas, walks, lighting and appurtenant facilities shall be compatible with the existing 
intended uses, and any part of a PUD not used for structures, parking and loading areas, or 
accessways;  

(g)  Shall preserve natural features such as water courses, trees and rock outcrops, to the degree 
possible, so that they can enhance the overall design of the PUD;  

(h)  Is designed to take advantage of the existing land contours in order to provide satisfactory road 
gradients and suitable building lots and to facilitate the provision of proposed services;  

(i) Shall place underground all electric and telephone facilities, street light wiring and other wiring 
conduits and similar facilities in any development which is primarily designed for or occupied by 
dwellings, unless waived by the Commission because of technical reasons;  

(j) Shall not create excessive additional requirements at public cost of public facilities and services and 
shall not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community;  

(k)  Shall not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment and conditions of operation that 
shall be detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare by reason of excessive 
production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors; and  

(l) Rezoning of the land to the PUD District and approval of the development plan shall not adversely 
affect the public peace, health, morals, safety or welfare. 

 
 
Staff Analysis 
The analysis below is based on the application revised by the applicant at the request of 
staff and based on the comments received at the commission meeting. The revisions 
have addressed all comments and concerns that were expressed to the applicant.  

Conformance with Zoning Regulations: 

1176 (PC) Planned Commercial District 

The proposed uses are principally permitted in the PC district.  The revised plan 
indicates a 15-foot perimeter buffer yard, which meets the standards for this chapter. All 
other standards for this Chapter are met.  

 



15 

 

 

 

Chapter 1181 General Provisions 

The revision meets the requirements of Chapter 1181.  The revised plans illustrate 
street trees placed every 40-feet.  No exterior lighting plan was submitted at this time, 
but will be submitted at the time of detailed development review.  Unless otherwise 
directed by the Planning Commission, parking light fixtures shall not exceed 25 feet in 
height. 

Chapter 1182 Landscaping and Screening Standards 

The Basic Development Plan indicates potential locations for landscape islands and 
trees within the parking areas.  Additional detail shall be provided during the detailed 
development plan phase.  

Chapter 1185 Parking and Loading 

The revised proposal meets the requirements of Chapter 1185.  The applicant is 
illustrating parking island landscaping. The maximum required number of parking 
spaces required is approximately 67 total spaces.  The revised plan indicates 70 
proposed spaces.  The number of required parking spaces is likely to decrease once 
the final area of the convenience store (less storage) and restaurant are determined.  

Chapter 1193 Trailers, Trucks, Recreational Vehicles, Boats, Farm or Construction 
Equipment 

The proposal meets the requirements of this chapter which limits the number of semi 
parking spaces to no more than ten spaces.  The plans indicate ten spaces that are 
correctly dimensioned.  

Other Considerations: 

Staff has asked the applicant to redesign the site to allow a future extension of Center 
Point 70 by moving the gas pumps and store further south and/or changing their 
alignment.  The applicant has adjusted the site plan by reconfiguring the parking and 
circulation plan.  The revised configuration will likely improve vehicle stacking at the 
intersection along the proposed roadway, rather than internally as was originally 
illustrated.  

Additional Comments: 
 
Fire:  See Attached.  The applicant will comply will all fire code requirements.  
 
City Engineer:   

 
 
   



16 

 

 

 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning from I-1 to Planned Commercial and 
approval of the revised basic development plan with the following conditions: 

1. Applicant shall comply will all fire code requirements. 

Planning Commission Action 
 
Planning Commission may take the following actions with a motion to:  

1) Approve the rezoning and basic development plan application, with or without 
conditions. 

2) Deny the basic development plan. 
3) Table the application in order to gather additional information. 

 



BDP 22-08 – Decision Record 

 1 

 
 

 
 

 
Planning Commission Decision Record 

 

 

WHEREAS, on January 27, 2022, the applicant, Amarjit Takhar, requested 
approval of the Basic Development Plan and Rezoning to Planned Commercial 
(PC) on approximately nine (9) acres of a 35-acre parcel at property located on the 
East side of intersection of SR 235 and Center Point 70 Blvd, Parcel Numbers 
P70-03903-0079 and P70-03903-0005 of the Montgomery County, Ohio Records 
(Case BDP 22-08); and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 29, 2022, the Planning Commission did meet and fully 
discuss the details of the request. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission hereby 
recommended approval of the request. 
 
Ms. Thomas moved to recommend approval of the request by the applicant, 
Amarjit Takhar, for the approval of the Basic Development Plan and Rezoning to 
Planned Commercial (PC) on approximately nine (9) acres of a 35-acre parcel at 
property located on the East side of intersection of SR 235 and Center Point 70 
Blvd, Parcel Numbers P70-03903-0079 and P70-03903-0005 of the Montgomery 
County, Ohio Records (Case BDP 22-08) in accordance with the recommendation 
of Staff’s Memorandum dated March 22, 2022, with the following conditions:                                 
 

1. Applicant shall comply with all fire code requirements. 

Seconded by Ms. Opp. Roll call showed: YEAS:  Ms. Vargo, Mr. Jeffries, Ms. Opp, 
Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS:  None.  Motion to recommend approval 
carried 5-0. 
 
 
 
_____________________________   _______________ 
Terry Walton, Chair      Date 
Planning Commission 



Planning Commission
March 29, 2022, Meeting

City of Huber Heights

I. Chair Terry Walton called the meeting to order at approximately 6:00 p.m.

II. Present at the meeting:  Mr. Jeffries, Ms. Opp, Ms. Thomas, Ms. Vargo and Mr. 
Walton.

Members absent: None.

Staff Present: Aaron K. Sorrell, Interim City Planner, and Geri Hoskins, Planning 
& Zoning Administrative Secretary.

III. Opening Remarks by the Chairman and Commissioners

IV. Citizens Comments

None.

V. Swearing of Witnesses

Mr. Walton explained the proceedings of tonight’s meeting and administered the 
sworn oath to all persons wishing to speak or give testimony regarding items on 
the agenda. All persons present responded in the affirmative.

VI. Pending Business

1. BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN - The applicant, AMARJIT TAKHAR, is 
requesting approval of a Basic Development Plan and Rezoning to 
(Planned Commercial) PC for 35 acres at State Route 35 for a Service 
Station (BDP 22-08).

Mr. Sorrell stated that the applicant requests approval of a basic development 
plan and rezoning to Planned Commercial District to construct a fueling center, 
convenience store, truck stop and diesel repair facility on approximately nine (9)
acres of a 35-acre parcel. The site is adjacent to the I-70 / SR 235 interchange.

This case was tabled at the March 15, 2022, to allow time to review the revised 
development plan that was submitted shortly before the meeting.  The crux of the 
revision reconfigures the western access point to allow for a future extension of 
Center Point 70 Boulevard and meet the development standards of the Planned 
Commercial District. 

The applicant is proposing two buildings, one 6,720 SF building containing a 
convenience store and restaurant, and the second 6,642 SF diesel truck repair 
facility.  Both buildings are proposed to be clad with a mix of brick and stucco 
EFIS.

Fuel will be dispensed through one five-pump island in front of the convenience 
store, and a second five-pump island located at the rear of the property for semi-



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

2

trucks and large oversized vehicles. Both fueling islands will be covered by large 
canopies.

Parking is provided throughout the site.  The revised site plan illustrates 76
parking spaces, including 10 for semi-trucks.  This is an increase from 62 
automobile parking spaces. 

The proposed uses are principally permitted in the PC district.  The revised plan
indicates a 15-foot perimeter buffer yard, which meets the standards for this 
chapter. All other standards for this Chapter are met. 

The revision meets the requirements of Chapter 1181.  The revised plans 
illustrate street trees placed every 40-feet.  No exterior lighting plan was 
submitted at this time, but will be submitted at the time of detailed development 
review.  Unless otherwise directed by the Planning Commission, parking light 
fixtures shall not exceed 25 feet in height.

The Basic Development Plan indicates potential locations for landscape islands 
and trees within the parking areas.  Additional detail shall be provided during the 
detailed development plan phase. 

The revised proposal meets the requirements of Chapter 1185.  The applicant is 
illustrating parking island landscaping. The maximum required number of parking 
spaces required is approximately 67 total spaces.  The revised plan indicates 70
proposed spaces.  The number of required parking spaces is likely to decrease 
once the final area of the convenience store (less storage) and restaurant are 
determined. 

The proposal meets the requirements of this chapter which limits the number of 
semi parking spaces to no more than ten spaces.  The plans indicate ten spaces 
that are correctly dimensioned. 

Other Considerations:

Staff has asked the applicant to redesign the site to allow a future extension of 
Center Point 70 by moving the gas pumps and store further south and/or 
changing their alignment.  The applicant has adjusted the site plan by 
reconfiguring the parking and circulation plan.  The revised configuration will 
likely improve vehicle stacking at the intersection along the proposed roadway, 
rather than internally as was originally illustrated.

Additional Comments:

Fire:  See Attached.  The applicant will comply will all fire code requirements.

City Engineer:

Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning from I-1 to Planned Commercial and 
approval of the revised basic development plan with the following conditions:



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

3

 Applicant shall comply will all fire code requirements.

Action

Ms. Thomas moved to approve the request by the applicant Amarjit Takhar, for 
approval of a Basic Development Plan and Rezoning to Planned Commercial 
(PC) on approximately nine (9) acres of a 35-acre parcel at property located on 
the East side of intersection of State Route 235 and Center Point 70 Blvd, Parcel 
Numbers P70-03903-0079 and P70-03903-0005 of the Montgomery County Ohio 
Records (ZC BDP 22-08) and accordance with the recommendation of staff’s 
memorandum dated March 22, 2022 and the Planning Commission’s Decision 
Record attached thereto.

Seconded by Ms. Opp. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo, Mr. Jeffries, Ms. 
Opp, Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: None. Motion to approve carried 5-0.

Move to City Council

VII. New Business

1. COMBINED BASIC AND DETAILED DEVELOPMENT PLAN - The applicant, 
CAMPBELL BERLING HUBER HEIGHTS, LLC, is requesting approval of a 
Rezoning to Planned Residential (PR) and a Combined Basic and Detailed 
Development Plan for property located on the East side of Bellefontaine 
Road and South of Chambersburg Road (ZC CBDP 22-11).

Mr. Sorrell stated that This case was originally ZC 21-47, which contemplated 
132 units (66 2-family townhomes) on approximately 23 acres.  The applicant 
withdrew the application and is now submitting approval for 97 units, comprised 
of 29 single-family lots and 34 two-family townhomes.  The average density is 
approximately 4.33/units per acre. 

The proposed one-family lots are slightly smaller and 20-feet shallower than what 
is prescribed by the code.  The 64-foot-wide lots are significantly smaller in 
square footage than prescribed by the code, however this does provide a 
housing product for those households who do not want or need a larger yard.  
Overall, the average lot size in this development is 6,937 square feet.  In staff’s 
professional opinion the slightly smaller and shallower lots will have a negligible 
impact on surrounding properties and the character of the area.  

Each unit, both detached and attached, will contain a two-car garage, along with 
driveway space for parking.  The proposal complies with this standard.

All utilities will be placed below ground. 

The applicant has submitted proposed elevations that that are consistent with 
this requirement. 

While landscaping and screening is not required in the Planned Residential 
District, the applicant is proposing significant buffering and screening along 
Bellefontaine Road, and along the interior gas transmission easement. 



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

4

The comprehensive plan indicates this area should be single-family with a 
maximum density of six (6) units per acre.  The proposed development contains 
29 single-family homes and 35 duplex townhomes.  The overall density of the 
development is 4.33 units per acre, consistent with the comprehensive plan.

While no phasing plan was submitted with the application, this is a relatively 
small subdivision for Huber Heights.

The public roads are adequate for this development.  Bellefontaine Road is 
classified as a Major Collector in the City Thoroughfare Plan

The site is served by adequate utilities. 

The applicant is proposing significant landscaping and screening beyond the 
code requirements along Bellefontaine Road. Additional tree plantings are 
proposed throughout the development in the common areas.

It is the staff’s opinion the proposal meets the standards outlined in Section 
1171.06 and the intent of 1171.09.  Staff recommends approval of the rezoning 
to Planned Residential and the combined Basic and Detailed Development Plan 
to construct 97 homes. Staff recommends approval with the following conditions:

1) The dwellings shall meet the material requirements of Section 1181.20 Building
Materials for Dwellings;

2) The applicant will comply with all stormwater requirements, per the City 
Engineer;

3) The applicant will comply will all Fire Code requirements, per the Huber Heights 
Fire Department.

Bob Krohngold was present.  
Cindy Smith and Tracy Harman

Discussion on the Fire Assessment and percentage of masonry

Action

Ms. Thomas moved to approve the request by the applicant Campbell Berling for 
approval of a Rezoning to Planned Residential (PR) and a Combined Basic and 
Detailed Development Plan for property located on the East side of Bellefontaine 
Road and South of Chambersburg Road, Parcel Number P70 03908 0126 of the 
Montgomery County, Ohio Recorder’s Office (ZC CBDP 22-11) in accordance 
with the recommendation of Staff’s Memorandum dated March 22, 2022, and the 
Planning Commission Decision Record attached thereto.

Seconded by Mr. Jeffries. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Opp, Mr. Jeffries, Ms. 
Thomas, Ms. Vargo, and Mr. Walton.  NAYS: None.  Motion to approve carried
5-0.

Move to City Council



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

5

2. REZONING AND BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN - The applicant, HORIZON 
LINE DEVELOPMENT, is requesting approval of a Rezoning and Basic
Development Plan to PM (Planned Mixed) for 197 unit Residential Town-
Home Apartment Community, located at 7125 Executive Boulevard (ZC 
BDP 22-12).

Mr. Sorrell stated that the applicant is requesting approval for a rezoning of 
approximately 43 acres from Planned Employment Park to Planned Mixed Use, 
to facilitate the construction of 197 residential townhome apartments and five 
commercial out lots.

The applicant has proposed development and use standards that are generally 
consistent with the applicable zoning regulations.  Staff would like to see the 
following revisions:

 Residential garage openings shall be set back at least 20-feet from the back of 
the sidewalk. (It appears this is the case in most instances; however, the 
drawings are not dimensioned and to the greatest extent possible staff desire to 
limit the overhang of vehicles into the sidewalk pathways).

 The following proposed permitted non-residential uses should be eliminated from 
permitted use list:

o Filling stations
o Sweepstakes cafes
o Convenience store
o Self-Storage – Indoor Climate Controlled
o Car Wash

The area contains a mixture of residential, commercial and office uses.

This site is located along a well-traveled thoroughfare, surrounded by residential 
uses to the north and west, commercial uses to the south, and Carriage Hill 
MetroPark to the east. The vast majority of the proposed land uses are 
residential and are located adjacent to other residential uses.  The proposed 
commercial out lots, which will likely have more intensive uses, are appropriated 
located to front Executive Boulevard. 

Commodity crop production is the current use of the site, and few natural 
features exist. There is a small drainage stream that bisects the site near the 
southwest corner, which crosses under Executive Boulevard and ultimately into 
Drylick Run Creek.  The proposed development plan appears to limit the impact 
on the drainage stream.  

In general, the site slopes west to east.  Two onsite and one offsite stormwater 
basins will provide for stormwater management. The stormwater basins are 
designed to be wet basins, which will provide an attractive landscape amenity. 

This development will have two entrances from Executive Boulevard that are 
aligned and spaced in a manner where little traffic conflict points should exist.
Interior sidewalks and walking trails are proposed for pedestrian circulation. As 
the commercial spaces are developed sidewalks along the north side of 
Executive Boulevard should be constructed to provide pedestrian connections to 
the amenities near and along Executive Boulevard.



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

6

Parking for the residential units is provided by what appears to be a mixture of 
one-and two-car garages, along with driveway space.  The applicant is providing 
at least two spaces per unit for the residential development, including the 
driveway space. As previously stated, the setback from the garage face to the 
back of sidewalk for the residential units should be a minimum 20-feet.  

The proposal provides interior sidewalks and walking paths. Additional sidewalks 
should be constructed as the commercial lots are developed along Executive 
Boulevard to provide pedestrian access to the surrounding amenities. 

A sign package was not submitted with the application; however, two monument 
signs are indicated on the landscaping plan. Signs shall comply with Chapter 
1189.

The residential buildings are set back 15-feet from each residential building.  
While the commercial out lots illustrate generic building footprints, plenty of land 
area exists to meet these setback requirements. 

The residential buildings are approximately 20-feet tall.

The plans and renderings indicate a mixture of decorative light poles and wall 
sconce lighting throughout the residential development.  A lighting plan will be 
required at the detailed development plan phase. 

The site plan indicates the trash receptacles will be fully enclosed where 
provided.

The architecture of the commercial structures is not indicated in the application, 
but will be reviewed at the time of the detailed development plan submission for 
each out building.

All utilities will be placed underground.

The residential open space will be owned by the apartment development owner. 

The applicant proposes to retain the existing trees along the north property line 
as a buffer, and the closest structure is approximately 80-feet from the property 
line.  Staff does not feel a 6-foot-high landscaping mound is warranted and would 
require the removal of existing trees. 

Along the west property line, the screening will be a mixture of evergreen and 
ornamental trees. No mounding or fencing is proposed or required. 

The commercial out lots will be reviewed at the detailed development plan phase;
however, the covenants indicate the commercial developments will comply with 
Chapter 1185. 

Street trees are indicated throughout the development. Street trees will be 
required along Executive Boulevard as those sites are developed.  



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

7

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommend approval of the rezoning and Basic Development Plan to 
construct 197 residential units and five commercial out lots.  Staff recommend
the following conditions for approval:

1) The setback for the residential units shall be a minimum of 20-feet between the 
garage face and the back of the sidewalk.

2) The permitted uses shall exclude those recommended by staff.
3) The water mains and sanitary sewers shall be built to city standards and in 

easements.
4) The applicant shall submit a sign package consistent with Section 1189.
5) The applicant will comply will all Fire Code requirements, per the Huber Heights 

Fire Department.

Eric Allen
Kevin Brolema
Steve Massingill

Discussion on the entertainment area, traffic, widening Executive, adding turn 
lane.

Action

Ms. Vargo moved to approve the request by the applicant Horizon Line 
Development, for approval of a Rezoning and Basic Development Plan to 
Planned Mixed (PM) for 35 acres at 7125 Executive Boulevard, Parcel Number 
P70 03910 0005 of the Montgomery County Ohio Records (ZC BDP 22-12)
in accordance with the recommendation of Staff’s Memorandum dated March 29, 
2022, and the Planning Commission Decision Record attached thereto.

Seconded by Ms. Opp. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Opp, Ms. Vargo, Ms. 
Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: Mr. Jeffries. Motion to approve carried 4-1.

Move to City Council

VIII.     Additional Business

None.

IX. Approval of the Minutes

Without objection, the minutes of the March 15, 2022, Planning Commission 
meeting are approved.

X. Reports and Calendar Review

Rezoning and Basic Detailed Development Plan, Medical Facility
Major change and Detailed Development Plan, Commercial Lot
Major Change and Detailed Development Plan, Discount Tire



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

8

XI. Upcoming Meetings

March 29, 2022
April 12, 2022

XII. Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting
was adjourned at approximately 8:33 p.m.

__________________________________ _____________________________
Terry Walton, Chair Date

__________________________________ _____________________________
Geri Hoskins, Administrative Secretary Date



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-O-

TO APPROVE A BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND REZONING TO PLANNED 
COMMERCIAL (PC) FOR A 35 ACRE PARCEL OF PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE EAST 
SIDE OF THE INTERSECTION OF STATE ROUTE 235 AND CENTER POINT 70 
BOULEVARD AND FURTHER IDENTIFIED AS PARCEL NUMBERS P70-03903-0079 AND 
P70-03903-0005 ON THE MONTGOMERY COUNTY AUDITOR’S MAP AND ACCEPTING 
THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION (ZONING CASE BDP 22-08).

WHEREAS, the citizens of Huber Heights require the efficient and orderly planning of land uses 
within the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Planning Commission has reviewed Zoning Case BDP 22-08 and on March 
29, 2022, recommended approval by a vote of 5-0 of the Basic Development Plan and Rezoning; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the issue.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The application requesting approval of a Basic Development Plan and Rezoning to 
Planned Commercial (PC) (Zoning Case BDP 22-08) is hereby approved in accordance with the 
Planning Commission’s recommendation and following conditions:

1. The applicant shall comply with all Fire Division code requirements.

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Ordinance shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the_____ day of ______, 2022;
          Yeas;           Nays.

Effective Date:  

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-O-

TO APPROVE A BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND REZONING TO PLANNED 
COMMERCIAL (PC) FOR A 35 ACRE PARCEL OF PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE EAST 
SIDE OF THE INTERSECTION OF STATE ROUTE 235 AND CENTER POINT 70 
BOULEVARD AND FURTHER IDENTIFIED AS PARCEL NUMBERS P70-03903-0079 AND 
P70-03903-0005 ON THE MONTGOMERY COUNTY AUDITOR’S MAP AND ACCEPTING 
THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION (ZONING CASE BDP 22-08).

WHEREAS, the citizens of Huber Heights require the efficient and orderly planning of land uses 
within the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Planning Commission has reviewed Zoning Case BDP 22-08 and on March 
29, 2022, recommended approval by a vote of 5-0 of the Basic Development Plan and Rezoning; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the issue.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The application requesting approval of a Basic Development Plan and Rezoning to 
Planned Commercial (PC) (Zoning Case BDP 22-08) is hereby approved in accordance with the 
Planning Commission’s recommendation and following conditions:

1. The applicant shall comply with all Fire Division code requirements.
2. Up to thirty (30) semi-truck parking spaces are permitted.

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Ordinance shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the_____ day of ______, 2022;
          Yeas;           Nays.

Effective Date:  

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



   
AI-8360     New Business      N.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
ZC CBDP 22-11 - Campbell Berling Huber Heights, LLC - Rezoning/Combined Basic And Detailed
Development Plan - Bellefontaine Road
Submitted By: Geri Hoskins
Department: Planning Division: Planning
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/19/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: SmartBoard Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Passed to
a Second
Reading

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
An Ordinance To Approve A Combined Basic And Detailed Development Plan And Rezoning To
Planned Residential (PR) For 22.968 Acres For The Property Located On The East Side Of
Bellefontaine Road And South Of Chambersburg Road And Further Identified As Parcel Number
P70-03908-0126 On The Montgomery County Auditor’s Map And Accepting The Recommendation Of
The Planning Commission (Zoning Case CBDP 22-11).
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
The applicant, Campbell Berling Huber Heights, LLC, is requesting approval of a Combined Basic and
Detailed Development Plan and a Rezoning to Planned Residential (PR) .

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Drawings 
Entrance Drawings 
Fire Assessment 
Staff Report 
Decision Record 
Minutes 
Correspondence 
Ordinance 





X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXX
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

RICHARD E. STORCK &
MARILYN A. STORCK

D.M.F. 95-776C10
(TRACT 1, 23.503 ACRES

PER DEED)

THE DAYTON POWER
AND LIGHT COMPANY

P70-03908-0046
D.B. 2077, P. 527

(3.681 ACRES PER DEED)

HAROLD G. III &
CHERYL A. COLLIER

I.R. DEED 21-080340
P70-03908-0174

KEITH E. BEAN
P70-03908-0021

I.R. DEED 21-046213
(25 ACRES PER DEED)

MANIQUE D. GREEN
P70-03908-0023

I.R. DEED 19-047896
(8.042 ACRES PER DEED)

DAVID E. & SHEILA G.
GRUSENMEYER
P70-03908-0027

I.R. DEED 04-036278
(TRACT 1, 3.845 ACRES

EXCEPT 3.15ACRES
NET 0.695 ACRES)
SURVEY 3-M-980

DAVID E. & SHEILA G.
GRUSENMEYER
P70-03908-0045

I.R. DEED 04-036278
(TRACT 2, 0.65 ACRES
EXCEPT 0.1051 ACRES

NET 0.545 ACRES)
SURVEY 3-M-980

WILLIAM E. VANWEY,
 RACHEL VANWEY, &

JESSIE ALTMAN
P70-03908-0083

I.R. DEED 18-073162
(3.150 ACRES PER DEED)

SURVEY 3-M-980

DAVID E. &
SHEILA G. GRUSENMEYER

I.R. DEED 04-036278
SURVEY 2005-0542

MICHAEL JOHN HARMAN &
TRACY HARMAN, TRUSTEES

THE HARMAN FAMILY TRUST
 P70-03908-0061

I.R. DEED 19-060167

MICHAEL JOHN HARMAN &
TRACY HARMAN, TRUSTEES

THE HARMAN FAMILY TRUST
 P70-03908-0144

I.R. DEED 19-060167
SURVEY 2004-0418

MELISSA A. BACK &
JOHN C. WEINERT
P70-03908-0129

D.M.F.  96-0404A07
(PARCEL 1, 5.259
ACRES PER DEED)

MELISSA A. BACK &
JOHN C. WEINERT
P70-03908-0066

D.M.F.  01-0290C03
(PARCEL 2, 3.902
ACRES PER DEED)

CHESTER A. BOWSHER &
DIXIE A. BOWSHER, TRUSTEES
THE BOWSHER FAMILY TRUST

P70-03908-0069
I.R. DEED 04-091973

(4.590 ACRES PER DEED)

MELLISA A. BACK
WEINERT, TRUSTEE FOR

BROOKE ANN LYNN BACK
P70-03908-0065

I.R. DEED 04-049483
(6.120 ACRES PER DEED)

OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS
HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION

 P70-03908-0149
I.R. DEED 05-082075

(3.0687 ACRES PER DEED)
SURVEY 2005-0231

RESERVE AREA "A"
THE OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS

SECTION 1, P.B. 192 , P42A

LOT 1
THE OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS

SECTION 1, P.B. 192 , P42A

LOT 44
THE OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS

SECTION 1, P.B. 192 , P42A

LOT 43
THE OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS

SECTION 1, P.B. 192 , P42A

LOT 42
THE OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS

SECTION 1, P.B. 192 , P42A

LOT 41
THE OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS

SECTION 1, P.B. 192 , P42A

LOT 40
THE OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS

SECTION 1, P.B. 192 , P42A

LOT 39
THE OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS

SECTION 1, P.B. 192 , P42A

THE OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS
SECTION 1, P.B. 192 , P42A

5/8" BENT
IRON PIN
1.1' N, 0.6'E

STONE @ PEAK
RT. N, RT. E

5/8" IRON PIN
0.7' N OF LINE

5/8" IRON PIN
"TRI-CITY"

0.7' N. OF LINE

5/8" IRON PIN
2.8' S OF LINE

5/8" IRON PIN
3.3' S OF LINE

CONCRETE
FENCE POST
RT. N, RT. E

5/8" IRON PIN
BENT WEST
(NEAR BEND)
0.24 W OF COR.
ON LINE

5/8" IRON PIN
RT. N, RT. E

5/8" IRON PIN
WITH CAP "NBP"
ON LINE @ 41.2'

5/8" IRON PIN
RT. N, RT. E

X

MAG NAIL
RT. N, RT. E

RR SPIKE
RT. N, RT. E

WILLIAM E. VANWEY,
MF 94-0146C06
P70-03908-0089

(0.111 ACRES PER DEED)
CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS

 P70-03908-0145
I.R. DEED 05-011534
SURVEY 2004-0418

6' CHAIN LINK FENCE

CHAIN LINK FENCE

CATTLE FENCE

CATTLE FENCE

CATTLE FENCE

CATTLE FENCE

CA
TT

LE
 F

EN
CE

TREE LINE SHOWN
PER MARCH 2021
SURVEY

GUARD
RA

IL

P7
0 0

39
08

 00
81

BOARD O
F C

O COM
M

RS

I.R
. D

EE
D 79

-03
43

E0
4

P70 03908 0082
BOARD OF CCO COMMRS

I.R. DEED 79-0347B09

81

82

O/S

O/S

O/S

O/S

BEL
LE

FO
NTA

IN
E R

OAD

OAK RIDGE DRIVE

CHAMBERSBURG ROAD

12'

EM
ER

GEN
CY

ACCES
S

APPROXIMATE
100 YEAR FLOOD
LIMIT

M
OU

ND

O/S

O/S

ROAD 1

O/S

O/S

O/S

O/S

O/S

PS
SITE

PROPOSED STORM
WATER DETENTION

NOTE:
PROPOSED STORM WATER
DETENTION BASIN TO BE DESIGNED
PURSUANT TO THE MONTGOMERY COUNTY
STANDARDS AS DISCUSSED WITH THE CITY ENGINEER

EXISTING STREAM

30
'

25
' S

ET
BA

CK

25' SETBACK

25' SETBACK

25' SETBACK

25' SETBACK

64' LOTS
72' LOTS

20
'

20
'

6.0'
(TYP)

72' LOTS

64' LOTS

60' LOTS

60' LOTS

60' LOTS

60
' L

OTS

60' LOTS

25' SETBACK

6.0'
(TYP)

25' SETBACK

25' SETBACK

25' SETBACK

25' SETBACK

20
'

20
'

20
'20
'

7.5'
(TYP)

7.5'
(TYP)

7.5'
(TYP)

7.5'(TYP)

7.5'
(TYP)

20'

20
'

N 84°52'31" W   389.02'
N 04°45'09" E

25.00'

N 84°54'26" W   1316.90'

S 
04

°5
6'

46
" W

   
70

1.
40

'

S 84°21'26" E   269.03'N 03°08'26" W
25.24'S 89°30'22" E   561.92'S 89°29'26" E   523.22'

N 37
°1

8'2
6"

 E
67

0.0
7'

72' LO
TS

POOL WSL=914.0
100 YR WSL=920.6

95
0

94
0

940

940

94
0

930 930

925

915

920

930

93
5

940

945

93
5

940

930

930

920

92
5

93
0

925

910

910

915

915

920

920

95
0

930

935

940

94
5

935

940

935

940

925

920

930

95
0

945

950

955

940

945

38
.5'

 B/C

STREET

20' REAR SETBACK

7.
5'

SI
DE

 S
ET

BA
CK

0'
SI

DE
 S

ET
BA

CK

25' FRONT SETBACK

S S S S S S S S S S S

W W W W W W W W W W W

STREET

20' REAR SETBACK

0'
SI

DE
 S

ET
BA

CK

25' FRONT SETBACK

0'
SI

DE
 S

ET
BA

CK

0'
SI

DE
 S

ET
BA

CK

15' UTILITY EASEMENT15' UTILITY EASEMENT

50
' R

/W

27
' B

/C

50
' R

/W

27
' B

/C

6'

5'

6'

5'

7.
5'

SI
DE

 S
ET

BA
CK

7.
5'

SI
DE

 S
ET

BA
CK

7.
5'

SI
DE

 S
ET

BA
CK

E E

7.
5'

SI
DE

 S
ET

BA
CK

7.
5'

SI
DE

 S
ET

BA
CK

7.
5'

SI
DE

 S
ET

BA
CK

7.
5'

SI
DE

 S
ET

BA
CK

6.
0'

SI
DE

 S
ET

BA
CK

6.
0'

SI
DE

 S
ET

BA
CK

STREET

E

25' FRONT
SETBACK

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

50
' R

/W

27
' B

/C

6'
5'

20' REAR SETBACK

25' FRONT SETBACK

w s w w w w ss w sws

c Copyright 2022, McGILL SMITH PUNSHON, Inc.

Architecture
Engineering
Landscape Architecture
Planning
Surveying

3700 Park 42 Drive
Suite 190B

Cincinnati OH 45241
Phone 513.759.0004

www.mspdesign.com

M c G i l l  S m i t h  P u n s h o n
D E S I G N

Drawn By
DWG

Issue/Revision No. Date

Sheet Title

Project Number
Drawing Scale

Project Manager

File Number

Sheet Number

X-Ref(s)

Utilities Protection
OHIO

SERVICE
Call Before You Dig

1-800-362-2764
CALL TWO WORKING DAYS BEFORE YOU DIG
(NON MEMBERS MUST BE CALLED DIRECTLY)

S C A L E      I N      F E E T

100 200 300500

AD
DI

N
G

TO
N

CI
TY

 O
F 

HU
BE

R 
HE

IG
HT

S
SI

TU
AT

E 
IN

 S
EC

TI
O

N
 1

6,
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
 2

, R
AN

G
E 

8,
 M

RS
M

O
N

TG
O

M
ER

Y,
 O

HI
O

SCALE: 1" = 50'
MINIMUM LOT WIDTH SHALL BE MEASURED AT THE BUILDING SETBACK LINE.

64'LOTS
PAIRED TOWNHOUSE

72'LOTS
PAIRED RANCH

PROPOSED ZONE:
PROPOSED USE:
MIN LOT AREA:
MIN LOT WIDTH:
NUMBER OF 60' LOTS:
NUMBER OF 64' LOTS:
NUMBER OF 72' LOTS:
TOTAL NUMBER OF UNITS:
CENTERLINE LENGTH OF STREET:

PLANNED RESIDENTIAL
PAIRED RANCH/TOWNHOUSE

5,000 SF (2 UNITS)
64 FT (2 UNITS)

29
19
15
97

2,656 FT

LINE TO BE SET AFTER CONSTRUCTION OF PAIRED STRUCTURE

60'LOTS
SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED

CONCEPT PLAN

1" = 100'

20632004-IMP-04-2022

20632.00

20632

RA
NAK

20632003-BAS-00

1

15 16 17 18 19

1

2

3

4

5

6 7 8 9 1413121110

2928272625

22 20212324

30 31 3330 32 3534 3736 3938 4140 4342 4544 4746 4948 5150 5352

62636465666768697071727374757677

7978 8180
8382

8584
8786 8988

9091
929394959697

55
54

6061

58
59

57
56

FISHBURG ROAD

CHAMBERSHBURG ROAD

BEL
LE

FO
NTA

IN
E R

OAD

BR
AN

DT
 P

IK
E

POWER ROAD

SITE

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

CONCEPT PLAN
IMPROVEMENT PLAN
GRADING PLAN
PLANTING PLAN

INDEX OF SHEETS
DESCRIPTION

1
2-3
4-5

L1-L2

SHEET

ADDINGTON
CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS

SITUATE IN SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 2, RANGE 8, MRS
MONTGOMERY, OHIO

COMBINED BASIC & DETAILED DEVELOPMENT PLAN

AREA OF DEVELOPMENT:      22.38 ACRES

N
:\l

an
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

\2
00

00
\2

06
32

\d
w

g\
20

63
20

04
-IM

P-
04

-2
02

2.
dw

g,
 0

1-
Co

n,
 3

/4
/2

02
2 

8:
59

:3
4 

AM
, N

ak
, D

W
G 

To
 P

D
F.

pc
3,

 1
:1



XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

THE DAYTON POWER
AND LIGHT COMPANY

P70-03908-0046
D.B. 2077, P. 527

(3.681 ACRES PER DEED)

MANIQUE D. GREEN
P70-03908-0023

I.R. DEED 19-047896
(8.042 ACRES PER DEED)

MICHAEL JOHN HARMAN &
TRACY HARMAN, TRUSTEES

THE HARMAN FAMILY TRUST
 P70-03908-0061

I.R. DEED 19-060167

MICHAEL JOHN HARMAN &
TRACY HARMAN, TRUSTEES

THE HARMAN FAMILY TRUST
 P70-03908-0144

I.R. DEED 19-060167
SURVEY 2004-0418

MELISSA A. BACK &
JOHN C. WEINERT
P70-03908-0129

D.M.F.  96-0404A07
(PARCEL 1, 5.259
ACRES PER DEED) WEINERT, TRUSTEE FOR

BROOKE ANN LYNN BACK

OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS
HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION

 P70-03908-0149
I.R. DEED 05-082075

(3.0687 ACRES PER DEED)
SURVEY 2005-0231

RESERVE AREA "A"
THE OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS

SECTION 1, P.B. 192 , P42A

LOT 1
THE OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS

SECTION 1, P.B. 192 , P42A

LOT 44
THE OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS

SECTION 1, P.B. 192 , P42A

THE OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS

X
X

X

X

CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
 P70-03908-0145

I.R. DEED 05-011534
SURVEY 2004-0418

6' CHAIN LINK FENCE

CATTLE FENCE

CATTLE FENCE

SMH
RIM=944.71

INV SE=933.11
INV NE & NW=923.46

SMH
RIM=945.10
INV=933.76

SMH
RIM=950.28
INV=935.90

SMH
RIM=951.60
INV=937.75

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OHO
H OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

6"
 FO

RC
E M

AIN

PE
R R

EC
ORD

6" FORCE MAIN
PER RECORD

LIFT STATION
PER RECORD

OH

OH

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

10" GAS MAIN
PER RECORD

10
" G

AS M
AIN

PE
R R

EC
ORD

APPROXIMATE
POWER POLE
LOCATED BY
AERIAL PHOTO APPROXIMATE

POWER POLE
LOCATED BY
AERIAL PHOTO

T

T

T

T

SWALE

X

SG
I   

TG
R=

95
1.6

8

IN
V12

RC
P N

E=
94

8.5
3

SG
I   

TG
R=

95
1.8

0

IN
V12

RC
P N

E &
 SW

=9
48

.10

SG
I   

TG
R=

94
9.3

4

IN
V12

RC
P N

=9
45

.94

SG
I   

TG
R=

94
9.1

6

IN
V12

RC
P S

E=
94

5.8
6

STMH   RIM=949.46
INV12RCP NW=945.36
INV12RCP S=945.76
INV12RCP NE & SW=944.16

SG
I   

TG
R=

94
4.6

1

IN
V12

RC
P N

=9
41

.46SG
I   

TG
R=

94
4.7

0

IN
V12

RC
P S

E=
94

1.4
0

STMH   RIM=944.92
INV12RCP NW=940.22
INV12RCP S=941.57
INV12RCP NE & SW=940.02

ST
M

H

RI
M

=9
43

.06

IN
V12

RC
P S

W
=9

38
.11

SGI

TGR=951.74

SGI
TGR=951.54

GUARD
RA

IL

WV
TOP/NUT
=949.22

WV
TOP/NUT
=948.77

SGI

TGR=951.45

W

W

8"
 W

ATE
R M

AIN
 CR

OSS
ES

RO
AD PE

R R
EC

ORDMANHOLE

PER RECORD
P7

0 0
39

08
 00

81

BOARD O
F C

O COM
M

RS

I.R
. D

EE
D 79

-03
43

E0
4

P70 03908 0082
BOARD OF CCO COMMRS

I.R. DEED 79-0347B09

81

82

25'

25'

25'

25'

25
' S

ET
BA

CK

25' SETBACK

25' SETBACK

25' SETBACK

20
'

20
'

6.0'
(TYP)

25' SETBACK

6.0'
(TYP)

25' SETBACK

20
'20

'

7.5'
(TYP)

7.5'
(TYP)

7.5'
(TYP)

N 84°52'31" W   389.02'
N 04°45'09" E

25.00'

S 89°29'26" E   523.22'

N 37
°1

8'2
6"

 E
67

0.0
7'

15 16 17
18 19

1

2

3

4

5 6 7 8 9 1413121110

28272625

22
20

21

23
24

30 31 33
30 32

3534
3736

3938

7374757677

78

W

W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

10+00

11+00

12+00

13+00

14+00 15+00

16+00

17+00

18+00

19+00

20+00

21+00

PC
: 1

0+
54

.28 PRC: 13+08.14

PT
: 1

4+
49

.5
6

PC
: 1

5+
94

.8
9

PR
C:

 1
6+

61
.0

9

PT
: 1

7+
27

.2
9

0+
00

1+
00

2+
00

3+00

4+00 5+00 6+00 7+00 8+00

PC: 0+55.88

PT: 1+50.88

PC: 1+98.10

PT
: 4

+0
1.

23

W

W

W

W

W

W

29
.2

8'

60
.7

3'

16
.8

5 '

123.24'

111.44'

60
.5

1'

60
.5

1'

122.94'

20
.8

7'
20

.4
2'

11.80'

100.22'

19
.7

0'

27
.5

2'

72
.6

7'

85
.1

4'

120.00'

17.27' 60.00'
126.03'

72.00'
72.00'

72.00'

14
0.

00
'

72.00'

14
0.

00
'

13
4.

55
'

10.42'

60.00'

13
2.

05
'

13
4.

55
'

14
0.

00
'

17.78'

42.90'

13
1.

21
'

12
7.

21
'

43.08'

28.64'

12
1.

26
'

11
0.

66
'

23.78' 60.00' 31.40'

12
0.

00
'

12
0.

00
'

61.45'

113.24'

23.56'

15
.6

4'
83

.1
2'

47
.2

2'

64.21'160.15'60.00'64.00'64.00'56.95'

15
4.

04
'

60.00'

14
0.

00
'

13
7.

19
'

64.00'
64.00'

64.00'

64.00'
64.00'

130.07'

60.00'
60.00'

60.00'
60.00'

27.34'

64.00'

64.00'64.00'
64.00'

64.00'

76.91'

13
1.

47
'

13
1.

47
'

14
5.

24
'

16.53'
62.65'

44.57'

41.83'
60.00'

43.50'

14
6.

02
'

13
1.

47
'

13
1.

47
'

13
1.

47
'13

5.
85

'

18.32'
53.40'

14
5.

42
'

42.50'

18.18'

14
6.

02
'

63.78' 97.87' 85.10' 63.86' 60.00' 60.00' 60.00' 60.00' 60.00' 60.00'

12
0.

47
'

49.89' 60.00' 60.00' 60.00' 60.00' 60.00' 60.00'

12
0.

47
'

12
0.

47
'

12
0.

47
'

12
0.

47
'

12
0.

47
'

13
4.

39
'

9.09'
53.74'

53.74'

53.74'

25.05'

33
.1

6'

172.66'

12
0.

47
'

12
0.

75
'

67.32'

126.65'

220.25'

23
.7

2 '

45
2.5

2'

25
.37

'

48
.43

'

196.91'

32.51'

356.50'

10
3.

39
'

25
.0

0'

63
.75

'

23.45'

283.99'

7,303 S.F.

7,577 S.F.

7,797 S.F.

8,073 S.F.

10,080 S.F.
10,080 S.F.

8,025 S.F.

7,542 S.F.

7,200 S.F.
7,212 S.F.

11,035 S.F.

8,616 S.F.7,778 S.F.
7,246 S.F.

10,023 S.F.

40,186 S.F.

8,757 S.F.

8,414 S.F.

8,761 S.F.

8,414 S.F.

8,757 S.F.

8,414 S.F.
8,414 S.F.

8,414 S.F.

17,177 S.F.

8,479 S.F.

8,653 S.F.

24,686 S.F.

7,400 S.F. 7,228 S.F. 7,228 S.F. 7,228 S.F. 7,228 S.F. 7,228 S.F.
10,860 S.F.

7,228 S.F.

53,098 S.F.

15,038 S.F.

15,974 S.F.

7,511 S.F.

4,880 S.F.

8,339 S.F.

O/S

O/S

O/S

O/S

O/S

O/S

O/S

BEL
LE

FO
NTA

IN
E R

OAD

OAK RIDGE DRIVE

27' B/C
50' R/W

27
' B

/C

50
' R

/W

27
' B

/C

50
' R

/W

4' WALK

4' WALK

4' WALK

4' WALK

4' WALK

4' WALK

4' WALK

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

60.00'
60.00'

60.00'
60.00'

60.19'
60.19'

64.21'

90.76'

72.00'

121.58'

64.00'

941

942

943

944

94
4

945

940

938

939

941
942
943
944

947

946

947

94
6

949

948

950

95
0

94
5 944

94
6

947

935

940

931

932

933

934

936

937

938

939

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W W W W W W W W W W W W

FM

FM

FM
FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM

PROPOSED
8" SANITARY
SEWER

PROPOSED
8" WATER

MAIN

PROPOSED
8" WATER

MAIN
PROPOSED
8" WATER

MAIN

PROPOSED
8" SANITARY
SEWER

PROPOSED
8" SANITARY
SEWER

EX. 8"
WATER

MAIN

CONNEC
T

TO
 EX

. 8
"

W
ATE

R M
AIN

PROPOSED
STORM SEWER

PROPOSED
STORM SEWER

PROPOSED
STORM SEWER

PROPOSED
STORM SEWER

20' STORM
SEWER

EASEMENT

20' STORM
SEWER
EASEMENT

20' STORM
SEWER
EASEMENT

SANITARY
SEWER
EASEMENT

SANITARY
SEWER
EASEMENT

STORM
SEWER
EASEMENT

STORM
SEWER

EASEMENT

SANITARY
SEWER
EASEMENT

25' ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

D.B. 2081, PG.85

25' ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

D.B. 2081, PG.85

PROPOSED
8" WATER

MAIN

50' ELECTRIC EASEMENT
D.B. 2081, P. 85

50' ELECTRIC EASEMENT
D.B. 2081, P. 85

WALKING
PATH

942

942

944943

94
3

94
2

942

94294
3

931

929

928

933

931

932

8,911 S.F. 8,400 S.F.
29

29.04'35.07'

F.H
.

F.H.

F.H.

F.H.
F.H.

PROPOSED
PARKING AREA

4

3

3

PROPOSED
PARKING AREA

PROPOSED
PARKING AREA

94
1

RESTRIPE THE EXISTING ROADWAY
TO CREATE A 100' SOUTH BOUND
LEFT TURN LANE
(INCLUDING 50' TAPER)

PROPOSED
GAS MAIN
EASEMENT

PROPOSED
GAS MAIN

EASEMENT

PROPOSED
FORCE MAIN

SANITARY
SEWER

EASEMENT

PROPOSED
8" SANITARY

SEWER

4' WALK

4' WALK

F.H
.

W

W

95
0

949

948

12' WIDE
EMERGENCY
ACCESS

12'

CONNEC
T T

O EX
. 8

"

SA
NITA

RY S
EW

ER

15' WATER MAIN
EASEMENT

c Copyright 2022, McGILL SMITH PUNSHON, Inc.

Architecture
Engineering
Landscape Architecture
Planning
Surveying

3700 Park 42 Drive
Suite 190B

Cincinnati OH 45241
Phone 513.759.0004

www.mspdesign.com

M c G i l l  S m i t h  P u n s h o n
D E S I G N

Drawn By
DWG

Issue/Revision No. Date

Sheet Title

Project Number
Drawing Scale

Project Manager

File Number

Sheet Number

X-Ref(s)

Utilities Protection
OHIO

SERVICE
Call Before You Dig

1-800-362-2764
CALL TWO WORKING DAYS BEFORE YOU DIG
(NON MEMBERS MUST BE CALLED DIRECTLY)

S C A L E      I N      F E E T

40 80 120200

IMPROVEMENT PLAN

1" = 40'

20632004-IMP-04-2022

20632.00

20632

RA
NAK

20632003-BAS-00

2

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
3 

FO
R 

CO
N

TI
N

U
AT

IO
N

AD
DI

N
G

TO
N

CI
TY

 O
F 

HU
BE

R 
HE

IG
HT

S
SI

TU
AT

E 
IN

 S
EC

TI
O

N
 1

6,
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
 2

, R
AN

G
E 

8,
 M

RS
M

O
N

TG
O

M
ER

Y,
 O

HI
O

N
:\l

an
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

\2
00

00
\2

06
32

\d
w

g\
20

63
20

04
-IM

P-
04

-2
02

2.
dw

g,
 0

2-
Im

p,
 3

/4
/2

02
2 

8:
56

:0
0 

AM
, N

ak
, D

W
G 

To
 P

D
F.

pc
3,

 1
:1



X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

HAROLD G. III &
CHERYL A. COLLIER

I.R. DEED 21-080340
P70-03908-0174

KEITH E. BEAN
P70-03908-0021

I.R. DEED 21-046213
(25 ACRES PER DEED)

WILLIAM E. VANWEY,
 RACHEL VANWEY, &

JESSIE ALTMAN
P70-03908-0083

I.R. DEED 18-073162
(3.150 ACRES PER DEED)

SURVEY 3-M-980

DAVID E. &
SHEILA G. GRUSENMEYER

I.R. DEED 04-036278
SURVEY 2005-0542

MICHAEL JOHN HARMAN &
TRACY HARMAN, TRUSTEES

THE HARMAN FAMILY TRUST
 P70-03908-0061

I.R. DEED 19-060167

MICHAEL JOHN HARMAN &
TRACY HARMAN, TRUSTEES

THE HARMAN FAMILY TRUST
 P70-03908-0144

I.R. DEED 19-060167
SURVEY 2004-0418

MELISSA A. BACK &
JOHN C. WEINERT
P70-03908-0129

D.M.F.  96-0404A07
(PARCEL 1, 5.259
ACRES PER DEED)

MELISSA A. BACK &
JOHN C. WEINERT
P70-03908-0066

D.M.F.  01-0290C03
(PARCEL 2, 3.902
ACRES PER DEED)

CHESTER A. BOWSHER &
DIXIE A. BOWSHER, TRUSTEES
THE BOWSHER FAMILY TRUST

P70-03908-0069
I.R. DEED 04-091973

(4.590 ACRES PER DEED)

MELLISA A. BACK
WEINERT, TRUSTEE FOR

BROOKE ANN LYNN BACK
P70-03908-0065

I.R. DEED 04-049483
(6.120 ACRES PER DEED)

5/8" IRON PIN
0.7' N OF LINE

5/8" IRON PIN
"TRI-CITY"

0.7' N. OF LINE

5/8" IRON PIN
2.8' S OF LINE

5/8" IRON PIN
3.3' S OF LINE

CONCRETE
FENCE POST
RT. N, RT. E

5/8" IRON PIN
BENT WEST
(NEAR BEND)
0.24 W OF COR.
ON LINE

5/8" IRON PIN
RT. N, RT. E5/8" IRON PIN

RT. N, RT. E

WILLIAM E. VANWEY,
MF 94-0146C06
P70-03908-0089

(0.111 ACRES PER DEED)

CHAIN LINK FENCE

CATTLE FENCE

CATTLE FENCE

CATTLE FENCE

CA
TT

LE
 F

EN
CE

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH

OH

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

APPROXIMATE
POWER POLE
LOCATED BY
AERIAL PHOTO

92
0

920

925

930

935

925

930

935

940

92
5

930

940

935

94
0

918.9

937.1
940.3

938.1

943.2

25'

25'

25'

25'

25'

25'

PROPOSED STORM
WATER DETENTION

NOTE:
PROPOSED STORM WATER
DETENTION BASIN TO BE DESIGNED
PURSUANT TO THE MONTGOMERY COUNTY
STANDARDS AS DISCUSSED WITH THE CITY ENGINEER

EXISTING STREAM

25' SETBACK

25' SETBACK

25' SETBACK

25' SETBACK

6.0'
(TYP)

25' SETBACK

25' SETBACK

25' SETBACK

20
'

20
'

20
'

7.5'
(TYP)

7.5'
(TYP)

7.5'
(TYP)

7.5'(TYP)

7.5'
(TYP)

20'

20
'

N 84°54'26" W   1316.90'

S 
04

°5
6'

46
" W

   
70

1.
40

'

S 84°21'26" E   269.03'N 03°08'26" W
25.24'S 89°30'22" E   561.92'S 89°29'26" E   523.22'

9 1413121110

2827

20
21

30 31 33
30 32

3534
3736

3938
4140

4342
4544

4746
4948

5150
5352

62636465666768697071727374757677

7978 8180

8382

8584
8786 8988

90
91

92
9394

95
96

97

55

54

6061

58

59

57
56

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W18+00

19+00

20+00

21+00

22+00

23+00

24+00

25+00

PT
: 1

7+
27

.2
9

5+00 6+00 7+00 8+00 9+00

10+00

PC
: 8

+9
5.

84

PT
: 9

+4
9.

26

23.77' 25.13'

44
.8

1'

44.77'

69.82'

8.
10

'

13
7.

40
'

36.00'
36.00'

20
.3

0'

108.41'

74.54'

13
3.

48
'

17.27' 60.00'
126.03'

72.00'
72.00'

72.00'
72.00'

72.00'
72.00'

72.00'
40.56'

14
0.

00
'

72.00'

36.00'

14
0.

00
'

14
0.

00
'

14
0.

00
'

14
0.

00
'

14
0.

00
'

10
2.

50
'

13
4.

55
'

10.42'

13
2.

05
'

13
4.

55
'

23
.3

8'

35.59'

14
0.

00
'

90'

25.31'64.21'160.15'60.00'64.00'64.00'

15
9.

18
'

15
4.

04
'

60.00'

14
0.

00
'

13
7.

19
'

7.87'
38.87'

16
0.

01
'

26.30'

57.24'

14
8.

08
'

37.58'

51.17'

25.12'
30

.6
4'

29.86'

56.84'
16.66'

11
1.

15
'

13.62'

25.00'

10
2.

41
'

61.27'

11
1.

61
'

151.50'

64.00'
64.00'

64.00'
64.00'

64.00'
64.00'

64.00'
64.00'

64.00'
64.00'

64.00'
64.00'

130.07'

13
1.

47
'

41.11'
64.00'

64.00'
64.00'

64.00'
64.00'

64.00'
64.00'

64.00'64.00'
64.00'

64.00'

76.91'

13
7.

02
'

13
1.

47
'

13
1.

47
'

13
1.

47
'

13
1.

47
'

13
1.

47
'

13
1.

47
'

13
1.

47
'

13
1.

47
'

13
1.

47
'

13
1.

47
'

13
1.

47
'

36
7.

58
'

97
.9

6'

17
1.

72
'

64
.1

4'

132.09'

160.05'

25
.2

4'

269.03'

71.00'

18
7.

35
'

27.83'

60.00' 60.00' 60.00' 60.00' 60.00' 60.00' 216.14' 216.14' 74.65' 74.65' 49.08'

12
0.

47
'

60.00' 60.00' 60.00' 60.00' 60.00' 60.00' 84.71'

12
0.

47
'

14
5.

64
'

13.62'

35.59'
47.94'

14
2.

90
'12

0.
47

'

13
6.

15
'

34.10'

12
0.

47
'

12
0.

47
'

12
0.

47
'

12
0.

47
'

12
6.

13
'

36.57'23.53'

8,073 S.F.

10,080 S.F.
10,080 S.F.

10,080 S.F.
10,080 S.F.

10,080 S.F.
10,080 S.F.

10,080 S.F.

8,025 S.F.

8,616 S.F.
10,023 S.F.

40,186 S.F.

10,296 S.F.

9,864 S.F.

8,197 S.F.
10,050 S.F.

8,563 S.F.

8,414 S.F.
8,414 S.F.

8,414 S.F.

8,414 S.F.

8,414 S.F.

8,414 S.F.

8,414 S.F.

8,414 S.F.

8,414 S.F.

8,414 S.F.

17,177 S.F.
8,414 S.F.

96,382 S.F.

24,686 S.F.

7,228 S.F.

10,831 S.F.

7,228 S.F.

10,631 S.F.

7,228 S.F.

14,363 S.F.

7,228 S.F. 7,228 S.F. 7,228 S.F.

O/S

O/S O/S

O/S

50' R/W

38.5' B
/C

50
' R

/W

27
' B

/C

50
' R

/W

27
' B

/C

50
' R

/W
17,147 S.F.

17,126 S.F.

13,813 S.F.

10,899 S.F.

10,696 S.F.

8,455 S.F.

4' WALK

4' WALK

4' WALK

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

60.00'
60.00'

64.21'

72.00'

121.58'

72.00'
72.00'

72.00'
72.00'

72.00'
76.00'

86.42'

64.00'
64.00'

64.00'
64.00'

931

92
9

92
8

927

926
924

923 923

922

923

924

91
5

91
7

91
8

922

921

925

930

923

924

926927928929

931

93
2

93
3

935

940

931

932

933

934

936

937

938

939

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM
FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

PROPOSED
8" SANITARY
SEWER

PROPOSED
PUMP STATION

PROPOSED
8" WATER

MAIN
PROPOSED
8" SANITARY
SEWER

PROPOSED
8" WATER

MAIN
PROPOSED

8" SANITARY
SEWER

PROPOSED
8" SANITARY
SEWER

PROPOSED
8" SANITARY

SEWER

PROPOSED
FORCE MAIN

PROPOSED
STORM SEWER

PROPOSED
STORM SEWER

PROPOSED
STORM SEWER

PROPOSED
STORM SEWER

PROPOSED
STORM SEWER

PROPOSED
STORM SEWER

PROPOSED
STORM SEWER

12' DRIVE

20' STORM
SEWER
EASEMENT

20' STORM
SEWER
EASEMENT

20' STORM
SEWER
EASEMENT

20' SANITARY
SEWER

EASEMENT

20' STORM
SEWER
EASEMENT

SANITARY
SEWER
EASEMENT

STORM
SEWER
EASEMENT

RELEASE
STRUCTURE
(CB 2-3)

25' ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

D.B. 2081, PG.85

25' ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

D.B. 2081, PG.85

WALKING
PATH

916918

916

917

918

919

919

920

942

942

931

929

928

933

931

932

925

923

921

8,911 S.F. 8,400 S.F.
29

29.04'35.07'

F.H.

F.H.

F.H.

F.H.

PROPOSED
PARKING AREA

4

3

3

PROPOSED
PARKING AREA

PROPOSED
PARKING AREA

PROPOSED
GAS MAIN
EASEMENT

PROPOSED
GAS MAIN

EASEMENT

PROPOSED
FORCE MAIN

PROPOSED
GAS MAIN

EASEMENT

PROPOSED
FORCE MAIN

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

PROPOSED
8" WATER
MAIN

15' WATER MAIN
EASEMENT

PROPOSED
8" WATER
MAIN

POOL WSL=914.0
100 YR WSL=920.6

FINAL LOCATION
OF PUMP STATION IS
SUBJECT TO CHANGE

921

38
.5'

 B/C

c Copyright 2022, McGILL SMITH PUNSHON, Inc.

Architecture
Engineering
Landscape Architecture
Planning
Surveying

3700 Park 42 Drive
Suite 190B

Cincinnati OH 45241
Phone 513.759.0004

www.mspdesign.com

M c G i l l  S m i t h  P u n s h o n
D E S I G N

Drawn By
DWG

Issue/Revision No. Date

Sheet Title

Project Number
Drawing Scale

Project Manager

File Number

Sheet Number

X-Ref(s)

Utilities Protection
OHIO

SERVICE
Call Before You Dig

1-800-362-2764
CALL TWO WORKING DAYS BEFORE YOU DIG
(NON MEMBERS MUST BE CALLED DIRECTLY)

S C A L E      I N      F E E T

40 80 120200

IMPROVEMENT PLAN

1" = 40'

20632004-IMP-04-2022

20632.00

20632

RA
NAK

20632003-BAS-00

3

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
2 

FO
R 

CO
N

TI
N

U
AT

IO
N

AD
DI

N
G

TO
N

CI
TY

 O
F 

HU
BE

R 
HE

IG
HT

S
SI

TU
AT

E 
IN

 S
EC

TI
O

N
 1

6,
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
 2

, R
AN

G
E 

8,
 M

RS
M

O
N

TG
O

M
ER

Y,
 O

HI
O

N
:\l

an
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

\2
00

00
\2

06
32

\d
w

g\
20

63
20

04
-IM

P-
04

-2
02

2.
dw

g,
 0

3-
Im

p,
 3

/4
/2

02
2 

7:
41

:0
4 

AM
, N

ak
, D

W
G 

To
 P

D
F.

pc
3,

 1
:1



XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

THE DAYTON POWER
AND LIGHT COMPANY

P70-03908-0046
D.B. 2077, P. 527

(3.681 ACRES PER DEED)

MANIQUE D. GREEN
P70-03908-0023

I.R. DEED 19-047896
(8.042 ACRES PER DEED)

MICHAEL JOHN HARMAN &
TRACY HARMAN, TRUSTEES

THE HARMAN FAMILY TRUST
 P70-03908-0061

I.R. DEED 19-060167

MICHAEL JOHN HARMAN &
TRACY HARMAN, TRUSTEES

THE HARMAN FAMILY TRUST
 P70-03908-0144

I.R. DEED 19-060167
SURVEY 2004-0418

MELISSA A. BACK &
JOHN C. WEINERT
P70-03908-0129

D.M.F.  96-0404A07
(PARCEL 1, 5.259
ACRES PER DEED) WEINERT, TRUSTEE FOR

BROOKE ANN LYNN BACK

OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS
HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION

 P70-03908-0149
I.R. DEED 05-082075

(3.0687 ACRES PER DEED)
SURVEY 2005-0231

RESERVE AREA "A"
THE OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS

SECTION 1, P.B. 192 , P42A

LOT 1
THE OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS

SECTION 1, P.B. 192 , P42A

LOT 44
THE OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS

SECTION 1, P.B. 192 , P42A

THE OAKS OF HUBER HEIGHTS

X
X

X

X

CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
 P70-03908-0145

I.R. DEED 05-011534
SURVEY 2004-0418

SMH
RIM=944.71

INV SE=933.11
INV NE & NW=923.46

SMH
RIM=945.10
INV=933.76

SMH
RIM=950.28
INV=935.90

SMH
RIM=951.60
INV=937.75

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OHO
H OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

LIFT STATION
PER RECORD

OH

OH

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

T

T

T

T

X

W

W

930

940

935

935

940

94
5

94
0

945

940

94
0

950

95
0

945

950

943.2

95
2.

3

95
2.

1

95
2.

2

95
2.

3

952.3

944.0

945.3

950.3

P7
0 0

39
08

 00
81

BOARD O
F C

O COM
M

RS

I.R
. D

EE
D 79

-03
43

E0
4

P70 03908 0082
BOARD OF CCO COMMRS

I.R. DEED 79-0347B09

81

82

15 16 17
18 19

1

2

3

4

5 6 7 8 9 1413121110

28272625

22
20

21

23
24

30 31 33
30 32

3534
3736

3938

7374757677

78

W

W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

10+00

11+00

12+00

13+00

14+00 15+00

16+00

17+00

18+00

19+00

20+00

21+00

PC
: 1

0+
54

.28 PRC: 13+08.14

PT
: 1

4+
49

.5
6

PC
: 1

5+
94

.8
9

PR
C:

 1
6+

61
.0

9

PT
: 1

7+
27

.2
9

0+
00

1+
00

2+
00

3+00

4+00 5+00 6+00 7+00 8+00

PC: 0+55.88

PT: 1+50.88

PC: 1+98.10

PT
: 4

+0
1.

23

W

W

W

W

W

W

O/S

O/S

O/S

O/S

O/S

O/S

O/S

BEL
LE

FO
NTA

IN
E R

OAD

OAK RIDGE DRIVE

941

942

943

944

94
4

945

940

938

939

941
942
943
944

947

946

947

94
6

949

948

950

95
0

94
5 944

94
6

947

935

940

931

932

933

934

936

937

938

939

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W W W W W W W W W W W W

FM

FM

FM
FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM

942

942

944943

94
3

94
2

942

94294
3

931

929

928

933

931

932

29

94
1

W

W

95
0

949

948
956

955

951

950

955

951

950

945

943

941

944

946

95
0

95
5

95
3

945

94
8

94
6

947

946

945

944

943
942

935

936

937

938

939

940
941

940 939 938

937

936 935
934

933

933

946

932

937936

935

944

943

951

950

949

94
8

94
7

94
6

945
945945

944

943

942

940

939

941
946 945

944

94
6

94
6

93
594
0

93193293
3

93
4

93
6

93
7

93
8

93
9

94
1

935

936937

942
941

941

93
5

94
0 933

93
4

93
6

93
7

93
8

93
9

94
1

94
2

94
3

94
4

94
5 944

941

940

939

944

94
0

93
693

793
893

994
194

2

943

940
941

942

947

945

943

942

941
941
941

940

941

942

947
c Copyright 2022, McGILL SMITH PUNSHON, Inc.

Architecture
Engineering
Landscape Architecture
Planning
Surveying

3700 Park 42 Drive
Suite 190B

Cincinnati OH 45241
Phone 513.759.0004

www.mspdesign.com

M c G i l l  S m i t h  P u n s h o n
D E S I G N

Drawn By
DWG

Issue/Revision No. Date

Sheet Title

Project Number
Drawing Scale

Project Manager

File Number

Sheet Number

X-Ref(s)

Utilities Protection
OHIO

SERVICE
Call Before You Dig

1-800-362-2764
CALL TWO WORKING DAYS BEFORE YOU DIG
(NON MEMBERS MUST BE CALLED DIRECTLY)

S C A L E      I N      F E E T

40 80 120200

GRADING PLAN

1" = 40'

20632004-IMP-04-2022

20632.00

20632

RA
NAK

20632003-BAS-00

4

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
6 

FO
R 

CO
N

TI
N

U
AT

IO
N

AD
DI

N
G

TO
N

CI
TY

 O
F 

HU
BE

R 
HE

IG
HT

S
SI

TU
AT

E 
IN

 S
EC

TI
O

N
 1

6,
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
 2

, R
AN

G
E 

8,
 M

RS
M

O
N

TG
O

M
ER

Y,
 O

HI
O

N
:\l

an
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

\2
00

00
\2

06
32

\d
w

g\
20

63
20

04
-IM

P-
04

-2
02

2.
dw

g,
 0

4-
Gr

a,
 3

/4
/2

02
2 

8:
58

:0
9 

AM
, N

ak
, D

W
G 

To
 P

D
F.

pc
3,

 1
:1



X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

HAROLD G. III &
CHERYL A. COLLIER

I.R. DEED 21-080340
P70-03908-0174

KEITH E. BEAN
P70-03908-0021

I.R. DEED 21-046213
(25 ACRES PER DEED)

WILLIAM E. VANWEY,
 RACHEL VANWEY, &

JESSIE ALTMAN
P70-03908-0083

I.R. DEED 18-073162
(3.150 ACRES PER DEED)

SURVEY 3-M-980

DAVID E. &
SHEILA G. GRUSENMEYER

I.R. DEED 04-036278
SURVEY 2005-0542

MICHAEL JOHN HARMAN &
TRACY HARMAN, TRUSTEES

THE HARMAN FAMILY TRUST
 P70-03908-0061

I.R. DEED 19-060167

MICHAEL JOHN HARMAN &
TRACY HARMAN, TRUSTEES

THE HARMAN FAMILY TRUST
 P70-03908-0144

I.R. DEED 19-060167
SURVEY 2004-0418

MELISSA A. BACK &
JOHN C. WEINERT
P70-03908-0129

D.M.F.  96-0404A07
(PARCEL 1, 5.259
ACRES PER DEED)

MELISSA A. BACK &
JOHN C. WEINERT
P70-03908-0066

D.M.F.  01-0290C03
(PARCEL 2, 3.902
ACRES PER DEED)

CHESTER A. BOWSHER &
DIXIE A. BOWSHER, TRUSTEES
THE BOWSHER FAMILY TRUST

P70-03908-0069
I.R. DEED 04-091973

(4.590 ACRES PER DEED)

MELLISA A. BACK
WEINERT, TRUSTEE FOR

BROOKE ANN LYNN BACK
P70-03908-0065

I.R. DEED 04-049483
(6.120 ACRES PER DEED)

WILLIAM E. VANWEY,
MF 94-0146C06
P70-03908-0089

(0.111 ACRES PER DEED)

CHAIN LINK FENCE

CATTLE FENCE

CATTLE FENCE

CATTLE FENCE

CA
TT

LE
 F

EN
CE

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH

OH

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

APPROXIMATE
POWER POLE
LOCATED BY
AERIAL PHOTO

92
0

920

925

930

935

925

930

935

940

92
5

930

940

935

94
0

918.9

937.1
940.3

938.1

943.2

PROPOSED STORM
WATER DETENTION

NOTE:
PROPOSED STORM WATER
DETENTION BASIN TO BE DESIGNED
PURSUANT TO THE MONTGOMERY COUNTY
STANDARDS AS DISCUSSED WITH THE CITY ENGINEER

EXISTING STREAM

9 1413121110

2827

20
21

30 31 33
30 32

3534
3736

3938
4140

4342
4544

4746
4948

5150
5352

62636465666768697071727374757677

7978 8180

8382

8584
8786 8988

90
91

92
9394

95
96

97

55

54

6061

58

59

57
56

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W18+00

19+00

20+00

21+00

22+00

23+00

24+00

25+00

PT
: 1

7+
27

.2
9

5+00 6+00 7+00 8+00 9+00

10+00

PC
: 8

+9
5.

84

PT
: 9

+4
9.

26

O/S

O/S O/S

O/S

931

92
9

92
8

927

926
924

923 923

922

923

924

91
5

91
7

91
8

922

921

925

930

923

924

926927928929

931

93
2

93
3

935

940

931

932

933

934

936

937

938

939

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM
FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

916918

916

917

918

919

919

920

942

942

931

929

928

933

931

932

925

923

921

29

PROPOSED
PARKING AREA

PROPOSED
PARKING AREA

PROPOSED
PARKING AREA

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

POOL WSL=914.0
100 YR WSL=920.6

921

38
.5'

 B/C

930

932

933

934

93
6

935

935

936

937

938

939

941

940 939 938

937

936 935
934

933 932

930

933
932

931

930

922

922

920
921

929 928 927 926
925

924

923

926

92
7

928
929

92
6

92
5

92
7

92
8

92
5

924

925

929

930

931

932

937936

935

935

92
2

92
092

2

92
0

942

940

936

937

938

939

941

93
594
0

93193293
3

93
4

93
6

93
7

93
8

93
9

942
941

940
941

935

933

93
5

94
0 933

93
4

93
6

93
7

93
8

93
9

94
1

910

915

920

908
909

911
912

913
914

916
917

918
919

921
922

910

915

920

908909
911912913914

916917918919
921922

930

930

942

941

941 940

938
939

92
8

929

94
0

93
693

793
893

994
1

940
941

939
935 934937

930

935

935
932

937

929

928

925 923

940

937

938

939

941

942

935
933

930
927

935

c Copyright 2022, McGILL SMITH PUNSHON, Inc.

Architecture
Engineering
Landscape Architecture
Planning
Surveying

3700 Park 42 Drive
Suite 190B

Cincinnati OH 45241
Phone 513.759.0004

www.mspdesign.com

M c G i l l  S m i t h  P u n s h o n
D E S I G N

Drawn By
DWG

Issue/Revision No. Date

Sheet Title

Project Number
Drawing Scale

Project Manager

File Number

Sheet Number

X-Ref(s)

Utilities Protection
OHIO

SERVICE
Call Before You Dig

1-800-362-2764
CALL TWO WORKING DAYS BEFORE YOU DIG
(NON MEMBERS MUST BE CALLED DIRECTLY)

S C A L E      I N      F E E T

40 80 120200

GRADING PLAN

1" = 40'

20632004-IMP-04-2022

20632.00

20632

RA
NAK

20632003-BAS-00

5

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
4 

FO
R 

CO
N

TI
N

U
AT

IO
N

AD
DI

N
G

TO
N

CI
TY

 O
F 

HU
BE

R 
HE

IG
HT

S
SI

TU
AT

E 
IN

 S
EC

TI
O

N
 1

6,
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
 2

, R
AN

G
E 

8,
 M

RS
M

O
N

TG
O

M
ER

Y,
 O

HI
O

N
:\l

an
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

\2
00

00
\2

06
32

\d
w

g\
20

63
20

04
-IM

P-
04

-2
02

2.
dw

g,
 0

5-
Gr

a,
 3

/4
/2

02
2 

7:
42

:1
8 

AM
, N

ak
, D

W
G 

To
 P

D
F.

pc
3,

 1
:1



XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

X
X

X

X

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

X

951.91

15 16 17
18 19

1

2

3

4

5 6 7 8 9 1413121110

28272625

22
20

21

23
24

30 31 33
30 32

3534
3736

3938

74757677

78

O/S

O/S

O/S

O/S

O/S

O/S

FM

FM

FM
FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM

29
956

955

951

950

955

951

950

945

943

941

944

946

95
0

95
5

95
3

945

94
8

94
6

947

946

945

944

943
942

935

936

937

938

939

940

941

940 939 938

937

936 935
934

933

933

946

932
937936

935

944

943

951

950

949

94
8

94
7

94
6

945
945945

944

943

942

940

941
946 945

944

94
6

94
6

93
594
0

931932

93
3

93
4

93
6

93
7

93
8

93
9

94
1

935

936937

942
941

941

93
5

94
0 933

93
4

93
6

93
7

93
8

93
9

94
1

94
2

94
3

94
4

94
5 944

941

940

939

944

94
0

93
693

793
893

994
194

2

943

940
941

942

947

945

943

942

941
941
941

940

941

942

947

5' WOOD CHIP WALK

(7)GG

(1) CC

M
A

TC
HL

IN
E

(3) SSN

(7) WP

(3) AC
(2) RMP

(3)RB

(1) CC

(3)NS
(1)CK

(1)ROK
(2)ALN

(3)AC
(1)SSN

(2)WP

(1) CC

(1) RMP
(2) NS

(3)NS
(1)RMP

(1) ALN
(2) PRO

(1) RMP

(3) NS
(1) ALN

(2) RMP
(1) NS

(3)WP

(1)ALN

(1)NS
(1)CK

(2)WP

(1) AC

(1)WP

M
A

TC
HL

IN
E

M
A

TC
HL

IN
E

(1)RB
(2)WP

(1)PRO

(1) ROK
(2) ALN

(1) AC

(3)WP

(1)SSN

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN

4' WALK
15' UTILITY

EASEMENT

4' WALK

4' WALK

4' WALK

4' WALK

4' WALK

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

BE
LL

EF
ONTA

IN
E R

OAD

OAK RIDGE DRIVE M
OUN

D

*

(2)AC

(4) NS

ENTRY MONUMENT
 SIGN LOCATION

ISSUED

c Copyright 2022, McGILL SMITH PUNSHON, Inc.

Architecture
Engineering
Landscape Architecture
Planning
Surveying

3700 Park 42 Drive
Suite 190B

Cincinnati OH 45241
Phone 513.759.0004

www.mspdesign.com

M c G i l l  S m i t h  P u n s h o n
D E S I G N

Drawn By
DWG

Issue/Revision No. Date

Sheet Title

Project Number
Drawing Scale

Project Manager

File Number

Sheet Number

X-Ref(s)

Utilities Protection
OHIO

SERVICE
Call Before You Dig

1-800-362-2764
CALL TWO WORKING DAYS BEFORE YOU DIG
(NON MEMBERS MUST BE CALLED DIRECTLY)

S C A L E      I N      F E E T

40 80 120200

PLANTING PLAN WEST

1" = 40'

20632006-PLA

20632.00

20632

RA
NAK

20632003-BAS-00

L1

EVERGREEN TREES QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE
NS 17 Picea abies Norway Spruce 6`-7` Ht
WP 20 Pinus strobus White Pine 6`-7` Ht
GG 7 Thuja x 'Green Giant' Green Giant Arborvitae 6`-7` Ht

ORNAMENTAL TREES QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE
CC 3 Cercis canadensis Eastern Redbud 2" CAL., B&B
PRO 3 Malus x 'Prairie Fire' Prairie Fire Crabapple 2" CAL., B&B
SSN 5 Malus x 'Spring Snow' Spring Snow Crabapple 2" CAL., B&B

SHADE TREE QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE
CK 2 Acer platanoides 'Crimson King' Crimson King Norway Maple 2" CAL., B&B
RMP 7 Acer rubrum Red Maple 2" CAL., B&B
AC 10 Acer saccharum 'Commemoration' Commemoration Sugar Maple 2" CAL., B&B
RB 4 Betula nigra River Birch Multi-Trunk 2" CAL., B&B
ROK 2 Quercus rubra Red Oak 2" CAL., B&B
ALN 7 Tilia americana American Linden 2" CAL., B&B

PLANT SCHEDULE WEST AREA

GENERAL NOTES
1. SEE SHEET L3 FOR PLANTING NOTES AND DETAILS
2. REFER TO CIVIL ENGINEERS PLANS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

LEGEND

SHADE TREES

ORNAMENTAL AND EVERGREEN TREES 

03/03/22

B&B
B&B
B&B

PLANTING PLAN WEST
SCALE: 1"=40'-0"

1
L-1

AD
DI

N
G

TO
N

CI
TY

 O
F 

HU
BE

R 
HE

IG
HT

S
SI

TU
AT

E 
IN

 S
EC

TI
O

N
 1

6,
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
 2

, R
AN

G
E 

8,
 M

RS
M

O
N

TG
O

M
ER

Y,
 O

HI
O

N
:\l

an
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

\2
00

00
\2

06
32

\d
w

g\
20

63
20

06
-P

LA
.d

w
g,

 L
1,

 3
/4

/2
02

2 
9:

03
:1

4 
AM

, N
ak

, A
ut

oC
AD

 P
D

F 
(S

m
al

le
st

 F
ile

).p
c3

, 1
:1



X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH

OH

OH

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

PROPOSED STORM
WATER DETENTION

1413121110

28

20

30 31 33
30 32

3534
3736

3938
4140

4342
4544

4746
4948

5150
5352

62636465666768697071727374757677

7978 8180

8382

8584
8786 8988

90
91

92
9394

95
96

97

55

54

6061

58

59

57
56

O/S

O/S O/S

O/S

931

92
9

92
8

927

926
924

923 923

922

923

924

91
5

91
7

91
8

922

921

925

930

923

924

926927928929

931

93
2

93
3

935

940

931

932

933

934

936

937

938

939

FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM
FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

12' DRIVE

916918

916

917

918

919

919

920

931

929

928

933

931

932

925

923

921

29

PROPOSED
PARKING AREA

PROPOSED
PARKING AREA

POOL WSL=914.0
100 YR WSL=920.6

921

38
.5'

 B/C

930

932

933

934

93
6

935

935

936

937

938

941

940 939 938

937

936 935
934

933 932

930

933
932

931

930

922

922

920
921

929 928 927 926
925

924

923

926

92
7

928
929

92
6

92
5

92
7

92
8

92
5

924

925

929

930

931

932

937

935

92
2

92
092

2

92
0

940

936

937

938

939

941

93
5

93193293
3

93
4

93
6

93
7

93
8

942
941

940
941

935

933

93
5 933

93
4

93
6

93
7

93
8

93
9

910

915

920

908
909

911
912

913
914

916
917

918
919

921
922

910

915

920

908909
911912913914

916917918919
921922

930

930

941

940

939

92
8

929

93
693

793
893

9

939
935 934937

930

935

935
932

937

929

927 926

940

937

938

939

941

942

935
933

930
927

935

M
A

TC
HL

IN
E

M
A

TC
HL

IN
E

M
A

TC
HL

IN
E

(3) NS

(1)WP

(1)RMP

(2)PRO

(3)NS

(1)SWG

(1) RMP

(3)WP

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN

(1) WP

c Copyright 2022, McGILL SMITH PUNSHON, Inc.

Architecture
Engineering
Landscape Architecture
Planning
Surveying

3700 Park 42 Drive
Suite 190B

Cincinnati OH 45241
Phone 513.759.0004

www.mspdesign.com

M c G i l l  S m i t h  P u n s h o n
D E S I G N

Drawn By
DWG

Issue/Revision No. Date

Sheet Title

Project Number
Drawing Scale

Project Manager

File Number

Sheet Number

X-Ref(s)

Utilities Protection
OHIO

SERVICE
Call Before You Dig

1-800-362-2764
CALL TWO WORKING DAYS BEFORE YOU DIG
(NON MEMBERS MUST BE CALLED DIRECTLY)

S C A L E      I N      F E E T

40 80 120200

PLANTING PLAN EAST

1" = 40'

20632006-PLA

20632.00

20632

RA
NAK

20632003-BAS-00

L2

EVERGREEN TREES QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE
NS 6 Picea abies Norway Spruce 6`-7` Ht
WP 5 Pinus strobus White Pine 6`-7` Ht

ORNAMENTAL TREES QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE
PRO 2 Malus x 'Prairie Fire' Prairie Fire Crabapple 2" CAL., B&B

SHADE TREE QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE
RMP 2 Acer rubrum Red Maple 2" CAL., B&B
SWG 1 Liquidambar styraciflua Sweet Gum 2" CAL., B&B

PLANT SCHEDULE EAST AREA

GENERAL NOTES
1. SEE SHEET L3 FOR PLANTING NOTES AND DETAILS
2. REFER TO CIVIL ENGINEERS PLANS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

LEGEND

SHADE TREES

ORNAMENTAL AND EVERGREEN TREES 

4' WALK

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY
EASEMENT

4' WALK

4' WALK

B&B
B&B

ISSUED 03/03/22

PLANTING PLAN EAST
SCALE: 1"=40'-0"L-2

1

AD
DI

N
G

TO
N

CI
TY

 O
F 

HU
BE

R 
HE

IG
HT

S
SI

TU
AT

E 
IN

 S
EC

TI
O

N
 1

6,
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
 2

, R
AN

G
E 

8,
 M

RS
M

O
N

TG
O

M
ER

Y,
 O

HI
O

N
:\l

an
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

\2
00

00
\2

06
32

\d
w

g\
20

63
20

06
-P

LA
.d

w
g,

 L
2,

 3
/4

/2
02

2 
8:

33
:3

9 
AM

, N
ak

, D
W

G 
To

 P
D

F.
pc

3,
 1

:1



ADDINGTON

HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO
LANDSCAPE CONCEPT PLAN

PROJECT NUMBER: 20632.00  | DATE: 03-03-22

THIS DRAWING IS FOR ILLUSTRATION PURPOSES ONLY

AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE.

NEW STREET

NORTH

MONUMENT 

IDENTIFICATION 

SIGN

BUFFER 

PLANTING

BUFFER 

PLANTING

ERERER 

NG

BUFFER 

PLANTING

VEGETATION MOUNDING

HEIGHT 6 FT

G

T

B
EL

LE
FO

N
TA

IN
E 

R
O

A
D

VEGETATION MOUNDING

HEIGHT 6 FT

G

T

R.O.W 6’ HEIGHT LANDSCAPED BERM
15’ UTILITY

EASEMENT

4’ SIDEWALK

BELLEFONTAINE ROAD

BUFFER MOUNDING SECTION

PRIVATE PROPERTY

PL

1

2

3

4

5

6



MONUMENT 

IDENTIFICATION SIGN

6
’ 

+
/-

R.O.W

15’ UTILITY 

EASEMENT

SECTION CUT LINE

PRIVATE 

PROPERTY

P/L



                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Administrative  Office:  7008 Brandt  Pike  Huber  Heights ,  Ohio   45424
Telephone:   (937)  233 - 1564      Fax Number:  (937)  233 - 4520

Huber Heights Fire Division
         

Inspections require two business days advance notice! (OAC)1301:7-7-09(A)(5)

Occupancy Name: Addington Place – Revision 1
Occupancy Address: Bellefontaine Road

Type of Permit: HHP&D Site Plan
Additional Permits: Choose an item.

Additional Permits: Choose an item.

MCBR BLD: Not Yet Assigned HH P&D:
MCBR MEC: Not Yet Assigned HHFD  Plan: 21-262/22-050
MCBR ELE: Not Yet Assigned HHFD Box:
REVIEWER: Susong DATE: 3/22/2022

Fire Department Comments:
The Huber Heights City Code Part 15 Refers to Fire Code Requirements and has adopted by reference OFC and IFC Appendices

Approved per Review of Ohio Fire Code and adopted Life Safety Standards based 
on the following:

 One- or two-family residential projects having more than 30 dwelling units 
shall be equipped with two separate and approved fire apparatus access 
roads in accordance with Ohio Fire Code D106.1. A secondary access is 
shown connecting Bellefontaine Road and new road. This access shall 
comply with the following:

o Be a minimum 20 feet wide (Ohio Fire Code 503.2.1) Drawing shows a 
dimension of 12 feet, minimum width must be 20 feet.

o Constructed of materials capable of handling 75,000 pounds (Ohio 
Fire Code D102.1.) Material has not been provided.

 The turning radius for fire department access roads shall meet requirements 
for Huber Heights Fire Division (HHFD) vehicles. Contact HHFD to obtain 
information.  Ohio Fire Code 503.2.4 and Appendix D103.3.

 Dead end fire department access roads in excess of 150 feet shall be 
provided with width and turnaround provisions that comply with Ohio Fire 
Code Appendix D103.4. Current cul de sac measurements do not appear to 
meet this requirement. Nor Parking signage that complies with Ohio Fire 
Code Appendix D103.6 shall be provided.

 Site utility plan showing fire hydrants has not been provided. Provided.



Plans reviewed by the Huber Heights Fire Division are reviewed with the intent they comply in ALL respects to this code, as prescribed in SECTION (D) 
104.1 of the 2017 Ohio Fire Code. Any omissions or errors on the plans or in this review do not relieve the applicant of complying with ALL applicable 
requirements of this code. These plans have been reviewed for compliance with the Ohio Fire Code adopted by this jurisdiction. There may be other 
regulations applicable under local, state, or federal statues and codes, which this department has no authority to enforce and therefore have not been 
evaluated as part of this plan review.

 Hydrants in single-family residential districts shall be placed not more than 
500 feet apart, measured on the main, and no more than 400 feet from any 
opening in any building. Review Huber Heights Codified Ordinance 
1521.06(b) for additional requirements. Spacing appears to meet 
requirements.

 All new water mains and any existing water mains that are replaced shall 
be eight inches in diameter or greater in all one-, two- and three-family 
dwelling areas and in multi-family areas or commercial areas. All water
mains shall be sectionalized and looped when reasonably feasible and 
achievable. Dead end water mains shall only be permitted upon written 
approval from the Fire Official and City Engineer. Huber Heights Codified 
Ordinance 1519.01 - Water mains. Drawing indicates an 8-inch water main 
that is looped.

 The minimum fire-flow and flow duration requirements for one- and two-
family dwellings shall comply with Ohio Fire Code B105.1. Documentation 
shall be provided. Flow calculations have not been provided.



Memorandum 
Staff Report for Meeting of March 29, 2022 

 
To:                 Huber Heights City Planning Commission 
 
From:             Aaron K. Sorrell, Interim City Planner 
  Community Planning Insights 
 
Date:              March 22, 2022 
 
Subject:         BDP 22-11 Rezoning, Combined Basic & Detailed Development Plan 
 Addington Subdivision 
 

Application dated March 4, 2022 
 
Department of Planning and Zoning                          City of Huber Heights 
 

APPLICANT/OWNER: Cambell Berling Huber Heights, LLC – Applicant 
 Richard and Marilyn Storck - Owner 

  
DEVELOPMENT NAME:  Addington 
 
ADDRESS/LOCATION: Bellefontaine Road (P70 03908 0126) 
 
ZONING/ACREAGE: A – Agricultural / 22.96 Acres 
 
EXISTING LAND USE:  Vacant / Agricultural 
 
ZONING 
ADJACENT LAND:   PR – West; A – North; A – East; R-1 - South 
 
REQUEST:                                    The applicant requests approval of a rezoning to 

Planned Residential (PR) and approval of a combined 
basic and detailed development plan to construct 97 
units on 22.38 acres. 

 
ORIGINAL APPROVAL:               N/A 
 
APPLICABLE HHCC:     Chapter 1171, 1172 
 
CORRESPONDENCE:                In Favor –  
                                             In Opposition –  
 
 
 



 
STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Overview: 
This case was originally ZC 21-47, which contemplated 132 units (66 2-family 
townhomes) on approximately 23 acres.  The applicant withdrew the application and is 
now submitting approval for 97 units, comprised of 29 single-family lots and 34 two-
family townhomes.  The average density is approximately 4.33/units per acre.    
 
Applicable Zoning Regulations 
The appliable zoning chapters include: 1171 General Provisions, 1172 Planned 
Residential District, 1181 General Provisions. The relevant sections are cited and 
discussed below:  
 
Chapter 1171 General Provisions 

1171.01 Purpose. 

Planned Unit Developments Districts may be permitted as amendments to the zoning map, after 
application and approval of specific and detailed plans, where tracts suitable in location and character 
for the uses and structures proposed are to be planned and developed as units. The provisions of this 
chapter are adopted to unify planning and development in such districts. Applications for rezoning of 
land into a Planned Unit Development District shall be granted only when the basic development plan for 
the project is such that the public health, safety and morals shall not be jeopardized by a departure from 
the restrictions on corresponding uses in the standard zoning district. PUD rezonings may be approved 
only when a basic development plan for the area has been approved by Council. A detailed development 
plan shall then be approved for zoning permit to be approved for development in the District. Normally 
the detailed development plan shall be approved by the Planning Commission after the rezoning and 
basic development plan have been approved by Council. Owners shall have the option however, of 
submitting a combined basic and detailed development plan ("combined development plan") if they 
should so desire for some or all of the site.  

(Ord. 93-O-602, Passed 3-22-93) 

1171.05 Contents of basic development plan. 

(a) The basic development plan shall consist of at least the following information together with such 
other data and materials as may be required by the City:  

(1) Site plan showing the actual shape and dimensions of the lot to be built upon or to be changed 
in its use together with the location of the existing and proposed structures with approximate 
square footages, number of stories including heights of structures;  

(2) Typical elevation views of the front and side of each type of building;  

(3) Planning location and dimensions of all proposed drives, service access road, sidewalks and 
curb openings;  

(4) Parking lot areas (show dimensions of a typical parking space), unloading areas, fire lanes and 
handicapped parking;  

(5) Landscaping plan, walls and fences;  



(6) Storm water detention and surface drainage;  

(7) Exterior lighting plan;  

(8) Vehicular circulation pattern;  

(9) Location and square footage of signs;  

(10) Topographic survey; and  

(11) Listing of proposed uses taken from the list of permitted and special uses of the PUD zoning 
district to which rezoning is being sought.  

(b) The Planning Commission shall schedule both the proposed rezoning and the issue of approval of 
the basic development plan for a combined public hearing, following which it shall make its 
recommendation indicating approval, approval with modification or disapproval.  

(Ord. 2006-O-1655, Passed 9-25-05) 

1171.06 General standards for approval. 

The Planning Commission shall review the application, prepared development plan and the facts 
presented at the hearing. The applicant shall have the burden of proof. No approval shall be given unless 
the Commission shall find by a preponderance of the evidence that such PUD on the proposed locations:  

(a) Is consistent with official thoroughfare plan, comprehensive development plan and other 
applicable plans and policies;  

(b) Could be substantially completed within the period of time specified in the schedule of 
development submitted by the developer;  

(c) Is accessible from public roads that are adequate to carry the traffic that shall be imposed 
upon them by the proposed development. Further, the streets and driveways on the site of 
the proposed development shall be adequate to serve the residents or occupants of the 
proposed development;  

(d) Shall not impose an undue burden on public services such as utilities, fire and police 
protection, and schools;  

(e) Contains such proposed covenants, easements and other provisions relating to the proposed 
development standards as may reasonably be required for the public health, safety and 
welfare;  

(f) Shall be landscaped or otherwise improved and the location and arrangement of structures, 
parking areas, walks, lighting and appurtenant facilities shall be compatible with the existing 
intended uses, and any part of a PUD not used for structures, parking and loading areas, or 
accessways;  

(g) Shall preserve natural features such as water courses, trees and rock outcrops, to the degree 
possible, so that they can enhance the overall design of the PUD;  

(h) Is designed to take advantage of the existing land contours in order to provide satisfactory 
road gradients and suitable building lots and to facilitate the provision of proposed services;  

(i) Shall place underground all electric and telephone facilities, streetlight wiring and other 
wiring conduits and similar facilities in any development which is primarily designed for or 
occupied by dwellings, unless waived by the Commission because of technical reasons;  



(j) Shall not create excessive additional requirements at public cost of public facilities and 
services and shall not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community;  

(k) Shall not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment and conditions of operation 
that shall be detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare by reason of 
excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors; and  

(l) Rezoning of the land to the PUD District and approval of the development plan shall not 
adversely affect the public peace, health, morals, safety or welfare.  

(Ord. 93-O-602, Passed 3-22-93) 

1171.09 Detailed development plan. 

The detailed development plan shall conform substantially to the basic development plan. If desired by 
the developer, it may be submitted in stages with each stage reflecting a portion of the approved basic 
plan which is proposed to be recorded and developed; provided however, that such portion conforms to 
all requirements of this chapter and other applicable ordinances. The requirement procedure for 
approval of a detailed development plan shall be:  

(a) The detailed plan and supporting data shall be filed with the City. The Planning 
Commission shall determine that such plan is in conformity with these regulations and in 
agreement with the approved basic plan.  

(b) After review of the detailed plan and supporting data, the Commission shall approve or 
disapprove the plan submitted by the developer. Disapproval of the detailed plan shall be 
based on its failure to comply with the basic development plan and current applicable codes, 
standards and regulations.  

(Ord. 89-O-339, Passed 2-6-89) 

1171.091 Planning commission/council review. 

It is the purpose of the Planning Development regulations to encourage property owners to develop 
their land in efficient and effective ways. It is the intent of these regulations to encourage land uses 
which may not always meet traditional zoning rules. Inherent in these Planned Development regulations 
is an opportunity for property owners to develop their sites without requiring strict compliance with all 
zoning regulations where the overall plan is deemed to be in the best interest of the City. During review 
of a Basic or Detailed Development Plan by the Planning Commission or City Council, all requirements 
within Part 11, Title 7 of the Code are to be used as guidelines and may be varied as part of the Basic or 
Detailed Development Plan if it is determined that such deviation will not materially adversely affect 
neighboring properties or the community as a whole, any such variation of these requirements does not 
change the overall plan and character of the proposed development, and the variance does not have the 
effect of nullifying the intent and purpose of these regulations or the Zoning Ordinance. In granting 
variances or modifications, the Commission or Council may require such conditions as shall, in its 
judgement, secure substantially the objective of the standards or requirements so varied or modified.  

(Case 427; Ord. 2002-O-1367, Passed 9-9-02) 

 
 
 



 
Development Standards Analysis: 

1172.03 Development standards (Planned Residential) 

Except when specifically modified herein, the provisions of Chapter 1181, "General Provisions", 
shall govern. In addition, the following development standards apply:  

(a) Minimum "PR" Land Area Requirement. 

(1) A minimum of one acre shall be required.  

(b) Dwelling Unit Density—Five Dwelling Units. 

(1) The average dwelling unit density for the entire district shall not exceed five dwelling 
units (DU) per acre.  

(2) Minimum area standards such as individual lot size, frontage, setbacks, side and rear 
yards shall be those prescribed in the City approved detailed final development plans, 
except that:  
A. Lots for detached single family dwellings shall meet each of the standards set 

forth in Section 1147.04.  
 

The proposed development contains 97 dwelling units on approximately 23 acres, which 
yields an average density of 4.33 dwelling units per acre, which is consistent with the 
surrounding neighborhood character.  

Section 1147.04 has the following standards: 

All lots shall have an area, frontage and yard requirements as follows:  

   *Front  Side Yard Widths  Rear  

 Lot (square 
feet)  

Lot Frontage 
(feet)  

Yard Depth 
(feet)  

Least Width 
(feet)  

Sum of Least 
Width (feet)  

Yard Depth 
(feet)  

Dwellings  7,500  60  25  8  20  40  

 

The applicant proposes the following: 

   *Front  Side Yard Widths  Rear  

 Lot (square 
feet)  

Lot Frontage 
(feet)  

Yard Depth 
(feet)  

Least Width 
(feet)  

Sum of Least 
Width (feet)  

Yard Depth 
(feet)  

1-family 60’ 
(29 lots) 

7,200 60  25  6  12  20  

2-family 64’ 
(19 lots) 

5,760 64 25 7.5 14 20 

2-family 72’ 
(15 lots) 

7,920 72 25 7.5 14 20 

 

The proposed one-family lots are slightly smaller and 20-feet shallower than what is 
prescribed by the code.  The 64-foot-wide lots are significantly smaller in square footage 
than prescribed by the code, however this does provide a housing product for those 



households who do not want or need a larger yard.  Overall, the average lot size in this 
development is 6,937 square feet.  In staff’s professional opinion the slightly smaller and 
shallower lots will have a negligible impact on surrounding properties and the character 
of the area.   

1172.04 Parking and loading. 

(a) The provisions of Chapter 1185, "Parking and Loading", shall apply, except that at least two 
permanently maintained parking spaces shall be provided for each family unit, except for 
detached single family dwellings.  

(b) Required parking spaces shall not be part of public thoroughfares, private roads leading to 
and serving the sites of the various uses in this district.  

(Ord. 89-O-339, Passed 2-6-89) 

Each unit, both detached and attached, will contain a two-car garage, along with 
driveway space for parking.  The proposal complies with this standard.  
 

1172.05 Utilities. 

The distribution systems for utilities are required to be underground.  

(Ord. 89-O-339, Passed 2-6-89) 

All utilities will be placed below ground.  

 

1181 General Provisions 

1181.20 Building materials for dwellings. 

(a) One-Story Dwellings. All exterior walls of one-story dwellings shall be constructed of brick or other approved 
masonry type of material.  

(b) Dwellings Over One Story. All first-floor exterior walls of dwellings over one story shall be constructed of 
brick or other approved masonry type of materials. Other exterior wall areas of dwellings over one story may 
be constructed of other code approved building materials; provided, however, no vinyl siding shall be 
permitted, unless permitted under subsection (c) hereof.  

(c) Exceptions. The requirement for certain exterior walls of dwellings to be constructed of brick or other 
approved masonry type of material shall not apply to:  

(1) Exterior wall areas of the dwelling where federal, state and/or local building codes prohibit the use of 
brick or other masonry materials such as gas fireplace inserts, cantilevers, gables, overhangs, 
downspouts and gutters, kitchen and other bays and other type of protrusion for which it is not 
reasonably practical to use the material stated above.  

(2) Room additions, remodeling, or reconstruction, to or of, dwellings that do not comply with subsections 
(a) and (b) above when such dwellings were constructed prior to enactment of this Ordinance. Material 
that is used for additions or remodeling must be similar to the existing structure and maintain the 
integral look of the dwelling.  



(3) Any dwelling constructed on a lot in a subdivision whose preliminary plat was approved prior to 
February 1, 2007 but received final plat approval after February 1, 2007. Provided, however, all such 
dwellings shall have front facades with a minimum 50 percent brick or other approved masonry type of 
material.  

(d) Definitions. For purposes of this section, the following terms shall have the following definitions:  

(1) "Dwelling" means any building or portion thereof occupied or intended to be occupied exclusively for 
residential purposes, but not including a tent, cabin, trailer or trailer coach or other temporary or 
transient structure or facility.  

(2) "First floor" means the highest point at the finish grade of the proposed ground surface.  

(3) "Other approved masonry type of material" means masonry material approved in advance by the 
Planning Commission so as to be harmonious and appropriate in appearance with the existing or 
intended character of the general vicinity so that such use will not change the essential character of the 
same area.  

(4) "Front Façade" means the side of the building facing the lot front as defined by Section 1123.69 (Lot, 
Front).  

(Ord. 2011-O-1925, Passed 11-28-11) 

The applicant has submitted proposed elevations that that are consistent with this 
requirement.   
 
Additional Considerations 
 
While landscaping and screening is not required in the Planned Residential District, the 
applicant is proposing significant buffering and screening along Bellefontaine Road, and 
along the interior gas transmission easement.  
 
Staff Analysis of Standards for approval 

The Planning Commission shall review the application, prepared development plan and the facts 
presented at the hearing. The applicant shall have the burden of proof. No approval shall be 
given unless the Commission shall find by a preponderance of the evidence that such PUD on the 
proposed locations:  

(a) Is consistent with official thoroughfare plan, comprehensive development plan and other 
applicable plans and policies;  

The comprehensive plan indicates this area should be single-family with a maximum 
density of six (6) units per acre.  The proposed development contains 29 single-family 
homes and 35 duplex townhomes.  The overall density of the development is 4.33 units 
per acre, consistent with the comprehensive plan.   

(b) Could be substantially completed within the period of time specified in the schedule of 
development submitted by the developer;  

While no phasing plan was submitted with the application, this is a relatively small 
subdivision for Huber Heights. 

(c) Is accessible from public roads that are adequate to carry the traffic that shall be imposed 
upon them by the proposed development. Further, the streets and driveways on the site of 



the proposed development shall be adequate to serve the residents or occupants of the 
proposed development;  

The public roads are adequate for this development.  Bellefontaine Road is classified as 
a Major Collector in the City Thoroughfare Plan.  

(d) Shall not impose an undue burden on public services such as utilities, fire and police 
protection, and schools;  

The site is served by adequate utilities.  

(e) Contains such proposed covenants, easements and other provisions relating to the 
proposed development standards as may reasonably be required for the public health, 
safety and welfare;  

Draft covenants were not included in the application, however the standards set by the 
Planning Commission will be incorporated into the covenants before any zoning permit 
is issued.  

(f) Shall be landscaped or otherwise improved and the location and arrangement of structures, 
parking areas, walks, lighting and appurtenant facilities shall be compatible with the 
existing intended uses, and any part of a PUD not used for structures, parking and loading 
areas, or accessways;  

The applicant is proposing significant landscaping and screening beyond the code 
requirements along Bellefontaine Road. Additional tree plantings are proposed 
throughout the development in the common areas.  

(g) Shall preserve natural features such as water courses, trees and rock outcrops, to the 
degree possible, so that they can enhance the overall design of the PUD;  

This site is currently used for agriculture and no natural features exist.  

(h) Is designed to take advantage of the existing land contours in order to provide satisfactory 
road gradients and suitable building lots and to facilitate the provision of proposed 
services;  

The site plan takes advantage of the natural grade and existing contours to limit grading 
and arrange the building sites in an efficient manner.  A gas pipeline easement and the 
site width significantly constrain design options.  

(i) Shall place underground all electric and telephone facilities, streetlight wiring and other 
wiring conduits and similar facilities in any development which is primarily designed for or 
occupied by dwellings, unless waived by the Commission because of technical reasons;  

All utilities will be placed below ground.  

(j) Shall not create excessive additional requirements at public cost of public facilities and 
services and shall not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community.  

This residential development should not create excessive additional requirements to the 
community.  



(k) Shall not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment and conditions of 
operation that shall be detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare by 
reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors; and  

Only residential uses are contemplated for this site.  

(l) Rezoning of the land to the PUD District and approval of the development plan shall not 

adversely affect the public peace, health, morals, safety or welfare. 

The rezoning from Agricultural to Planned Residential is consistent with previous 
residential developments in this area.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
It is the staff’s opinion the proposal meets the standards outlined in Section 1171.06 and 
the intent of 1171.09.  Staff recommends approval of the rezoning to Planned Residential 
and the combined Basic and Detailed Development Plan to construct 97 homes. Staff 
recommends approval with the following conditions: 

1) The dwellings shall meet the material requirements of Section 1181.20 Building 
Materials for Dwellings; 

2) The applicant will comply with all stormwater requirements, per the City Engineer; 
3) The applicant will comply will all Fire Code requirements, per the Huber Heights 

Fire Department. 
 

 
Planning Commission Action 
 
Planning Commission may take the following actions with a motion:  
 

1) Approve the rezoning and Combined Basic and Detailed Development Plan; 

2) Deny the Combined Basic and Detailed Development Plan (the Commission 
should state the specific reasons for denial); or  

3) Table the application. 

 



CBDP 22-11 

 1 

 

 
 

Planning Commission Decision Record  
 

 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2022, the applicant, Campbell Berling, requested approval 
of a Rezoning to Planned Residential (PR) and a Combined Basic and Detailed 
Development Plan for 22.38 acres for property located on the East side of 
Bellefontaine Road and South of Chambersburg Road, further identified as Parcel 
Number P70 03908 0126 of the Montgomery County, Ohio Recorder’s Office 
(Zoning Case CBDP 22-11), and; 
 
WHEREAS, on March 29, 2022, the Planning Commission did meet and fully 
discuss the details of the request. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission hereby 
recommended approval of the request. 
 

Ms. Thomas moved to recommend approval of the application by Campbell Berling, 
for  a Rezoning and a Combined Basic and Detailed Development Plan for property 
located on the East side of Bellefontaine Road and South of Chambersburg Road, 
further identified as Parcel Number P70 03908 0126 of the Montgomery County, 
Ohio Recorder’s Office (Zoning Case CBDP 22-11), in accordance with the 
recommendation of Staff’s Memorandum dated March 22, 2022 with the following 
conditions:                              

 
1. Single-story dwellings shall meet the material requirements of Section 

1181.20 Building Materials for Dwellings; 
 

2. Multi-story dwellings shall average 50% of the surface area of the front 
façade finished with brick or stone masonry products, not including the 
garage opening; 
 

3. The applicant will comply with all stormwater requirements, per the City 
Engineer; and, 

4. The applicant will comply will all Fire Code requirements, per the Huber 
Heights Fire Department. 



CBDP 22-11 

 2 

 
Seconded by Mr. Jeffries. Roll call showed: YEAS:  Ms. Opp, Ms. Vargo, Mr. Jeffries, 
Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton.  NAYS:  None.  Motion to recommend approval carried 
5-0. 

 

 
 

_____________________________   _______________ 
Terry Walton, Chair      Date 
Planning Commission 



Planning Commission
March 29, 2022, Meeting

City of Huber Heights

I. Chair Terry Walton called the meeting to order at approximately 6:00 p.m.

II. Present at the meeting:  Mr. Jeffries, Ms. Opp, Ms. Thomas, Ms. Vargo and Mr. 
Walton.

Members absent: None.

Staff Present: Aaron K. Sorrell, Interim City Planner, and Geri Hoskins, Planning 
& Zoning Administrative Secretary.

III. Opening Remarks by the Chairman and Commissioners

IV. Citizens Comments

None.

V. Swearing of Witnesses

Mr. Walton explained the proceedings of tonight’s meeting and administered the 
sworn oath to all persons wishing to speak or give testimony regarding items on 
the agenda. All persons present responded in the affirmative.

VI. Pending Business

1. BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN - The applicant, AMARJIT TAKHAR, is 
requesting approval of a Basic Development Plan and Rezoning to 
(Planned Commercial) PC for 35 acres at State Route 35 for a Service 
Station (BDP 22-08).

Mr. Sorrell stated that the applicant requests approval of a basic development 
plan and rezoning to Planned Commercial District to construct a fueling center, 
convenience store, truck stop and diesel repair facility on approximately nine (9)
acres of a 35-acre parcel. The site is adjacent to the I-70 / SR 235 interchange.

This case was tabled at the March 15, 2022, to allow time to review the revised 
development plan that was submitted shortly before the meeting.  The crux of the 
revision reconfigures the western access point to allow for a future extension of 
Center Point 70 Boulevard and meet the development standards of the Planned 
Commercial District. 

The applicant is proposing two buildings, one 6,720 SF building containing a 
convenience store and restaurant, and the second 6,642 SF diesel truck repair 
facility.  Both buildings are proposed to be clad with a mix of brick and stucco 
EFIS.

Fuel will be dispensed through one five-pump island in front of the convenience 
store, and a second five-pump island located at the rear of the property for semi-



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

2

trucks and large oversized vehicles. Both fueling islands will be covered by large 
canopies.

Parking is provided throughout the site.  The revised site plan illustrates 76
parking spaces, including 10 for semi-trucks.  This is an increase from 62 
automobile parking spaces. 

The proposed uses are principally permitted in the PC district.  The revised plan
indicates a 15-foot perimeter buffer yard, which meets the standards for this 
chapter. All other standards for this Chapter are met. 

The revision meets the requirements of Chapter 1181.  The revised plans 
illustrate street trees placed every 40-feet.  No exterior lighting plan was 
submitted at this time, but will be submitted at the time of detailed development 
review.  Unless otherwise directed by the Planning Commission, parking light 
fixtures shall not exceed 25 feet in height.

The Basic Development Plan indicates potential locations for landscape islands 
and trees within the parking areas.  Additional detail shall be provided during the 
detailed development plan phase. 

The revised proposal meets the requirements of Chapter 1185.  The applicant is 
illustrating parking island landscaping. The maximum required number of parking 
spaces required is approximately 67 total spaces.  The revised plan indicates 70
proposed spaces.  The number of required parking spaces is likely to decrease 
once the final area of the convenience store (less storage) and restaurant are 
determined. 

The proposal meets the requirements of this chapter which limits the number of 
semi parking spaces to no more than ten spaces.  The plans indicate ten spaces 
that are correctly dimensioned. 

Other Considerations:

Staff has asked the applicant to redesign the site to allow a future extension of 
Center Point 70 by moving the gas pumps and store further south and/or 
changing their alignment.  The applicant has adjusted the site plan by 
reconfiguring the parking and circulation plan.  The revised configuration will 
likely improve vehicle stacking at the intersection along the proposed roadway, 
rather than internally as was originally illustrated.

Additional Comments:

Fire:  See Attached.  The applicant will comply will all fire code requirements.

City Engineer:

Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning from I-1 to Planned Commercial and 
approval of the revised basic development plan with the following conditions:



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

3

 Applicant shall comply will all fire code requirements.

Action

Ms. Thomas moved to approve the request by the applicant Amarjit Takhar, for 
approval of a Basic Development Plan and Rezoning to Planned Commercial 
(PC) on approximately nine (9) acres of a 35-acre parcel at property located on 
the East side of intersection of State Route 235 and Center Point 70 Blvd, Parcel 
Numbers P70-03903-0079 and P70-03903-0005 of the Montgomery County Ohio 
Records (ZC BDP 22-08) and accordance with the recommendation of staff’s 
memorandum dated March 22, 2022 and the Planning Commission’s Decision 
Record attached thereto.

Seconded by Ms. Opp. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo, Mr. Jeffries, Ms. 
Opp, Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: None. Motion to approve carried 5-0.

Move to City Council

VII. New Business

1. COMBINED BASIC AND DETAILED DEVELOPMENT PLAN - The applicant, 
CAMPBELL BERLING HUBER HEIGHTS, LLC, is requesting approval of a 
Rezoning to Planned Residential (PR) and a Combined Basic and Detailed 
Development Plan for property located on the East side of Bellefontaine 
Road and South of Chambersburg Road (ZC CBDP 22-11).

Mr. Sorrell stated that This case was originally ZC 21-47, which contemplated 
132 units (66 2-family townhomes) on approximately 23 acres.  The applicant 
withdrew the application and is now submitting approval for 97 units, comprised 
of 29 single-family lots and 34 two-family townhomes.  The average density is 
approximately 4.33/units per acre. 

The proposed one-family lots are slightly smaller and 20-feet shallower than what 
is prescribed by the code.  The 64-foot-wide lots are significantly smaller in 
square footage than prescribed by the code, however this does provide a 
housing product for those households who do not want or need a larger yard.  
Overall, the average lot size in this development is 6,937 square feet.  In staff’s 
professional opinion the slightly smaller and shallower lots will have a negligible 
impact on surrounding properties and the character of the area.  

Each unit, both detached and attached, will contain a two-car garage, along with 
driveway space for parking.  The proposal complies with this standard.

All utilities will be placed below ground. 

The applicant has submitted proposed elevations that that are consistent with 
this requirement. 

While landscaping and screening is not required in the Planned Residential 
District, the applicant is proposing significant buffering and screening along 
Bellefontaine Road, and along the interior gas transmission easement. 



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

4

The comprehensive plan indicates this area should be single-family with a 
maximum density of six (6) units per acre.  The proposed development contains 
29 single-family homes and 35 duplex townhomes.  The overall density of the 
development is 4.33 units per acre, consistent with the comprehensive plan.

While no phasing plan was submitted with the application, this is a relatively 
small subdivision for Huber Heights.

The public roads are adequate for this development.  Bellefontaine Road is 
classified as a Major Collector in the City Thoroughfare Plan

The site is served by adequate utilities. 

The applicant is proposing significant landscaping and screening beyond the 
code requirements along Bellefontaine Road. Additional tree plantings are 
proposed throughout the development in the common areas.

It is the staff’s opinion the proposal meets the standards outlined in Section 
1171.06 and the intent of 1171.09.  Staff recommends approval of the rezoning 
to Planned Residential and the combined Basic and Detailed Development Plan 
to construct 97 homes. Staff recommends approval with the following conditions:

1) The dwellings shall meet the material requirements of Section 1181.20 Building
Materials for Dwellings;

2) The applicant will comply with all stormwater requirements, per the City 
Engineer;

3) The applicant will comply will all Fire Code requirements, per the Huber Heights 
Fire Department.

Bob Krohngold was present.  
Cindy Smith and Tracy Harman

Discussion on the Fire Assessment and percentage of masonry

Action

Ms. Thomas moved to approve the request by the applicant Campbell Berling for 
approval of a Rezoning to Planned Residential (PR) and a Combined Basic and 
Detailed Development Plan for property located on the East side of Bellefontaine 
Road and South of Chambersburg Road, Parcel Number P70 03908 0126 of the 
Montgomery County, Ohio Recorder’s Office (ZC CBDP 22-11) in accordance 
with the recommendation of Staff’s Memorandum dated March 22, 2022, and the 
Planning Commission Decision Record attached thereto.

Seconded by Mr. Jeffries. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Opp, Mr. Jeffries, Ms. 
Thomas, Ms. Vargo, and Mr. Walton.  NAYS: None.  Motion to approve carried
5-0.

Move to City Council



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

5

2. REZONING AND BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN - The applicant, HORIZON 
LINE DEVELOPMENT, is requesting approval of a Rezoning and Basic
Development Plan to PM (Planned Mixed) for 197 unit Residential Town-
Home Apartment Community, located at 7125 Executive Boulevard (ZC 
BDP 22-12).

Mr. Sorrell stated that the applicant is requesting approval for a rezoning of 
approximately 43 acres from Planned Employment Park to Planned Mixed Use, 
to facilitate the construction of 197 residential townhome apartments and five 
commercial out lots.

The applicant has proposed development and use standards that are generally 
consistent with the applicable zoning regulations.  Staff would like to see the 
following revisions:

 Residential garage openings shall be set back at least 20-feet from the back of 
the sidewalk. (It appears this is the case in most instances; however, the 
drawings are not dimensioned and to the greatest extent possible staff desire to 
limit the overhang of vehicles into the sidewalk pathways).

 The following proposed permitted non-residential uses should be eliminated from 
permitted use list:

o Filling stations
o Sweepstakes cafes
o Convenience store
o Self-Storage – Indoor Climate Controlled
o Car Wash

The area contains a mixture of residential, commercial and office uses.

This site is located along a well-traveled thoroughfare, surrounded by residential 
uses to the north and west, commercial uses to the south, and Carriage Hill 
MetroPark to the east. The vast majority of the proposed land uses are 
residential and are located adjacent to other residential uses.  The proposed 
commercial out lots, which will likely have more intensive uses, are appropriated 
located to front Executive Boulevard. 

Commodity crop production is the current use of the site, and few natural 
features exist. There is a small drainage stream that bisects the site near the 
southwest corner, which crosses under Executive Boulevard and ultimately into 
Drylick Run Creek.  The proposed development plan appears to limit the impact 
on the drainage stream.  

In general, the site slopes west to east.  Two onsite and one offsite stormwater 
basins will provide for stormwater management. The stormwater basins are 
designed to be wet basins, which will provide an attractive landscape amenity. 

This development will have two entrances from Executive Boulevard that are 
aligned and spaced in a manner where little traffic conflict points should exist.
Interior sidewalks and walking trails are proposed for pedestrian circulation. As 
the commercial spaces are developed sidewalks along the north side of 
Executive Boulevard should be constructed to provide pedestrian connections to 
the amenities near and along Executive Boulevard.



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

6

Parking for the residential units is provided by what appears to be a mixture of 
one-and two-car garages, along with driveway space.  The applicant is providing 
at least two spaces per unit for the residential development, including the 
driveway space. As previously stated, the setback from the garage face to the 
back of sidewalk for the residential units should be a minimum 20-feet.  

The proposal provides interior sidewalks and walking paths. Additional sidewalks 
should be constructed as the commercial lots are developed along Executive 
Boulevard to provide pedestrian access to the surrounding amenities. 

A sign package was not submitted with the application; however, two monument 
signs are indicated on the landscaping plan. Signs shall comply with Chapter 
1189.

The residential buildings are set back 15-feet from each residential building.  
While the commercial out lots illustrate generic building footprints, plenty of land 
area exists to meet these setback requirements. 

The residential buildings are approximately 20-feet tall.

The plans and renderings indicate a mixture of decorative light poles and wall 
sconce lighting throughout the residential development.  A lighting plan will be 
required at the detailed development plan phase. 

The site plan indicates the trash receptacles will be fully enclosed where 
provided.

The architecture of the commercial structures is not indicated in the application, 
but will be reviewed at the time of the detailed development plan submission for 
each out building.

All utilities will be placed underground.

The residential open space will be owned by the apartment development owner. 

The applicant proposes to retain the existing trees along the north property line 
as a buffer, and the closest structure is approximately 80-feet from the property 
line.  Staff does not feel a 6-foot-high landscaping mound is warranted and would 
require the removal of existing trees. 

Along the west property line, the screening will be a mixture of evergreen and 
ornamental trees. No mounding or fencing is proposed or required. 

The commercial out lots will be reviewed at the detailed development plan phase;
however, the covenants indicate the commercial developments will comply with 
Chapter 1185. 

Street trees are indicated throughout the development. Street trees will be 
required along Executive Boulevard as those sites are developed.  



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

7

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommend approval of the rezoning and Basic Development Plan to 
construct 197 residential units and five commercial out lots.  Staff recommend
the following conditions for approval:

1) The setback for the residential units shall be a minimum of 20-feet between the 
garage face and the back of the sidewalk.

2) The permitted uses shall exclude those recommended by staff.
3) The water mains and sanitary sewers shall be built to city standards and in 

easements.
4) The applicant shall submit a sign package consistent with Section 1189.
5) The applicant will comply will all Fire Code requirements, per the Huber Heights 

Fire Department.

Eric Allen
Kevin Brolema
Steve Massingill

Discussion on the entertainment area, traffic, widening Executive, adding turn 
lane.

Action

Ms. Vargo moved to approve the request by the applicant Horizon Line 
Development, for approval of a Rezoning and Basic Development Plan to 
Planned Mixed (PM) for 35 acres at 7125 Executive Boulevard, Parcel Number 
P70 03910 0005 of the Montgomery County Ohio Records (ZC BDP 22-12)
in accordance with the recommendation of Staff’s Memorandum dated March 29, 
2022, and the Planning Commission Decision Record attached thereto.

Seconded by Ms. Opp. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Opp, Ms. Vargo, Ms. 
Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: Mr. Jeffries. Motion to approve carried 4-1.

Move to City Council

VIII.     Additional Business

None.

IX. Approval of the Minutes

Without objection, the minutes of the March 15, 2022, Planning Commission 
meeting are approved.

X. Reports and Calendar Review

Rezoning and Basic Detailed Development Plan, Medical Facility
Major change and Detailed Development Plan, Commercial Lot
Major Change and Detailed Development Plan, Discount Tire



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

8

XI. Upcoming Meetings

March 29, 2022
April 12, 2022

XII. Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting
was adjourned at approximately 8:33 p.m.

__________________________________ _____________________________
Terry Walton, Chair Date

__________________________________ _____________________________
Geri Hoskins, Administrative Secretary Date































CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-O-

TO APPROVE A COMBINED BASIC AND DETAILED DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND 
REZONING TO PLANNED RESIDENTIAL (PR) FOR 22.968 ACRES FOR THE PROPERTY 
LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF BELLEFONTAINE ROAD AND SOUTH OF 
CHAMBERSBURG ROAD AND FURTHER IDENTIFIED AS PARCEL NUMBER P70-03908-
0126 ON THE MONTGOMERY COUNTY AUDITOR’S MAP AND ACCEPTING THE 
RECOMMENDATION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION (ZONING CASE CBDP 22-11).

WHEREAS, the citizens of Huber Heights require the efficient and orderly planning of land uses 
within the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Planning Commission has reviewed Zoning Case CBDP 22-11 and on March 
29, 2022, recommended approval by a vote of 5-0 of the Combined Basic and Detailed Development 
Plan and Rezoning to Planned Residential (PR); and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the issue.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The application requesting approval of a Combined Basic and Detailed Development 
Plan and Rezoning to Planned Residential (PR) (Zoning Case CBDP 22-11) is hereby approved in 
accordance with the Planning Commission’s recommendation and following conditions:

1. Single-story dwellings shall meet the material requirements of Section 1181.20 Building 
Materials for Dwellings;

2. Multi-story dwellings shall average 50 percent of the surface area of the front facade finished 
with brick or stone masonry products, not including the garage opening;

3. The applicant will comply with all stormwater requirements, per the City Engineer; and,
4. The applicant will comply will all Fire Code requirements, per the Huber Heights Fire 

Department.

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Ordinance shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the ________ day of ________, 2022;
          Yeas;           Nays.

Effective Date:  

AUTHENTICATION:

_____________________________ ______________________________
Clerk of Council Mayor

_____________________________ ______________________________
Date Date



   
AI-8361     New Business      O.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
ZC BDP 22-12 - Horizon Line Development - Rezoning/Basic Development Plan - 7125 Executive
Boulevard
Submitted By: Geri Hoskins
Department: Planning Division: Planning
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/19/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Passed to
a Second
Reading

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
An Ordinance To Approve A Basic Development Plan And Rezoning To Planned Mixed Use (PM) For
The Property Located At 7125 Executive Boulevard And Further Identified As Parcel Number
P70-03910-0005 On The Montgomery County Auditor’s Map And Accepting The Recommendation Of
The Planning Commission (Zoning Case BDP 22-12).
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
The applicant, Horizon Line Development, is requesting approval of a Basic Development Plan and a
Rezoning to Planned Mixed (PM).  

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Drawings 
Elevations 
Fire Assessment 
Staff Report 
Decision Record 
Minutes 
Ordinance 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Exhibit C 



Exhibit D 

























INDICATES DOOR TYPE - REFER TO SHEET A6.1 FOR DOOR SCHEDULE & 
DOOR/FRAME MATERIALS & ELEVATIONS

TYPICAL SECTION AND DETAIL FLAGS:

REFERS TO SECTION OR ELEVATION NUMBER

REFERS TO DRAWING SHEET NUMBER

DATUM POINT, INDICATES ELEVATION

101-1

INDICATES WINDOW TYPE, REFER TO SHEET A6.3 FOR WINDOW ELEVATIONSA

SYMBOL LEGEND

DOWNSPOUT, SEE DETAILS
DS

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

23 4 56 9

101112 13

14

1618 20

1717 6 91717

2x8

DS DSDS

2x8

DS DSDSDS

CL CL 2 3

11810111216 20

14

DS

B1 B1 B1 B1

4'-0"4'-0" 4'-0"4'-0"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

24

F1

24

15

13

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

17 1717 17
CLCL

4'-0" 4'-0"4'-0" 4'-0"

211

2 3 5 9

1011 131618

TYP.

DS DS DS DS
21 1

2359

101113 18

TYP.

DSDSDS

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

E1 E1

B1C1C1B1C1C1

10" 

12"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

2 34 56 9

1213 14 161821

2x8

DSDS

10 7

TYP.

C1C1

5" 

12"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

23 45 69

12 13 18 21

2x8

DS DS
10

TYP.

DS

3

C1C1

5" 

12"

15

0 12' 18' 24'

3/32" = 1'-0"

30'

REVISIONS

NOTE!!!
THIS DRAWING IS NOT 
FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 #
:

p
h
o
n
e

fa
x

m
p

g
-a

rc
h

it
e
c
ts

.c
o

m

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.5

7
7
0

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.8

8
1
2

3
6
6
0
 E

m
b
a
s
s
y
 P

a
rk

w
a
y

F
a
ir
la

w
n
, 
O

H
 4

4
3
3
3

-

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
S

 -
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S

 A
1,

 A
13

, B
4,

 &
 B

5

A2.01

T
H

E
 H

A
M

P
T

O
N

S
 A

T
 T

H
E

 H
E

IG
H

T
S

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 B
O

U
L
E

V
A

R
D

H
U

B
E

R
 H

E
IG

H
T

S
, 
O

H
IO

 4
5
4
2
4

1
3
2
2

D
A

T
E

: 
  
M

A
R

C
H

 2
, 
2
0
2
2

GENERAL NOTES - ELEVATIONS
1. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONED CONDITIONS IN THE FIELD. WHEN DIMENSIONS AND/OR

CONDITIONS AS INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS CONFLICT WITH ACTUAL, CONTACT
THE ARCHITECT FOR CLARIFICATION.

2. COORDINATE ALL EXTERIOR FINISH MATERIALS, STYLES, AND COLORS WITH
OWNER.

3. REFER TO STRUCTURAL DETAILS FOR TYPICAL EXPANSION AND CONTROL JOINT
CONSTRUCTION.

- FLAG NOTES - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
1 APPROXIMATE FINISHED GRADE, SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS

2 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM GUTTER; K-STYLE, TYP.   SLOPE 1/16" PER 12" MINIMUM TO
DOWNSPOUTS.

3 3x4 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM HEAVY-DUTY COMMERCIAL GRADE DOWNSPOUT.

4 TYPICAL FASCIA TRIM - ALUM CLAD 2x6 WITH ALUM DRIP EDGE, TYP UNO.

5 ARCHITECTURAL FIBERGLASS SHINGLE ROOF PER ASSEMBLY AND SPECS.

6 VINYL TRIM BAND, SIZE AS INDICATED.

7 FIBER CEMENT PANEL (PRE-ROCK AT ELECTRICAL GEAR); LOCATE JOINTS BEHIND
BRACKETS AND/OR TRIM AND FLASH ALL HORIZONTAL JOINTS IN PANEL SIDING PER
MFR.  TEXTURE TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER.  GC TO COORDINATE LOCATIONS IN
FIELD PRIOR TO ROUGH-IN.

9 CONTINUOUS RIDGE VENT TO MATCH ROOF SHINGLES, TYP.

10 WINDOW PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.  PROVIDE 4" NOMINAL TRIM AROUND ALL
FRONT AND HIGH PROFILE (HP) LOCATIONS.

11 DOOR PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.

12 DECORATIVE LIGHT FIXTURE, TYP. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.

13 PREMIUM VINYL DUTCH LAP SIDING - 5" EXPOSURE.  COORDINATE FINAL COLOR(S)
WITH OWNER.

14 VINYL BOARD ON BATTEN: 2" BATTEN AT 12" O.C., COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

15 PREMIUM VINYL SHAKE SIDING.  COORDINATE FINAL STYLE & COLOR(S) WITH
OWNER.

16 MANUFACTURED STONE VENEER, REFER TO DETAILS FOR MORE INFORMATION.
COORDINATE FINAL COLOR, SIZE, AND STYLE WITH OWNER.

17 NO OPENINGS OR PENETRATIONS WITHIN MIN. 4'-0" OF EITHER SIDE OF 2-HOUR
FIRE RATED WALL, TYP.

18 4" NOMINAL VINYL CORNER TRIM, COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

20 OVERHEAD DOOR, COLOR BY OWNER. REFER TO SCHEDULE.

21 A/C UNIT, TYP. REFER TO PLANS AND MECHANICAL DRAWINGS.

23 DECORATIVE COLUMN OVER WOOD POST/COLUMN, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

24 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF ACCENT, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

25 DECORATIVE VENT AND BRACKETS, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"1 BUILDINGS 'A1', 'A13', 'B4', & 'B5' - FRONT

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"2 BUILDINGS 'A1', 'A13', 'B4', & 'B5' - REAR

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"4 BUILDINGS 'A1', 'A13', 'B4', & 'B5' - LEFT ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"3 BUILDINGS 'A1', 'A13', 'B4', & 'B5' - RIGHT



INDICATES DOOR TYPE - REFER TO SHEET A6.1 FOR DOOR SCHEDULE & 
DOOR/FRAME MATERIALS & ELEVATIONS

TYPICAL SECTION AND DETAIL FLAGS:

REFERS TO SECTION OR ELEVATION NUMBER

REFERS TO DRAWING SHEET NUMBER

DATUM POINT, INDICATES ELEVATION

101-1

INDICATES WINDOW TYPE, REFER TO SHEET A6.3 FOR WINDOW ELEVATIONSA

SYMBOL LEGEND

DOWNSPOUT, SEE DETAILS
DS

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

23 4 56 9

101112 13

14

1618 20

1717 6 91717

2x8

DS DSDS

2x8

DS DSDSDS

CL CL 2 3

118101112 1620

B1 B1

4'-0"4'-0" 4'-0"4'-0"

10" 

12"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

1424

15

F1

13

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

21

17 17

1

2 3 5 9

1011 131618

CL

TYP.

DS DS DS DS

17 17CL

21 1

2359

101113 18

TYP.

DSDS

4'-0" 4'-0"4'-0" 4'-0"

B1

E1

C1C1C1

E1

C1 B1

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

4 6

2x8

10" 

12"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

23 45 69

12 1314 18 2116

2x8

DS DS
10

C1C1

5" 

12"

TYP.

DS

3

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

2 34 56 9

1213 14 161821

2x8

DSDS

10 7

5" 

12"

TYP.

C1C1

0 12' 18' 24'

3/32" = 1'-0"

30'

REVISIONS

NOTE!!!
THIS DRAWING IS NOT 
FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 #
:

p
h
o
n
e

fa
x

m
p

g
-a

rc
h

it
e
c
ts

.c
o

m

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.5

7
7
0

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.8

8
1
2

3
6
6
0
 E

m
b
a
s
s
y
 P

a
rk

w
a
y

F
a
ir
la

w
n
, 
O

H
 4

4
3
3
3

-

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
S

 -
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S

 A
2,

 A
6,

 A
8,

 &
 B

2

A2.02

T
H

E
 H

A
M

P
T

O
N

S
 A

T
 T

H
E

 H
E

IG
H

T
S

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 B
O

U
L
E

V
A

R
D

H
U

B
E

R
 H

E
IG

H
T

S
, 
O

H
IO

 4
5
4
2
4

1
3
2
2

D
A

T
E

: 
  
M

A
R

C
H

 2
, 
2
0
2
2

GENERAL NOTES - ELEVATIONS
1. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONED CONDITIONS IN THE FIELD. WHEN DIMENSIONS AND/OR

CONDITIONS AS INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS CONFLICT WITH ACTUAL, CONTACT
THE ARCHITECT FOR CLARIFICATION.

2. COORDINATE ALL EXTERIOR FINISH MATERIALS, STYLES, AND COLORS WITH
OWNER.

3. REFER TO STRUCTURAL DETAILS FOR TYPICAL EXPANSION AND CONTROL JOINT
CONSTRUCTION.

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"1 BUILDINGS 'A2', 'A6', 'A8', & 'B2'  - FRONT

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"2 BUILDINGS 'A2', 'A6', 'A8', & 'B2' - REAR

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"3 BUILDINGS 'A2', 'A6', 'A8', & 'B2' - RIGHTELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"4 BUILDINGS 'A2', 'A6', 'A8', & 'B2' - LEFT

- FLAG NOTES - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
1 APPROXIMATE FINISHED GRADE, SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS

2 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM GUTTER; K-STYLE, TYP.   SLOPE 1/16" PER 12" MINIMUM TO
DOWNSPOUTS.

3 3x4 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM HEAVY-DUTY COMMERCIAL GRADE DOWNSPOUT.

4 TYPICAL FASCIA TRIM - ALUM CLAD 2x6 WITH ALUM DRIP EDGE, TYP UNO.

5 ARCHITECTURAL FIBERGLASS SHINGLE ROOF PER ASSEMBLY AND SPECS.

6 VINYL TRIM BAND, SIZE AS INDICATED.

7 FIBER CEMENT PANEL (PRE-ROCK AT ELECTRICAL GEAR); LOCATE JOINTS BEHIND
BRACKETS AND/OR TRIM AND FLASH ALL HORIZONTAL JOINTS IN PANEL SIDING PER
MFR.  TEXTURE TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER.  GC TO COORDINATE LOCATIONS IN
FIELD PRIOR TO ROUGH-IN.

9 CONTINUOUS RIDGE VENT TO MATCH ROOF SHINGLES, TYP.

10 WINDOW PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.  PROVIDE 4" NOMINAL TRIM AROUND ALL
FRONT AND HIGH PROFILE (HP) LOCATIONS.

11 DOOR PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.

12 DECORATIVE LIGHT FIXTURE, TYP. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.

13 PREMIUM VINYL DUTCH LAP SIDING - 5" EXPOSURE.  COORDINATE FINAL COLOR(S)
WITH OWNER.

14 VINYL BOARD ON BATTEN: 2" BATTEN AT 12" O.C., COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

15 PREMIUM VINYL SHAKE SIDING.  COORDINATE FINAL STYLE & COLOR(S) WITH
OWNER.

16 MANUFACTURED STONE VENEER, REFER TO DETAILS FOR MORE INFORMATION.
COORDINATE FINAL COLOR, SIZE, AND STYLE WITH OWNER.

17 NO OPENINGS OR PENETRATIONS WITHIN MIN. 4'-0" OF EITHER SIDE OF 2-HOUR
FIRE RATED WALL, TYP.

18 4" NOMINAL VINYL CORNER TRIM, COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

20 OVERHEAD DOOR, COLOR BY OWNER. REFER TO SCHEDULE.

21 A/C UNIT, TYP. REFER TO PLANS AND MECHANICAL DRAWINGS.

23 DECORATIVE COLUMN OVER WOOD POST/COLUMN, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

24 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF ACCENT, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

25 DECORATIVE VENT AND BRACKETS, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

BUILDINGS 'D5' & 'D9' SIM.
BUILDINGS 'D5' & 'D9' SIM.

BUILDINGS 'D5' & 'D9' SIM.

BUILDINGS 'D5' & 'D9' SIM.BUILDINGS 'D5' & 'D9' SIM.



INDICATES DOOR TYPE - REFER TO SHEET A6.1 FOR DOOR SCHEDULE & 
DOOR/FRAME MATERIALS & ELEVATIONS

TYPICAL SECTION AND DETAIL FLAGS:

REFERS TO SECTION OR ELEVATION NUMBER

REFERS TO DRAWING SHEET NUMBER

DATUM POINT, INDICATES ELEVATION

101-1

INDICATES WINDOW TYPE, REFER TO SHEET A6.3 FOR WINDOW ELEVATIONSA

SYMBOL LEGEND

DOWNSPOUT, SEE DETAILS
DS

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

2 34 56 9

10 11 1213

14

16 1820

CL
5

1 1618 20

2 5 914

16152323

6

2x8

6

2x8 2x8

DSDS DSDS
11

DS DS DS

17 17

CL
17 17

4'-0"4'-0"4'-0"4'-0"

B1B1B1B1 B1

D2

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

10" 

12" 10" 

12"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

2 35 9

1011 1318

5

118

259

2121 23 18 13

DSDS DS

9 9

DS

CL
1717

CL
1717

4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0"

E1E1

B1C1C1B1B1C1C1B1

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

TYP.

10" 

12"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1 18

2
59

21 1216

46

14 1713

2x8

DSDS

39

10

DS

TYP.

C1C1

5" 

12"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

118

25 9

2112 16

4 6

141 7 13

2x8

DS DS

3 9

10

DSDS

23

TYP.

C1C1

5" 

12"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

118

25 9

2112 16

4 6

14

14

13

25

2x8

DS DS

9

1

3

10

TYP.

23

C1C1

5" 

12"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1 18

2 59

21 1216

46

14

14

13

25

2x8

DSDS

9

1

3

10

DS

TYP.

C1C1

5" 

12"

0 12' 18' 24'

3/32" = 1'-0"

30'

REVISIONS

NOTE!!!
THIS DRAWING IS NOT 
FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 #
:

p
h
o
n
e

fa
x

m
p

g
-a

rc
h

it
e
c
ts

.c
o

m

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.5

7
7
0

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.8

8
1
2

3
6
6
0
 E

m
b
a
s
s
y
 P

a
rk

w
a
y

F
a
ir
la

w
n
, 
O

H
 4

4
3
3
3

-

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

V
. -

B
LD

G
S

. A
5,

 A
7,

 B
3,

 B
12

, B
13

, &
 C

1

A2.05

T
H

E
 H

A
M

P
T

O
N

S
 A

T
 T

H
E

 H
E

IG
H

T
S

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 B
O

U
L
E

V
A

R
D

H
U

B
E

R
 H

E
IG

H
T

S
, 
O

H
IO

 4
5
4
2
4

1
3
2
2

D
A

T
E

: 
  
M

A
R

C
H

 2
, 
2
0
2
2

GENERAL NOTES - ELEVATIONS
1. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONED CONDITIONS IN THE FIELD. WHEN DIMENSIONS AND/OR

CONDITIONS AS INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS CONFLICT WITH ACTUAL, CONTACT
THE ARCHITECT FOR CLARIFICATION.

2. COORDINATE ALL EXTERIOR FINISH MATERIALS, STYLES, AND COLORS WITH
OWNER.

3. REFER TO STRUCTURAL DETAILS FOR TYPICAL EXPANSION AND CONTROL JOINT
CONSTRUCTION.

- FLAG NOTES - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
1 APPROXIMATE FINISHED GRADE, SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS

2 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM GUTTER; K-STYLE, TYP.   SLOPE 1/16" PER 12" MINIMUM TO
DOWNSPOUTS.

3 3x4 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM HEAVY-DUTY COMMERCIAL GRADE DOWNSPOUT.

4 TYPICAL FASCIA TRIM - ALUM CLAD 2x6 WITH ALUM DRIP EDGE, TYP UNO.

5 ARCHITECTURAL FIBERGLASS SHINGLE ROOF PER ASSEMBLY AND SPECS.

6 VINYL TRIM BAND, SIZE AS INDICATED.

7 FIBER CEMENT PANEL (PRE-ROCK AT ELECTRICAL GEAR); LOCATE JOINTS BEHIND
BRACKETS AND/OR TRIM AND FLASH ALL HORIZONTAL JOINTS IN PANEL SIDING PER
MFR.  TEXTURE TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER.  GC TO COORDINATE LOCATIONS IN
FIELD PRIOR TO ROUGH-IN.

9 CONTINUOUS RIDGE VENT TO MATCH ROOF SHINGLES, TYP.

10 WINDOW PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.  PROVIDE 4" NOMINAL TRIM AROUND ALL
FRONT AND HIGH PROFILE (HP) LOCATIONS.

11 DOOR PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.

12 DECORATIVE LIGHT FIXTURE, TYP. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.

13 PREMIUM VINYL DUTCH LAP SIDING - 5" EXPOSURE.  COORDINATE FINAL COLOR(S)
WITH OWNER.

14 VINYL BOARD ON BATTEN: 2" BATTEN AT 12" O.C., COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

15 PREMIUM VINYL SHAKE SIDING.  COORDINATE FINAL STYLE & COLOR(S) WITH
OWNER.

16 MANUFACTURED STONE VENEER, REFER TO DETAILS FOR MORE INFORMATION.
COORDINATE FINAL COLOR, SIZE, AND STYLE WITH OWNER.

17 NO OPENINGS OR PENETRATIONS WITHIN MIN. 4'-0" OF EITHER SIDE OF 2-HOUR
FIRE RATED WALL, TYP.

18 4" NOMINAL VINYL CORNER TRIM, COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

20 OVERHEAD DOOR, COLOR BY OWNER. REFER TO SCHEDULE.

21 A/C UNIT, TYP. REFER TO PLANS AND MECHANICAL DRAWINGS.

23 DECORATIVE COLUMN OVER WOOD POST/COLUMN, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

24 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF ACCENT, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

25 DECORATIVE VENT AND BRACKETS, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"1 BUILDINGS 'A5', 'A7', 'B3', 'B12', 'B13', & 'C1' - FRONT

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"2 BUILDINGS 'A5', 'A7', 'B3', 'B12', 'B13', & 'C1' - REAR

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"4 BUILDINGS 'A5', 'A7', 'B3', 'B12', & 'B13' - LEFT ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"3 BUILDINGS 'A5', 'A7', 'B3', 'B12', & 'C1' - RIGHT

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"5 BUILDING 'B13'- RIGHT - HPELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"6 BUILDINGS 'C1' - LEFT - HP



INDICATES DOOR TYPE - REFER TO SHEET A6.1 FOR DOOR SCHEDULE & 
DOOR/FRAME MATERIALS & ELEVATIONS

TYPICAL SECTION AND DETAIL FLAGS:

REFERS TO SECTION OR ELEVATION NUMBER

REFERS TO DRAWING SHEET NUMBER

DATUM POINT, INDICATES ELEVATION

101-1

INDICATES WINDOW TYPE, REFER TO SHEET A6.3 FOR WINDOW ELEVATIONSA

SYMBOL LEGEND

DOWNSPOUT, SEE DETAILS
DS

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

3
'-
4

"

1

2 34 56 9

10 11 1213

14

16 1820

CL
5

1 1618 20

2 5 914

16152323

6

2x8

6

2x8 2x8

DS

DS DS

11

DS

DS

17 17

CL
17 17

D2

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

10" 

12"
10" 

12"

4'-0"4'-0"4'-0"

B1
B1

B1

16" BREAK 16" BREAK8" BREAK

DS
DS

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

2 35 9

1011 1318

5

118

259

2121 23 18 13

DS

DS

DS

9 9

DS

CL
1717

CL
1717

TYP.

4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

E1

E1

B1 C1 C1

B1C1C1

3
'-
4

"

B1B1

16" BREAK16" BREAK 8" BREAK

10" 

12"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1 18

2 59

21 1216

46

14 1713

2x8

DSDS

39

10

DS

TYP.

5" 

12"

C1C1

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

3
'-
4

"

118

25 9

2112 16 141 13

DS DS

3

10

DS

TYP.

4 6 14 25

2x8

9

C1C1

5" 

12"

0 12' 18' 24'

3/32" = 1'-0"

30'

REVISIONS

NOTE!!!
THIS DRAWING IS NOT 
FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 #
:

p
h
o
n
e

fa
x

m
p

g
-a

rc
h

it
e
c
ts

.c
o

m

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.5

7
7
0

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.8

8
1
2

3
6
6
0
 E

m
b
a
s
s
y
 P

a
rk

w
a
y

F
a
ir
la

w
n
, 
O

H
 4

4
3
3
3

-

E
X

T
E

R
IO

R
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

S
 -

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A
9

A2.06

T
H

E
 H

A
M

P
T

O
N

S
 A

T
 T

H
E

 H
E

IG
H

T
S

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 B
O

U
L
E

V
A

R
D

H
U

B
E

R
 H

E
IG

H
T

S
, 
O

H
IO

 4
5
4
2
4

1
3
2
2

D
A

T
E

: 
  
M

A
R

C
H

 2
, 
2
0
2
2

GENERAL NOTES - ELEVATIONS
1. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONED CONDITIONS IN THE FIELD. WHEN DIMENSIONS AND/OR

CONDITIONS AS INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS CONFLICT WITH ACTUAL, CONTACT
THE ARCHITECT FOR CLARIFICATION.

2. COORDINATE ALL EXTERIOR FINISH MATERIALS, STYLES, AND COLORS WITH
OWNER.

3. REFER TO STRUCTURAL DETAILS FOR TYPICAL EXPANSION AND CONTROL JOINT
CONSTRUCTION.

- FLAG NOTES - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
1 APPROXIMATE FINISHED GRADE, SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS

2 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM GUTTER; K-STYLE, TYP.   SLOPE 1/16" PER 12" MINIMUM TO
DOWNSPOUTS.

3 3x4 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM HEAVY-DUTY COMMERCIAL GRADE DOWNSPOUT.

4 TYPICAL FASCIA TRIM - ALUM CLAD 2x6 WITH ALUM DRIP EDGE, TYP UNO.

5 ARCHITECTURAL FIBERGLASS SHINGLE ROOF PER ASSEMBLY AND SPECS.

6 VINYL TRIM BAND, SIZE AS INDICATED.

7 FIBER CEMENT PANEL (PRE-ROCK AT ELECTRICAL GEAR); LOCATE JOINTS BEHIND
BRACKETS AND/OR TRIM AND FLASH ALL HORIZONTAL JOINTS IN PANEL SIDING PER
MFR.  TEXTURE TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER.  GC TO COORDINATE LOCATIONS IN
FIELD PRIOR TO ROUGH-IN.

9 CONTINUOUS RIDGE VENT TO MATCH ROOF SHINGLES, TYP.

10 WINDOW PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.  PROVIDE 4" NOMINAL TRIM AROUND ALL
FRONT AND HIGH PROFILE (HP) LOCATIONS.

11 DOOR PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.

12 DECORATIVE LIGHT FIXTURE, TYP. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.

13 PREMIUM VINYL DUTCH LAP SIDING - 5" EXPOSURE.  COORDINATE FINAL COLOR(S)
WITH OWNER.

14 VINYL BOARD ON BATTEN: 2" BATTEN AT 12" O.C., COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

15 PREMIUM VINYL SHAKE SIDING.  COORDINATE FINAL STYLE & COLOR(S) WITH
OWNER.

16 MANUFACTURED STONE VENEER, REFER TO DETAILS FOR MORE INFORMATION.
COORDINATE FINAL COLOR, SIZE, AND STYLE WITH OWNER.

17 NO OPENINGS OR PENETRATIONS WITHIN MIN. 4'-0" OF EITHER SIDE OF 2-HOUR
FIRE RATED WALL, TYP.

18 4" NOMINAL VINYL CORNER TRIM, COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

20 OVERHEAD DOOR, COLOR BY OWNER. REFER TO SCHEDULE.

21 A/C UNIT, TYP. REFER TO PLANS AND MECHANICAL DRAWINGS.

23 DECORATIVE COLUMN OVER WOOD POST/COLUMN, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

24 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF ACCENT, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

25 DECORATIVE VENT AND BRACKETS, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"1 BUILDING 'A9' - FRONT

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"2 BUILDING 'A9' - REAR

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"4 BUILDING 'A9' - LEFT ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"3 BUILDING 'A9' - RIGHT



INDICATES DOOR TYPE - REFER TO SHEET A6.1 FOR DOOR SCHEDULE & 
DOOR/FRAME MATERIALS & ELEVATIONS

TYPICAL SECTION AND DETAIL FLAGS:

REFERS TO SECTION OR ELEVATION NUMBER

REFERS TO DRAWING SHEET NUMBER

DATUM POINT, INDICATES ELEVATION

101-1

INDICATES WINDOW TYPE, REFER TO SHEET A6.3 FOR WINDOW ELEVATIONSA

SYMBOL LEGEND

DOWNSPOUT, SEE DETAILS
DS

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

23 4 56 9

101112 13

14

1618 20

1717 6 9

2x8

DS DSDS

2x8

DS DSDS

CL 2 3

11810111216 20

14

4'-0"4'-0"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

B1B1B1

24

F1

15

13

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

CL

4'-0" 4'-0"

211

2 3 5 9

1011 131618

TYP.

DS DS DS

17 17

21 1

2359

101113 18

TYP.

DSDS

E1E1

C1 C1 B1 C1 C1 B1

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

10" 

12"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

23 45 69

12 13 18 2116

2x8

DS DS
10

5" 

12"

TYP.

DS

3

14

C1C1

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

2 34 56 9

1213 14 161821

2x8

DSDS

10 7

5" 

12"

TYP.

C1C1

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

2 345 69

12 1316 18 211 14 6
DS

2x8

DS

TYP.

DS

5" 

12"

1425 9

C1C1

10

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

23 46

1214 161821

DS DS

2x8

10

59

TYP.

5" 

12"

14 259

C1C1

13

0 12' 18' 24'

3/32" = 1'-0"

30'

REVISIONS

NOTE!!!
THIS DRAWING IS NOT 
FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 #
:

p
h
o
n
e

fa
x

m
p

g
-a

rc
h

it
e
c
ts

.c
o

m

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.5

7
7
0

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.8

8
1
2

3
6
6
0
 E

m
b
a
s
s
y
 P

a
rk

w
a
y

F
a
ir
la

w
n
, 
O

H
 4

4
3
3
3

-

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
S

 -
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S

 A
10

, B
10

, C
3,

 &
 D

15

A2.07

T
H

E
 H

A
M

P
T

O
N

S
 A

T
 T

H
E

 H
E

IG
H

T
S

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 B
O

U
L
E

V
A

R
D

H
U

B
E

R
 H

E
IG

H
T

S
, 
O

H
IO

 4
5
4
2
4

1
3
2
2

D
A

T
E

: 
  
M

A
R

C
H

 2
, 
2
0
2
2

GENERAL NOTES - ELEVATIONS
1. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONED CONDITIONS IN THE FIELD. WHEN DIMENSIONS AND/OR

CONDITIONS AS INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS CONFLICT WITH ACTUAL, CONTACT
THE ARCHITECT FOR CLARIFICATION.

2. COORDINATE ALL EXTERIOR FINISH MATERIALS, STYLES, AND COLORS WITH
OWNER.

3. REFER TO STRUCTURAL DETAILS FOR TYPICAL EXPANSION AND CONTROL JOINT
CONSTRUCTION.

- FLAG NOTES - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
1 APPROXIMATE FINISHED GRADE, SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS

2 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM GUTTER; K-STYLE, TYP.   SLOPE 1/16" PER 12" MINIMUM TO
DOWNSPOUTS.

3 3x4 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM HEAVY-DUTY COMMERCIAL GRADE DOWNSPOUT.

4 TYPICAL FASCIA TRIM - ALUM CLAD 2x6 WITH ALUM DRIP EDGE, TYP UNO.

5 ARCHITECTURAL FIBERGLASS SHINGLE ROOF PER ASSEMBLY AND SPECS.

6 VINYL TRIM BAND, SIZE AS INDICATED.

7 FIBER CEMENT PANEL (PRE-ROCK AT ELECTRICAL GEAR); LOCATE JOINTS BEHIND
BRACKETS AND/OR TRIM AND FLASH ALL HORIZONTAL JOINTS IN PANEL SIDING PER
MFR.  TEXTURE TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER.  GC TO COORDINATE LOCATIONS IN
FIELD PRIOR TO ROUGH-IN.

9 CONTINUOUS RIDGE VENT TO MATCH ROOF SHINGLES, TYP.

10 WINDOW PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.  PROVIDE 4" NOMINAL TRIM AROUND ALL
FRONT AND HIGH PROFILE (HP) LOCATIONS.

11 DOOR PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.

12 DECORATIVE LIGHT FIXTURE, TYP. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.

13 PREMIUM VINYL DUTCH LAP SIDING - 5" EXPOSURE.  COORDINATE FINAL COLOR(S)
WITH OWNER.

14 VINYL BOARD ON BATTEN: 2" BATTEN AT 12" O.C., COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

15 PREMIUM VINYL SHAKE SIDING.  COORDINATE FINAL STYLE & COLOR(S) WITH
OWNER.

16 MANUFACTURED STONE VENEER, REFER TO DETAILS FOR MORE INFORMATION.
COORDINATE FINAL COLOR, SIZE, AND STYLE WITH OWNER.

17 NO OPENINGS OR PENETRATIONS WITHIN MIN. 4'-0" OF EITHER SIDE OF 2-HOUR
FIRE RATED WALL, TYP.

18 4" NOMINAL VINYL CORNER TRIM, COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

20 OVERHEAD DOOR, COLOR BY OWNER. REFER TO SCHEDULE.

21 A/C UNIT, TYP. REFER TO PLANS AND MECHANICAL DRAWINGS.

23 DECORATIVE COLUMN OVER WOOD POST/COLUMN, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

24 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF ACCENT, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

25 DECORATIVE VENT AND BRACKETS, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"1 BUILDINGS 'A10', 'B10', 'C3', & 'D15' - FRONT

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"2 BUILDINGS 'A10', 'B10', 'C3', & 'D15' - REAR

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"3 BUILDINGS 'C3' & 'D15' - RIGHTELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"4 BUILDING 'B10' - LEFT

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"5 BUILDING 'A10' & 'B10' - RIGHT - HPELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"6 BUILDING 'A10' , 'C3', & 'D15'- LEFT - HP



INDICATES DOOR TYPE - REFER TO SHEET A6.1 FOR DOOR SCHEDULE & 
DOOR/FRAME MATERIALS & ELEVATIONS

TYPICAL SECTION AND DETAIL FLAGS:

REFERS TO SECTION OR ELEVATION NUMBER

REFERS TO DRAWING SHEET NUMBER

DATUM POINT, INDICATES ELEVATION

101-1

INDICATES WINDOW TYPE, REFER TO SHEET A6.3 FOR WINDOW ELEVATIONSA

SYMBOL LEGEND

DOWNSPOUT, SEE DETAILS
DS

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

23 4 56 914

18

1717 6 9

2x8

DS DS

2x8

DS DSDS

CL 2 3

118101112 13 1620

14

4'-0"4'-0"

B1B1B1

24

F1

15

13

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

211

2 35 9

10111318

1717 259

11011 13 18
DS DS DS DS

TYP.

4'-0" 4'-0"

CL

E1

C1C1 B1

E1

C1C1B1

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

10" 

12"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 1
8'-1 1/8"

1

23 46

1213 14 161821

DS DS

2x8

10

59

TYP.

C1C1

5" 

12"

14 259

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

2 345 69

12 1316 18 211 14 6
DS

1x4

2x8

DS

C1 C1

TYP.

DS

5" 

12"

7

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 1
8'-1 1/8"

1

2 345 69

12 16 18 211 14 6
DS

2x8

DS

TYP.

DS

5" 

12"

C1C1

1425 9

10 13

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

23 46

1213 14 161821 7

DS DS

2x8

10

59

C1C1

TYP.

5" 

12"

0 12' 18' 24'

3/32" = 1'-0"

30'

REVISIONS

NOTE!!!
THIS DRAWING IS NOT 
FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 #
:

p
h
o
n
e

fa
x

m
p

g
-a

rc
h

it
e
c
ts

.c
o

m

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.5

7
7
0

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.8

8
1
2

3
6
6
0
 E

m
b
a
s
s
y
 P

a
rk

w
a
y

F
a
ir
la

w
n
, 
O

H
 4

4
3
3
3

-

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
S

 -
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S

 A
11

, B
11

, C
4,

 D
10

, &
 D

14

A2.08

T
H

E
 H

A
M

P
T

O
N

S
 A

T
 T

H
E

 H
E

IG
H

T
S

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 B
O

U
L
E

V
A

R
D

H
U

B
E

R
 H

E
IG

H
T

S
, 
O

H
IO

 4
5
4
2
4

1
3
2
2

D
A

T
E

: 
  
M

A
R

C
H

 2
, 
2
0
2
2

GENERAL NOTES - ELEVATIONS
1. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONED CONDITIONS IN THE FIELD. WHEN DIMENSIONS AND/OR

CONDITIONS AS INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS CONFLICT WITH ACTUAL, CONTACT
THE ARCHITECT FOR CLARIFICATION.

2. COORDINATE ALL EXTERIOR FINISH MATERIALS, STYLES, AND COLORS WITH
OWNER.

3. REFER TO STRUCTURAL DETAILS FOR TYPICAL EXPANSION AND CONTROL JOINT
CONSTRUCTION.

- FLAG NOTES - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
1 APPROXIMATE FINISHED GRADE, SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS

2 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM GUTTER; K-STYLE, TYP.   SLOPE 1/16" PER 12" MINIMUM TO
DOWNSPOUTS.

3 3x4 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM HEAVY-DUTY COMMERCIAL GRADE DOWNSPOUT.

4 TYPICAL FASCIA TRIM - ALUM CLAD 2x6 WITH ALUM DRIP EDGE, TYP UNO.

5 ARCHITECTURAL FIBERGLASS SHINGLE ROOF PER ASSEMBLY AND SPECS.

6 VINYL TRIM BAND, SIZE AS INDICATED.

7 FIBER CEMENT PANEL (PRE-ROCK AT ELECTRICAL GEAR); LOCATE JOINTS BEHIND
BRACKETS AND/OR TRIM AND FLASH ALL HORIZONTAL JOINTS IN PANEL SIDING PER
MFR.  TEXTURE TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER.  GC TO COORDINATE LOCATIONS IN
FIELD PRIOR TO ROUGH-IN.

9 CONTINUOUS RIDGE VENT TO MATCH ROOF SHINGLES, TYP.

10 WINDOW PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.  PROVIDE 4" NOMINAL TRIM AROUND ALL
FRONT AND HIGH PROFILE (HP) LOCATIONS.

11 DOOR PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.

12 DECORATIVE LIGHT FIXTURE, TYP. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.

13 PREMIUM VINYL DUTCH LAP SIDING - 5" EXPOSURE.  COORDINATE FINAL COLOR(S)
WITH OWNER.

14 VINYL BOARD ON BATTEN: 2" BATTEN AT 12" O.C., COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

15 PREMIUM VINYL SHAKE SIDING.  COORDINATE FINAL STYLE & COLOR(S) WITH
OWNER.

16 MANUFACTURED STONE VENEER, REFER TO DETAILS FOR MORE INFORMATION.
COORDINATE FINAL COLOR, SIZE, AND STYLE WITH OWNER.

17 NO OPENINGS OR PENETRATIONS WITHIN MIN. 4'-0" OF EITHER SIDE OF 2-HOUR
FIRE RATED WALL, TYP.

18 4" NOMINAL VINYL CORNER TRIM, COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

20 OVERHEAD DOOR, COLOR BY OWNER. REFER TO SCHEDULE.

21 A/C UNIT, TYP. REFER TO PLANS AND MECHANICAL DRAWINGS.

23 DECORATIVE COLUMN OVER WOOD POST/COLUMN, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

24 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF ACCENT, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

25 DECORATIVE VENT AND BRACKETS, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"1 BUILDINGS 'A11', 'B11', 'C4', 'D10', & 'D14' - FRONT

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"2 BUILDINGS 'A11', 'B11', 'C4', 'D10', & 'D14' - REAR

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"4 BUILDINGS 'A11' & 'B11' - LEFT - HP ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"3 BUILDINGS 'A11', 'B11', & 'D10' - RIGHT

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"5 BUILDINGS 'C4' & 'D14' - RIGHT - HPELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"6 BUILDINGS 'C4', 'D10', & 'D14' - LEFT



INDICATES DOOR TYPE - REFER TO SHEET A6.1 FOR DOOR SCHEDULE & 
DOOR/FRAME MATERIALS & ELEVATIONS

TYPICAL SECTION AND DETAIL FLAGS:

REFERS TO SECTION OR ELEVATION NUMBER

REFERS TO DRAWING SHEET NUMBER

DATUM POINT, INDICATES ELEVATION

101-1

INDICATES WINDOW TYPE, REFER TO SHEET A6.3 FOR WINDOW ELEVATIONSA

SYMBOL LEGEND

DOWNSPOUT, SEE DETAILS
DS

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

8
"

8" BREAK

1

2 345 69

10 11 1213

14

1820

17 1769 17 17

2x8

DS
DS DS

2x8

DS
DS

DS DS

CLCL23

1 18 10 11 1216 20

14

4'-0"4'-0"4'-0" 4'-0"

B1 B1B1

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

DS

F1

24

10" 

12"

15

13

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

8" BREAK
1717 1717

CL CL

21 1

2359

10 1113 18

TYP.

DSDSDSDS
211

2 3 5 9

10 11 1318

TYP.

DS DS

E1 E1

C1C1B1B1 C1 C1

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0"4'-0"

10" 

12"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

23 45 69

12 1314 18 2116

2x8

DS DS
10

TYP.

DS

3

8
"C1C1

5" 

12"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

2 34 56 9

1213 14 161821

2x8

DSDS

10 7

TYP.

5" 

12"

C1 C1

0 12' 18' 24'

3/32" = 1'-0"

30'

REVISIONS

NOTE!!!
THIS DRAWING IS NOT 
FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 #
:

p
h
o
n
e

fa
x

m
p

g
-a

rc
h

it
e
c
ts

.c
o

m

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.5

7
7
0

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.8

8
1
2

3
6
6
0
 E

m
b
a
s
s
y
 P

a
rk

w
a
y

F
a
ir
la

w
n
, 
O

H
 4

4
3
3
3

-

E
X

T
E

R
IO

R
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

S
 -

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A
12

A2.09

T
H

E
 H

A
M

P
T

O
N

S
 A

T
 T

H
E

 H
E

IG
H

T
S

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 B
O

U
L
E

V
A

R
D

H
U

B
E

R
 H

E
IG

H
T

S
, 
O

H
IO

 4
5
4
2
4

1
3
2
2

D
A

T
E

: 
  
M

A
R

C
H

 2
, 
2
0
2
2

GENERAL NOTES - ELEVATIONS
1. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONED CONDITIONS IN THE FIELD. WHEN DIMENSIONS AND/OR

CONDITIONS AS INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS CONFLICT WITH ACTUAL, CONTACT
THE ARCHITECT FOR CLARIFICATION.

2. COORDINATE ALL EXTERIOR FINISH MATERIALS, STYLES, AND COLORS WITH
OWNER.

3. REFER TO STRUCTURAL DETAILS FOR TYPICAL EXPANSION AND CONTROL JOINT
CONSTRUCTION.

- FLAG NOTES - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
1 APPROXIMATE FINISHED GRADE, SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS

2 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM GUTTER; K-STYLE, TYP.   SLOPE 1/16" PER 12" MINIMUM TO
DOWNSPOUTS.

3 3x4 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM HEAVY-DUTY COMMERCIAL GRADE DOWNSPOUT.

4 TYPICAL FASCIA TRIM - ALUM CLAD 2x6 WITH ALUM DRIP EDGE, TYP UNO.

5 ARCHITECTURAL FIBERGLASS SHINGLE ROOF PER ASSEMBLY AND SPECS.

6 VINYL TRIM BAND, SIZE AS INDICATED.

7 FIBER CEMENT PANEL (PRE-ROCK AT ELECTRICAL GEAR); LOCATE JOINTS BEHIND
BRACKETS AND/OR TRIM AND FLASH ALL HORIZONTAL JOINTS IN PANEL SIDING PER
MFR.  TEXTURE TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER.  GC TO COORDINATE LOCATIONS IN
FIELD PRIOR TO ROUGH-IN.

9 CONTINUOUS RIDGE VENT TO MATCH ROOF SHINGLES, TYP.

10 WINDOW PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.  PROVIDE 4" NOMINAL TRIM AROUND ALL
FRONT AND HIGH PROFILE (HP) LOCATIONS.

11 DOOR PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.

12 DECORATIVE LIGHT FIXTURE, TYP. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.

13 PREMIUM VINYL DUTCH LAP SIDING - 5" EXPOSURE.  COORDINATE FINAL COLOR(S)
WITH OWNER.

14 VINYL BOARD ON BATTEN: 2" BATTEN AT 12" O.C., COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

15 PREMIUM VINYL SHAKE SIDING.  COORDINATE FINAL STYLE & COLOR(S) WITH
OWNER.

16 MANUFACTURED STONE VENEER, REFER TO DETAILS FOR MORE INFORMATION.
COORDINATE FINAL COLOR, SIZE, AND STYLE WITH OWNER.

17 NO OPENINGS OR PENETRATIONS WITHIN MIN. 4'-0" OF EITHER SIDE OF 2-HOUR
FIRE RATED WALL, TYP.

18 4" NOMINAL VINYL CORNER TRIM, COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

20 OVERHEAD DOOR, COLOR BY OWNER. REFER TO SCHEDULE.

21 A/C UNIT, TYP. REFER TO PLANS AND MECHANICAL DRAWINGS.

23 DECORATIVE COLUMN OVER WOOD POST/COLUMN, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

24 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF ACCENT, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

25 DECORATIVE VENT AND BRACKETS, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"1 BUILDING 'A12' - FRONT

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"2 BUILDING 'A12' - REAR

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"3 BUILDING 'A12' - RIGHTELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"4 BUILDING 'A12' - LEFT



INDICATES DOOR TYPE - REFER TO SHEET A6.1 FOR DOOR SCHEDULE & 
DOOR/FRAME MATERIALS & ELEVATIONS

TYPICAL SECTION AND DETAIL FLAGS:

REFERS TO SECTION OR ELEVATION NUMBER

REFERS TO DRAWING SHEET NUMBER

DATUM POINT, INDICATES ELEVATION

101-1

INDICATES WINDOW TYPE, REFER TO SHEET A6.3 FOR WINDOW ELEVATIONSA

SYMBOL LEGEND

DOWNSPOUT, SEE DETAILS
DS

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

2 34 56 9

10 11 1213

14

16 1820

CL
5

1 1618 20

2 5 914

16152323

6

2x8

6

2x8 2x8

DS
DS

DS
DS

11

DS
DS DS

17 17

CL
17 17

D2

B1B1
B1

10" 

12"
10" 

12"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

4'-0"4'-0" 4'-0"4'-0"

16" BREAK

DS

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

2 35 9

1011 1318

5

118

259

2121 23 18 13

DS

DS
DS

9 9

DS

CL
1717

CL
1717

TYP.

4'-0" 4'-0"4'-0" 4'-0"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

B1 C1 C1

E1

C1 C1 B1

E1

B1B1

16" BREAK

10" 

12"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1 18

2 59

21 1216

46

14 1713

2x8

DSDS

39

10

DS

TYP.

5" 

12"

C1 C1
FIRST FLOOR

0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1
'-
4

"

118

25 9

2112 16

4 6

141 7 13

2x8

DS DS

3 9

10

DSDS

23

TYP.

5" 

12"

C1C1

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

118

25 9

2112 16

4 6

14

14

13

25

2x8

DS DS

9

1

3

10

TYP.

23

C1C1

5" 

12"

1
'-
4

"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1 18

2 59

21 1216

46

14

14

13

25

2x8

DSDS

9

1

3

10

DS

TYP.

5" 

12"

C1C1

0 12' 18' 24'

3/32" = 1'-0"

30'

REVISIONS

NOTE!!!
THIS DRAWING IS NOT 
FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 #
:

p
h
o
n
e

fa
x

m
p

g
-a

rc
h

it
e
c
ts

.c
o

m

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.5

7
7
0

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.8

8
1
2

3
6
6
0
 E

m
b
a
s
s
y
 P

a
rk

w
a
y

F
a
ir
la

w
n
, 
O

H
 4

4
3
3
3

-

E
X

T
E

R
IO

R
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

S
 -

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 B

1 
&

 B
14

A2.10

T
H

E
 H

A
M

P
T

O
N

S
 A

T
 T

H
E

 H
E

IG
H

T
S

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 B
O

U
L
E

V
A

R
D

H
U

B
E

R
 H

E
IG

H
T

S
, 
O

H
IO

 4
5
4
2
4

1
3
2
2

D
A

T
E

: 
  
M

A
R

C
H

 2
, 
2
0
2
2

GENERAL NOTES - ELEVATIONS
1. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONED CONDITIONS IN THE FIELD. WHEN DIMENSIONS AND/OR

CONDITIONS AS INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS CONFLICT WITH ACTUAL, CONTACT
THE ARCHITECT FOR CLARIFICATION.

2. COORDINATE ALL EXTERIOR FINISH MATERIALS, STYLES, AND COLORS WITH
OWNER.

3. REFER TO STRUCTURAL DETAILS FOR TYPICAL EXPANSION AND CONTROL JOINT
CONSTRUCTION.

- FLAG NOTES - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
1 APPROXIMATE FINISHED GRADE, SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS

2 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM GUTTER; K-STYLE, TYP.   SLOPE 1/16" PER 12" MINIMUM TO
DOWNSPOUTS.

3 3x4 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM HEAVY-DUTY COMMERCIAL GRADE DOWNSPOUT.

4 TYPICAL FASCIA TRIM - ALUM CLAD 2x6 WITH ALUM DRIP EDGE, TYP UNO.

5 ARCHITECTURAL FIBERGLASS SHINGLE ROOF PER ASSEMBLY AND SPECS.

6 VINYL TRIM BAND, SIZE AS INDICATED.

7 FIBER CEMENT PANEL (PRE-ROCK AT ELECTRICAL GEAR); LOCATE JOINTS BEHIND
BRACKETS AND/OR TRIM AND FLASH ALL HORIZONTAL JOINTS IN PANEL SIDING PER
MFR.  TEXTURE TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER.  GC TO COORDINATE LOCATIONS IN
FIELD PRIOR TO ROUGH-IN.

9 CONTINUOUS RIDGE VENT TO MATCH ROOF SHINGLES, TYP.

10 WINDOW PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.  PROVIDE 4" NOMINAL TRIM AROUND ALL
FRONT AND HIGH PROFILE (HP) LOCATIONS.

11 DOOR PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.

12 DECORATIVE LIGHT FIXTURE, TYP. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.

13 PREMIUM VINYL DUTCH LAP SIDING - 5" EXPOSURE.  COORDINATE FINAL COLOR(S)
WITH OWNER.

14 VINYL BOARD ON BATTEN: 2" BATTEN AT 12" O.C., COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

15 PREMIUM VINYL SHAKE SIDING.  COORDINATE FINAL STYLE & COLOR(S) WITH
OWNER.

16 MANUFACTURED STONE VENEER, REFER TO DETAILS FOR MORE INFORMATION.
COORDINATE FINAL COLOR, SIZE, AND STYLE WITH OWNER.

17 NO OPENINGS OR PENETRATIONS WITHIN MIN. 4'-0" OF EITHER SIDE OF 2-HOUR
FIRE RATED WALL, TYP.

18 4" NOMINAL VINYL CORNER TRIM, COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

20 OVERHEAD DOOR, COLOR BY OWNER. REFER TO SCHEDULE.

21 A/C UNIT, TYP. REFER TO PLANS AND MECHANICAL DRAWINGS.

23 DECORATIVE COLUMN OVER WOOD POST/COLUMN, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

24 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF ACCENT, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

25 DECORATIVE VENT AND BRACKETS, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"1 BUILDING 'B1' & 'B14' - FRONT

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"2 BUILDING 'B1' & 'B14' - REAR

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"4 BUILDING 'B1' - LEFT ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"3 BUILDING 'B14' - RIGHT

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"5 BUILDING 'B1'- RIGHT - HPELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"6 BUILDINGS 'B14' - LEFT - HP

BUILDINGS 'A3', 'A4', & 'D6' SIM.
BUILDINGS 'A3', 'A4', & 'D6' 

SIM.

BUILDINGS 'A3', 'A4', & 'D6' SIM.

BUILDINGS 'A3', 'A4', & 'D6' SIM.BUILDINGS 'A3', 'A4', & 'D6' SIM.



INDICATES DOOR TYPE - REFER TO SHEET A6.1 FOR DOOR SCHEDULE & 
DOOR/FRAME MATERIALS & ELEVATIONS

TYPICAL SECTION AND DETAIL FLAGS:

REFERS TO SECTION OR ELEVATION NUMBER

REFERS TO DRAWING SHEET NUMBER

DATUM POINT, INDICATES ELEVATION

101-1

INDICATES WINDOW TYPE, REFER TO SHEET A6.3 FOR WINDOW ELEVATIONSA

SYMBOL LEGEND

DOWNSPOUT, SEE DETAILS
DS

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

CL

1

2 345 69

1011 18

17 17

23

DSDS DS

9

2x8

23

DS

D2

15 16

14

21

TYP.

4'-0" 4'-0"

DS

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

10" 

12"

10" 

12"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

4'-0"4'-0"

CL

4 56 91717

DS DSDS

9

2x8

DS

15 1

2 3

10 11 1816

14

23

D2

10" 

12"

10" 

12"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

21

TYP.

1220

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

23 59

10137
DS DS

16 1218 2321

TYP.

1
0

" 
/ 
1
2

" 5" 

12"

15

C1C1

14

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

2 35 9

1013 7
DSDS

1612 18

1
0

" 
/ 
1
2

"5" 

12"

C1C1C1

14

21

TYP.

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

2 5 9

1013
DSDS

1612 18

C1C1C1

3 14

5" 

12"

1
0

" 
/ 
1
2

"

21

TYP.

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

23 59

1013
DS DS

16 1218 2321

TYP.

1414

1
0

" 
/ 
1
2

" 5" 

12"

C1C1

0 12' 18' 24'

3/32" = 1'-0"

30'

REVISIONS

NOTE!!!
THIS DRAWING IS NOT 
FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 #
:

p
h
o
n
e

fa
x

m
p

g
-a

rc
h

it
e
c
ts

.c
o

m

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.5

7
7
0

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.8

8
1
2

3
6
6
0
 E

m
b
a
s
s
y
 P

a
rk

w
a
y

F
a
ir
la

w
n
, 
O

H
 4

4
3
3
3

-

EX
T.

 E
LE

V.
 -

BL
D

G
S.

 B
6,

 D
1,

 D
2,

 D
3,

 &
 D

4,
 B

7,
 B

8,
 &

 B
9 

(M
IR

R
.)

A2.11

T
H

E
 H

A
M

P
T

O
N

S
 A

T
 T

H
E

 H
E

IG
H

T
S

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 B
O

U
L
E

V
A

R
D

H
U

B
E

R
 H

E
IG

H
T

S
, 
O

H
IO

 4
5
4
2
4

1
3
2
2

D
A

T
E

: 
  
M

A
R

C
H

 2
, 
2
0
2
2

GENERAL NOTES - ELEVATIONS
1. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONED CONDITIONS IN THE FIELD. WHEN DIMENSIONS AND/OR

CONDITIONS AS INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS CONFLICT WITH ACTUAL, CONTACT
THE ARCHITECT FOR CLARIFICATION.

2. COORDINATE ALL EXTERIOR FINISH MATERIALS, STYLES, AND COLORS WITH
OWNER.

3. REFER TO STRUCTURAL DETAILS FOR TYPICAL EXPANSION AND CONTROL JOINT
CONSTRUCTION.

FLAG NOTES - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
1 APPROXIMATE FINISHED GRADE, SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS

2 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM GUTTER; K-STYLE, TYP.   SLOPE 1/16" PER 12" MINIMUM TO
DOWNSPOUTS.

3 3x4 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM HEAVY-DUTY COMMERCIAL GRADE DOWNSPOUT.

4 TYPICAL FASCIA TRIM - ALUM CLAD 2x6 WITH ALUM DRIP EDGE, TYP UNO.

5 ARCHITECTURAL FIBERGLASS SHINGLE ROOF PER ASSEMBLY AND SPECS.

6 VINYL TRIM BAND, SIZE AS INDICATED.

7 FIBER CEMENT PANEL (PRE-ROCK AT ELECTRICAL GEAR); LOCATE JOINTS BEHIND
BRACKETS AND/OR TRIM AND FLASH ALL HORIZONTAL JOINTS IN PANEL SIDING PER
MFR.  TEXTURE TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER.  GC TO COORDINATE LOCATIONS IN
FIELD PRIOR TO ROUGH-IN.

9 CONTINUOUS RIDGE VENT TO MATCH ROOF SHINGLES, TYP.

10 WINDOW PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.  PROVIDE 4" NOMINAL TRIM AROUND ALL
FRONT AND HIGH PROFILE (HP) LOCATIONS.

11 DOOR PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.

12 DECORATIVE LIGHT FIXTURE, TYP. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.

13 PREMIUM VINYL DUTCH LAP SIDING - 5" EXPOSURE.  COORDINATE FINAL COLOR(S)
WITH OWNER.

14 VINYL BOARD ON BATTEN: 2" BATTEN AT 12" O.C., COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

15 PREMIUM VINYL SHAKE SIDING.  COORDINATE FINAL STYLE & COLOR(S) WITH
OWNER.

16 MANUFACTURED STONE VENEER, REFER TO DETAILS FOR MORE INFORMATION.
COORDINATE FINAL COLOR, SIZE, AND STYLE WITH OWNER.

17 NO OPENINGS OR PENETRATIONS WITHIN MIN. 4'-0" OF EITHER SIDE OF 2-HOUR
FIRE RATED WALL, TYP.

18 4" NOMINAL VINYL CORNER TRIM, COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

20 OVERHEAD DOOR, COLOR BY OWNER. REFER TO SCHEDULE.

21 A/C UNIT, TYP. REFER TO PLANS AND MECHANICAL DRAWINGS.

23 DECORATIVE COLUMN OVER WOOD POST/COLUMN, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

24 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF ACCENT, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

25 DECORATIVE VENT AND BRACKETS, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"2 BUILDINGS 'B6', 'D1', 'D2', 'D2', 'D3', & 'D4' - REAR HP, 'B7', 'B8', & 'B9' (MIRR.)

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"1 BUILDINGS 'B6', 'D1', 'D2', 'D3', & 'D4' - FRONT, 'B7', 'B8', & 'B9' (MIRR.)

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"3 BUILDINGS 'B6', 'D2', 'D3', & 'D4' - RIGHT, 'B7', & 'B8' (MIRR.)ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"4 BUILDINGS 'B6', 'D1' 'D2', 'D3', & 'D4' - LEFT, 'B7', 'B8', & 'B9' (MIRR.)

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"6 BUILDINGS 'B9' - LEFT - HP ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"5 BUILDING 'D1' - RIGHT - HP



INDICATES DOOR TYPE - REFER TO SHEET A6.1 FOR DOOR SCHEDULE & 
DOOR/FRAME MATERIALS & ELEVATIONS

TYPICAL SECTION AND DETAIL FLAGS:

REFERS TO SECTION OR ELEVATION NUMBER

REFERS TO DRAWING SHEET NUMBER

DATUM POINT, INDICATES ELEVATION

101-1

INDICATES WINDOW TYPE, REFER TO SHEET A6.3 FOR WINDOW ELEVATIONSA

SYMBOL LEGEND

DOWNSPOUT, SEE DETAILS
DS

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

TYP.

1

23 59

10 1113 18

5

1 18

2 5 9

21 21231813

DS DSDS

99

DS

CL
17 17

CL
17 17

4'-0" 4'-0"4'-0" 4'-0"

8
"

E1E1

B1 C1 C1 C1 C1 B1B1B1

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

8" BREAK

10" 

12"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1 18

2 59

21 1216

46

14 1713

2x8

DSDS

39

10

DS

TYP.

8
"

5" 

12"

C1C1

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

118

25 9

2112 16

4 6

141 7 13

2x8

DS DS

3 9

10

DSDS

23

TYP.

5" 

12"

C1C1

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

D2

1

23 45 69

101112 13

14

1618 20

CL
5

116 1820

259 14

16 15 23 23

6

2x8

6

2x82x8

DS
DS

DS
DS

11
DS

DSDS

1717

CL
1717

4'-0"4'-0" 4'-0"4'-0"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

10" 

12"

10" 

12"

B1
B1B1

8" BREAK

12

0 12' 18' 24'

3/32" = 1'-0"

30'

REVISIONS

NOTE!!!
THIS DRAWING IS NOT 
FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 #
:

p
h
o
n
e

fa
x

m
p

g
-a

rc
h

it
e
c
ts

.c
o

m

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.5

7
7
0

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.8

8
1
2

3
6
6
0
 E

m
b
a
s
s
y
 P

a
rk

w
a
y

F
a
ir
la

w
n
, 
O

H
 4

4
3
3
3

-

E
X

T
E

R
IO

R
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

S
 -

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 C
2

A2.12

T
H

E
 H

A
M

P
T

O
N

S
 A

T
 T

H
E

 H
E

IG
H

T
S

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 B
O

U
L
E

V
A

R
D

H
U

B
E

R
 H

E
IG

H
T

S
, 
O

H
IO

 4
5
4
2
4

1
3
2
2

D
A

T
E

: 
  
M

A
R

C
H

 2
, 
2
0
2
2

GENERAL NOTES - ELEVATIONS
1. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONED CONDITIONS IN THE FIELD. WHEN DIMENSIONS AND/OR

CONDITIONS AS INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS CONFLICT WITH ACTUAL, CONTACT
THE ARCHITECT FOR CLARIFICATION.

2. COORDINATE ALL EXTERIOR FINISH MATERIALS, STYLES, AND COLORS WITH
OWNER.

3. REFER TO STRUCTURAL DETAILS FOR TYPICAL EXPANSION AND CONTROL JOINT
CONSTRUCTION.

FLAG NOTES - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
1 APPROXIMATE FINISHED GRADE, SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS

2 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM GUTTER; K-STYLE, TYP.   SLOPE 1/16" PER 12" MINIMUM TO
DOWNSPOUTS.

3 3x4 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM HEAVY-DUTY COMMERCIAL GRADE DOWNSPOUT.

4 TYPICAL FASCIA TRIM - ALUM CLAD 2x6 WITH ALUM DRIP EDGE, TYP UNO.

5 ARCHITECTURAL FIBERGLASS SHINGLE ROOF PER ASSEMBLY AND SPECS.

6 VINYL TRIM BAND, SIZE AS INDICATED.

7 FIBER CEMENT PANEL (PRE-ROCK AT ELECTRICAL GEAR); LOCATE JOINTS BEHIND
BRACKETS AND/OR TRIM AND FLASH ALL HORIZONTAL JOINTS IN PANEL SIDING PER
MFR.  TEXTURE TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER.  GC TO COORDINATE LOCATIONS IN
FIELD PRIOR TO ROUGH-IN.

9 CONTINUOUS RIDGE VENT TO MATCH ROOF SHINGLES, TYP.

10 WINDOW PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.  PROVIDE 4" NOMINAL TRIM AROUND ALL
FRONT AND HIGH PROFILE (HP) LOCATIONS.

11 DOOR PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.

12 DECORATIVE LIGHT FIXTURE, TYP. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.

13 PREMIUM VINYL DUTCH LAP SIDING - 5" EXPOSURE.  COORDINATE FINAL COLOR(S)
WITH OWNER.

14 VINYL BOARD ON BATTEN: 2" BATTEN AT 12" O.C., COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

15 PREMIUM VINYL SHAKE SIDING.  COORDINATE FINAL STYLE & COLOR(S) WITH
OWNER.

16 MANUFACTURED STONE VENEER, REFER TO DETAILS FOR MORE INFORMATION.
COORDINATE FINAL COLOR, SIZE, AND STYLE WITH OWNER.

17 NO OPENINGS OR PENETRATIONS WITHIN MIN. 4'-0" OF EITHER SIDE OF 2-HOUR
FIRE RATED WALL, TYP.

18 4" NOMINAL VINYL CORNER TRIM, COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

20 OVERHEAD DOOR, COLOR BY OWNER. REFER TO SCHEDULE.

21 A/C UNIT, TYP. REFER TO PLANS AND MECHANICAL DRAWINGS.

23 DECORATIVE COLUMN OVER WOOD POST/COLUMN, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

24 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF ACCENT, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

25 DECORATIVE VENT AND BRACKETS, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"2 BUILDING 'C2' - REAR

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"4 BUILDING 'C2' - LEFT ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"3 BUILDING 'C2' - RIGHT

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"1 BUILDING 'C2' - FRONT



INDICATES DOOR TYPE - REFER TO SHEET A6.1 FOR DOOR SCHEDULE & 
DOOR/FRAME MATERIALS & ELEVATIONS

TYPICAL SECTION AND DETAIL FLAGS:

REFERS TO SECTION OR ELEVATION NUMBER

REFERS TO DRAWING SHEET NUMBER

DATUM POINT, INDICATES ELEVATION

101-1

INDICATES WINDOW TYPE, REFER TO SHEET A6.3 FOR WINDOW ELEVATIONSA

SYMBOL LEGEND

DOWNSPOUT, SEE DETAILS
DS

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

2 345 6 9

10 11 12 1820

CL
17 17

23

DSDS DS

9

2x8

23

DS

4'-0" 4'-0"

B1 B1 B1

D2

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

10" 

12"

15

14

16

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

21

23 591717

CL
2 3

110 1113 18

DSDSDS

4'-0"4'-0"

B1 B1 B1 B1

TYP.

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

23 5 9

1021 13 18 1723

DSDS

5" 

12"

1
0

" 
/ 
1
2

"

C1 C1

16

TYP.

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

23 59

1012 13 18 217

3

23
DS DS

1
0

" 
/ 
1
2

"

5" 

12"

C1C1C1

16

TYP.

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

21

23 591717

CL
2 3

110 1113 18

DSDSDS

4'-0"4'-0"

B1B1B1B1

16

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

TYP.

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

23 59

1012 13 18 217

3

23
DS DS

5" 

12"

16

1
0

" 
/ 
1
2

"

C1C1C1

TYP.

0 12' 18' 24'

3/32" = 1'-0"

30'

REVISIONS

NOTE!!!
THIS DRAWING IS NOT 
FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 #
:

p
h
o
n
e

fa
x

m
p

g
-a

rc
h

it
e
c
ts

.c
o

m

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.5

7
7
0

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.8

8
1
2

3
6
6
0
 E

m
b
a
s
s
y
 P

a
rk

w
a
y

F
a
ir
la

w
n
, 
O

H
 4

4
3
3
3

-

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
S

 -
B

LD
G

S
. D

7,
 D

8,
 D

11
, D

12

A2.15

T
H

E
 H

A
M

P
T

O
N

S
 A

T
 T

H
E

 H
E

IG
H

T
S

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 B
O

U
L
E

V
A

R
D

H
U

B
E

R
 H

E
IG

H
T

S
, 
O

H
IO

 4
5
4
2
4

1
3
2
2

D
A

T
E

: 
  
M

A
R

C
H

 2
, 
2
0
2
2

GENERAL NOTES - ELEVATIONS
1. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONED CONDITIONS IN THE FIELD. WHEN DIMENSIONS AND/OR

CONDITIONS AS INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS CONFLICT WITH ACTUAL, CONTACT
THE ARCHITECT FOR CLARIFICATION.

2. COORDINATE ALL EXTERIOR FINISH MATERIALS, STYLES, AND COLORS WITH
OWNER.

3. REFER TO STRUCTURAL DETAILS FOR TYPICAL EXPANSION AND CONTROL JOINT
CONSTRUCTION.

FLAG NOTES - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
1 APPROXIMATE FINISHED GRADE, SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS

2 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM GUTTER; K-STYLE, TYP.   SLOPE 1/16" PER 12" MINIMUM TO
DOWNSPOUTS.

3 3x4 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM HEAVY-DUTY COMMERCIAL GRADE DOWNSPOUT.

4 TYPICAL FASCIA TRIM - ALUM CLAD 2x6 WITH ALUM DRIP EDGE, TYP UNO.

5 ARCHITECTURAL FIBERGLASS SHINGLE ROOF PER ASSEMBLY AND SPECS.

6 VINYL TRIM BAND, SIZE AS INDICATED.

7 FIBER CEMENT PANEL (PRE-ROCK AT ELECTRICAL GEAR); LOCATE JOINTS BEHIND
BRACKETS AND/OR TRIM AND FLASH ALL HORIZONTAL JOINTS IN PANEL SIDING PER
MFR.  TEXTURE TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER.  GC TO COORDINATE LOCATIONS IN
FIELD PRIOR TO ROUGH-IN.

9 CONTINUOUS RIDGE VENT TO MATCH ROOF SHINGLES, TYP.

10 WINDOW PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.  PROVIDE 4" NOMINAL TRIM AROUND ALL
FRONT AND HIGH PROFILE (HP) LOCATIONS.

11 DOOR PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.

12 DECORATIVE LIGHT FIXTURE, TYP. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.

13 PREMIUM VINYL DUTCH LAP SIDING - 5" EXPOSURE.  COORDINATE FINAL COLOR(S)
WITH OWNER.

14 VINYL BOARD ON BATTEN: 2" BATTEN AT 12" O.C., COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

15 PREMIUM VINYL SHAKE SIDING.  COORDINATE FINAL STYLE & COLOR(S) WITH
OWNER.

16 MANUFACTURED STONE VENEER, REFER TO DETAILS FOR MORE INFORMATION.
COORDINATE FINAL COLOR, SIZE, AND STYLE WITH OWNER.

17 NO OPENINGS OR PENETRATIONS WITHIN MIN. 4'-0" OF EITHER SIDE OF 2-HOUR
FIRE RATED WALL, TYP.

18 4" NOMINAL VINYL CORNER TRIM, COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

20 OVERHEAD DOOR, COLOR BY OWNER. REFER TO SCHEDULE.

21 A/C UNIT, TYP. REFER TO PLANS AND MECHANICAL DRAWINGS.

23 DECORATIVE COLUMN OVER WOOD POST/COLUMN, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

24 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF ACCENT, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

25 DECORATIVE VENT AND BRACKETS, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"1 BUILDINGS 'D7', 'D8', 'D11' & 'D12' - FRONT

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"3 BUILDINGS 'D11' & 'D12'- REAR

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"5 BUILDINGS 'D7', 'D8', 'D11' & 'D12' - LEFT ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"4 BUILDINGS 'D7', 'D8', & 'D12' - RIGHT

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"2 BUILDINGS 'D7' & 'D8' - REAR - HP

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"6 BUILDING 'D11' - RIGHT - HP



INDICATES DOOR TYPE - REFER TO SHEET A6.1 FOR DOOR SCHEDULE & 
DOOR/FRAME MATERIALS & ELEVATIONS

TYPICAL SECTION AND DETAIL FLAGS:

REFERS TO SECTION OR ELEVATION NUMBER

REFERS TO DRAWING SHEET NUMBER

DATUM POINT, INDICATES ELEVATION

101-1

INDICATES WINDOW TYPE, REFER TO SHEET A6.3 FOR WINDOW ELEVATIONSA

SYMBOL LEGEND

DOWNSPOUT, SEE DETAILS
DS

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1

2 34 56 9

10 11 1213

14

16 1820

CL
5

1 1618 20

2 5 914

16152323

6

2x8

6

2x8 2x8

DS
DS

DS
DS

11

DS
DS DS

17 17

CL
17 17

D2

4'-0" 4'-0" 4'-0"4'-0"

B1B1
B1

10" 

12" 10" 

12"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

16" BREAK

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

4'-0"4'-0"4'-0" 4'-0"

1

2 35 9

1011 1318

5

118

259

2121 23 18 13

DS
DS

DS

9 9

DS

CL
1717

CL
1717

TYP.

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

5
" 

/ 
1
2

"

B1C1C1B1B1

E1
E1

B1 C1 C1

16" BREAK

10" 

12"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

118

25 9

2112 16

4 6

141 7 13

2x8

DS DS

3 9

10

DSDS

23

TYP.

1
'-
4

"

C1C1

5" 

12"

FIRST FLOOR
0'-0"

TRUSS BEARING 2
9'-1 1/8"

1 18

2 59

21 1216

46

14 1713

2x8

DSDS

39

10

DS

TYP.

5" 

12"

C1 C1

0 12' 18' 24'

3/32" = 1'-0"

30'

REVISIONS

NOTE!!!
THIS DRAWING IS NOT 
FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 #
:

p
h
o
n
e

fa
x

m
p

g
-a

rc
h

it
e
c
ts

.c
o

m

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.5

7
7
0

3
3
0
.6

6
6
.8

8
1
2

3
6
6
0
 E

m
b
a
s
s
y
 P

a
rk

w
a
y

F
a
ir
la

w
n
, 
O

H
 4

4
3
3
3

-

E
X

T
E

R
IO

R
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

S
 -

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 D
1

3

A2.17

T
H

E
 H

A
M

P
T

O
N

S
 A

T
 T

H
E

 H
E

IG
H

T
S

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 B
O

U
L
E

V
A

R
D

H
U

B
E

R
 H

E
IG

H
T

S
, 
O

H
IO

 4
5
4
2
4

1
3
2
2

D
A

T
E

: 
  
M

A
R

C
H

 2
, 
2
0
2
2

GENERAL NOTES - ELEVATIONS
1. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONED CONDITIONS IN THE FIELD. WHEN DIMENSIONS AND/OR

CONDITIONS AS INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS CONFLICT WITH ACTUAL, CONTACT
THE ARCHITECT FOR CLARIFICATION.

2. COORDINATE ALL EXTERIOR FINISH MATERIALS, STYLES, AND COLORS WITH
OWNER.

3. REFER TO STRUCTURAL DETAILS FOR TYPICAL EXPANSION AND CONTROL JOINT
CONSTRUCTION.

FLAG NOTES - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
1 APPROXIMATE FINISHED GRADE, SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS

2 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM GUTTER; K-STYLE, TYP.   SLOPE 1/16" PER 12" MINIMUM TO
DOWNSPOUTS.

3 3x4 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM HEAVY-DUTY COMMERCIAL GRADE DOWNSPOUT.

4 TYPICAL FASCIA TRIM - ALUM CLAD 2x6 WITH ALUM DRIP EDGE, TYP UNO.

5 ARCHITECTURAL FIBERGLASS SHINGLE ROOF PER ASSEMBLY AND SPECS.

6 VINYL TRIM BAND, SIZE AS INDICATED.

7 FIBER CEMENT PANEL (PRE-ROCK AT ELECTRICAL GEAR); LOCATE JOINTS BEHIND
BRACKETS AND/OR TRIM AND FLASH ALL HORIZONTAL JOINTS IN PANEL SIDING PER
MFR.  TEXTURE TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER.  GC TO COORDINATE LOCATIONS IN
FIELD PRIOR TO ROUGH-IN.

9 CONTINUOUS RIDGE VENT TO MATCH ROOF SHINGLES, TYP.

10 WINDOW PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.  PROVIDE 4" NOMINAL TRIM AROUND ALL
FRONT AND HIGH PROFILE (HP) LOCATIONS.

11 DOOR PER SCHEDULE, TYP. SEE PLANS.

12 DECORATIVE LIGHT FIXTURE, TYP. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.

13 PREMIUM VINYL DUTCH LAP SIDING - 5" EXPOSURE.  COORDINATE FINAL COLOR(S)
WITH OWNER.

14 VINYL BOARD ON BATTEN: 2" BATTEN AT 12" O.C., COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

15 PREMIUM VINYL SHAKE SIDING.  COORDINATE FINAL STYLE & COLOR(S) WITH
OWNER.

16 MANUFACTURED STONE VENEER, REFER TO DETAILS FOR MORE INFORMATION.
COORDINATE FINAL COLOR, SIZE, AND STYLE WITH OWNER.

17 NO OPENINGS OR PENETRATIONS WITHIN MIN. 4'-0" OF EITHER SIDE OF 2-HOUR
FIRE RATED WALL, TYP.

18 4" NOMINAL VINYL CORNER TRIM, COLOR(S) BY OWNER.

20 OVERHEAD DOOR, COLOR BY OWNER. REFER TO SCHEDULE.

21 A/C UNIT, TYP. REFER TO PLANS AND MECHANICAL DRAWINGS.

23 DECORATIVE COLUMN OVER WOOD POST/COLUMN, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

24 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF ACCENT, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

25 DECORATIVE VENT AND BRACKETS, COLOR AND STYLE BY OWNER.

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"1 BUILDING 'D13' - FRONT

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"2 BUILDING 'D13' - REAR

ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"3 BUILDING 'D13' - RIGHTELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0"4 BUILDING 'D13' - LEFT



POTENTIAL
EMERGENCY
ACCESS

DRAWN BY

SHEET NUMBER

CHECKED BY

PROJECT No.

FILE NAME

DATE

REVISIONS:

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
S

 
A

T
 
T

H
E

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

S

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
H

U
B

E
R

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

S

w
w

w
.
C
H

O
I
C
E
O

N
E
E
N

G
I
N

E
E
R
I
N

G
.
c
o
m

S
I
D

N
E
Y
,
 
O

H
I
O

 
 
9
3
7
.
4
9
7
.
0
2
0
0

L
O

V
E
L
A
N

D
,
 
O

H
I
O

 
 
 
5
1
3
.
2
3
9
.
8
5
5
4

W
E

S
T

 
S

C
H

E
M

A
T

I
C

 
P

L
A

N

HIGHPOINT LANE

A
B

IG
A

IL
S

 P
A

T
H

L
O

C
K

W
O

O
D

 
L

A
N

E

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 
B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D

GARDNERS PATH



DRAWN BY

SHEET NUMBER

CHECKED BY

PROJECT No.

FILE NAME

DATE

REVISIONS:

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
S

 
A

T
 
T

H
E

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

S

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
H

U
B

E
R

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

S

w
w

w
.
C
H

O
I
C
E
O

N
E
E
N

G
I
N

E
E
R
I
N

G
.
c
o
m

S
I
D

N
E
Y
,
 
O

H
I
O

 
 
9
3
7
.
4
9
7
.
0
2
0
0

L
O

V
E
L
A
N

D
,
 
O

H
I
O

 
 
 
5
1
3
.
2
3
9
.
8
5
5
4

E
A

S
T

 
S

C
H

E
M

A
T

I
C

 
P

L
A

N

H

I
G

H

P

O

I
N

T
 
L

A

N

E

G
A

R
D

N
E

R
S

 
P

A
T

H

G
A

R
D

N
E

R
S

 
P

A
T

H

E

X

E

C

U

T

I

V

E

 

B

O

U

L

E

V

A

R

D



DRAWN BY

SHEET NUMBER

CHECKED BY

PROJECT No.

FILE NAME

DATE

REVISIONS:

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
S

 
A

T
 
T

H
E

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

S

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
H

U
B

E
R

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

S

w
w

w
.
C
H

O
I
C
E
O

N
E
E
N

G
I
N

E
E
R
I
N

G
.
c
o
m

S
I
D

N
E
Y
,
 
O

H
I
O

 
 
9
3
7
.
4
9
7
.
0
2
0
0

L
O

V
E
L
A
N

D
,
 
O

H
I
O

 
 
 
5
1
3
.
2
3
9
.
8
5
5
4

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
W

E
S

T
 
G

R
A

D
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

AFTER FINAL GRADING IS COMPLETE
IT IS THE CONTRACTOR
RESPONSIBILITY TO ENSURE ALL
OFFSITE GRADING IS DONE TO
PROVIDE POSITIVE DRAINAGE TO
ALL OUTLET STRUCTURES. NO
DRAINAGE OBSTRUCTIONS WILL BE
PERMITTED.

HIGHPOINT LANE

A
B

IG
A

IL
S

 P
A

T
H

L
O

C
K

W
O

O
D

 
L

A
N

E

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 
B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D

G
A

R
D

N
E

R
S

 
P

A
T

H



DRAWN BY

SHEET NUMBER

CHECKED BY

PROJECT No.

FILE NAME

DATE

REVISIONS:

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
S

 
A

T
 
T

H
E

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

S

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
H

U
B

E
R

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

S

w
w

w
.
C
H

O
I
C
E
O

N
E
E
N

G
I
N

E
E
R
I
N

G
.
c
o
m

S
I
D

N
E
Y
,
 
O

H
I
O

 
 
9
3
7
.
4
9
7
.
0
2
0
0

L
O

V
E
L
A
N

D
,
 
O

H
I
O

 
 
 
5
1
3
.
2
3
9
.
8
5
5
4

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
E

A
S

T
 
G

R
A

D
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

AFTER FINAL GRADING IS COMPLETE
IT IS THE CONTRACTOR
RESPONSIBILITY TO ENSURE ALL
OFFSITE GRADING IS DONE TO
PROVIDE POSITIVE DRAINAGE TO
ALL OUTLET STRUCTURES. NO
DRAINAGE OBSTRUCTIONS WILL BE
PERMITTED.

HIGHPOINT LANE
G

A
R

D
N

E
R

S
 
P

A
T

H

G
A

R
D

N
E

R
S

 
P

A
T

H



DRAWN BY

SHEET NUMBER

CHECKED BY

PROJECT No.

FILE NAME

DATE

REVISIONS:

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
W

E
S

T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
S

 
A

T
 
T

H
E

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

S

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
H

U
B

E
R

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

S

w
w

w
.
C
H

O
I
C
E
O

N
E
E
N

G
I
N

E
E
R
I
N

G
.
c
o
m

S
I
D

N
E
Y
,
 
O

H
I
O

 
 
9
3
7
.
4
9
7
.
0
2
0
0

L
O

V
E
L
A
N

D
,
 
O

H
I
O

 
 
 
5
1
3
.
2
3
9
.
8
5
5
4

HIGHPOINT LANE

A
B

IG
A

IL
S

 P
A

T
H

L
O

C
K

W
O

O
D

 
L

A
N

E

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 
B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D



DRAWN BY

SHEET NUMBER

CHECKED BY

PROJECT No.

FILE NAME

DATE

REVISIONS:

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
E

A
S

T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
S

 
A

T
 
T

H
E

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

S

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
H

U
B

E
R

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

S

w
w

w
.
C
H

O
I
C
E
O

N
E
E
N

G
I
N

E
E
R
I
N

G
.
c
o
m

S
I
D

N
E
Y
,
 
O

H
I
O

 
 
9
3
7
.
4
9
7
.
0
2
0
0

L
O

V
E
L
A
N

D
,
 
O

H
I
O

 
 
 
5
1
3
.
2
3
9
.
8
5
5
4

HIGHPOINT LANE

G

A

R

D

N

E
R

S
 
P

A

T
H



DRAWN BY

SHEET NUMBER

CHECKED BY

PROJECT No.

FILE NAME

DATE

REVISIONS:

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
E

N
T

R
I
E

S

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
S

 
A

T
 
T

H
E

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

S

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
H

U
B

E
R

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

S

w
w

w
.
C
H

O
I
C
E
O

N
E
E
N

G
I
N

E
E
R
I
N

G
.
c
o
m

S
I
D

N
E
Y
,
 
O

H
I
O

 
 
9
3
7
.
4
9
7
.
0
2
0
0

L
O

V
E
L
A
N

D
,
 
O

H
I
O

 
 
 
5
1
3
.
2
3
9
.
8
5
5
4



COMMERCIAL STRONG ARM DOUBLE GATE

LATCH OR EQUIVALENT

CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE AND INSTALL

TRASH CONTAINER

GATE HOLD OPEN

GRADE

CONC. FILLED

FIELD PAINT PRIMER

PLASTIC COVER

(BROWN)

6" DIA. STEEL BOLLARD

6/AL-401

LATCH PROVIDED

BY OWNER

2" MIN. SQ. TUBING

SOLID METAL PANEL W/ BRACING;

DARK BRONZE FINISH; PROVIDED BY OWNER,

CONTRACTOR TO INSTALL

DROP ANCHOR

PROVIDED BY OWNER

CONC.  PAD

SOLID METAL PANEL W/ BRACE; DARK

BRONZE FINISH; PROVIDED BY OWNER,

CONTRACTOR TO INSTALL

RUNNING BOND

PATTERN W/ RAKE

JOINT (ANTIQUE RED

COLOR)

SOLDIER COURSE, TYP.

(ANTIQUE RED COLOR)

CONC.  PAD

6" CONCRETE PAD

6" CONCRETE PAD

CONC.  PAD

6" CONCRETE PAD

RUNNING BOND PATTERN

W/ RAKE JOINT (ANTIQUE

RED COLOR)

3" SERVICE GATE LATCH POST TO BE PROVIDED BY

CONTRACTOR; TO BE PAINTED DARK BRONZE AFTER INSTALL

LATCH PROVIDED BY

OWNER

SOLDIER COURSE, TYP.

(ANTIQUE RED COLOR)

NOTE:

ALL DOMES ON FENCE POSTS

ARE TO BE FASTENED SO THAT

THEY CAN NOT BE REMOVED.

CONC. PAD

SERV.

GATE

T
Y

P
.

INSTALL GATE HOLD OPENER

LATCH WITH CLAMPS. LATCH

& CLAMPS SUPPLIED BY

OWNER. (SEE DETAIL 6)

INSTALL GATE HOLD OPENER

LATCH WITH CLAMPS. LATCH

& CLAMPS SUPPLIED BY

OWNER. (SEE DETAIL 6)

6" BOLLARD TYP.

2/AL-401

4/AL-401

3
/
A

L
-
4
0
1

5
/
A

L
-
4
0
1

4" BLOCK

TYP.

4" BLOCK

TYP.

4" BLOCK

TYP.

REDSTONE

BRICK TYP.

REDSTONE

BRICK TYP.

6" BOLLARD TYP.

NO COVER

6" BOLLARD TYP.

NO COVER

6" BOLLARD TYP.

NO COVER

INSTALL GATE DROP ANCHOR SUPPLIED

BY OWNER FOR CLOSED POSITION ONLY.

SERV. GATE

(VERIFY LEFT OR RIGHT SIDE)

LATCH PROVIDED BY OWNER

 DUMPSTER

 DUMPSTER

 POSSIBLE

GREASE

DUMPSTER

LOCATION

1.5%

DRAINAGE

TYP.

7/AL-401

LOCATE TANK STICK ON MOUNTED 4

HOOKS PROVIDED BY OWNER.

CO2 TANK LOCATION ON

STORE SIDE IF IN DUMPSTER;

COORDINATE CONDUIT LOCATION TO

STORE WITH TANK LOCATION

 TANK

HOLE IN CONCRETE FOR

DROP DOWN ANCHOR

BRICK TO WRAP ACROSS

FRONT OF WALL

CONCRETE FOOTING; 18" DIA. AT POST WITH

SERVICE GATE AND 12" DIA. AT OTHER GATE

POST; POST FOOTINGS TO TERMINATE

BELOW PAVEMENT

STEEL DARK BRONZE CAP SEE DETAIL 9;

BY OWNER, CONTRACTOR TO INSTALL

TWO (2) 6" SCH. 40 FRONT GATE POST W/ DOME CAP TO

BE EMBEDDED IN CONCRETE FOOTING MIN 3' OR FROST

DEPTH; CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE; POST TO BE PAINTED

DARK BRONZE AFTER INSTALL

HINGE TYP. BY OWNER

HINGE TYP. BY OWNER

DRAWN BY

SHEET NUMBER

CHECKED BY

PROJECT No.

FILE NAME

DATE

REVISIONS:

D
U

M
P

S
T

E
R

 
E

N
C

L
O

S
U

R
E

 
D

E
T

A
I
L

S

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
S

 
A

T
 
T

H
E

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

S

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
H

U
B

E
R

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

S

w
w

w
.
C
H

O
I
C
E
O

N
E
E
N

G
I
N

E
E
R
I
N

G
.
c
o
m

S
I
D

N
E
Y
,
 
O

H
I
O

 
 
9
3
7
.
4
9
7
.
0
2
0
0

L
O

V
E
L
A
N

D
,
 
O

H
I
O

 
 
 
5
1
3
.
2
3
9
.
8
5
5
4



EXECUTIVE BLVD

LE
HM

AN
 L

AN
E

R/
W

 W
ID

TH
 V

AR
IE

S

0.374 ACRES
TO BE DEDICATED

HERE ON

BR
AN

DT
 P

IK
E 

(S
.R

. 2
01

)
R/

W
 W

ID
TH

 V
AR

IE
S

LOT
40.407 AC.

LOT
2.286 AC.

EXECUTIVE BLVD (R
/W WIDTH VARIES)

SC
AT

LE
R 

RO
OT

 P
L.

JOB NUMBER:

DRAWN BY:

DATE:

SHEET NUMBER

OF

LOVELAND, OHIO   513.239.8554

SIDNEY, OHIO   937.497.0200

www.CHOICEONEENGINEERING.com

R/W DEDICATION DETAIL
1"=40'

SEE R/W DEDICATION DETAIL

LEGEND
BR

AN
DT

 P
IK

E

ACREAGE SUMMARY

RECORD PLAN

LEHMAN PLAT

PERTINENT INFORMATION



JOB NUMBER:

DRAWN BY:

DATE:

SHEET NUMBER

OF

PLAT AUTHORIZATION AND DEDICATION

DESCRIPTION

LOVELAND, OHIO   513.239.8554

SIDNEY, OHIO   937.497.0200

www.CHOICEONEENGINEERING.com

VICINITY MAP
APPROVALS

APPROVED FOR DESCRIPTION ONLY

PROJECT

AREA
BR

AN
DT

 P
IK

E

SHULL ROAD

I-70

OCCUPATION STATEMENT

CERTIFICATION

SUPERIMPOSED AREA NOTE:

EXECUTIVE BLVD

RECORD PLAN

LEHMAN PLAT

BR
AN

DT
 P

IK
E

SHULL ROAD

I-70

CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
LOT          
40.407 AC.

CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
0.374 ACRES

TO BE DEDICATED
HERE ON

EXECUTIVE BLVD

CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
LOT          
2.286 AC.



BR
AN

DT
 P

IK
E 

(S
.R

. 2
01

)
R/

W
 W

ID
TH

 V
AR

IE
S

TRACT 2
1.038 AC.

TRACT 1
8.234 AC.

EXECUTIVE BLVD (R
/W WIDTH VARIES)

JOB NUMBER:

DRAWN BY:

DATE:

SHEET NUMBER

OF

LOVELAND, OHIO   513.239.8554

SIDNEY, OHIO   937.497.0200

www.CHOICEONEENGINEERING.com

VICINITY MAP

PROJECT

AREA

PERTINENT INFORMATION

BR
AN

DT
 P

IK
E 

(S
.R

. 2
01

)

BR
AN

DT
 P

IK
E

SHULL ROAD

I-70

PLAT OF SURVEY

OCCUPATION STATEMENT

CERTIFICATION

LEGEND

EXECUTIVE BLVD

CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS ADMINISTRATOR



                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 

 

 
Administrative  Office:  7008 Brandt  Pike Hu ber Heights ,  Ohio  45424  

Telephone:   (937)  233 -  1564      Fax Number:  (937)  233 -  4520  

 

 Huber Heights Fire Division 
          

 

 

Inspections require two business days advance notice! (OAC)1301:7-7-09(A)(5) 
 
 
 

Occupancy Name: The Hamptons at the Heights 

Occupancy Address: 7125 Executive Boulevard 

 

Type of Permit: HHP&D Site Plan 

Additional Permits: Choose an item. 

Additional Permits: Choose an item. 

 

MCBR BLD: Not Yet Assigned HH P&D:  

MCBR MEC:  HHFD  Plan: 22-051 

MCBR ELE:  HHFD Box:  

REVIEWER: Susong DATE: 3/25/2022 
 

Fire Department Comments: 
The Huber Heights City Code Part 15 Refers to Fire Code Requirements and has adopted by reference OFC and IFC Appendices 

These comments are based only on the proposed site work, fire department 
access and basic fire protection concept at this time. A full plan review of the 

building systems, fire protection, egress and life safety will need to be conducted 
once the architectural plans have been submitted. The proposed development 
will need to meet the requirements of the Ohio Fire Code 2017, Ohio Building 

Code 2017 and the Huber Heights Codified Ordinance.  Based on the drawings 
provided the following requirements need to be met. 

Requirements: 

• Hydrants in multi-family and commercial districts shall be placed not more 
than 300 feet apart, measured on the main and not more than 400 feet from 
any opening in any building.  All new fire hydrants and any existing fire 
hydrants that are in need of replacement, shall meet the Huber Heights 
hydrant standard for this district of two (2), five (5) inch diameter steamer 
nozzles.  These steamer nozzles shall have a five (5) inch STORTZ quick 
connection and one steamer shall have a four (4) inch STORTZ connection 
approved by the Code Official.  Huber Heights Codified Ordinance 
1521.06(c). (Current layout does not appear to meet the 300 feet spacing.) 



Plans reviewed by the Huber Heights Fire Division are reviewed with the intent they comply in ALL respects to this code, 
as prescribed in SECTION (D) 104.1 of the 2017 Ohio Fire Code. Any omissions or errors on the plans or in this review 
do not relieve the applicant of complying with ALL applicable requirements of this code. These plans have been reviewed 
for compliance with the Ohio Fire Code adopted by this jurisdiction. There may be other regulations applicable under 
local, state, or federal statues and codes, which this department has no authority to enforce and therefore have not been 
evaluated as part of this plan review. 
 

• If buildings are required to be sprinklered at least one fire hydrant shall be 
provided within 75 feet of the fire department connection for each building. 
Huber Heights Codified Ordinance 1521.01(e).  

• Unobstructed access to fire hydrants shall be maintained at all times. The 
fire department shall not be deterred or hindered from gaining immediate 
access to fire protection equipment or fire hydrants. Ohio Fire Code 
507.5.4. (See below.) 

• A 3-foot (914 mm) clear space shall be maintained around the 
circumference of fire hydrants except as otherwise required or approved. 
(No trees, bushes, plantings, etc.) Ohio Fire Code 507.5.5. 

• The water supply shall be capable of providing required fire flows for fire 
protection.  Ohio Fire Code 507.1 & 507.3.  Calculations and findings will 
need to be determined and provided. (Refer to Ohio Fire Code Appendix B 
for required flows.)  

• Fire apparatus access roads shall have an unobstructed width of not less 
than 20 feet, exclusive of shoulders, except for approved security gates 
and an unobstructed vertical height for fire apparatus access roads shall 
be 13 feet 6 inches, in accordance with Ohio Fire Code 503.2.1. (Boulevard 
lanes may need to be widened depending on proposed size.) 

• Fire department access roads shall be capable of supporting the imposed 
load of fire apparatus weighing up to 75,000 lbs. Refer to Ohio Fire Code 
Appendix D102.1.  

• If required, fire department connections shall be located on the street side 
of buildings, fully visible and recognizable from the street or nearest point 
of fire department vehicle access or otherwise approved by the fire code 
official. Ohio Fire Code 912.2.1.  

• If required, immediate access to fire department connections shall be 
maintained at all times and without obstruction by fences, bushes, trees, 
walls or any other fixed or moveable object. Access to fire department 
connections shall be approved by the fire code official. Ohio Fire Code 
912.4.  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Please reference contact information below for questions or concerns with this document. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 

 

 
Administrative  Office:  7008 Brandt  Pike Hu ber Heights ,  Ohio  45424  

Telephone:   (937)  233 -  1564      Fax Number:  (937)  233 -  4520  

 

 Huber Heights Fire Division 
          

  



Memorandum
Staff Report for Meeting of March 29, 2022

To:                 Huber Heights City Planning Commission

From:             Aaron K. Sorrell, Interim City Planner
Community Planning Insights

Date:             March 22, 2022

Subject:         BDP 22-12 “Hamptons at the Heights”
Rezoning and Basic Development Plan

Application dated March 15, 2022

Department of Planning and Zoning                        City of Huber Heights

APPLICANT/OWNER: Horizon Line Development - Applicant
City of Huber Heights - Owner

DEVELOPMENT NAME: Hamptons at the Heights

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 7125 Executive Boulevard

ZONING/ACREAGE: PEP - Planned Employment Park / ~43 Acres

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant land / Agriculture

ZONING
ADJACENT LAND: A & PM – North; PM – South; A – East; 

R-7 & PEP - West

REQUEST:                                   The applicant requests approval of a rezoning from 
Planned Employment Park to Planned Mixed Use; 
and approval of a Basic Development Plan containing 
a mix of residential and commercial uses. 

ORIGINAL APPROVAL:              N/A

APPLICABLE HHCC:    Chapter 1171, 1179

CORRESPONDENCE:               In Favor – None received
                                           In Opposition – None received



STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION:

Overview:
The applicant is requesting approval for a rezoning of approximately 43 acres from 
Planned Employment Park to Planned Mixed Use, to facilitate the construction of 197 
residential townhome apartments and five commercial out lots.

Applicable Zoning Regulations
The appliable zoning chapters include: 1171 General Provisions, 1179 Planned Mixed 
Use District, 1181 General Provisions, 1189 Signs. The relevant sections are citied and 
discussed below: 

Chapter 1171 General Provisions

1171.01 Purpose.

Planned Unit Developments Districts may be permitted as amendments to the zoning map, after 
application and approval of specific and detailed plans, where tracts suitable in location and character 
for the uses and structures proposed are to be planned and developed as units. The provisions of this 
chapter are adopted to unify planning and development in such districts. Applications for rezoning of 
land into a Planned Unit Development District shall be granted only when the basic development plan for 
the project is such that the public health, safety and morals shall not be jeopardized by a departure from 
the restrictions on corresponding uses in the standard zoning district. PUD rezonings may be approved 
only when a basic development plan for the area has been approved by Council. A detailed development 
plan shall then be approved for zoning permit to be approved for development in the District. Normally 
the detailed development plan shall be approved by the Planning Commission after the rezoning and 
basic development plan have been approved by Council. Owners shall have the option however, of 
submitting a combined basic and detailed development plan ("combined development plan") if they 
should so desire for some or all of the site. 

(Ord. 93-O-602, Passed 3-22-93)

1171.05 Contents of basic development plan.

(a) The basic development plan shall consist of at least the following information together with such 
other data and materials as may be required by the City: 

(1) Site plan showing the actual shape and dimensions of the lot to be built upon or to be changed 
in its use together with the location of the existing and proposed structures with approximate 
square footages, number of stories including heights of structures; 

(2) Typical elevation views of the front and side of each type of building; 

(3) Planning location and dimensions of all proposed drives, service access road, sidewalks and 
curb openings; 

(4) Parking lot areas (show dimensions of a typical parking space), unloading areas, fire lanes and 
handicapped parking; 

(5) Landscaping plan, walls and fences; 

(6) Storm water detention and surface drainage; 



(7) Exterior lighting plan; 

(8) Vehicular circulation pattern; 

(9) Location and square footage of signs; 

(10) Topographic survey; and 

(11) Listing of proposed uses taken from the list of permitted and special uses of the PUD zoning 
district to which rezoning is being sought. 

(b) The Planning Commission shall schedule both the proposed rezoning and the issue of approval of 
the basic development plan for a combined public hearing, following which it shall make its 
recommendation indicating approval, approval with modification or disapproval. 

(Ord. 2006-O-1655, Passed 9-25-05)

Development Standards Analysis:

1179.06 Development standards.

Except when specifically modified herein, the provisions of the Planning and Zoning Code 
shall govern. The following development standards apply to a PM development:

(a)  Minimum Land Area Requirement. A minimum of 20 acres shall be required.

The area proposed to be rezoned to PM is approximately 35 acres. 

(b)  Covenants. The developer of a PM development shall be required to submit a set 
of covenants or deed restrictions with the Basic Development Plan application that will 
outline, at a minimum, development standards and guidelines established in this chapter 
and any other requirements the developer and/or Planning Commission deems 
necessary. The Planning Commission may require additional or amended covenants as 
it deems necessary to ensure compliance with the Planning and Zoning Code and the 
Planned Mixed-Use District.

The applicant has proposed development and use standards that are generally consistent 
with the applicable zoning regulations.  Staff would like to see the following revisions:

 Residential garage openings shall be set back at least 20-feet from the back of the 
sidewalk. (It appears this is the case in most instances; however, the drawings are 
not dimensioned and to the greatest extent possible staff desire to limit the 
overhang of vehicles into the sidewalk pathways).

 The following proposed permitted non-residential uses should be eliminated from 
permitted use list:

o Filling stations
o Sweepstakes cafes
o Convenience store
o Self-Storage – Indoor Climate Controlled
o Car Wash



(c)  Required Mix of Land Uses. A developer shall be required to provide a mix of land 
uses in a PM Development. At a minimum, at least two of the following uses are required 
in a PM Development: residential, commercial, office, institutional, and/or industrial. 

The area contains a mixture of residential, commercial and office uses.

(d)  Site Planning.

(1)  The combination of different uses, whether as part of one building or as part of the 
overall development, shall be designed and developed so as not to create a nuisance by 
excessive noise, light, vibration, odor or any other annoyances for any uses within the 
development or neighboring properties.

This site is located along a well-traveled thoroughfare, surrounded by residential uses to 
the north and west, commercial uses to the south, and Carriage Hill MetroPark to the 
east.  The vast majority of the proposed land uses are residential and are located adjacent 
to other residential uses.  The proposed commercial out lots, which will likely have more 
intensive uses, are appropriated located to front Executive Boulevard. 

(2)  A PM development is to be designed so that buildings and structures are clustered 
and open space areas are preserved and maintained. Special care shall be given to 
protect preexisting natural features including, but not limited to, woodlands, ravines, 
streams, lakes, ponds, and/or flood plains. Impervious surface coverage, including, but 
not limited to, buildings, parking area, and accessways, shall not exceed 75 percent of 
the total development area. Therefore, 25 percent of the development area shall be 
reserved for green space.

Commodity crop production is the current use of the site, and few natural features exist.  
There is a small drainage stream that bisects the site near the southwest corner, which 
crosses under Executive Boulevard and ultimately into Drylick Run Creek.  The proposed 
development plan appears to limit the impact on the drainage stream.  

In general, the site slopes west to east.  Two onsite and one offsite stormwater basins will 
provide for stormwater management.  The stormwater basins are designed to be wet 
basins, which will provide an attractive landscape amenity. 

(3)  The number of ingress and egress points onto the public streets shall be limited in 
order to reduce the number of traffic conflict points. Adequate and properly arranged 
facilities for internal pedestrian and traffic circulations shall be provided. The street and 
thoroughfare network shall be designed to minimize truck traffic through residential areas 
of the development.

This development will have two entrances from Executive Boulevard that are aligned and 
spaced in a manner where little traffic conflict points should exist. Interior sidewalks and 
walking trails are proposed for pedestrian circulation.  As the commercial spaces are 
developed sidewalks along the north side of Executive Boulevard should be constructed 
to provide pedestrian connections to the amenities near and along Executive Boulevard.  



(4)  Parking systems shall be designed so as to discourage single large unbroken 
paved lots for off-street parking and shall encourage smaller defined parking areas within 
the total parking system. Underground parking facilities are encouraged.

Parking for the residential units is provided by what appears to be a mixture of one-and 
two-car garages, along with driveway space.  The applicant is providing at least two 
spaces per unit for the residential development, including the driveway space. As 
previously stated, the setback from the garage face to the back of sidewalk for the 
residential units should be a minimum 20-feet.  

(5)  The development shall be designed to tie all the uses into one overall community 
and encourage walking, biking, running, and alternative modes of transportation. 
Developers are encouraged to incorporate bus stops, bikeways, walkways, and 
crosswalks into an overall thematic scheme for pedestrian traffic. Sidewalks shall be 
required except, in the case of a golf course or specific open space development, the 
Planning Commission may determine them to be unnecessary.

The proposal provides interior sidewalks and walking paths. Additional sidewalks should 
be constructed as the commercial lots are developed along Executive Boulevard to 
provide pedestrian access to the surrounding amenities. 

(6)      Any signs as proposed within this district, shall comply with Chapter 1189 "Signs". 
Additionally, a developer of a PM development shall develop and submit with the Detailed 
Development Plan application, a comprehensive set of graphic design criteria for signage 
in the development. This set of graphic design criteria for signage shall be approved by 
the Planning Commission and shall apply to all signage requests within the development. 
The criteria shall include, at a minimum, the sizes permitted (if different from Chapter 
1189), colors permitted, materials permitted, typefaces permitted, type size permitted, 
and permitted illumination. Compliance with the on-site comprehensive graphics shall be 
verified by the Zoning Administrator during the sign permit review process. 

A sign package was not submitted with the application; however, two monument signs 
are indicated on the landscaping plan.  Signs shall comply with Chapter 1189.

(7)  Minimum lot area, frontage and setback requirements may be varied to allow 
greater flexibility in design. However, the following shall be used as a guideline for 
development:

A.   With multiple buildings on a single property, entirely residential buildings shall be 
at least 15 feet from another entirely residential building and at least 50 feet from 
nonresidential or mixed-use buildings.

B.   With multiple buildings on a single property, nonresidential buildings or mixed-
use buildings shall be at least 20 feet or one-half the height of the taller building apart, 
whichever is greater from another nonresidential or mixed-use building.



C.   All nonresidential buildings or mixed-use buildings shall be set back at least 50 
feet or the height of the structure, whichever is greater, from any residential property or 
residential building, whichever is closer, and from the public right-of-way. This setback 
applies to multiple buildings on a single property, to development within a PM 
development, and where it abuts to adjacent property. 

The residential buildings are set back 15-feet from each residential building.  While the 
commercial out lots illustrate generic building footprints, plenty of land area exists to meet 
these setback requirements.  

(8) No maximum height restriction shall apply, except that the proposed 
development meets all Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), Dayton International 
Airport or Wright Patterson Air Force Base height or abatement requirements.

The residential buildings are approximately 20-feet tall.

(9)  Common parking areas and accessways shall be lighted adequately with light 
fixtures that shall be designed to reflect light away from adjoining properties. Special 
attention will be given to protect entirely residential structures from light emitted from 
nonresidential land uses.

The plans and renderings indicate a mixture of decorative light poles and wall sconce 
lighting throughout the residential development.  A lighting plan will be required at the 
detailed development plan phase. 

(10)   Nonresidential uses shall have trash containers and/or receptacles (including 
recycling containers) placed to the rear of all structures and shall be screened or 
enclosed on four sides with opening doors for the purpose of trash removal. The 
placement of trash containers and/or receptacles in multi-family residential 
developments shall be as inconspicuous as possible. The use of a wooden or vinyl 
fence structure, earth mound, or wall with an opaqueness of 100 percent and a height of 
12 inches above the top of the largest container is required.

The site plan indicates the trash receptacles will be fully enclosed where provided.

(11)   The architecture of nonresidential structures is encouraged to be unique yet 
similar in certain sections of the PM.

The architecture of the commercial structures is not indicated in the application, but will 
be reviewed at the time of the detailed development plan submission for each out 
building.

(12)   The distribution systems for utilities are required to be underground.

All utilities will be placed underground.



(13)   The use of privately owned open space and public dedicated park land is 
encouraged as part of a PM development. Privately owned open space shall be 
maintained by the developer or by a duly authorized owner's association.

The residential open space will be owned by the apartment development owner. 

(14)   The use of chain link fencing is prohibited. Additionally, on an entirely residential 
property, no fencing shall be permitted in the front yard, and, in the case of a corner lot, 
no fencing shall be permitted in the side yard with frontage to a public right-of-way. The 
covenants submitted by the developer shall establish the height requirements for 
fencing in the development. Fencing in a development shall be uniform in height in 
related use areas. On an entirely residential property, fence height shall not exceed six 
feet.

No on-site fencing is proposed

(15)   With the submission of a Basic Development Plan application, the applicant is 
required to submit a phasing plan that details when certain sections of the development 
will commence construction and when the sections will be complete.

A phasing plan was not submitted. 

1179.07 Landscaping.

To protect and promote a harmonious development that ensures a functional and logical 
arrangement of mixed uses, the effective and efficient use of landscaping and buffering 
is required. Therefore, a PM development shall include the following landscaping and 
buffering:

(a)  Development Landscaping. Within the PM development that is proposed, entirely 
residential buildings shall be screened from nonresidential and mixed-use buildings with 
a 20-foot-wide buffer strip that includes a six-foot-high earth mound, wooden or vinyl 
fence, wall, landscaping and/or mixture thereof that shall maintain an opaqueness of at 
least 80 percent year around. Parking areas, accessways, or any impervious surfaces 
are prohibited within this buffer strip. If planted materials are used, the screen must 
achieve the required height, width, and opaqueness within two years of planting. The 
use of pre-existing trees, natural features or amenities as part of this buffer is 
encouraged. The Planning Commission may approve some other arrangement of 
buffering if it determines that such an arrangement meets the intent of this requirement.

(b)  Perimeter Landscaping. In a section of a PM development that contains 
nonresidential, mixed use, or multi-family buildings that abut a neighboring property with 
a single-family residential zoning designation or in a PM development section that 
contains an entirely residential section that abuts a neighboring property with a 
commercial, office, or multi-family zoning designation, the perimeter of the section of the 
PM development shall be screened with a 25 foot wide buffer strip that includes a six 
foot high earth mound, wooden or vinyl fence, wall, landscaping and/or mixture thereof 
that shall maintain an opaqueness of at least 80 percent year-round. Parking areas, 



accessways or an impervious surfaces are prohibited within this buffer strip. If planted 
materials are used, the screen must achieve the required height, width, and 
opaqueness within two years of planting. The use of pre-existing trees, natural features 
or amenities as part of this buffer is encouraged. The Planning Commission may 
approve some other arrangement of buffering if it determines that such an arrangement 
meets the intent of this requirement. 

The applicant proposes to retain the existing trees along the north property line as a 
buffer, and the closest structure is approximately 80-feet from the property line.  Staff 
does not feel a 6-foot-high landscaping mound is warranted and would require the 
removal of existing trees. 

Along the west property line, the screening will be a mixture of evergreen and 
ornamental trees.  No mounding or fencing is proposed or required. 

(c)  Parking Lot Landscaping. All parking lots are required to have interior 
landscaped areas as outlined in Chapter 1185, "Parking and Loading".

The commercial out lots will be reviewed at the detailed development plan phase;
however, the covenants indicate the commercial developments will comply with Chapter 
1185. 

(d)  Street Tree Requirement. All frontage property within a PM development that 
abuts public rights-of-way and is developed with nonresidential, mixed use, and/or multi-
family buildings is required to have one street tree per 40 feet of frontage planted just 
outside of the street right-of-way. Unless determined to be inappropriate by the City 
Engineer, street trees shall be planted at least four feet from the edge of the sidewalk 
on private property. All frontage property within a PM development along a major 
collector or better as defined by the Huber Heights Thoroughfare Plan, no matter what 
use, shall meet this requirement. The type of tree and size shall be proposed by the 
developer at the Detailed Development Plan application stage and approved by the 
Planning Commission. A list of appropriate trees with required caliper is available in the 
City Engineer's Office. 

Street trees are indicated throughout the development.  Street trees will be required 
along Executive Boulevard as those sites are developed.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommend approval of the rezoning and Basic Development Plan to construct 197 
residential units and five commercial out lots.  Staff recommend the following conditions 
for approval:

1) The setback for the residential units shall be a minimum of 20-feet between the 
garage face and the back of the sidewalk.

2) The permitted uses shall exclude those recommended by staff.



3) The water mains and sanitary sewers shall be built to city standards and in 
easements.

4) The applicant shall submit a sign package consistent with Section 1189.
5) The applicant will comply will all Fire Code requirements, per the Huber Heights 

Fire Department.

Planning Commission Action

Planning Commission may take the following actions with a motion: 

1) Approve the rezoning and basic development plan with or without conditions;

2) Deny the rezoning and basic development plan (the Commission should state the 
specific reasons for denial); or 

3) Table the application.



BDP 22-12 – Decision Record

1

Planning Commission Decision Record

WHEREAS, on March 04, 2022, the applicant, Horizon Line Development, 
requested approval of a Rezoning and Basic Development Plan to Planned Mixed
(PM) for 35 acres at 7125 Executive Boulevard, Parcel Number P70-03910-0005
of the Montgomery County, Ohio Records (Case BDP 22-12); and

WHEREAS, on March 29, 2022, the Planning Commission did meet and fully 
discuss the details of the request.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission hereby
recommended approval of the request.

Ms. Vargo moved to recommend approval of the request by the applicant, Horizon 
Line Development, of a Rezoning and Basic Development Plan to Planned Mixed
(PM) for 35 acres at 7125 Executive Boulevard, Parcel Number P70-03910-0005
of the Montgomery County, Ohio Records (Case BDP 22-12)
in accordance with the recommendation of Staff’s Memorandum dated
March 22, 2022, with the following conditions:                                

1. The setback for the residential units shall be a minimum of 20-feet between 
the garage face and the back of the sidewalk.

2. The water mains and sanitary sewers shall be built to city standards and in 
easements.

3. The applicant shall submit a sign package consistent with Section 1189.

4. The applicant will comply will all Fire Code requirements, per the Huber 
Heights Fire Department;



BDP 22-12 – Decision Record

2

Seconded by Ms. Opp. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms, Thomas, Ms. Opp, Ms. 
Vargo, and Mr. Walton.  NAYS: Mr. Jeffries. Motion to recommend approval
carried 4-1.

_____________________________ _______________
Terry Walton, Chair Date
Planning Commission



Planning Commission
March 29, 2022, Meeting

City of Huber Heights

I. Chair Terry Walton called the meeting to order at approximately 6:00 p.m.

II. Present at the meeting:  Mr. Jeffries, Ms. Opp, Ms. Thomas, Ms. Vargo and Mr. 
Walton.

Members absent: None.

Staff Present: Aaron K. Sorrell, Interim City Planner, and Geri Hoskins, Planning 
& Zoning Administrative Secretary.

III. Opening Remarks by the Chairman and Commissioners

IV. Citizens Comments

None.

V. Swearing of Witnesses

Mr. Walton explained the proceedings of tonight’s meeting and administered the 
sworn oath to all persons wishing to speak or give testimony regarding items on 
the agenda. All persons present responded in the affirmative.

VI. Pending Business

1. BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN - The applicant, AMARJIT TAKHAR, is 
requesting approval of a Basic Development Plan and Rezoning to 
(Planned Commercial) PC for 35 acres at State Route 35 for a Service 
Station (BDP 22-08).

Mr. Sorrell stated that the applicant requests approval of a basic development 
plan and rezoning to Planned Commercial District to construct a fueling center, 
convenience store, truck stop and diesel repair facility on approximately nine (9)
acres of a 35-acre parcel. The site is adjacent to the I-70 / SR 235 interchange.

This case was tabled at the March 15, 2022, to allow time to review the revised 
development plan that was submitted shortly before the meeting.  The crux of the 
revision reconfigures the western access point to allow for a future extension of 
Center Point 70 Boulevard and meet the development standards of the Planned 
Commercial District. 

The applicant is proposing two buildings, one 6,720 SF building containing a 
convenience store and restaurant, and the second 6,642 SF diesel truck repair 
facility.  Both buildings are proposed to be clad with a mix of brick and stucco 
EFIS.

Fuel will be dispensed through one five-pump island in front of the convenience 
store, and a second five-pump island located at the rear of the property for semi-



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

2

trucks and large oversized vehicles. Both fueling islands will be covered by large 
canopies.

Parking is provided throughout the site.  The revised site plan illustrates 76
parking spaces, including 10 for semi-trucks.  This is an increase from 62 
automobile parking spaces. 

The proposed uses are principally permitted in the PC district.  The revised plan
indicates a 15-foot perimeter buffer yard, which meets the standards for this 
chapter. All other standards for this Chapter are met. 

The revision meets the requirements of Chapter 1181.  The revised plans 
illustrate street trees placed every 40-feet.  No exterior lighting plan was 
submitted at this time, but will be submitted at the time of detailed development 
review.  Unless otherwise directed by the Planning Commission, parking light 
fixtures shall not exceed 25 feet in height.

The Basic Development Plan indicates potential locations for landscape islands 
and trees within the parking areas.  Additional detail shall be provided during the 
detailed development plan phase. 

The revised proposal meets the requirements of Chapter 1185.  The applicant is 
illustrating parking island landscaping. The maximum required number of parking 
spaces required is approximately 67 total spaces.  The revised plan indicates 70
proposed spaces.  The number of required parking spaces is likely to decrease 
once the final area of the convenience store (less storage) and restaurant are 
determined. 

The proposal meets the requirements of this chapter which limits the number of 
semi parking spaces to no more than ten spaces.  The plans indicate ten spaces 
that are correctly dimensioned. 

Other Considerations:

Staff has asked the applicant to redesign the site to allow a future extension of 
Center Point 70 by moving the gas pumps and store further south and/or 
changing their alignment.  The applicant has adjusted the site plan by 
reconfiguring the parking and circulation plan.  The revised configuration will 
likely improve vehicle stacking at the intersection along the proposed roadway, 
rather than internally as was originally illustrated.

Additional Comments:

Fire:  See Attached.  The applicant will comply will all fire code requirements.

City Engineer:

Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning from I-1 to Planned Commercial and 
approval of the revised basic development plan with the following conditions:



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

3

 Applicant shall comply will all fire code requirements.

Action

Ms. Thomas moved to approve the request by the applicant Amarjit Takhar, for 
approval of a Basic Development Plan and Rezoning to Planned Commercial 
(PC) on approximately nine (9) acres of a 35-acre parcel at property located on 
the East side of intersection of State Route 235 and Center Point 70 Blvd, Parcel 
Numbers P70-03903-0079 and P70-03903-0005 of the Montgomery County Ohio 
Records (ZC BDP 22-08) and accordance with the recommendation of staff’s 
memorandum dated March 22, 2022 and the Planning Commission’s Decision 
Record attached thereto.

Seconded by Ms. Opp. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo, Mr. Jeffries, Ms. 
Opp, Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: None. Motion to approve carried 5-0.

Move to City Council

VII. New Business

1. COMBINED BASIC AND DETAILED DEVELOPMENT PLAN - The applicant, 
CAMPBELL BERLING HUBER HEIGHTS, LLC, is requesting approval of a 
Rezoning to Planned Residential (PR) and a Combined Basic and Detailed 
Development Plan for property located on the East side of Bellefontaine 
Road and South of Chambersburg Road (ZC CBDP 22-11).

Mr. Sorrell stated that This case was originally ZC 21-47, which contemplated 
132 units (66 2-family townhomes) on approximately 23 acres.  The applicant 
withdrew the application and is now submitting approval for 97 units, comprised 
of 29 single-family lots and 34 two-family townhomes.  The average density is 
approximately 4.33/units per acre. 

The proposed one-family lots are slightly smaller and 20-feet shallower than what 
is prescribed by the code.  The 64-foot-wide lots are significantly smaller in 
square footage than prescribed by the code, however this does provide a 
housing product for those households who do not want or need a larger yard.  
Overall, the average lot size in this development is 6,937 square feet.  In staff’s 
professional opinion the slightly smaller and shallower lots will have a negligible 
impact on surrounding properties and the character of the area.  

Each unit, both detached and attached, will contain a two-car garage, along with 
driveway space for parking.  The proposal complies with this standard.

All utilities will be placed below ground. 

The applicant has submitted proposed elevations that that are consistent with 
this requirement. 

While landscaping and screening is not required in the Planned Residential 
District, the applicant is proposing significant buffering and screening along 
Bellefontaine Road, and along the interior gas transmission easement. 



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

4

The comprehensive plan indicates this area should be single-family with a 
maximum density of six (6) units per acre.  The proposed development contains 
29 single-family homes and 35 duplex townhomes.  The overall density of the 
development is 4.33 units per acre, consistent with the comprehensive plan.

While no phasing plan was submitted with the application, this is a relatively 
small subdivision for Huber Heights.

The public roads are adequate for this development.  Bellefontaine Road is 
classified as a Major Collector in the City Thoroughfare Plan

The site is served by adequate utilities. 

The applicant is proposing significant landscaping and screening beyond the 
code requirements along Bellefontaine Road. Additional tree plantings are 
proposed throughout the development in the common areas.

It is the staff’s opinion the proposal meets the standards outlined in Section 
1171.06 and the intent of 1171.09.  Staff recommends approval of the rezoning 
to Planned Residential and the combined Basic and Detailed Development Plan 
to construct 97 homes. Staff recommends approval with the following conditions:

1) The dwellings shall meet the material requirements of Section 1181.20 Building
Materials for Dwellings;

2) The applicant will comply with all stormwater requirements, per the City 
Engineer;

3) The applicant will comply will all Fire Code requirements, per the Huber Heights 
Fire Department.

Bob Krohngold was present.  
Cindy Smith and Tracy Harman

Discussion on the Fire Assessment and percentage of masonry

Action

Ms. Thomas moved to approve the request by the applicant Campbell Berling for 
approval of a Rezoning to Planned Residential (PR) and a Combined Basic and 
Detailed Development Plan for property located on the East side of Bellefontaine 
Road and South of Chambersburg Road, Parcel Number P70 03908 0126 of the 
Montgomery County, Ohio Recorder’s Office (ZC CBDP 22-11) in accordance 
with the recommendation of Staff’s Memorandum dated March 22, 2022, and the 
Planning Commission Decision Record attached thereto.

Seconded by Mr. Jeffries. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Opp, Mr. Jeffries, Ms. 
Thomas, Ms. Vargo, and Mr. Walton.  NAYS: None.  Motion to approve carried
5-0.

Move to City Council



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

5

2. REZONING AND BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN - The applicant, HORIZON 
LINE DEVELOPMENT, is requesting approval of a Rezoning and Basic
Development Plan to PM (Planned Mixed) for 197 unit Residential Town-
Home Apartment Community, located at 7125 Executive Boulevard (ZC 
BDP 22-12).

Mr. Sorrell stated that the applicant is requesting approval for a rezoning of 
approximately 43 acres from Planned Employment Park to Planned Mixed Use, 
to facilitate the construction of 197 residential townhome apartments and five 
commercial out lots.

The applicant has proposed development and use standards that are generally 
consistent with the applicable zoning regulations.  Staff would like to see the 
following revisions:

 Residential garage openings shall be set back at least 20-feet from the back of 
the sidewalk. (It appears this is the case in most instances; however, the 
drawings are not dimensioned and to the greatest extent possible staff desire to 
limit the overhang of vehicles into the sidewalk pathways).

 The following proposed permitted non-residential uses should be eliminated from 
permitted use list:

o Filling stations
o Sweepstakes cafes
o Convenience store
o Self-Storage – Indoor Climate Controlled
o Car Wash

The area contains a mixture of residential, commercial and office uses.

This site is located along a well-traveled thoroughfare, surrounded by residential 
uses to the north and west, commercial uses to the south, and Carriage Hill 
MetroPark to the east. The vast majority of the proposed land uses are 
residential and are located adjacent to other residential uses.  The proposed 
commercial out lots, which will likely have more intensive uses, are appropriated 
located to front Executive Boulevard. 

Commodity crop production is the current use of the site, and few natural 
features exist. There is a small drainage stream that bisects the site near the 
southwest corner, which crosses under Executive Boulevard and ultimately into 
Drylick Run Creek.  The proposed development plan appears to limit the impact 
on the drainage stream.  

In general, the site slopes west to east.  Two onsite and one offsite stormwater 
basins will provide for stormwater management. The stormwater basins are 
designed to be wet basins, which will provide an attractive landscape amenity. 

This development will have two entrances from Executive Boulevard that are 
aligned and spaced in a manner where little traffic conflict points should exist.
Interior sidewalks and walking trails are proposed for pedestrian circulation. As 
the commercial spaces are developed sidewalks along the north side of 
Executive Boulevard should be constructed to provide pedestrian connections to 
the amenities near and along Executive Boulevard.



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

6

Parking for the residential units is provided by what appears to be a mixture of 
one-and two-car garages, along with driveway space.  The applicant is providing 
at least two spaces per unit for the residential development, including the 
driveway space. As previously stated, the setback from the garage face to the 
back of sidewalk for the residential units should be a minimum 20-feet.  

The proposal provides interior sidewalks and walking paths. Additional sidewalks 
should be constructed as the commercial lots are developed along Executive 
Boulevard to provide pedestrian access to the surrounding amenities. 

A sign package was not submitted with the application; however, two monument 
signs are indicated on the landscaping plan. Signs shall comply with Chapter 
1189.

The residential buildings are set back 15-feet from each residential building.  
While the commercial out lots illustrate generic building footprints, plenty of land 
area exists to meet these setback requirements. 

The residential buildings are approximately 20-feet tall.

The plans and renderings indicate a mixture of decorative light poles and wall 
sconce lighting throughout the residential development.  A lighting plan will be 
required at the detailed development plan phase. 

The site plan indicates the trash receptacles will be fully enclosed where 
provided.

The architecture of the commercial structures is not indicated in the application, 
but will be reviewed at the time of the detailed development plan submission for 
each out building.

All utilities will be placed underground.

The residential open space will be owned by the apartment development owner. 

The applicant proposes to retain the existing trees along the north property line 
as a buffer, and the closest structure is approximately 80-feet from the property 
line.  Staff does not feel a 6-foot-high landscaping mound is warranted and would 
require the removal of existing trees. 

Along the west property line, the screening will be a mixture of evergreen and 
ornamental trees. No mounding or fencing is proposed or required. 

The commercial out lots will be reviewed at the detailed development plan phase;
however, the covenants indicate the commercial developments will comply with 
Chapter 1185. 

Street trees are indicated throughout the development. Street trees will be 
required along Executive Boulevard as those sites are developed.  



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

7

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommend approval of the rezoning and Basic Development Plan to 
construct 197 residential units and five commercial out lots.  Staff recommend
the following conditions for approval:

1) The setback for the residential units shall be a minimum of 20-feet between the 
garage face and the back of the sidewalk.

2) The permitted uses shall exclude those recommended by staff.
3) The water mains and sanitary sewers shall be built to city standards and in 

easements.
4) The applicant shall submit a sign package consistent with Section 1189.
5) The applicant will comply will all Fire Code requirements, per the Huber Heights 

Fire Department.

Eric Allen
Kevin Brolema
Steve Massingill

Discussion on the entertainment area, traffic, widening Executive, adding turn 
lane.

Action

Ms. Vargo moved to approve the request by the applicant Horizon Line 
Development, for approval of a Rezoning and Basic Development Plan to 
Planned Mixed (PM) for 35 acres at 7125 Executive Boulevard, Parcel Number 
P70 03910 0005 of the Montgomery County Ohio Records (ZC BDP 22-12)
in accordance with the recommendation of Staff’s Memorandum dated March 29, 
2022, and the Planning Commission Decision Record attached thereto.

Seconded by Ms. Opp. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Opp, Ms. Vargo, Ms. 
Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: Mr. Jeffries. Motion to approve carried 4-1.

Move to City Council

VIII.     Additional Business

None.

IX. Approval of the Minutes

Without objection, the minutes of the March 15, 2022, Planning Commission 
meeting are approved.

X. Reports and Calendar Review

Rezoning and Basic Detailed Development Plan, Medical Facility
Major change and Detailed Development Plan, Commercial Lot
Major Change and Detailed Development Plan, Discount Tire



Planning Commission Meeting
March 29, 2022                                                                                  

8

XI. Upcoming Meetings

March 29, 2022
April 12, 2022

XII. Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting
was adjourned at approximately 8:33 p.m.

__________________________________ _____________________________
Terry Walton, Chair Date

__________________________________ _____________________________
Geri Hoskins, Administrative Secretary Date



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-O-

TO APPROVE A BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND REZONING TO PLANNED MIXED 
USE (PM) FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7125 EXECUTIVE BOULEVARD AND
FURTHER IDENTIFIED AS PARCEL NUMBER P70-03910-0005 ON THE MONTGOMERY 
COUNTY AUDITOR’S MAP AND ACCEPTING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION (ZONING CASE BDP 22-12).

WHEREAS, the citizens of Huber Heights require the efficient and orderly planning of land uses 
within the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Planning Commission has reviewed Case BDP 22-12 and on March 29, 2020,
recommended approval by a vote of 4-1 of the Basic Development Plan and Rezoning to Planned 
Mixed Use (PM); and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the issue.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The application requesting approval of a Basic Development Plan and Rezoning to 
Planned Mixed Use (PM) (Zoning Case 22-12) is hereby approved in accordance with the Planning 
Commission’s recommendation and following conditions:

1. The setback for the residential units shall be a minimum of 20-feet between the garage face
and the back of the sidewalk.

2. The water mains and sanitary sewers shall be built to city standards and in easements.
3. The applicant shall submit a sign package consistent with Section 1189.
4. The applicant will comply will all Fire Code requirements, per the Huber Heights Fire 

Department.

Section 2. The permissible uses and development standards are described in the attached Exhibit 
A and incorporated herein. 

Section 3. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Ordinance shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the _______  day of_______, 2022;
         Yeas;           Nays.

Effective Date:  

AUTHENTICATION:

_____________________________ ______________________________
Clerk of Council Mayor

_____________________________ ______________________________
Date Date



ORDINANCE XXXX.XX
EXHIBIT A

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT
PUD-PM XXXX.XX

HAMPTONS AT THE HEIGHTS
PLANNED MIXED USE DISTRICT

Huber Heights, Ohio

SECTION 100.01   STATEMENT OF INTENT
This land lies at the intersection of Brandt Pike and Executive Boulevard near the Rose Music 
Center at the Heights and represents a focal point of the district for visitors and residents alike. 
As such, there is interest in protecting and guiding the character of its development, including 
future uses, land planning, and design.

The objective of this Planned Unit Mixed district (PUD-PM) is to facilitate the creation of a 
successful, well-planned, visually appealing residential, commercial, and office mixed-use 
project that will complement surrounding development and provide an attractive destination to 
live, work and play for residents and visitors. The PUD-PM will also encourage imaginative and 
creative development design while providing flexibility to the developer beyond what 
traditional zoning would allow.  

The PUD shall meet the requirements in the Planning and Zoning Code, with any exceptions 
listed hereafter in this Ordinance and Exhibits.

a) Chapter 1111 Planned Development Requirements
b) Chapter 1171 General Provisions Code
c) Chapter 1179 (PM) Planned Mixed Use District

SECTION 100.02 DISTRICT BOUNDARIES
The PUD district boundaries and location of land uses are illustrated on Exhibit B, following 
property lines as displayed. All questions of PUD boundary interpretation shall be determined 
by the Planning Commission in accordance with the purpose and intent of these regulations.



SECTION 100.03 REGULATIONS

(A) District Development standards.
Except when specifically modified herein, the provisions of the Planning and Zoning Code shall 
govern. The following development standards apply to a PM development: 

1. Minimum Land Area Requirement and Density.

a. A minimum of 20 acres shall be required.

b. Dwelling unit density for the entire district shall not exceed twenty four (24) 
dwelling units per acre of land on which dwellings are constructed.

2. Covenants. 

The developer of a PM development shall be required to submit a set of covenants or 
deed restrictions with the Basic Development Plan application that will outline, at a 
minimum, development standards and guidelines established in this PUD ordinance and 
any other requirements the developer and/or Planning Commission deems necessary.
The Planning Commission may require additional or amended covenants as it deems 
necessary to ensure compliance with the Planning and Zoning Code and the Planned 
Mixed Use District. 

3. Required Mix of Land Uses. 

The following uses are permitted in a PM Development: residential, commercial, and
office. 

4. Site Planning.

a. The combination of different uses whether as part of one building or as part of 
the overall development shall be designed and developed so as not to create a 
nuisance by excessive noise, light, vibration, odor or any other annoyances for 
any uses within the development or neighboring properties. 

b. A PM development is to be designed so that buildings and structures are 
clustered and open space areas are preserved and maintained. Special care shall 
be given to protect preexisting natural features including, but not limited to, 
woodlands, ravines, streams, lakes, ponds, and/or flood plains. Impervious 
surface coverage, including, but not limited to, buildings, parking area, and 
accessways, shall not exceed 75 percent of the total development area. 
Therefore, 25 percent of the development area shall be reserved for green 
space.

c. The number of ingress and egress points onto the public streets shall be limited 
in order to reduce the number of traffic conflict points. Adequate and properly 
arranged facilities for internal pedestrian and traffic circulations shall be 
provided. The street and thoroughfare network shall be designed to minimize 



truck traffic through residential areas of the development. The approximate 
proposed access points are indicated in Exhibit B and D.

d. Parking systems shall be designed so as to discourage single large unbroken 
paved lots for off-street parking and shall encourage smaller defined parking 
areas within the total parking system.

e. The development shall be designed to tie all the uses into one overall community 
and encourage walking, biking, running, and alternative modes of transportation. 
Developers are encouraged to incorporate bikeways, walkways, and crosswalks 
into an overall thematic scheme for pedestrian traffic. Sidewalks shall be 

f. Any signs as proposed within this district, shall comply with Chapter 1189 
"Signs". Additionally, a developer of a PM development shall develop and submit 
with the Detailed Development Plan application, a comprehensive set of graphic 
design criteria for signage in the development. This set of graphic design criteria 
for signage shall be approved by the Planning Commission and shall apply to all 
signage requests within the development. The criteria shall include, at a 
minimum, the sizes permitted (if different from Chapter 1189), colors permitted, 
materials permitted, typefaces permitted, type size permitted, and permitted 
illumination. Compliance with the on-site comprehensive graphics shall be 
verified by the Zoning Administrator during the sign permit review process.

g. Minimum lot area, frontage and setback requirements may be varied to allow 
greater flexibility in design. However, the following shall be used as a guideline 
for development: 

With multiple buildings on a single property, entirely residential buildings shall 
be at least 15 feet from another entirely residential building and at least 50 feet 
from nonresidential or mixed-use buildings. Along the west property line, 
minimum rear building setback shall be 40 feet. Along the north property line, 
minimum rear building setback shall be 30 feet. 

All nonresidential buildings or mixed-use buildings shall be set back at least 50 
feet or the height of the structure, whichever is greater, from any residential 
property or residential building, whichever is closer, and from the public right-of-
way. This setback applies to multiple buildings on a single property, to 
development within a PM development, and where it abuts to adjacent 
property. 

h. For the nonresidential buildings, including commercial, office, and hotels, no 
maximum height restriction shall apply, except that the proposed development 
meets all Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), Dayton International Airport or 
Wright Patterson Air Force Base height or abatement requirements. No 
residential dwelling shall exceed 4 stories or 55 feet in height.



i. The provisions of Chapter 1181.21 “Lighting Standards” shall apply. To create 
continuity in the PUD district, dark bronze or black ornamental poles and fixtures 
are to be used throughout. Coach lights placed on the building front are
permitted to illuminate the sidewalks, driveways and streets. Common parking 
areas and accessways shall be lighted adequately with light fixtures that shall be 
designed to reflect light away from adjoining properties. Special attention will be 
given to protect entirely residential structures from light emitted from 
nonresidential land uses.

j. Nonresidential uses shall have trash containers and/or receptacles (including 
recycling containers) placed to the rear of all structures and shall be screened or 
enclosed on four sides with opening doors for the purpose of trash removal. The 
placement of trash containers and/or receptacles in multi-family residential 
developments shall be as inconspicuous as possible. The use of a wooden or 
vinyl fence structure, earth mound, or wall with an opaqueness of 100 percent 
and a height of 12 inches above the top of the largest container is required. 

The architecture of nonresidential structures is encouraged to be unique yet 
similar in certain sections of the PM. The design standards of the residential units 
and clubhouse shall be of a similar character to the architectural details, 
fenestration, and color variation as shown in Exhibit C. Vinyl and cultured Stone
materials are permitted for the residential structures.

k. The distribution systems for utilities are required to be underground. 

l. Privately owned open space shall be maintained by the developer or by a duly 
authorized owner's association. 

m. The use of chain link fencing is prohibited. Additionally, on an entirely residential 
property, no fencing shall be permitted in the front yard and, in the case of a 
corner lot, no fencing shall be permitted in the side yard with frontage to a 
public right-of-way. The covenants submitted by the developer shall establish 
the height requirements for fencing in the development. Fencing in a 
development shall be uniform in height in related use areas. On an entirely 
residential 

n. With the submission of a Basic Development Plan application, the applicant is 
required to submit a phasing plan that details when certain sections of the 
development will commence construction and when the sections will be 
complete.

(B) Stormwater.
The entire PUD-PM stormwater collection is to be handled by on-site and off-site 
detention/retention stormwater ponds. The on-site facilities are within the PUD district. The 
off-site facilities are located outside of the district in the area southeast area at Brandt Pike and 
Executive Boulevard and will serve as a regional stormwater pond for the district.



(C) Landscaping.
To protect and promote a harmonious development that ensures a functional and logical 
arrangement of the proposed mixed uses, the effective and efficient use of landscaping and 
buffering is required. The intent of the PUD-PM landscape development standards in Chapter 
1179.07 shall be met. Exhibit D is attached and incorporated herein which illustrates the intent 
of landscape screening and buffering between various residential and non-residential land uses
within the PUD-PM district.

(D) Parking and loading.
For commercial and office portion of district, the provisions of Chapter 1185, "Parking and 
Loading" shall apply, except that the off-street loading spaces and docks shall be provided with 
area, location and design appropriate to the needs of the development and specific uses within 
it, and the space designated for off-street loading shall not be used for off-street parking. 
Within the PM development, off-street loading areas shall be physically isolated and/or 
enclosed from residences in or adjacent to the PM Development. In all cases, off-street loading 
spaces and docks are prohibited in the front and side yards of any property. 

For the residential portion of district, the provisions of Chapter 1185, "Parking and Loading",
shall apply, except that at least two permanently maintained parking spaces shall be provided 
for each family unit, and that a minimum of 20’ distance is required between the residential 
garage face and the back of sidewalks, to allow a vehicle to park in the driveway without 
overhanging sidewalks.

SECTION 100.04 Permitted uses.

(A)       Residential Permitted Uses
All residential uses permitted in all other chapters of the Zoning Ordinance such as: two family 
dwellings, multiple family dwellings, including garden apartments, row houses, quadrominiums
and condominiums; 

(B) Commercial and Office Permitted Uses
The following principal uses are permitted.

Retail, office and commercial establishments; 

Stores and shops for the conducting of any retail business;

Financial offices including banks, credit unions, savings, and loans;

Professional offices, including medical and dental clinics and offices;

Personal service commercial establishments;

Hotels;

Restaurants, cafes, tearooms and other eating places;

Bars, breweries, and distilleries offering alcohol for on and off site consumption;



Fueling stations;

Car Wash

Fueling stations and Car Wash uses are not permitted in Area 3, as illustrated on the 
attached Exhibit B and incorporated herein. These specific uses are only permitted in 
the easternmost areas designated as Area 1 and 2, in addition to all the commercial and 
office permitted uses.

(C) Accessory uses (Residential and Nonresidential)
Only the following accessory uses shall be permitted in this District: 

Uses customarily incident to all principal permitted uses; and 

Temporary buildings and uses for construction purposes, not to exceed 12 months. 

(D) Special uses (nonresidential)
The following shall be permitted as special uses: 

Places of worship. 

Fraternal organizations, service clubs and other nonprofit organizations in accordance 
with the provisions of Chapter 1135. In addition to the criteria set forth in Chapter 1135, 
the parking requirements may have to be reviewed yearly as determined by the 
Planning Commission. 

Commercial printing and publishing. 

Technical services and professional offices, including, data processing facilities, testing 
laboratories and technical schools.

(Any use the principal function of which is basic research, design and/or pilot or 
experimental product development or technical training. 

Business and industrial service facilities. 

Laboratories: experimental, film, testing, research or engineering. 

Medical, dental and optical manufacturing. 

(E) Prohibited uses
The following uses are specifically prohibited: 

Bingo Establishments and Instant Bingo Facilities; 

Kennels, unless as an accessory use to a veterinarian; 

Cemeteries; 

Blacksmith shops; 



Machine shops, sheet metal and commercial painting shops; 

Lumber yards; 

Establishments for display, hire, sale and repair of farm implements, semi-tractors, and 
semi-trailers; 

Truck stops or service stations servicing and/or repairing semis, semi-tractors and semi-
trailers; 

Parking of semis, semi-tractors and semi-trailers except for the purposes of loading or 
unloading and located in a designated loading space for a reasonable length of time 
necessary to load or unload; 

Sexually oriented businesses; 

Outside storage except for trash containers or recycling containers that are screened as 
required by this chapter; 

Above ground parking garage



AREA 1

AREA 2

B
R

A
N

D
T

 P
IK

E
 (

S
.R

. 
2

0
1
)

R
/W

 W
ID

T
H

 V
A

R
IE

S

EXECUTIVE BLV
D (R

/W
 W

ID
TH VARIES)

S
C

A
T

L
E

R
 R

O
O

T
 P

L
.

B
R

A
N

D
T P

IK
E

EXHIBIT B

PUD-PM
HAMPTONS AT HUBER HEIGHTS

AREA 3



EXHIBIT C

PUD-PM
HAMPTONS 
AT THE HEIGHTS



DRAWN BY

SHEET NUMBER

CHECKED BY

PROJECT No.

FILE NAME

DATE

REVISIONS:

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
W

ES
T

EX
EC

U
TI

VE
 B

O
U

LE
VA

R
D

-P
R

ID
E 

O
N

E
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

H
U

B
ER

 H
EI

G
H

TS
w

w
w

.C
H

O
IC

EO
N

EE
N

G
IN

EE
RI

N
G

.c
om

SI
DN

EY
, 

O
H

IO
  9

37
.4

97
.0

20
0

LO
VE

LA
N

D,
 O

H
IO

   
51

3.
23

9.
85

54

HIGHPOINT LANE

ABIGAIL'S PATH

LO
C

K
W

O
O

D
 L

A
N

E

H
A

M
PT

O
N

 B
O

U
LE

VA
R

D

EXHIBIT D



DRAWN BY

SHEET NUMBER

CHECKED BY

PROJECT No.

FILE NAME

DATE

REVISIONS:

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
EA

ST

EX
EC

U
TI

VE
 B

O
U

LE
VA

R
D

-P
R

ID
E 

O
N

E
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

H
U

B
ER

 H
EI

G
H

TS
w

w
w

.C
H

O
IC

EO
N

EE
N

G
IN

EE
RI

N
G

.c
om

SI
DN

EY
, 

O
H

IO
  9

37
.4

97
.0

20
0

LO
VE

LA
N

D,
 O

H
IO

   
51

3.
23

9.
85

54

HIGHPOINT LANE

GARDNER'S PATH



DRAWN BY

SHEET NUMBER

CHECKED BY

PROJECT No.

FILE NAME

DATE

REVISIONS:

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
EN

TR
IE

S

EX
EC

U
TI

VE
 B

O
U

LE
VA

R
D

-P
R

ID
E 

O
N

E
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

H
U

B
ER

 H
EI

G
H

TS
w

w
w

.C
H

O
IC

EO
N

EE
N

G
IN

EE
RI

N
G

.c
om

SI
DN

EY
, 

O
H

IO
  9

37
.4

97
.0

20
0

LO
VE

LA
N

D,
 O

H
IO

   
51

3.
23

9.
85

54



   
AI-8338     New Business      P.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
ZC ORD 22-16 - City Sidewalk Requirements
Submitted By: Geri Hoskins
Department: Planning Division: Planning
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/05/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: SmartBoard Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

2022-O-2526

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
An Ordinance Amending Part Eleven – Planning And Zoning Code, Title One – Subdivision
Regulations; Chapter 1109 – Subdivision Design Standards; Section 1109.15 – Sidewalks; 1109.08 –
Official Thoroughfare Design Standards; And Table 4 Of The Codified Ordinances Of The City Of Huber
Heights (Zoning Case ORD 22-16).
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
The applicant, the City of Huber Heights, is requesting a change to the City Code with the proposed
ordinance for sidewalk requirements.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Decision Record 
Minutes 
Ordinance 



Planning Commission Decision Record

WHEREAS, on February 2022 the City of Huber Heights requested amendments to  
an Existing Ordinance for Sidewalks and Curb Associated with all New Development 
within the City (Zoning Case ORD 22-16), and;

WHEREAS, on March 15, 2022, the Planning Commission did meet and fully 
discuss the details of the request.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission hereby 
recommended approval of the request.

Ms. Vargo moved to recommend approval of the application by the City of Huber 
Heights requesting amendments to an Existing Ordinance for Sidewalks and Curb 
Associated with all New Development within the City (Zoning Case ORD 22-16) as 
follows:

Section 1.  Chapter 1109, Section 1109.15 is hereby amended as follows:

1109.15 - Sidewalks.

(a) Sidewalks shall be required on both sides of a street in all subdivisions 
where all lots have either a width of less than 80 feet at the building line, 
or where the lot is less than 15,000 square feet. The City Planning 
Commission shall require that sidewalks be constructed where lot frontage 
is greater than 80 feet where they may be essential to pedestrian 
movement and safety. Sidewalks shall be required to be constructed along 
all arterial roads and collector roads as indicated in the Official 
Thoroughfare Plan for the City and these regulations.

(b) Public sidewalks shall be required for all commercial lots.

(c) Public sidewalks may be required for industrial lots, subject to the 
approval of the Planning Commission.

Section 2. Chapter 1109, Section 1109.08 is hereby amended as follows:

1109.08 - Official thoroughfare design standards.



2

(a) The design standards of and the required improvements to arterial 
streets and roads, as shown on the Official Thoroughfare Plan are 
contained in Table 4. Construction design criteria on these streets are not 
specified in these regulations but are to be determined by the City Director 
of Public Safety and Service, or his designee, when and if such a street 
abuts or crosses the proposed subdivision. Certain improvements may be 
waived after review and approval by the City Planning Commission. In all 
cases right-of-way dedications shall be required.

(b) The subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements 
including sidewalk, curb, storm drainage and the required pavement width 
when the streets lie within the subdivision. On divided streets left turn 
lanes shall be provided at all median openings.

(c) When developing on property that abuts one side of an existing 
collector or any arterial street or roadway which is included in the Official 
Thoroughfare Plan, the subdivider shall be responsible for sidewalk,
curb, and pavement widening to thoroughfare width of the side of the 
collector or arterial street or roadway adjacent to the subdivision.  In 
addition, all necessary adjustments to existing pavement, and storm 
drainage for the street in accordance with an agreement with the City. 
Where sight distance or other engineering requirements make it 
imperative, the pavement adjustment responsibility shall include the 
replacement of up to the entire existing pavement.

(d) Where marginal access streets are used to provide access to arterials 
(82 to 120 feet right-of-way widths) street improvements on arterial
streets may be waived but sidewalks shall be required.

Section 3. Table 4 of Chapter 1109 is hereby amended to read as follows:

Right of Way 
Width (feet)

Sidewalks 
(feet)

Planting Strip 
(feet)

Median (feet) Pavement 
Width (feet)

70 5 7.5 none 45
82 5 4.5 14 ** 63
90 5 7.5 16 ** 65
120 5 11 16 **88

Seconded by Ms. Thomas. Roll call showed: YEAS: Mr. Jeffries, Ms. Thomas, Ms. 
Vargo, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: None. Motion to recommend approval carried 4-0.

_______________________ ____________________
Terry Walton, Chair Date
Planning Commission



Planning Commission
March 15, 2022, Meeting

City of Huber Heights

I. Chair Terry Walton called the meeting to order at approximately 6:01 p.m.

II. Present at the meeting:  Mr. Jeffries, Ms. Thomas, Ms. Vargo and Mr. Walton.

Members absent: Ms. Opp

Staff Present: Aaron K. Sorrell, Interim City Planner, and Geri Hoskins, Planning 
& Zoning Administrative Secretary.

III. Opening Remarks by the Chairman and Commissioners

IV. Citizens Comments

None.

V. Swearing of Witnesses

Mr. Walton explained the proceedings of tonight’s meeting and administered the 
sworn oath to all persons wishing to speak or give testimony regarding items on 
the agenda. All persons present responded in the affirmative.

VI. Pending Business

1. MAJOR CHANGE – The applicant, Kirmon Khalilov, is requesting 
approval of a Major Change to the Basic and Detailed Development 
Plan in a Planned Commercial District for 2.55 acres at 5840 Old Troy 
Pike (ZC 21-45).

Mr. Sorrell stated that this application was heard and tabled at the December 14, 
2021, Planning Commission meeting. Based on the minutes, there was 
discussion about whether vehicles would be serviced on site, existing buffering 
between the adjacent funeral home, and moving the parking setback significantly 
closer to Old Troy Pike. 

The applicant has submitted a revised plan which:
 Includes auto sales and service as the primary use;
 Added a masonry dumpster enclosure to the rear of the lot;
 Added a 42-inch hedge as screening between the front parking area and the 

funeral home parking area;
 Illustrates possible building expansion for garage bays and/or possible office; 

and 
 Added three 25-foot light poles (two in front, one at the rear). 

No other substantial changes were submitted.



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

2

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION:

This analysis will focus on the changes to the proposal since the application was 
tabled at the December 14, 2021, meeting:

Vehicle Display and Landscaping 
The revised plan includes a 42” hedge, 60-feet long, between the display area 
and the property line. While this does help buffer the display area from the 
adjoining property, the proposed plan reduces the existing required yard buffer 
from 15-feet (required in the PC District) to approximately 7-feet. 

The code states:
1176.03 (b)(1):  All yards within the development plan except those abutting a
Business or Industrial District shall be maintained in landscaping and not used for 
parking, to the extent of a minimum of 15 feet along property lines.

Both the original and revised plan locate the vehicle display area 25-feet from the
right-of-way. While this meets the zoning standards for a parking area, the 
proposed plan shows three tightly packed display rows. This will have a greater 
visual impact along Old Troy Pike than a traditional parking area with one row of 
parked vehicles, separated by a 20-foot drive aisle. Additionally, parking areas of 
this size would be required to have interior parking landscaping to break up the 
mass of the vehicles and reduce storm water runoff. There are little to no recently 
developed uses within the vicinity that have such concentrated vehicular display 
or parking areas.

Conformance with Zoning Regulations
The proposed vehicle sales and service uses are permitted uses within the 
Planned Commercial district, if the Planning Commission approves such uses.  
At this time, there are no vehicle sales uses in this area of Old Troy Pike.  

The proposed site plan brings the site out of conformance with the yard 
standards set in 1176.03(b)(1), described above.  

If the Planning Commission deems the vehicle display area as a parking area, 
the site plan is not in conformance with the parking requirements found in 
Chapter 1185. 

Staff Analysis
As proposed, it is the staff’s opinion that the site becomes less conforming to the 
zoning code than it currently exists.  This includes yard standards, and parking 
layout and design. 
#5 in the Decision Record would read the only use approved is the sale and 
service automobiles.
Strike # 7 from the Decision Record.
Revise to March 15, 2022.

Chad spoke on behalf of the applicant.



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

3

Action

Ms. Thomas moved to approve the request by the applicant Kirmon Khalilov, for 
approval of a Major Change to the Basic and Detailed Plan in a Planned 
Commercial District for 2.55 acres at 5840 Old Troy Pike (ZC 21-45).

Seconded by Ms. Vargo. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo. NAYS: Mr. Jeffries, 
Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. Motion to approve denied 3-1.

All three Nays stated no similar uses in the area.
Case moves to City Council

VII. New Business

1. MINOR CHANGE - The applicant, Atlantic Sign Company, is requesting 
approval of a Minor Change for Signage at Camping World located at 8001 
Old Troy Pike (MC 22-09).

Mr. Sorrell stated that the applicant requests approval to replace existing wall 
signs due to the acquisition of Gander Outdoors by Camping World.  The net 
effect of the change is an overall reduction in wall sign area.  

Original Approval
As you can see below, the amount of approved and/or installed wall sign area 
has changed over the years:

September 2004 962 SF
July 2012 666 SF
September 2018 562 SF

Current Application
The applicant seeks a minor change to replace one internally illumined wall sign 
and remove one existing internally illuminated wall sign. Two existing wall signs 
remain unchanged. The total wall sign area will be reduced from approximately 
562 SF to approximately 429 SF. 

The applicant seeks a minor change to replace one internally illumined wall sign 
and remove one existing internally illuminated wall sign. Total wall sign area will 
be reduced from approximately 562 SF to approximately 429 SF, a reduction of 
approximately 23%. 

Brooke Alini from Atlantic Sign Company was there for any questions.

Action

Ms. Vargo moved to approve the request by the applicant Atlantic Sign Company
for approval of a Minor Change for Signage at Camping World located at 8001 
Old Troy Pike (MC 22-09) in accordance with the recommendation of Staff’s 



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

4

Memorandum dated March 8, 2022, and the Planning Commission Decision 
Record attached thereto.

Seconded by Mr. Jeffries. Roll call showed: YEAS: Mr. Jeffries, Ms. Thomas,
Ms. Vargo, and Mr. Walton.  NAYS: None.  Motion to approve carried 4-0.

2. BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN - The applicant, Charles V. Simms 
Development, is requesting approval of a Basic Development Plan for the 
Gables of Huber Heights, located on Brandt Pike North of the Reserves at 
the Fairways (BDP 22-07).

Mr. Sorrell stated that the applicant requests approval of a basic development 
plan to construct 74 condominiums in 11 buildings on 15.93 acres, which yields 
an average density of 4.64 units/acre. Approximately 64% of the site is open 
space (10.20 acres).

This land was originally approved as part of The Reserves at the Fairways, a 
similar condominium development immediately south of the project site.  

Conformance with Zoning Regulations
The proposal largely conforms to the regulations outlined in Chapter 1179, 
Planned Mixed Use District (PM):

 Residential uses are permitted in the district and the buildings meet the setback 
requirement of 15-feet between residential buildings. 

 Buildings are clustered and a large, usable greenspace area is proposed in the 
development. Approximately 64% of the site is open space, including detention 
areas.

 Walking paths are included throughout the development.
 Site access is limited to one private drive from Brandt Pike.  A secondary 

emergency exit is proposed at the cul-de-sac terminus and connects to an 
existing private street (Salon Circle). 

 Parking will be provided through a mixture of garage and driveway spaces and 
various guest parking areas.  A total of 334 spaces are provided, 222 are 
required. 

 A six-foot high landscaping mound is provided to buffer the open space area 
from the existing development to the south.

 Lighting will be provided through a combination of exterior building lights and 
lamp posts along walking and parking areas.

 Proposed building elevations indicate substantial use of masonry products on the 
front elevations of the buildings.

Other Considerations
 The applicant has agreed to enlarge the private street width to 27 feet, as 

required by 1111.04 of the subdivision regulations. 

Staff Analysis

As outlined above, this land was originally envisioned and approved as a 
condominium development and has sat fallow for nearly 20-years. Staff feels the 
proposed basic development plan meets the requirements of the PM District and 
the general standards for approval outlined in Section 1171.06.  



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

5

Additional Comments:

Fire:  See Attached.  The applicant will comply will all fire code requirements.

City Engineer:
 The water and sanitary sewer lines are to be public lines made of City standard 

materials and they are to be in easements.
 The entrance off of Brandt Pike should be a minimum 36’ wide with one lane in 

and two lanes out.  

Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the basic development plan submitted on January 
28, 2022, with the following conditions:

 Applicant shall comply will all fire code requirements.
 The minimum private street pavement width shall be 27 feet.
 The water and sanitary sewer lines are to be public lines made of City standard 

materials and they are to be in easements.
 The entrance off of Brandt Pike should be a minimum 36’ wide with one lane in 

and two lanes out.

Planning Commission Action

Planning Commission may take the following actions with a motion to: 
1) Approve the basic development plan application, with or without conditions.
2) Deny the basic development plan.
3) Table the application in order to gather additional information.

Robert Simms
John Moore
Barry Payne
James Moore
Christine Olinsky

Amended Decision Record to add #5, Brandt Pike road improvements may 
be needed subject to approval by the City Engineer for changing stripping 
and painting of future left lane.

Action

Mr. Jeffries moved to approve the request by the applicant Charles V. Simms 
Development, for approval of a Basic Development Plan for the Gables of Huber 
Heights, P70 03910 0057 of the Montgomery County Records Map (BDP 22-07)
in accordance with the recommendation of Staff’s Memorandum dated March 7, 
2022, and the Planning Commission Decision Record attached thereto.

Seconded by Ms. Thomas. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo, Mr. Jeffries,
Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: None.  Motion to approve carried 4-0.

Move to City Council



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

6

3. BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN - The applicant, Amarjit Takhar, is requesting 
approval of a Basic Development Plan and Rezoning to (Planned 
Commercial) PC for 35 acres at State Route 35 for a Service Station (BDP 
22-08).

Mr. Sorrell stated that the applicant has provided some preliminary revised plans.  
The applicant requests approval of a basic development plan and rezoning to 
Planned Commercial District to construct a fueling center, convenience store, 
truck stop and diesel repair facility on approximately nine (9) acres of a 35-acre 
parcel. The site is adjacent to the I-70 / SR 235 interchange.

The land is currently zoned “I-1” Light Industrial and Mixed-Use District.   The 
surrounding lands are predominantly zoned I-1 and used for manufacturing or 
logistics purposes.  There is a significant amount of agricultural / vacant land 
immediately east of this site in Clark County that has development potential but 
limited access to SR 235 and I-70.

The proposed service station and diesel repair facilities are Special Uses within 
the existing I-1 zoning district.  The convenience store is not a principally 
permitted use in the existing I-1 zoning district.  

There is an existing service station with convenience store adjacent to this site 
zoned Planned Commercial.

On-Site Uses and Facilities
The applicant is proposing two buildings, one 6,720 SF building containing a 
convenience store and restaurant, and the second 6,642 SF diesel truck repair 
facility.  Both buildings are proposed to be clad with a mix of brick and stucco 
EFIS.

Fuel will be dispensed through one five-pump island in front of the convenience 
store, and a second five-pump island located at the rear of the property for semi-
trucks and large oversized vehicles. Both fueling islands will be covered by large 
canopies.

Parking is provided throughout the site.  The applicant is proposing 62 parking 
spaces, including 10 for semi-trucks.  

Applicable Zoning Regulations
The appliable zoning chapters include: 1171 General Provisions, 1176 Planned 
Commercial District, 1181 General Provisions, 1182 Landscaping and Screening, 
1185 Parking and Loading.  The relevant sections are citied below: 

Staff Analysis
The analysis below is based on the application and drawings originally submitted 
as a Planned Industrial District.  Staff realized this application was in error, but 
not in time to enable the applicant to revise the drawings for this meeting.  
Additionally, staff has been in discussion with the applicant to reconfigure the site 
plan to allow for a future extension of Center Point 70 Blvd.  The applicant has 
agreed to make these accommodations and is working on these revisions.



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

7

Conformance with Zoning Regulations:

1176 (PC) Planned Commercial District

The proposed uses are principally permitted in the PC district.  The current plan
indicates a 10-foot perimeter buffer yard, which must be 15-feet. All other 
standards for this Chapter are met. 

Chapter 1181 General Provisions

The proposal meets the requirements of Chapter 1181, with the exception of the 
following items are not in compliance or not illustrated on the Basic Development 
Plan:

 Street trees shall be placed every 40-feet along the public street.
 No exterior lighting plan was submitted.  Unless otherwise directed by the 

Planning Commission, parking light fixtures shall not exceed 25 feet in height.

Chapter 1182 Landscaping and Screening Standards

The Basic Development Plan indicates potential locations for landscape islands 
and trees within the parking areas.  Additional detail shall be provided during the 
detailed development plan phase. 

Chapter 1185 Parking and Loading

The proposal generally meets the requirements of Chapter 1185.  The applicant 
is illustrating parking island landscaping. The maximum required number of 
parking spaces required is approximately 67 total spaces.  The plan indicates 62 
proposed spaces.  The number of required parking spaces is likely to decrease 
once the final area of the convenience store (less storage) and restaurant are 
determined. 

Chapter 1193 Trailers, Trucks, Recreational Vehicles, Boats, Farm or 
Construction Equipment

The proposal meets the requirements of this chapter which limits the number of 
semi parking spaces to no more than ten spaces.  The plans indicate ten spaces 
that are correctly dimensioned. 

Other Considerations:

The original submission illustrates a driveway that aligns with Center Point 70 
Boulevard.  This alignment would severely limit any future expansion of the 
roadway to the east.  Staff has asked the applicant to redesign the site to allow a 
future extension of Center Point 70 by moving the gas pumps and store further 
south and/or changing their alignment.  This will enable the roadway to be 
extended in the future with less disruption to the business.  This extension would 
also provide hundreds of acres of potential development lands with better access 
to I-70.  The applicant has agreed, and is currently working on these revisions.    



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

8

Additional Comments:

Fire:  See Attached.  The applicant will comply will all fire code requirements.

City Engineer:
  
Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning from I-1 to Planned Commercial and 
approval of the basic development plan with the following conditions:

 A 15-foot buffer yard shall be illustrated on the basic development plan
 Street trees shall be placed every 40-feet
 The applicant shall revise the alignment and location of the gas pumps and 

convenience store to allow for a future extension of Center Point 70 Boulevard.
 Applicant shall comply with all fire code requirements.
 Prior to submission to City Council for review and approval, applicant shall 

resubmit a basic development plan that conforms with the conditions above.

Planning Commission Action

Planning Commission may take the following actions with a motion to: 
4) Approve the rezoning and basic development plan application, with or without 

conditions.
5) Deny the basic development plan.
6) Table the application in order to gather additional information.

Chris Besecker

Action

Mr. Jeffries moved to table the request by the applicant Amarjit Takhar, for 
approval of a Basic Development Plan and Rezoning to Planned Commercial 
(PC) to construct a fueling center, convenience store, truck stop and diesel repair 
facility on approximately nine (9) acres of a 35-acre parcel located on the East 
side of intersection of SR 235 and Center Point 70 Blvd, Parcel Numbers P70-
03903-0079 and P70-03903-0005 of the Montgomery County Records Map (BDP 
22-08) in accordance with the recommendation of Staff’s Memorandum dated 
March 10, 2022, and the Planning Commission Decision Record attached 
thereto.

Seconded by Ms. Thomas. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo, Mr. Jeffries,
Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: None.  Motion to table carried 4-0.

4. BASIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN - The applicant, DEC Land Co., I LLC, is 
requesting approval of a Detailed Development Plan and Final Plat for 
Section 7, Phase 5 of the Carriage Trails Development (DDP 22-10).



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

9

Mr. Sorrell stated that the applicant requests approval of the detailed 
development plan and final plat for section seven, phase five of the Carriage 
Trails subdivision.  This phase contains 65 lots on approximately 17.34 acres. 

Conformance with Zoning Regulations
The detailed development plan conforms to the regulations outlined in Chapter 
1179, Planned Mixed Use District and the basic development plan approved by 
City Council.  

The mixture of lot sizes (approximately) are:

60 feet x 130 feet: 53 lots
66 feet x 130 feet: 3 lots
70 feet x 130 feet: 3 lots
77 feet x 130 feet: 6 lots

Minimum yard setbacks: 
Front & Rear: 25 feet

  Side:    5 feet

The HOA covenants have the following applicable requirements and restrictions:

 Uses: Limited to a single-family residence
 Building material:  The covenants require a minimum of 50% of the single-family 

homes within each subareas shall have front façade of no less than 25% 
masonry materials. 

 Accessory Buildings:  No larger than 10’ x 10’ shed.
 Fences: Limited to the rear yard, no higher than 4-feet. Chain link fencing is 

prohibited.

The HOA will be responsible for the care and maintenance of all common areas. 

Staff Analysis
The applicant requests approval of the detailed development plan and final plat 
for section seven, phase five of the Carriage Trails subdivision.  This phase 
contains 65 lots on approximately 17.34 acres, which is approximately 3.7 units 
per acre. 

It is important to note that the current municipal boundary bisects lots 1 – 36 
because the annexation has not yet been completed.  The developer plans to 
build out the street infrastructure, but not fully plat lots 1 - 36 until the annexation 
is complete.  Staff is supportive of this approach on the condition that no zoning 
permit shall be issued for lots 1 – 36 until such time as these lots are fully platted
and recorded within the City of Huber Heights.     

Additional Comments:

Fire:  See attached



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

10

City Engineer:
 The temporary cul-de-sac near the intersection of Arrowwood Street and 

Woodmint Drive is not required and can be removed if desired. 

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of the detailed development plan submitted on 
February 18, 2022, with the condition that that no zoning permit shall be issued 
for lots 1 – 36 until such time as these lots are fully platted and recorded within 
the City of Huber Heights.     

Planning Commission Action

Planning Commission may take the following actions with a motion to: 
7) Approve the Detailed Development Plan; or,
8) Deny the Detailed Development Plan.

Ken Conaway

Action

Mr. Jeffries moved to approve the request by the applicant DEC Land Co. I LLC, 
for approval of the Detailed Development Plan and Final Plat for section 7, Phase 
5 of the Carriage Trails subdivision (DDP 22-10) in accordance with the 
recommendation of Staff’s Memorandum dated March 8, 2022, and the Planning 
Commission Decision Record attached thereto.

Seconded by Ms. Thomas. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo, Mr. Jeffries,
Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: None.  Motion to approve carried 4-0.

VIII.     Additional Business

1. Proposed Change to an Existing Ordinance for Planning Commission 
Recommendation for Sidewalks and Curb Associated with all New 
Development within the City (ORD 22-16).

Action

Ms. Vargo moved to approve the request by the applicant The City of Huber 
Heights, for a proposed change to an Existing Ordinance for Sidewalks and Curb 
Associated with all New Development within the City (ORD 22-16).

Seconded by Ms. Thomas. Roll call showed: YEAS: Ms. Vargo, Mr. Jeffries,
Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Walton. NAYS: None.  Motion to approve carried 4-0.

IX. Approval of the Minutes

Without objection, the minutes of the January 25, 2022, and February 15, 2022, 
Planning Commission meeting are approved.



Planning Commission Meeting
March 15, 2022                                                                                  

11

X. Reports and Calendar Review

Rezoning State Route 235
Basic Development Plan Brandt Pike, North of the Reserves
Comprehensive Plan Mid-April, Yard, Inc.

XI. Upcoming Meetings

March 15, 2022
March 29, 2022

XII. Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting
was adjourned at approximately 8:05 p.m.

__________________________________ _____________________________
Terry Walton, Chair Date

__________________________________ _____________________________
Geri Hoskins, Administrative Secretary Date



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-O-

AMENDING PART ELEVEN – PLANNING AND ZONING CODE, TITLE ONE –
SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS; CHAPTER 1109 – SUBDIVISION DESIGN STANDARDS; 
SECTION 1109.15 – SIDEWALKS; 1109.08 – OFFICIAL THOROUGHFARE DESIGN 
STANDARDS; AND TABLE 4 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
HUBER HEIGHTS (ZONING CASE ORD 22-16).

WHEREAS, City Council desires to require sidewalks and curb associated with all new 
developments within the City; and

WHEREAS, City Staff has recommended certain amendments to Chapter 1109 in order to meet 
City Council’s desire; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 1101.07, City Council may initiate a case to amend the 
subdivision regulations; and

WHEREAS, City Council has proposed this amendment to the Planning Commission for 
consideration and recommendation as required by Section 1101.07; and

WHEREAS, Planning Commission has reviewed Zoning Case ORD 22-16 and on March 15, 
2022, recommended approval by a vote of 4-0 to City Council the proposed amendment.

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1.  Chapter 1109, Section 1109.15 is hereby amended as follows:

1109.15 - Sidewalks.

(a) Sidewalks shall be required on both sides of a street in all subdivisions where all 
lots have either a width of less than 80 feet at the building line, or where the lot is less 
than 15,000 square feet. The City Planning Commission shall require that sidewalks be 
constructed where lot frontage is greater than 80 feet where they may be essential to 
pedestrian movement and safety. Sidewalks shall be required to be constructed along 
all arterial roads and collector roads as indicated in the Official Thoroughfare Plan for 
the City and these regulations.
(b) Public sidewalks shall be required for all commercial lots.
(c) Public sidewalks may be required for industrial lots, subject to the approval of the 
Planning Commission.

Section 2. Chapter 1109, Section 1109.08 is hereby amended as follows:

1109.08 - Official thoroughfare design standards.

(a) The design standards of and the required improvements to arterial streets and roads, 
as shown on the Official Thoroughfare Plan are contained in Table 4. Construction 
design criteria on these streets are not specified in these regulations but are to be 
determined by the City Director of Public Safety and Service, or his designee, when and 
if such a street abuts or crosses the proposed subdivision. Certain improvements may 
be waived after review and approval by the City Planning Commission. In all cases 
right-of-way dedications shall be required.

(b) The subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements including 
sidewalk, curb, storm drainage and the required pavement width when the streets lie 
within the subdivision. On divided streets left turn lanes shall be provided at all median 
openings.



(c) When developing on property that abuts one side of an existing collector or any 
arterial street or roadway which is included in the Official Thoroughfare Plan, the 
subdivider shall be responsible for sidewalk, curb, and pavement widening to 
thoroughfare width of the side of the collector or arterial street or roadway adjacent to 
the subdivision.  In addition, the subdivider shall be responsible for all necessary 
adjustments to existing pavement and storm drainage for the street in accordance with 
an agreement with the City. Where sight distance or other engineering requirements 
make it imperative, the pavement adjustment responsibility shall include the 
replacement of up to the entire existing pavement.

(d) Where marginal access streets are used to provide access to arterials (82 to 120 feet 
right-of-way widths) street improvements on arterial streets may be waived but 
sidewalks shall be required.

Section 3. Table 4 of Chapter 1109 is hereby amended to read as follows:

Right of Way 
Width (feet)

Sidewalks (feet) Planting Strip 
(feet)

Median (feet) Pavement Width 
(feet)

70 5 7.5 none 45
82 5 4.5 14 ** 63
90 5 7.5 16 ** 65
120 5 11 16 **88

Section 4.  It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this 
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in 
such formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal 
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 5. This Ordinance shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022;
______  Yeas; ______  Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

______________________________ ______________________________
Clerk of Council Mayor

______________________________ _______________________________
Date Date



   
AI-8368     New Business      Q.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
City Staffing Levels/Table of Organization
Submitted By: Katie Knisley
Department: Human Resources
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/19/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

2022-R-7114

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Establishing And/Or Amending The City Of Huber Heights Organizational Chart And
Authorizing The New Personnel Staffing Levels As Detailed Below.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
This legislation authorizes the personnel staffing levels for all departments/divisions with the City of
Huber Heights. 

Amendments to this legislation include the following: 
Addition of four personnel to the Division of Fire; three Firefighter/Paramedics and one Fire
Captain.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution 
Table of Organization 



  CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-

ESTABLISHING AND/OR AMENDING THE CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS ORGANIZATIONAL 
CHART AND AUTHORIZING THE NEW PERSONNEL STAFFING LEVELS AS DETAILED 
BELOW.

WHEREAS, the citizens of Huber Heights require the efficient and effective delivery of 
municipal services.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The attached organizational chart, personnel staffing levels, and position control 
numbers as established hereafter is hereby adopted and effective December 19, 2021. 

Section 2. The authorized personnel staffing levels for the Clerk of Council are as follows.

City Council No. Position Control No. Pay Grade
Clerk of Council    1 504-101-2-2-01-F      50
Deputy Clerk of Council    1 504-202-1-2-01-F      25
Public Records Technician     1 504-213-1-2-01-P/H      20

Section 3. The authorized personnel staffing levels for the City Manager’s Office are as 
follows:

City Manager’s Office No. Position Control No. Pay Grade
City Manager    1 505-100-2-2-01-F      80
Assistant City Manager     1                505-117-2-2-01-F      75
of Public Services
Assistant City Manager of     1 505-117-2-2-01-F                    75
Administrative Services
Administrative Assistant III    1 505-209-2-2-01-F      25      

Section 4. The authorized personnel staffing levels for the Department of Public Safety are 
as follows:

Department of Public Safety No. Position Control No. Pay Grade
Director of Public Safety    1 505-116-2-2-01-F      75

Division of Fire
Fire Chief      1      102-401-2-2-01-F      70
Battalion Chief         4 102-403-1-1-01-- 04F      PS
Captain     1 102-402-1-1-01—01F      PS
Fire Lieutenant     10 102-404-1-1-01--10-F   Contract
Firefighter/Paramedic     42 102-405-1-1-01—42-F   Contract
Administrative Assistant III      2 102-200-1-2-01--02-F      25
Administrative Assistant I      1 102-200-1-2-01-P/H     10
Fire Inspector    1 102-501-1-2-01-F      30
Fire Inspector        3             102-501-1-2-01- 03-P/H     30
Fire Prevention Manager/Plans Review       1 102-502-1-2-01-P/H     40
Fire Fleet/Facility Mgt. Clerk      1 102-503-1-2-01-P/H     10
Auxiliary $1.00 per year     30 102-411-3-0-01--30-V       V
Chaplains – Fire         2 102-601-3-0-01--02-V       V
Medical Advisor         1 102-604-3-0-01-V       V

Division of Police
Police Chief       1 101-406-2-2-01-F      70
Police Lieutenant         3 101-408-1-1-01--03-F   Contract
Police Sergeant        8 101-409-1-1-01--08-F   Contract



Police Officer       42 101-410-1-1-01--42-F   Contract
Administrative Assistant III       1 101-200-1-2-01-F      25
Police Accreditation Technician      1 101-515-1-1-01-F      30
Police Records Clerks       2 101-204-1-1-01--02-F   Contract
Police Evidence/Fleet Mgt. Clerk     2 101-205-1-2-02-P/H       25
Communications/Records Manager     1               101-611-2-1-01-F      45
Communications/Records Supervisor      1               101-613-1-1-01-F                35
Communications Officer       14 111-502-1-1-01-14-F   Contract
Chaplain – Police       3 101-601-3-0-01—03-V        V

Division of Code Enforcement
Code Enforcement Manager       1             310-621-2-1-01-F       45
Code Enforcement Officer II          1 310-513-1-1-01-01-F      35
Code Enforcement Officer I       4 310-513-1-2-01-04-P/H      25
Seasonal Laborer                            2 310-305-1-2-01-02-S       S

Section 5.  The authorized personnel staffing levels for the Department of Information 
Technology are as follows:

Department of Information Technology Position Control No. Pay Grade
Information Technology Director           1 509-105-2-2-01-F      60
Information Technology Systems Analyst     2 509-609-1-2-02-F           45
Information Technology Systems Analyst     1 509-609-1-2-01-P/H        45
GIS Technician         1 509-510-1-1-01-F      35

Section 6. The authorized personnel staffing levels for the Department of Finance are as 
follows:

Department of Finance     No. Position Control No. Pay Grade
Director of Finance    1 506-102-2-2-01-F      65
  
Division of Accounting
Deputy Director of Finance      1 506-602-2-2-01-F      50
Accounting Generalist                 2 506-603-2-2-02F      40
Accounts Payable Technician     1 506-504-1-1-01-F      25
Payroll Technician      1 506-505-1-1-01-F      30
Account Technician      1  506-206-1-1-01 F                   25

Division of Taxation
Tax Administrator      1 507-104-2-2-01-F      50
Assistant Tax Administrator      2           507-612-2-2-02-F           45
Tax Analyst       2 507-506-1-1-01--02-F      30
Tax Technician        6 507-507-1-1-01 -06-F      20
Administrative Assistant I     3 507-212-1-2-01- 03P/H            10

Section 7. The authorized personnel staffing levels for the Department of Public Services 
are as follows:

Department of Public Services No. Position Control No. Pay Grade

Director of Public Services                   1 505-114-2-2-01-F      75

Division of Engineering
City Engineer       1 320-106-2-2-01-F      65
Assistant City Engineer                   1 320-119-2-2-01-F      55
Civil Engineer      1 320-605-2-2-01-01-F      50
Engineering Technician           2 320-509-1-1- 02-F      35
Administrative Assistant III         1 320-200-1-2-01-F      25

Division of Public Works
Public Works Manager      1 401-108-2-2-01-F      60
Public Works Supervisor     1 401-109-1-1-01-F      50



Public Works Crew Leader        2 401-302-1-1-02-F   Contract
Vehicle & Equipment Mechanic        3 401-300-1-1-03-F     Contract
Maintenance Technician     20 401-301-1-1-20-F     Contract
Administrative Assistant III        1 401-200-1-2-01-F      25
Custodian      1               401-305-1-2-01-F           10
Custodian      1 401-305-1-2-01-P/H      10

Section 8. The authorized personnel staffing levels for the Department of Economic 
Development are as follows:

Department of Economic Development        No. Position Control No. Pay Grade
Economic Development Director          1 305-111-2-2-01-F      60
Economic Development Coordinator          1 305-614-2-1-01-F      40
Community Engagement Specialist          1 305-615-2-1-01-F      40

Section 9. The authorized personnel staffing levels for the Department of Planning and 
Zoning are as follows:

Department of Planning        No. Position Control No. Pay Grade
City Planner            1 310-118-2-2-01-F      55
Administrative Assistant III                    1 310-200-1-2-01-F      25
Administrative Assistant I        1 310-207-1-1-01-F      10
Administrative Assistant I             1 310-207-1-2-01-P/H      10

Section 10. The authorized personnel staffing levels for the Department of Human Resources 
are as follows:

Department of Human Resources       No. Position Control No. Pay Grade
Human Resources Director          1 510-120-2-2-01-F      60
Human Resources Specialist          1 510-514-1-1-01-F      40
Human Resources Assistant          1 510-617-1-2-01-P/H     30

Section 11.  The authorized personnel staffing levels for the Department of Parks and 
Recreation Facilities are as follows:

Department of Parks and Recreation Facilities   No. Position Control No. Pay Grade
Parks Manager    1      216-616-2-2-01-F     45
Senior Center Program Coordinator    1 215-110-2 -2 -01-P/H     25
Seasonal Laborer – Music Center            125 219-306-1-2-01--125-S       S
Seasonal Laborer                  4 216-303-1-2-01--04-S       S

Section 12.  Council further ratifies and affirms any and all previous legislation of Council that 
established, abolished or altered the functions and structures of any administrative 
department.

Section 13.  It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council 
and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such 
formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements 
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 14. That this Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and 
the Charter of the City of Huber Heights.



Section 15. Position Control Number Explanation:

3. FLSA Status   4. Merit/Personnel System Status

  
000 -    000 -    0 -    0    -    00     -    X                  6. Employment

       Status

1. Department/Division      2. Classification 5. Position Number

1. Department/Division:  Number represents Fund Number in General Ledger:

101-Police   305-Economic Dev. 401-Public Works     507-Tax                      
102-Fire   310 Planning & Zoning 505-City Mgr.     509-I. T.                      
215-Senior Center 320-Engineering 506-Accounting     510-H.R
219 Parks & Recreation     

2. Classification:  Number for classification or rank to which position is assigned, divided 
into defined series as shown below:

100-Administrative 300-Labor 500-Technical
200-Clerical 400-Sworn Safety 600-Professional

3. FLSA Status:

01-Non-exempt from minimum wage/overtime rules of FLSA (hourly)
02-Exempt from minimum wage/overtime rules of FLSA (salaried)
03-Unpaid Volunteer

4. Merit & Personnel System Status:

01-Position is in Non-exempt service of city per Section 8.02 of Charter
02-Position is in Exempt service of city per Section 8.02 of Charter

5. Position Number:

Unique two-digit number for each employment position authorized by this Resolution.

6. Employment Status:

F-Full-time Position
P-Part-time Position
H-Hourly Position
T-Temporary (created for specific time)
S-Seasonal Position
V-Volunteer Position

Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022;
______  Yeas; ______  Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



Division of Fire Division of Police

City of Huber Heights Organizational Chart

 

  - All employees are permanent / full time unless specified otherwise.

  - (PT) = Part Time, (H) = Hourly Seasonal, (T) = Temporary, (V) = Volunteer, (S)=Seasonal

                                   Contractor Relationship

                                   Vacant Position

Division of 

Water 

& Wastewater

Department of Public Safety

Division of 

Engineering

Department of Finance

Division of 

Taxation

City of Huber Heights

Revised April 2022

Administrative 

Assistant III

Department of 

Human Resources

Police 

Accreditation 

Technician

Department of Public ServicesDepartment of Planning 

Division of 

Accounting

Department of Law

Division of 

Public Works

Citizens of Huber Heights

Charter Review 

(10 years)

Human Resources 

Specialist

 Authorized Staffing Levels 

City Council (FT):            2

City Council (PT/H)         1 Department of IT (FT):                         4 Department of Finance (FT):          1 Department of Human Resources (FT):                      2     Department of Parks & Recreation Facilities (S):    129                                                             

City Manager (FT):          2 Department of IT (PT/H)          1 Division of Accounting (FT):                 6  Department of Human Resources (PT)         1   Department of Parks & Recreation Facilities (FT):   1                                                                           

Fire Division (FT):          61 Division of Public Works (FT):            29 Division of Taxation (FT):                    11 Department of Planning  (FT):                             3   Division of Code Enforcement (FT):                         2

Fire Division (PT/H):        6 Division of Taxation (PT/H):                 3 Department of Planning  (PT/H):          1   Division of Code Enforcement (PT/H):         4   Division of Code Enforcement (S):       2

Police Division (FT):      74 Director of Public Safety (FT):              1             Director of Public Services (FT):           1 Department of Economic Development (FT):               3

Police Division (PT/H):    2 Assistant City Manager: (FT)          2               Division of Engineering (FT):           6 Department of Parks & Recreation Facilities (PT/H):   1  

Department of 

Economic Development

Mayor and Council

Clerk of Council

 

City Attorney

(PS&E)

BOARDS COMMISSIONS

Zoning 

Appeals

Property 

Maintenance

Review

Citizens 

Water & 

Sewer

Parks & 

Recreation
Ordinance 

Review

(10 years)

City Planning

Fire Chief

 

Police Chief

 

Chaplain 

(V)

 

Battalion 

Chief

Fire Prevention 

Manager/Plans 

Review

(PT/H) 

Lieutenant

 

Firefighter/

Paramedic

 

Auxiliary

 

Inspector 

 

Chaplain (V)

Administrative 

Assistant III

 

Director of 

Finance

Lieutenant

 

Sergeant

 

Police Officer

 

Deputy Finance 

Director

 

Accounting 

Generalist

 

Account 

Technician

 

Payroll 

Technician

 

Tax Administrator

 

Administrative 

Assistant III

 

Engineering  

Technician

 

Public Works 

Supervisor

 

Maintenance 

Technician

 

Custodian

(PT/H)

Mechanic

 

Information 

Technology 

System Analyst

 

Code 

Enforcement 

Manager

 

Code 

Enforcement 

Officer II

 

Code 

Enforcement 

Officer I

(PT)

Administrative 

Assistant I

(PT/H)

Police Records 

Clerk

 

Accounts 

Payable 

Technician

 

Water & 

Wastewater

(United 

Water) 

City Engineer

 

Public Works 

Manager

 

Personnel 

Appeals

Administrative 

Assistant III

 

City Manager

 

Deputy 

Clerk of Council  

Administrative 

Assistant I

 

 

Administrative 

Assistant III

Tax 

Technician

 

GIS Technician

Civil 

Engineer

 

 

 Inspector 

(PT/H)

Medical 

Advisor (V)

Director of Human 

Resources
 

Arts 

and 

Beautification

Public

Records

Bridge 

Inspection

(Montgomery 

County)

Director of 

Economic 

Development

Communications/

Records Mgr.

 

Evidence/Fleet Mgt. 

Clerk 

(PT/H)

Seasonal 

Laborer

Director of 

Information 

Technology 

 

Assistant City Manager 

of Administrative 

Services

 

Assistant City Manager 

of Public Services
 

City 

Planner

 

Tax 

Review

 

Administrative 

Assistant III

Seasonal 

Laborer

 

Administrative 

Assistant I

(PT/H) 
Public Works 

Crew Leader

 Director of 

Public Safety 
 

Seasonal 

Concessions 

Staff

Rose Music Center

 

Division of 

Building

 

Montgomery 

County Building 

Department

Facility Operator 

(YMCA)

Department of Parks & Recreation Facilities

Kroger Aquatic 

Center

 

Senior Center

 

Parks

 

Center 

Coordinator

 (PT/H)

Programs & 

Services

 

Concession 

Operations

 

Facility Operator

(MEMI Contract)

Recreation 

Director

(YMCA)

Assistant City 

Engineer

 

Department of 

Information Technology

Division of 

Code Enforcement

Aquatic 

Director

 

Maintenance/

Pool Manager

 

Programs/

Concessions 

Manager

 

Lifeguard       

Pool Staff

 

Maintenance 

Staff

 

Concession 

Staff

 

General 

Manager

 

Production 

Manager

 

Marketing 

Manager

 

Box Office 

Manager

 

Sponsorship 

Manager

 

Program & 

Services

 

Administrative 

Assistant I

(PT/H) 

 Fleet/Facility 

Mgt. Clerk

( PT/H)

Asst. Tax 

Administrator

 

Tax Analyst

 

 Public Records 

Technician 

(H) 

Information 

Technology 

System Analyst

(PT/H)

 

Communications 

Officer

 

Communications/

Records 

Supervisor

 

Veterans  

Military 
 

Human Resources 

Assistant

 (PT/H)

Econ, Dev. 

Coordinator

 

 

Community 

Engagement 

Specialist

 

Parks Manager

 

Cultural and 

Diversity Citizen 

Action

 

Director of 

Public Services

Custodian

 

Captain

 



   
AI-8371     New Business      R.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
City Salaries/Wage Levels
Submitted By: Katie Knisley
Department: Human Resources
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/19/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

2022-R-7115

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Establishing And/Or Amending The Salary Ranges And Wage Levels For Employees Of
The City Of Huber Heights, Ohio.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
This legislation authorizes the salary ranges and wage levels for all non-bargaining employees of the
City of Huber Heights.  Amendments to this legislation include the additional Captain position with the
Division of Fire.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-

ESTABLISHING AND/OR AMENDING THE SALARY RANGES AND WAGE LEVELS FOR 
EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO.

WHEREAS, the citizens of Huber Heights require efficient and effective delivery of municipal 
services.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The pay ranges, compensation procedures, and administrative rules for non-
bargaining employees as established hereafter shall be effective for the pay period beginning 
December 19, 2021 through the pay period ending December 17, 2022.

Section 2. City Council shall be responsible for establishing the actual salaries for the City 
Manager, the Clerk of Council, and the Deputy Clerk of Council. The salary ranges of the City 
Manager, the Clerk of Council, and the Deputy Clerk of Council are set forth in the following plan 
document.

Section 3.  It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 4. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

THE CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS

PERFORMANCE COMPENSATION PLAN FOR NON-BARGAINING EMPLOYEES

1. Compensation Philosophy

It is the City’s philosophy to support and enhance organizational performance through a fair, 
objective, and equitable merit-based pay plan which will attract, retain, and motivate high 
performing non-bargaining employees.

2. General Administrative Responsibilities

The Human Resources Director, under the direction of the City Manager is responsible for 
the administration of the Performance Compensation Plan, including the processing of pay 
rate increases, the adjustment of pay for promotions, re-employments and reassignments, and 
the initiation of necessary revisions in pay ranges.  The Human Resources Director is 
responsible for interpreting the application of the program to all pay issues which are not 
specifically covered by this ordinance, using the principles expressed herein as a policy 
guide. 

3. Plan Administration

A. Market Surveys.  The Human Resources Director shall conduct market surveys every 
three years or from time to time in order to collect updated comparable and 
competitive salary data, recommend revised pay structures and pay ranges as 
necessary, and recommend revised merit-based pay procedures.  Such surveys and 
recommendations shall be conducted as positions become vacant, or upon request of a 
department/division head, or upon the initiation of the Human Resources Director 
when it is determined necessary for the effective administration of the Performance 
Compensation Plan.

B. Structure Adjustments.  Periodically, the Human Resources Director may recommend 
pay range adjustments to the City Manager in keeping with labor market trends, who 
in turn may make appropriate recommendations to City Council.  Pay ranges (except 



for seasonal positions) shall include a minimum and maximum amount stated either 
as an annual salary or hourly rate.

C. Assignment of Positions to Pay Ranges.  The Human Resources Director shall be 
responsible for assigning each city employment position to a pay range based on 
market data and the City Manager’s determination of the strategic value of positions 
and/or employees to the organization.  Strategic value considerations may involve 
turnover, skill needs, attraction and retention issues, supply and demand for qualified 
applicants for particular positions, the impact of specific positions and employees on 
the organization’s mission, and/or other relevant factors.

4. Applicability

This resolution and Performance Compensation Plan shall apply to and is the sole authority 
for setting rates of pay for the following categories of positions and employees:  All regular 
full-time, regular part-time, provisional full-time, provisional part-time, hourly, temporary, 
and seasonal employees of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio except:  the Mayor; members of 
City Council, the City Law Director; and all employees who are members of a collective 
bargaining unit recognized by the State Employment Relations Board.  

5. Positions and Pay Ranges

Pay Grade Minimum Pay Maximum Pay

10 $13.8268 $20.5800
Custodian
Administrative Assistant I
Fire Fleet/Facility Management Clerk

$28,759.74 $42,806.40

20 $16.7304 $24.9000
Administrative Assistant II
Public Records Technician
Tax Technician

$34,799.23 $51,792.00

25 $16.7686 $27.3900
Account Technician
Accounts Payable Technician
Administrative Assistant III
Deputy Clerk of Council
Police Evidence/Fleet Management 
Clerk
Senior Center Program Coordinator
Code Enforcement Officer I

$34,878.69 $56,971.20

30 $18.4463 $30.1300
Police Accreditation Technician
Payroll Technician
Tax Analyst
Fire Inspector 
Human Resources Assistant

$38,368.30 $62,670.40

35 $19.3719 $31.6440
GIS Technician
Engineering Technician
Code Enforcement Officer II
Communications/Records Supervisor

$40,293.55 $65,819.52

40 $21.3058 $36.0900
Accounting Generalist
Community Engagement Specialist
Economic Development Coordinator
Human Resources Specialist
Fire Prevention Manager/Plans Review

$44,316.06 $75,067.20



45 $23.4381 $39.7000
Code Enforcement Manager
Assistant Tax Administrator
IT Systems Analyst
Parks Manager
Communications/Records Manager

$48,751.25 $82,576.00

50 $25.7852 $43.6800
Deputy Director of Finance
Tax Administrator
Public Works Supervisor
Clerk of Council
Civil Engineer

$53,633.22 $90,854.40

55 $30.9422 $52.4200
Assistant City Engineer
City Planner

$64,359.78 $109,033.60

60 $$34.0331 $57.6500
Human Resources Director
IT Director
Public Works Manager
Economic Development Director

$70,788.85 $119,912.00

65 $37.4381 $63.4200
City Engineer
Director of Finance

$77,871.25 $131,913.60

70 $43.0579 $72.9400
Fire Chief
Police Chief

$89,560.43 $151,715.20

75 $47.3637 $80.2300
Assistant City Manager of 
Administrative Services
Assistant City Manager of Public 
Services
Director of Public Safety

$98,516.50 $166,878.40

80 $52.0992 $85.1000
City Manager $108,366.34 $177,008.00

Position Minimum Pay Mid-point Pay Maximum Pay

Seasonal Laborer N/A N/A $14.00

Public Safety (PS)
Step 1 Step 2

Battalion Chief 2% below Step 2 14% above top step Fire Lieutenant
Fire Captain 2% below Step 2 6% above top step Fire Lieutenant

Employees are paid bi-weekly on an hourly or salary basis.  The bi-weekly pay rate for 
salaried employees is a calculation of the annual pay rate divided by 26 and the bi-weekly 

amount for hourly employees is a calculation of the annual pay rate divided by 2080 hours, to 
include those budget years with 27 pay periods.  The bi-weekly amount for part-time/hourly 

employees, working less than a 40-hour week in a 2080 work year, is a calculation of the 
annual pay rate multiplied by the number of hours worked.



6. Compensation Adjustments

All of the following pay rate adjustments are subject to funding by City Council based upon 
the availability of funds and economic and budget projections and priorities.

A. New Hires.  Newly hired employees shall be hired at a rate of pay between the 
minimum and maximum of the applicable pay range.  The exact pay rate shall be 
based on the employee’s education, experience, knowledge, skills, and abilities.  Prior 
to the making of a conditional offer of employment to a prospective new or newly 
promoted employee, the department/division head shall recommend a starting rate of 
pay which shall be forwarded to the Human Resources Manager for review and then 
to the City Manager for final action.

B. Completion of Probation.  Department/division heads may recommend a pay 
increase, not to exceed 2%, for newly hired or promoted employees upon the 
successful completion of probation or one year of employment.  The 
department/division head should consider the employee’s starting rate as related to 
their pay range, the pay of other employees in the position and in the employee’s 
division, and the employee’s performance in making this decision.  Any such 
increase, upon approval by the City Manager, shall be paid from the division’s 
regular payroll budget.  

C. Promotion.  Employees who are promoted to positions with a higher level of duties 
and responsibilities shall be placed at a rate of pay between the minimum and 
maximum of the applicable pay range.   

D. Demotion.  Employees who are demoted to positions with a lower level of duties and 
responsibilities because of less than satisfactory performance, failure to meet job 
requirements, or for disciplinary reasons shall be placed at the minimum of the new 
range, or receive a pay decrease not to exceed 10%, whichever results in the least loss 
of pay.

E. Reassignment.  Employees who are reassigned to positions with a lower pay grade
through no fault of their own (i.e., reorganization, job abolishment, reduction-in-
force, or market/technological factors, etc.), shall remain at their current rate of pay, 
or shall be placed at the maximum of the pay range, whichever is less.  An employee 
who voluntarily requests and is granted a reassignment to a position with a lower pay 
grade will have their pay adjusted between the minimum and maximum of the lower 
pay grade.

F. Temporary Upgrade to a Higher Position.  Employees who are temporarily assigned 
(for a minimum of 7 consecutive calendar days) to perform all of the duties and 
assume all of the responsibilities of a position due to a position vacancy or an 
approved leave of absence of a position incumbent shall be receive a pay increase not 
to exceed 5%.  Temporary upgrades shall be recommended to the Human Resources 
Manager and approved by the City Manager in advance.

G. Modification of Pay Ranges.  When a position’s pay range is modified upward, based 
on market data and/or strategic value, and the position is occupied, the incumbent 
shall retain his/her existing pay rate or be placed at the minimum of the new pay 
range, whichever is greater.  When a position’s pay range is modified downward, and 
the position is occupied, the incumbent shall remain at his/her current rate of pay.

H. Transfers.  Employees who transfer to another job in an identical pay range or to an 
identical position in another division in the same pay range, there will be no change in 
the employee’s rate of pay.

I. Transitional and Paid Intern Positions:  In cases deemed necessary and appropriate by 
the City Manager, an appointment to a position in the non-exempt service which is 
not yet vacated, but which position incumbent has provided the City Manager with a 
written notice of resignation or retirement on a date certain, which date is within 90 
days following the date of such appointment.  In cases deemed necessary and 
appropriate by the City Manager, an appointment of a student intern may be made 
based on skill, experience, and the scope of the project to be completed.   



7. Compensation Increases 

The compensation of each employee shall be reviewed annually by the department director/division 
manager, or Mayor and Council, for the purpose of determining which employees may be entitled to 
a performance-based increase.  All personnel records, performance, and experience shall be 
considered in making recommendations with major emphasis placed on the evaluation.  The City 
Manager or Mayor and Council is authorized to pay non-union employees a performance-based
increase provided that said increase is within the approved salary range for the respective position.  
The performance-based increase may also be provided in the form of a bonus.  The annual 
performance-based increase is determined upon the availability of funds and economic and budget 
projections and priorities.

Providing the Collective Bargaining Agreements receive an annual increase, the City shall adjust the 
compensation of all non-union employees, to include employees of the City Council, to reflect the 
same annual increase within the respective year.  

To be eligible for a performance-based increase, an employee must be employed with at least six 
months of continuous service before the merit award date.

An employee whose pay is at the maximum of the compensation range may not be granted an 
increase that would cause the base compensation to exceed the maximum of the range for that 
position.  The employee would continue to be eligible for an annual increase and performance 
bonus, with a lump sum increase based upon the percentage increase.  The pay range, however, does 
not change until a new market study is conducted, every three years, and a recommendation is made 
to revise pay structures and pay ranges as necessary 

Passed by Council on the _____ day of   ______, 2022;
____  Yeas; ___  Nays.

Effective Date:  

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



   
AI-8370     New Business      S.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
Supplemental Appropriations
Submitted By: Jim Bell
Department: Finance Division: Accounting
Council Committee Review?: Council Work Session
Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/19/2022  
Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No
Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Passed to a
Second
Reading

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
An Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 By Making Supplemental Appropriations For
Expenses Of The Fire Division Of The City Of Huber Heights, Ohio For The Period Beginning January
1, 2022 And Ending December 31, 2022.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
The supplemental appropriations are for the following purposes:

- $217,000 for 4 new hires in the Fire Department, estimated to begin work on 7/1/22.
- $20,000 for new unfiorms and turnout gear for 4 new hires in Fire Department.
 

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: Fire Fund
Cost: $237,000
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): Yes
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Ordinance 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-O-

AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2021-O-2511 BY MAKING SUPPLEMENTAL 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR EXPENSES OF THE FIRE DIVISION OF THE CITY OF HUBER 
HEIGHTS, OHIO FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2022 AND ENDING 
DECEMBER 31, 2022.

WHEREAS, supplemental appropriations for expenses of the City of Huber Heights must be 
made for appropriations of funds for various 2022 operating and project funding.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1.  Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 is hereby amended as shown in Exhibit A of this 
Ordinance.

Section 2.  It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this 
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in 
such formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal 
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Ordinance shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the Charter 
of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022;
______  Yeas; ______  Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

______________________________ ______________________________
Clerk of Council Mayor

______________________________ ______________________________
Date Date



EXHIBIT A

AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2021-O-2511 BY MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR EXPENSES OF THE 
FIRE DIVISION OF THE CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING JANUARY 
1, 2022 AND ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2022.

1) Section 6 of Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 is hereby amended to reflect an increase in the appropriations 
of the 210 Fire Fund, as follows:

a. Subsection a) Fire, Personnel of $217,000.00

b. Subsection a) Fire, Operations and Capital of $20,000.00.

Fire Fund $237,000.00



   
AI-8357     New Business      T.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
Alcore/The Landings of Huber Heights - Land Use Restriction Agreement Termination 
Submitted By: Bryan Chodkowski
Department: Economic Development
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/19/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

2022-R-7116

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Authorizing The Execution Of A Termination Of The Land Use Restriction Agreement In
Connection With The City’s Multifamily Housing Mortgage Revenue Bonds (Alcore Huber LLC Project)
Series 2012A.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
In support of Alcore/The Landings of Huber Heights, the City issued bonds to fund construction on
behalf of the owner in 2012.  As a condition of that bond issuance, the City was partner to a Land Use
Restriction Agreement to guarantee the bond proceeds would be used for the intended purpose.  The
bonds in question were paid off in 2018 and the facility is under new ownership.  The new owners
would like the Land Use Restriction Agreement terminated in an effort to clean up the title for the
property.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Land Use Restriction Agreement 
Assignment/Assumption Agreement 
Termination Of Land Use Restriction Agreement 
Resolution 

























































This instrument prepared by: 
Diana B. Vicen, Esq. 
DINSMORE & SHOHL LLP 
191 West Nationwide Boulevard, Suite 300 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

 
TERMINATION OF LAND USE RESTRICTION AGREEMENT 

(MH Huber Heights Holdings LLC) 

THIS TERMINATION OF LAND USE RESTRICTION AGREEMENT is made 
as of _____________ __, 2022, by and among MH HUBER HEIGHTS HOLDINGS LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company (the "Owner"), the CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO, 
a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Ohio (the 
"Issuer"), and BOKF, NA DBA BANK OF OKLAHOMA, a national banking association (the 
"Trustee"). 

WHEREAS, the Issuer issued its Multifamily Housing Mortgage Revenue Bonds 
(Alcore Huber LLC Project) Series 2012A, on October 31, 2012 (the "2012 Bonds") for the 
purpose of funding a loan to Alcore Huber LLC, an Ohio limited liability company (the "Prior 
Owner"), for the purpose of acquiring a multifamily housing facility (the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the 2012 Bonds, the Prior Owner 
entered into a Land Use Restriction Agreement (the "Original Land Use Restriction 
Agreement"), dated as of October 1, 2012, with the Issuer and the Trustee, which Original Land 
Use Restriction Agreement was recorded on November 2, 2012 as File No. 2012-00071792 in 
the Montgomery County Recorder’s Office; and 

WHEREAS, on April 5, 2018, the obligations of the Prior Owner under the Original 
Land Use Restriction Agreement were assumed by the Owner pursuant to an Assignment and 
Assumption Agreement dated as of April 5, 2018 (the "Assumption" and together with the 
Original Land Use Restriction Agreement, the "Land Use Restriction Agreement"), which 
Assumption was recorded on April 9, 2018 as File No. 2018-00019746 in the Montgomery 
County Recorder’s Office; and 



2 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Land Use Restriction Agreement, the Owner is required 
to operate the project in accordance with certain rental restrictions during the term of the 
Qualified Project Period (as defined in the Land Use Restriction Agreement) and the term of 
the Bonds until the Land Use Restriction Agreement is terminated in accordance with its terms; 
and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 14(c) of the Land Use Restriction Agreement, the 
Land Use Restriction Agreement shall terminate in the event of transfer of title of the Project 
by deed in lieu of foreclosure following which and within a reasonable period of time the Bonds 
are redeemed, unless, at any time subsequent to such event and during the Qualified Project 
Period, the Owner or any direct successor in interest, or any transferee from the Owner or its 
successor subject to an Assumption Agreement (as defined in the Land Use Restriction 
Agreement), or any Related Person (as defined in the Land Use Restriction Agreement) to such 
persons, or any other person who was, prior to the event, an obligor on any Purpose Investment 
(as defined in the Land Use Restriction Agreement) issued in connection with any financing for 
the Project, obtains an ownership interest in the Project for tax purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner has entered into a Deed in Lieu Agreement, dated as of 
__________ __, 2022 (the "Deed in Lieu Agreement") with Huber Heights Holdings, LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company ("Huber Heights Holdings"), pursuant to which the Project 
was conveyed by the Owner to Huber Heights Holdings in lieu of foreclosure, and the Owner 
acknowledges that all conditions necessary for the termination of the Land Use Restriction 
Agreement pursuant to Section 14(c) thereof have occurred or will be satisfied in connection 
with the conveyance of the Project pursuant to the Deed in Lieu Agreement, as set forth in the 
Certification Regarding Termination of the Land Use Restriction Agreement, attached hereto 
and made a part hereof as Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, the 2012 Bonds have been satisfied and paid in full; and 

WHEREAS, based solely on the request and representations of the Owner, the Owner, 
the Trustee, and the Issuer, at the, and, desire to cancel and terminate the Land Use Restriction 
Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS INSTRUMENT WITNESSETH:  

The Land Use Restriction Agreement as described in the preambles hereto, and the 
terms thereof, are hereby agreed and determined to be cancelled and terminated and the Owner, 
the Issuer and the Trustee are hereby released and discharged from any and all obligations 
thereunder. 



 

S-1 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties has caused this Instrument to be 
executed in its name and on its behalf by its duly authorized officers, all as of the date first 
mentioned above.  

 
  MH HUBER HEIGHTS HOLDINGS LLC 

a Delaware limited liability company 

   
By:  ____________________________________ 

  Name:  __________________________________ 
  Title:  ___________________________________ 
   

 
STATE OF    ) 

)  SS: 
COUNTY OF    )  

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ____________, 2022, 
by _________________, the _______________________ of MH Huber Heights Holdings 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, on behalf of the company. No oath or affirmation 
was administered to the signer. 

 

(SEAL)  
Notary Public 

 
 
My Commission Expires:    
  

 
 

[Signatures continue on the following page]  

  



 

S-2 
 

  CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO,  
as Issuer 

 

 

By: _______________________________ 
      City Manager 
 

By: _______________________________ 
      Director of Finance 
 
 

   
   
    
   
   

 
STATE OF OHIO   ) 

)  SS: 
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY )  

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ________________, 
2022, by ______________________ and _____________________, the City Manager and 
Director of Finance, respectively, of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio, on behalf of the City. No 
oath or affirmation was administered to the signer. 

 

 (SEAL)  

Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires:    
 
 

[Signatures continue on the following page]  



 

S-3 
 

  

  BOKF, NA dba, BANK OF OKLAHOMA, 
as Trustee 
 
By: ________________________________ 
Name: _____________________________ 
Title: ______________________________ 
 

 
 
STATE OF ________________) 

    )  SS: 
COUNTY OF ______________)  

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of _________________, 
2022, by ______________, the __________________ of BOKF, NA dba Bank of Oklahoma, 
a national banking association, on behalf of the association. No oath or affirmation was 
administered to the signer. 

 

(SEAL)  
Notary Public 

 
 
My Commission Expires:    



 

A-1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING TERMINATION  
OF THE LAND USE RESTRICTION AGREEMENT 

 
MH Huber Heights Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the "Owner"), 

as owner of the Alcore Huber LLC Project (the "Project") hereby represents and warrants, to 
the best of its knowledge, based upon due inquiry and investigation, as follows: 
 
1. All of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio Multifamily Housing Mortgage Revenue Bonds 

(Alcore Huber LLC Project) Series 2012A, dated October 31, 2012 (the "2012 Bonds"), 
have been satisfied and paid in full prior to the date hereof. 

 
2. The Owner has continuously complied with the terms of the Land Use Restriction 

Agreement dated as of October 1, 2012 (the "Original Land Use Restriction 
Agreement"), between Alcore Huber LLC (the "Prior Owner"), the City of Huber 
Heights, Ohio (the "Issuer"), and BOKF, NA dba Bank of Oklahoma, as trustee for the 
2012 Bonds, which Original Land Use Restriction was recorded on November 2, 2012 
as File No. 2012-00071792 in the Montgomery County Recorder’s Office, since the 
date it entered into the Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated as of April 5, 
2018 (the "Assumption" and, together with the Original Land Use Restriction 
Agreement, the "Land Use Restriction Agreement"), which Assumption was recorded 
on April 9, 2018 as File No. 2018-00019746 in the Montgomery County Recorder’s 
Office, and the Owner is not in default or in violation of the terms of the Land Use 
Restriction Agreement. 

 
3. No assistance with respect to the Project under Section 8 of the United States Housing 

Act has been provided. 
 
4. No tax-exempt private activity bonds, other than the 2012 Bonds, exist with respect to 

the Project. 
 
5. The Owner has entered into a Deed in Lieu Agreement, dated as of __________ __, 

2022 (the "Deed in Lieu Agreement") with Huber Heights Holdings, LLC, a Delaware 
limited liability company ("Huber Heights Holdings"), pursuant to which the Project 
was conveyed by the Owner to Huber Heights Holdings in lieu of foreclosure. 

 
6. Pursuant to the terms of the Land Use Restriction Agreement, all conditions necessary 

for the termination of the Land Use Restriction Agreement pursuant to Section 14(c) 
thereof have occurred or will be satisfied in connection with the conveyance of the 
Project pursuant to the Deed in Lieu Agreement, and the termination of the Land Use 
Restriction Agreement is thereby required in accordance with Section 14(c) of the Land 
Use Restriction Agreement. The Owner hereby requests that the Termination of Land 



 

A-2 

Use Restriction Agreement be executed by the Issuer and the Trustee and recorded in 
the real estate records of the Montgomery County, Ohio recorder to remove the Land 
Use Restriction Agreement from the real estate records of such recorder. 
 
This Certification is hereby delivered this ____ day of _________, 2022. 

 
  



 

A-3 

[Signature Page to Certification Regarding Termination of the Land Use Restriction Agreement] 
 
 
MH HUBER HEIGHTS HOLDINGS LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company 

 
 

By:       
Name:       
Title:       

 
 
24695230 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A TERMINATION OF THE LAND USE 
RESTRICTION AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION WITH THE CITY’S MULTIFAMILY 
HOUSING MORTGAGE REVENUE BONDS (ALCORE HUBER LLC PROJECT) SERIES 
2012A.

WHEREAS, the City issued its Multifamily Housing Mortgage Revenue Bonds (Alcore Huber 
LLC Project) Series 2012A, on October 31, 2012 (the "2012 Bonds") for the purpose of funding 
a loan to Alcore Huber LLC, an Ohio limited liability company, for the purpose of acquiring a 
multifamily housing facility (the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the 2012 Bonds, the City entered into a Land Use 
Restriction Agreement (the " Land Use Restriction Agreement"), dated as of October 1, 2012, 
together with other parties; and

WHEREAS, the current owner of the Project has acknowledged to the City that all conditions 
necessary for the termination of the Land Use Restriction Agreement pursuant to Section 14(c) 
thereof have occurred or will occur upon the execution of the hereinafter described Termination 
of Land Use Restriction Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the current owner of the Project has also acknowledged that the 2012 Bonds have 
been satisfied and paid in full.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The Termination of Land Use Restriction Agreement, in the form presently on file 
with the Clerk of Council, providing for, among other things, the termination of certain land use 
restrictions related to the 2012 Bonds, is hereby approved and authorized with changes therein 
not inconsistent with this Resolution and not substantially adverse to this City and which shall be 
approved by the City Manager and Director of Finance.  The City Manager and the Director of 
Finance, for and in the name of this City, are hereby authorized to execute that Termination of 
Land Use Restriction Agreement, provided further that the approval of changes thereto by those 
officials, and their character as not being substantially adverse to the City, shall be evidenced 
conclusively by the execution thereof.

Section 2.  It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this 
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in 
such formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal 
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022;
______  Yeas; ______  Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



- 2 -

CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, Clerk of Council of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio, hereby certifies that the 
foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2022-R-_____ adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Huber Heights, on _____________, 2022.

Clerk of Council



   
AI-8358     New Business      U.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
CRA Agreement - Flyer Red Properties II, LLC Operated As Warped Wing - 6602 Executive Boulevard
Submitted By: Bryan Chodkowski
Department: Economic Development
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/19/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

2022-R-7117

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into A Community Reinvestment Area Agreement
With Flyer Red Properties II, LLC Under Certain Terms And Conditions.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
Flyer Red Properties II, LLC would like to acquire the property at 6602 Executive Boulevard and reconstruct the
existing TruckPro facility into a restaurant/taproom/smokery to be operated by Warped Wing Brewing Company,
similar to existing facilities in  Springboro and Mason.  Additional improvements are planned, including a
biergarten, pilot brewing system, and warehouse space for storing raw materials, food, and beer.  The project
involves a total investment of $1,000,000 (plus or minus) and will create and sustain 42 full-time equivalent jobs
resulting in approximately $1,200,000 in new payroll.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution 
Exhibit A 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT 
AREA AGREEMENT WITH FLYER RED PROPERTIES II, LLC UNDER CERTAIN TERMS 
AND CONDITIONS.

WHEREAS, the City of Huber Heights (the “City”) created Community Reinvestment Area Number 
7 (“CRA #7”) by Resolution No. 94-R-1453 on June 20, 1994 for the purpose of encouraging 
economic development activity; and

WHEREAS, 6602 Executive Boulevard (the “Property”), currently known as TruckPro, is located
within CRA #7; and

WHEREAS, Flyer Red Properties II, LLC has a desire to acquire the Property for the purposes of 
establishing a restaurant/taproom/smokery (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Project will require an initial investment of $1,000,000.00, creating 42 full-time 
equivalent jobs with a total payroll of approximately $1,200,000.00; and

WHEREAS, Flyer Red Properties II, LLC seeks to enter into an agreement with the City to ensure 
the full tax incentive available in CRA #7 is provided in support of the Project prior to its acquisition 
of the Property.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute an agreement with 
Flyer Red Properties II, LLC, attached hereto as Exhibit A, to provide tax incentives for the purposes 
noted above and detailed therein; approved as to final form and content by the Law Director.

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3.  This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the Charter 
of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022;
______  Yeas; ______  Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



1

EXHIBIT A
SYNERGY & MILLS DEVELOPMENT 

PRE JULY 1994 
COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA 
AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This Agreement made and entered into by and between the CITY OF HUBER 
HEIGHTS, OHIO, Charter City, with its main offices located at 6131 Taylorsville Road, 
Huber Heights, Ohio (“City”); and FLYER RED PROPERTIES II, LLC an Ohio limited 
liability company, or its assignee with its main offices located at 3500 Pentagon Blvd, Suite 
500, Beavercreek, Ohio (“Property Owner”).

WHEREAS, the City has encouraged the development of real property located in 
the area designated as a Community Reinvestment Area; and

WHEREAS, on June 20,1994 the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio by 
Resolution No. 94-R-1453, designated the Area known as “Community Reinvestment Area 
Number 7” pursuant Chapter 3735 of the Ohio Revised Code and the Charter of Huber 
Heights; and

WHEREAS, the Property Owner intends to constructed certain improvements 
within the boundaries of the Community Reinvestment Area Number 7 in the City of Huber 
Heights, provided that the appropriate development incentives are available to support the 
economic viability of the Project; and

WHEREAS, the City, having the appropriate authority pursuant to the Ohio 
Constitution, Charter of the City of Huber Heights and laws of the State of Ohio, desires 
to provide the Property Owner with incentives available for the development of the Project 
in said Community Reinvestment Area; and

NOW, Therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this 
agreement, and of the benefit to be derived by the parties from the execution of it, the 
parties herein agree as follow:

1. The Property Owner shall, at 6602 Executive Blvd. (“Project Site) in Huber 
Heights Community Reinvestment Area Number 7 shall reconstruct the existing TruckPro 
facility into a restaurant/taproom/smokery to be operated by Warped Wing Brewing 
Company similar to their existing facilities in Springboro and Mason.  Additional 
improvements are planned; including a biergarten, pilot brewing system, and warehouse 
space for storing raw materials, food, and beer(“Project”) The Project involves a total 
investment by the Property Owner of $1,000,000.00, plus or minus, at the Project Site. 

2. The Project will create and sustain 42 full-time equivalent jobs resulting in 
approximately $1,200,000.00 in new payroll.

3. The Property Owner shall provide to the proper Tax Incentive Review Council 
any information reasonably required by the Tax Incentive Review Council to evaluate the 
Property Owner compliance with this Agreement.



2

4. Upon conclusion of the Project the City shall grant the Property Owner a tax 
exemption for real property improvements made to the Project Site pursuant to applicable 
law; and shall be in the following amounts: One Hundred Percent (100%) for Fifteen (15) 
years.  The exemption commences the first year for which real property would first be 
taxable were that property not exempted from taxation. Property Owner must file the 
appropriate tax forms with the Montgomery County Auditor to effect and maintain the 
exemptions covered in this Agreement.

5. This Agreement is transferable and/or assignable without the express written 
approval of the City.

6. The Property Owner shall pay such real estate taxes as are not exempted under 
this Agreement, and are charged against such property, and shall file all tax reports and 
returns as required by law.  If Property Owner fails to pay such taxes or file such returns 
and reports, all incentives granted under this Agreement are rescinded, beginning with the 
year for which such taxes are charged or such reports returns are required to be filed, and 
thereafter.

7. The City shall perform such acts as are reasonably necessary or appropriate to 
effect, claim, reserve, and maintain exemptions from taxation granted under this 
Agreement including, without limitation, joining in the execution of all documentation and 
providing any necessary certificates required in connection with such exemptions.

8. If for any reason the Community Reinvestment Area designation expires or the 
Director of the Ohio Department of Development revokes certification of the Area, 
entitlements granted under this Agreement shall continue for the number of years specified 
under this Agreement; provided however, if Property Owner materially fails to fulfill its 
obligation under this Agreement the City may terminate or modify the exemptions from 
taxation granted under this Agreement.

9. If the Property Owner materially fails to fulfill its obligations under this 
Agreement, or if the City determines that the certification as to delinquent taxes required 
by this Agreement is fraudulent, the City may unilaterally terminate or modify the 
exemptions from taxation granted under this Agreement; and may require that the Property 
Owner pay to the City the amount of taxes that were exempted under this Agreement, (i.e. 
the taxes that would have been payable had the property not been exempted from taxation 
under this Agreement).  The City is authorized to record the necessary documentation to 
perfect its lien rights set forth herein including but not limited to this Agreement. Any lien 
created herein shall run with the land.

10. The Property Owner covenants that it does not owe: (1) any delinquent taxes to 
the State of Ohio or political subdivision of the State; or (2) any other monies to the State, 
a state agency or a political subdivision of the State that are past due, whether the amounts 
owed are being contested in a court of law or not.

11. The Property Owner and the City acknowledge that this Agreement must be 
approved by formal action of the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio, as a condition for 
the Agreement to take effect. 



3

12.  By executing this Agreement, the Property Owner is committing to following 
non-discriminatory hiring practices, acknowledging that no individual may be denied 
employment solely on the basis of race, religion, gender, disability, color, national origin, 
or ancestry.

13. The Property Owner agrees to construct the Project in a manner similar to the 
existing facility and in accordance with the requirements of Huber Heights Codified 
Ordinances.

14. The failure by any party to exercise any of its rights hereunder or to enforce any 
of the terms or conditions of this Agreement on any occasion shall not constitute or be 
deemed a waiver of that party’s rights thereafter to exercise any rights hereunder or to 
enforce each and every term and condition of this Agreement. This Agreement may not be 
modified except by a writing specifically referring to this Agreement, and executed by duly 
authorized representatives of both parties. The parties have had the opportunity to have this 
Agreement reviewed by legal counsel of their choosing.  This Agreement was the product 
of negotiations between the parties and the parties agree that no provision or provisions 
herein shall be construed against any one party by virtue of the authorship of such 
provision.

15. The Parties agree to execute and deliver such additional documents and to 
perform such additional acts as may become reasonably necessary to effectuate the 
transfers contemplated by this Agreement.

16. A determination that any portion of this Agreement is unenforceable or invalid 
shall not affect the enforceability or validity of any of the remaining portions of this 
Agreement as a whole.  In the event that any part of any of the covenants, Sections, or 
provisions herein may be determined by a court of law or equity to be invalid or 
unenforceable, the parties shall attempt to reach agreement with respect to valid and 
enforceable substitutes for deleted provision(s), which shall be as close in intent and effect 
as possible to the deleted portions.

17. The Property Owner hereby consents to the Huber Heights Tax Division 
providing to, the Huber Heights City Manager, or his designee, any and all tax information
if necessary to evaluate Property Owner’s compliance with this Agreement and such 
disclosure shall not be a violation of any federal state or local confidentiality laws or 
requirements associated with tax and payroll returns.  To the fullest extent permitted by 
law, the City Manager, or his designee, will treat any such information as confidential.  



4

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this Agreement

OWNER PROPERTY OWNER

THE CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS FLYER RED PROPERTIES II, LLC

____________________________ ____________________________
Its: City Manager Its:
Date: _______________________ Date: ________________________

STATE OF OHIO                        )
      ) ss.

COUNTY OF _______________)

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
___________, 20___, by _______________, City Manager of Huber Heights, Ohio, on 
behalf of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio.

____________________________
Printed Name:_________________ 
Notary 

STATE OF OHIO                        )
      ) ss.

COUNTY OF _______________)

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _______ day of 
_________, 20__, by _________________, _____________ of 
_____________________, an Ohio ___________________, on behalf of the company

_____________________________
Printed Name:_________________ 
Notary



   
AI-8354     New Business      V.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
Supplemental Appropriations
Submitted By: Jim Bell
Department: Finance Division: Accounting
Council Committee Review?: Council Work Session
Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/19/2022  
Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No
Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

2022-O-2527

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
An Ordinance Authorizing Advances And Transfers Between Various Funds Of The City Of Huber
Heights, Ohio And Amending Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 By Making Supplemental Appropriations For
Expenses Of The City Of Huber Heights, Ohio For The Period Beginning January 1, 2022 And Ending
December 31, 2022.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
The supplemental appropriations are for the following purposes:

- $24,326.04 transfer from Law Enforcement Assistance Grant Fund to Police Fund to reimburse
salaries for time at training (grant requirement so moving monies from training line item to transfer
expense).
- $534,900 transfer from Water R & I Fund to Water Fund for debt payments (2022 Budget
approved listed this amount under operations portion of budget).
- $4,800 in Motor Vehicle Fund moved from personnel expense to operations.
- $17,208.13 to cover final invoices for construction of the Veterans Memorial.
 

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: Various Funds
Cost: $17,208.13
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:
Three of the budget changes involve moving funds from one section of that Fund's budget to another
section.

Attachments
Ordinance 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-O-

AUTHORIZING ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS BETWEEN VARIOUS FUNDS OF THE 
CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO AND AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2021-O-2511 BY 
MAKING SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS FOR EXPENSES OF THE CITY OF 
HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2022 AND 
ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2022.

WHEREAS, supplemental appropriations for expenses of the City of Huber Heights must be 
made for appropriations of funds for various 2022 operating and project funding.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1.  Authorization is hereby given to advance and transfer certain monies up to 
amounts not exceeding those shown and for the purposes cited in Exhibit A, and such 
authorization applies to any and all such advances and transfers necessary and effected after 
January 1, 2022.

Section 2.  Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 is hereby amended as shown in Exhibit B of this 
Ordinance.

Section 3.  It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this 
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in 
such formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal 
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 4. This Ordinance shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the Charter 
of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022;
______  Yeas; ______  Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

______________________________ ______________________________
Clerk of Council Mayor

______________________________ ______________________________
Date Date



EXHIBIT A

Advance:
Amount Fund From Fund To Purpose
$24,326.04 242 Law Enf Asst Grant 209 Police Reimburse police salaries

$534,900.00 503 Water R & I 501 Water Budget correction



EXHIBIT B

AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2021-O-2511 BY MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR EXPENSES OF THE 
CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2022 AND ENDING 
DECEMBER 31, 2022.

1) Section 2 of Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 is hereby amended to reflect changes in the appropriations of 
the 202 Motor Vehicle Fund, as follows:

a. Subsection a) Streets, Personnel decrease of $4,800.00

b. Subsection a) Streets, Operations and Capital increase of $4,800.00.

2) Section 18 of Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 is hereby amended to reflect changes in the appropriations of 
the 242 Law Enforcement Assistance Grant Fund, as follows:
a. Operations and Capital decrease of $24,326.04

b. Transfers increase of $24,326.04.

3) Section 30 of Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 is hereby amended to reflect an increase in the appropriations 
of the 406 Capital Improvement Fund, as follows:

a. Subsection c) Capital, Operations and Capital of $17,208.13.

4) Section 41 of Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 is hereby amended to reflect changes in the appropriations of 
the 503 Water Renewal & Improvement Fund, as follows:
a. Operations and Capital decrease of $534,900.00

b. Transfers increase of $534,900.

Motor Vehicle Fund $0.00

Law Enforcement Assist. Grant Fund $0.00

Capital Improvements Fund $17,208.13

Water Renewal & Improvement Fund $0.00



   
AI-8355     New Business      W.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
County Assessments Authorization
Submitted By: Jim Bell
Department: Finance Division: Accounting
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/19/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: Yes

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

2022-O-2528

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
An Ordinance Approving Individual Assessments Amounts And Directing The Director Of Finance Or
His/Her Designee To Certify The Amounts To The Applicable County Auditor For Collection, And
Declaring An Emergency.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
Montgomery County requires all communities to pass separate legislation for assessments that are to be
added to the tax duplicate.  Before the City can assess property for such things as grass/weed charges,
property maintenance abatement, unpaid water and sewer, etc., the City must pass legislation
specifically identifying the property and the amount of the assessment.  Details of each assessment can
be found in Exhibit A, which is attached to this legislation.  The assessments requested in this legislation
are only for delinquent water, sewer and storm water accounts.  Assessments are based on collection for
City services previously provided; therefore, City Staff are asking that this item be passed as emergency
legislation.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Ordinance 
Exhibit A 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-O-

APPROVING INDIVIDUAL ASSESSMENTS AMOUNTS AND DIRECTING THE DIRECTOR 
OF FINANCE OR HIS/HER DESIGNEE TO CERTIFY THE AMOUNTS TO THE APPLICABLE 
COUNTY AUDITOR FOR COLLECTION, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 6, Article XVIII of the Ohio Constitution the General Assembly has 
enacted general laws stating purposes for which municipalities may assess specially benefited 
property; and 

WHEREAS, these laws include Ohio Revised Code Sections 727.01, 727.011, 727.012, 727.013, 
729.06, 729.11, 1710.01(h) and others, which authorize the City to levy and collect special 
assessments upon the abutting, adjacent, and contiguous, or other specially benefited, lots or lands in 
the municipal corporation, for among other things, any part of the cost connected with the 
improvement of any street, public road, place, boulevard, parkway, or park entrance or an easement 
of the municipal corporation; sidewalk construction; sewers; sewage disposal works and treatment 
plants, sewage pumping stations, water treatment plants, water pumping stations, reservoirs, and 
water storage tanks or standpipes, together with the facilities and appurtenances necessary and 
proper therefore; drains, storm-water retention basins, watercourses, water mains, or laying of water 
pipe; lighting; any part of the cost and expense of planting, maintaining, and removing shade trees 
thereupon; any part of the cost and expense of constructing, maintaining, repairing, cleaning, and 
enclosing ditches; and

WHEREAS, for such approved assessments, the County Auditor is to act at the direction, or on 
behalf, of a municipality with respect to collection of such assessments R.C. 727.30; (R.C. 727.33);
and

WHEREAS, the General Assembly has also enacted laws that require a County Auditor to act at the 
direction, or on behalf, of a municipality with respect to collection of certain costs assessed to 
properties including but not limited to R.C 743.04, 715.261 and 731.51-54; and

WHEREAS, as a result of the foregoing, the City of Huber Heights has passed, and will in the future 
pass, laws to assess real property for all or part of the cost of a public improvement and/or certain 
permitted costs of abatement or collection, including but not limited to Ordinance No. 97-O-997 
codified as Huber Heights Code Section 175.04 Assessments for Capital Improvement Projects (for 
sanitary sewer, water, sidewalks and drive aprons, roadways and storm sewers); Ordinance No. 90-
O-419 codified as Huber Heights Code Section 919.01 (street lighting); Ordinance No. 2009-O-1771 
codified as Huber Heights Code Section 929.16 (unpaid water service); Ordinance No. 1996-O-856 
codified as Huber Heights Code Section 923.08 (unpaid sanitary sewer); Ordinance No. 2002-O-
1325 codified as Huber Heights Code Section 922.32 (stormwater); Ordinance No. 2014-0-2096
codified as Huber Heights Code Section 521.11 (nuisance in the right of way); Huber Heights Code 
Section 911.02 (sidewalk repair); Ordinance No. 2002-O-1324 and No. 2011-O-1897 (weed cutting 
assessment); Huber Heights Code Sections 925.05 (lower Rip Rap Road sewer district assessment), 
952.04 (nuisance abatement for false alarms), 521.081, (littering and deposit of garbage) and such 
other ordinances or resolution that may be passed from time to time pursuant to these codified laws;
and

WHEREAS, in order to better track and account for authorized legal assessments and the amounts 
due to the City, City Council has determined it is in the best interest of the citizens to pass this 
Ordinance setting forward the applicable properties and assessment amounts to be certified to the 
County for collection; and

WHEREAS, the assessments set forth in Exhibit A have been authorized by the City Council of the 
City of Huber Heights and are required by law to be assessed and collected by the County on behalf 
of the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:



Section 1.  The properties set forth on the attached Exhibit A, which is incorporated herein by 
this reference, are to be assessed in the amount also set forth on the applicable section of Exhibit A 
unless payment is made within the time frame set forth in the applicable section of Exhibit A.

Section 2. In the event a payment for the amount or any portion of the amount set forth in 
Exhibit A is received by the City prior to final assessment date set forth in Exhibit A, which is the 
same date set forth in the notice sent to such property owner, the Director of Finance, or his/her 
designee is authorized to remove or revise such assessment from Exhibit A prior to certification to 
the County Auditor.

Section 3. The Director of Finance or his/her designee is instructed to certify this Ordinance, 
including the final assessed properties in Exhibit A, to the applicable County Auditor for collection.

Section 4.  It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 5. This Ordinance is declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the immediate 
preservation of the public peace, property, health, welfare and safety of the City, and for the further 
reasons that finalizing and certifying assessment at the earliest time is necessary to timely establish a 
lien and protect the City’s interest in payment of amounts owed to the City; wherefore, this 
Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage

Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022;
______  Yeas; ______  Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



EXHIBIT A

Project No Project Desc Parcel ID Address Tax Year

31102 Delq. Water P70 00601 0027 8458 Schoolgate Dr  $43.62 2022 February 2023
31102 Delq. Water P70 00619 0063 8278 Sun Prairie Pl  $50.13 2022 February 2023

31102 Delq. Water P70 01006 0026 4691 Powell Rd  $50.42 2022 February 2023
31102 Delq. Water P70 01515 0013 4877 Fishburg Rd  $46.51 2022 February 2023
31102 Delq. Water P70 01616 0007 6001 Corsica Dr  $48.59 2022 February 2023

31102 Delq. Water P70 01709 0051 6336 Kingsbury Dr  $10.41 2022 February 2023
31102 Delq. Water P70 01714 0009 7035 Hubbard Dr  $4.27 2022 February 2023
31102 Delq. Water P70 01801 0019 7613 Harshmanville  $43.41 2022 February 2023

31102 Delq. Water P70 01905 0024 5068 Nebraska Ave  $0.76 2022 February 2023
31102 Delq. Water P70 01923 0002 5836 Old Troy Pk  $1.20 2022 February 2023

31102 Delq. Water P70 50217 0047 5801 Troy Villa Blvd  $73.63 2022 February 2023
TOTAL DELQ. WATER $372.95

Project No Project Desc Parcel ID Address Tax Year

31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 00202 0712 6352 Apache St  $25.20 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 00409 0009 4864 Trailside Ct  $37.80 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 00512 0037 5919 Timbergate Tr  $25.20 2022 February 2023

31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 00601 0027 8458 Schoolgate Dr  $6.37 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 00603 0034 6372 Rolling Glen Dr  $25.20 2022 February 2023

31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 00619 0063 8278 Sun Prairie Pl  $6.20 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 00705 0002 6750 Brandt Pk  $86.76 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 00801 0019 7209 Summerdale Dr  $25.20 2022 February 2023

31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 00908 0008 5230 Monitor Dr  $37.80 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 00911 0007 4351 Kitridge Rd  $21.53 2022 February 2023

31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 00913 0010 4457 Kitridge Rd  $35.70 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 00914 0030 4541 Kapp Dr  $21.53 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01005 0040 4773 Rittenhouse Dr  $25.20 2022 February 2023

31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01006 0026 4691 Powell Rd  $7.33 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01012 0005 5759 Resik Dr  $19.30 2022 February 2023

31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01013 0052 5724 Rousseau Dr  $25.20 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01106 0005 7350 Brandt Pk  $25.20 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01114 0034 7129 Troy Manor Rd  $15.43 2022 February 2023

31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01206 0027 6771 Pablo Dr  $24.63 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01404 0012 4842 Nebraska Ave  $25.20 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01408 0042 5701 Belmar Dr  $14.70 2022 February 2023

31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01515 0013 4877 Fishburg Rd  $6.40 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01610 0033 7017 Harshmanville  $25.06 2022 February 2023

31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01616 0007 6001 Corsica Dr  $7.07 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01616 0028 5956 Corsica Dr  $25.20 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01702 0019 6905 Morley La  $37.80 2022 February 2023

31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01709 0051 6336 Kingsbury Dr  $3.17 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01709 0059 7031 Klyemore Dr  $25.20 2022 February 2023

31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01712 0021 6420 Luton Ct  $25.20 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01714 0009 7035 Hubbard Dr  $35.00 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01801 0019 7613 Harshmanville  $6.60 2022 February 2023

31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01801 0034 5901 Lancer Ct  $37.80 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01905 0024 5068 Nebraska Ave  $15.70 2022 February 2023

31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01917 0022 7272 Charlesworth Dr  $21.53 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 01923 0002 5836 Old Troy Pk  $29.73 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 02006 0032 8935 Emeraldgate Dr  $31.50 2022 February 2023

31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 02021 0009 5985 Fox Trace Ct  $25.20 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 03903 0095 8040 Center Point 70 Blvd  $257.99 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 03904 0085 8701 Adams Rd  $19.90 2022 February 2023

31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 03911 0038 5730 Brandt Pk  $25.20 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 03912 0079 5363 Tilbury Rd  $176.34 2022 February 2023

31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 04005 0100 7650 Waynetowne Blvd  $640.50 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 04006 0071 8169 Old Troy Pk  $158.04 2022 February 2023
31103 Delq. Storm Water P70 50217 0047 5801 Troy Villa Blvd  $25.47 2022 February 2023

TOTAL DELQ. STORM WATER $2,198.28

Project No Project Desc Parcel ID Address Tax Year
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00601 0027 8458 Schoolgate Dr  $36.90 2022 February 2023
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 00619 0063 8278 Sun Prairie Pl  $34.48 2022 February 2023
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 01006 0026 4691 Powell Rd  $35.06 2022 February 2023
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 01515 0013 4877 Fishburg Rd  $32.22 2022 February 2023
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 01616 0007 6001 Corsica Dr  $33.78 2022 February 2023
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 01709 0051 6336 Kingsbury Dr  $19.90 2022 February 2023
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 01801 0019 7613 Harshmanville  $31.55 2022 February 2023
31324 Delq. Sewer P70 50217 0047 5801 Troy Villa Blvd  $37.29 2022 February 2023

Total to be 
Assessed

Begin 
Collection

Total to be 
Assessed

Begin 
Collection

Total to be 
Assessed

Begin 
Collection



TOTAL DELQ. SEWER  $261.18



Parcell ID Address Amount 
P70 00601 0027 8458 Schoolgate Dr  $43.62 
P70 00619 0063 8278 Sun Prairie Pl  $50.13 
P70 01006 0026 4691 Powell Rd  $50.42 
P70 01515 0013 4877 Fishburg Rd  $46.51 
P70 01616 0007 6001 Corsica Dr  $48.59 
P70 01709 0051 6336 Kingsbury Dr  $10.41 
P70 01714 0009 7035 Hubbard Dr  $4.27 
P70 01801 0019 7613 Harshmanville  $43.41 
P70 01905 0024 5068 Nebraska Ave  $0.76 
P70 01923 0002 5836 Old Troy Pk  $1.20 
P70 50217 0047 5801 Troy Villa Blvd  $73.63 

 $372.95 



Parcel ID Address Amount 
P70 00202 0712 6352 Apache St  $25.20 
P70 00409 0009 4864 Trailside Ct  $37.80 
P70 00512 0037 5919 Timbergate Tr  $25.20 
P70 00601 0027 8458 Schoolgate Dr  $6.37 
P70 00603 0034 6372 Rolling Glen Dr  $25.20 
P70 00619 0063 8278 Sun Prairie Pl  $6.20 
P70 00705 0002 6750 Brandt Pk  $86.76 
P70 00801 0019 7209 Summerdale Dr  $25.20 
P70 00908 0008 5230 Monitor Dr  $37.80 
P70 00911 0007 4351 Kitridge Rd  $21.53 
P70 00913 0010 4457 Kitridge Rd  $35.70 
P70 00914 0030 4541 Kapp Dr  $21.53 
P70 01005 0040 4773 Rittenhouse Dr  $25.20 
P70 01006 0026 4691 Powell Rd  $7.33 
P70 01012 0005 5759 Resik Dr  $19.30 
P70 01013 0052 5724 Rousseau Dr  $25.20 
P70 01106 0005 7350 Brandt Pk  $25.20 
P70 01114 0034 7129 Troy Manor Rd  $15.43 
P70 01206 0027 6771 Pablo Dr  $24.63 
P70 01404 0012 4842 Nebraska Ave  $25.20 
P70 01408 0042 5701 Belmar Dr  $14.70 
P70 01515 0013 4877 Fishburg Rd  $6.40 
P70 01610 0033 7017 Harshmanville  $25.06 
P70 01616 0007 6001 Corsica Dr  $7.07 
P70 01616 0028 5956 Corsica Dr  $25.20 
P70 01702 0019 6905 Morley La  $37.80 
P70 01709 0051 6336 Kingsbury Dr  $3.17 
P70 01709 0059 7031 Klyemore Dr  $25.20 
P70 01712 0021 6420 Luton Ct  $25.20 
P70 01714 0009 7035 Hubbard Dr  $35.00 
P70 01801 0019 7613 Harshmanville  $6.60 
P70 01801 0034 5901 Lancer Ct  $37.80 
P70 01905 0024 5068 Nebraska Ave  $15.70 
P70 01917 0022 7272 Charlesworth Dr  $21.53 
P70 01923 0002 5836 Old Troy Pk  $29.73 
P70 02006 0032 8935 Emeraldgate Dr  $31.50 
P70 02021 0009 5985 Fox Trace Ct  $25.20 
P70 03903 0095 8040 Center Point 70 Blvd  $257.99 
P70 03904 0085 8701 Adams Rd  $19.90 
P70 03911 0038 5730 Brandt Pk  $25.20 
P70 03912 0079 5363 Tilbury Rd  $176.34 
P70 04005 0100 7650 Waynetowne Blvd  $640.50 
P70 04006 0071 8169 Old Troy Pk  $158.04 
P70 50217 0047 5801 Troy Villa Blvd  $25.47 

 $2,198.28 



Parcel ID Address Amount 
P70 00601 0027 8458 Schoolgate Dr  $36.90 
P70 00619 0063 8278 Sun Prairie Pl  $34.48 
P70 01006 0026 4691 Powell Rd  $35.06 
P70 01515 0013 4877 Fishburg Rd  $32.22 
P70 01616 0007 6001 Corsica Dr  $33.78 
P70 01709 0051 6336 Kingsbury Dr  $19.90 
P70 01801 0019 7613 Harshmanville  $31.55 
P70 50217 0047 5801 Troy Villa Blvd  $37.29 

 $261.18 



   
AI-8356     New Business      X.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
Establishment Of New Budgetary Fund - Opioid Settlement Disbursement
Submitted By: Jim Bell
Department: Finance Division: Accounting
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/19/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

2022-R-7118

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Authorizing The Acceptance Of State Of Ohio Funding And Establishing The OneOhio
Opioid Settlement Fund.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
This legislation will authorize the acceptance of state funding and also establish the OneOhio Opioid
Settlement Fund to track all revenue and expenditures for approved purposes as stated in the
OneOhio memorandum of understanding (MOU).  The City of Huber Heights is expected to receive
funding in the next month.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-

AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF STATE OF OHIO FUNDING AND ESTABLISHING 
THE ONEOHIO OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUND.

WHEREAS, Auditor of State Bulletin 2022-003, issued on March 10, 2022, and Ohio Revised Code 
Section 5705.09(F) require that the City’s share of the OneOhio Funds shall be placed in a separate 
special revenue fund and used only for the approved purposes as required by the OneOhio 
memorandum of understanding (MOU); and

WHEREAS, Auditor of State Bulletin 2022-003 requires the local government to pass an ordinance 
or resolution to identify any expenditures previously made that are eligible for reimbursement with 
monies from the OneOhio Funds which identifies the prior expenditures and explains the 
determination that such expenditures are for approved purposes consistent with the OneOhio MOU; 
and

WHEREAS, the people of the State of Ohio and the City of Huber Heights have been harmed by 
misfeasance, nonfeasance and malfeasance committed by certain entities within the Opioid 
Pharmaceutical Supply Chain; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio understands that any OneOhio Funds received 
by the City will be used to promote an effective and meaningful method in abating the opioid 
epidemic effects in the City of Huber Heights, Ohio.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. There is hereby created and established the new OneOhio Opioid Settlement Fund 
which shall be maintained separately from all other City funds to account for the revenue and 
expenditures as described in Section 2.

Section 2. Expenditures in this new fund can only be used for the approved purposes as required 
by the OneOhio MOU.

Section 3. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 4. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the ____ day of _____ , 2022;
          Yeas;          Nays.

Effective Date:  

AUTHENTICATION:

Clerk of Council Mayor

Date Date



   
AI-8339     New Business      Y.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
2022 Rehabilitation of Sewer Lines Project - Award Contract
Submitted By: Hanane Eisentraut
Department: Engineering Division: Engineering
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/05/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

2022-R-7119

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into A Contract For The 2022 Rehabilitation Of
Sewer Lines Project.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
This legislation will authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Insight Pipe Contracting, as
the lowest and best bidder, for the 2022 Rehabilitation of Sewer Lines Project at a cost not to exceed
$300,000.  The Sewer Fund will be utilized for the costs of this project.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: Sewer Fund
Cost: $300,000
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Map 
Bid Results 
Resolution 





                                                                      CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
                             2022 REHABILITATION OF SEWER LINES

                                                                    BID RESULT
                                                                        BID DATE:   March 25, 2022

CONTRACTOR'S NAME BID AMOUNT

Miller Pipeline $ 309,583.00                                  120 Calendar Days

                 

Bid Bond  - Yes       

Granite Inliner $ 324,317.00                                  100 Calendar Days

                 

Bid Bond  - Yes       

Insite Pipe Contracting $ 280,324 .00                                  120 Calendar Days

                 

Bid Bond  - Yes       

Insituform Technology $ 284,134.00                                     90 Calendar Days

                 

Bid Bond  - Yes       



                   

.       

CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT FOR THE 2022
REHABILITATION OF SEWER LINES PROJECT.

WHEREAS, City Council under Resolution No. 2022-R-7093 has previously authorized the 
securing of bids for the 2022 Rehabilitation of Sewer Lines Project; and

WHEREAS, construction bids were received by the City on March 25, 2022; and

WHEREAS, funds are available to cover the cost of this work.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio, that:

Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a contract for the 2022
Rehabilitation of Sewer Lines Project with Insight Pipe Contracting, LLC, as the lowest and best 
bidder, at a cost not to exceed $300,000.00 on the terms and conditions as substantially set forth
in the bid documents.

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this 
Council and all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such 
formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements 
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the _________ day of __________________, 2022;
_________Yeas; _________Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

________________________________ ______________________________
Clerk of Council Mayor

________________________________ ______________________________
Date Date



   
AI-8340     New Business      Z.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 04/25/2022  
2022 Water Main Replacement Program - Solicit Bids
Submitted By: Hanane Eisentraut
Department: Engineering Division: Engineering
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 04/05/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

2022-R-7120

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Solicit, Advertise, And Receive Bids From Qualified
Firms For The 2022 Water Main Replacement Program.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
This legislation will allow the City Manager to solicit bids for 2022 Water Main Replacement Program. 
The design of this project is still being finalized.  The Water Fund will be utilized to construct this project.
 

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Map 
Resolution 





CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SOLICIT, ADVERTISE, AND RECEIVE BIDS 
FROM QUALIFIED FIRMS FOR THE 2022 WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT PROGRAM.

WHEREAS, City Staff have identified water lines within the City which are in urgent need of 
replacement; and

WHEREAS, engineering plans, specifications and cost estimates are being finalized; and

WHEREAS, the Water Fund is available to cover the cost of this work.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that:

Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to solicit, advertise, and receive responses 
from qualified firms for the construction of the 2022 Water Main Replacement Program at a cost 
not to exceed $1,500,000.00

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this 
Council and all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such 
formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements 
including Section 121.22 of Ohio Revised Code.

Section 3. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights.

Passed by Council on the _________ day of __________________, 2022;
_________Yeas; _________Nays.

Effective Date:

AUTHENTICATION:

________________________________ ______________________________
Clerk of Council Mayor

________________________________ ______________________________
Date Date


	Agenda
	AI_8364_Approval of Minutes - 3/28/22
	       ATT_Minutes
	AI_8365_Approval of Minutes - 4/11/22
	       ATT_Minutes
	AI_8331_WHS Men's and Women's Bowling Teams Recognition and Proclamation Presentation
	       ATT_Proclamation
	AI_8332_2022 Comprehensive Development Plan Steering Committee - Citizen Appointments
	       ATT_Application - M. Shomper
	Application - M. Shomper
	Page 3 - M. Shomper

	       ATT_Application - R. Deak
	       ATT_Application - J. Sirucek
	       ATT_Application - S. Davidson
	SD1
	SD2
	SD3

	       ATT_Application - J. Held
	AI_8363_Culture and Diversity Citizen Action Commission Appointment - B. Gulalieu
	       ATT_Application - B. Gulalieu
	AI_8362_Liquor Permit #0055605 - Action Palace - 5605 Old Troy Pike
	       ATT_Liquor Permit
	AI_8369_Liquor Permit Objection - Marathon - 7851 Old Troy Pike
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_8333_ZC 21-45 - Major Change - Basic and Detailed Development Plan -  Kirmon Khalilov - 5840 Old Troy Pike - Public Hearing
	AI_8334_ZC BDP 22-07 - Basic Detailed Development - The Gables - Brandt Pike - Public Hearing
	AI_8323_ZC BDP 22-08 - Amarjit Takhar - Rezoning/Basic Development Plan - State Route 235 - Public Hearing
	AI_8327_ZC CBDP 22-11 - Campbell Berling Huber Heights, LLC - Rezoning/Combined Basic and Detailed Development Plan -Bellefontaine Road - Public Hearing
	AI_8330_ZC BDP 22-12 - Horizon Line Development - Rezoning/Basic Development Plan - 7125 Executive Boulevard - Public Hearing
	AI_8335_ZC ORD 22-16 Sidewalk Requirements - Public Hearing
	AI_8336_ZC 21-45 - Kirmon Khalilov - Major Change - Basic and Detailed Development Plan - 5840 Old Troy Pike
	       ATT_Drawing
	       ATT_Picture
	       ATT_Fire Assessment
	       ATT_Staff Report
	       ATT_Opposition Letters
	       ATT_Decision Record
	       ATT_Minutes
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI_8337_ZC BDP 22-07 - Charles Simms Development - The Gables - Basic Development Plan - Brandt Pike
	       ATT_Drawings
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	       ATT_Elevations
	       ATT_Traffic Impact Study
	       ATT_Stormwater Memorandum
	       ATT_Fire Assessment
	       ATT_Resident Letter
	       ATT_Staff Report
	       ATT_Decision Record
	       ATT_Minutes
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI_8359_ZC  BDP 22-08 - Amarjit Takhar - Rezoning/Basic Development Plan - State Route 235
	       ATT_Drawings
	235 Fuel Center_03-18-2022 CONTOURS UPDATED.pdf
	235 Fuel Center_03-18-2022 CONTOURS UPDATED 2.pdf
	235 Fuel Center_03-18-2022 FULL SITE PLAN.pdf
	235 Fuel Center_12-29-2021 Basic Development Plan-optimized for print.pdf

	       ATT_Fire Assessment
	       ATT_Staff Report
	       ATT_Decision Record
	       ATT_Minutes
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Ordinance - Amended
	AI_8360_ZC  CBDP 22-11 - Campbell Berling Huber Heights, LLC - Rezoning/Combined Basic And Detailed Development Plan - Bellefontaine Road
	       ATT_Drawings
	01-Cov
	02-Imp
	03-Imp
	04-Gra
	05-Gra
	22-03-04r 20632006-PLA-L1
	22-03-04 20632006-PLA-L2

	       ATT_Entrance Drawings
	       ATT_Fire Assessment
	       ATT_Staff Report
	       ATT_Decision Record
	       ATT_Minutes
	       ATT_Correspondence
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI_8361_ZC BDP 22-12 - Horizon Line Development - Rezoning/Basic Development Plan - 7125 Executive Boulevard
	       ATT_Drawings
	       ATT_Elevations
	2022-02-09_Concept Meeting.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1 Schematic Plan
	2 Schematic Plan 2
	3 GRADING
	4 GRADING (2)
	5 LANDSCAPE WEST
	6 LANDSCAPE EAST
	7 ENTRIES


	2022-02-09_LandscapePlan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	5 LANDSCAPE WEST
	6 LANDSCAPE EAST
	7 ENTRIES
	8 DUMPSTER


	2022-02-09_Concept Meeting.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1 Schematic Plan
	2 Schematic Plan 2
	3 GRADING
	4 GRADING (2)
	5 LANDSCAPE WEST
	6 LANDSCAPE EAST
	7 ENTRIES


	8 DUMPSTER.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	8 DUMPSTER


	2021-11-05_MOTHHE2107.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	MOTHHE2107-RP1
	MOTHHE2107-RP2
	MOTHHE2107-HH Plat


	__ElevationsOnly.pdf
	04 - A1.01 - Overall Floor Plan - Buildings A1, A13, B4, & B5 (Sanibel)
	04 - A1.02 - Overall Floor Plan - Buildings A2, A6, A8, & B2 (Sanibel)
	04 - A1.05 - Overall Floor Plan - Buildings A7, B3, B12, B13, & C1 (Sanibel + Mendoza)
	04 - A1.06 - Overall Floor Plan - Building A9 (Sanibel + Mendoza)
	04 - A1.07 - Overall Floor Plan - Buildings A10, B10, C3, & D15 (Sanibel)
	04 - A1.08 - Overall Floor Plan - Buildings A11, B11, C4, E10, & D14 (Sanibel)
	04 - A1.09 - Overall Floor Plan - Building A12 (Sanibel)
	04 - A1.10 - Overall Floor Plan - Buildings B1 & B14 (Sanibel + Mendoza)
	04 - A1.11 - Overall Floor Plan - Buildings B6, D1, D2, D3, & D4, B7, B8, & B9 (Mirr.) (Mendoza Rear)
	04 - A1.12 - Overall Floor Plan - Building C2 (Sanibel + Mendoza)
	04 - A1.15 - Overall Floor Plan - Buildings D7, D8, D11, & D12 (Mendoza)
	04 - A1.17 - Overall Floor Plan -  Building D13 (Sanibel + Mendoza)
	04 - A2.01 - Exterior Elevations - Buildings A1, A13, B4, & B5 (Sanibel)
	04 - A2.02 - Exterior Elevations - Buildings A2, A6, A8, & B2 (Sanibel)
	04 - A2.05 - Exterior Elevations - Buildings A7, B3, B12, B13, & C1 (Sanibel + Mendoza)
	04 - A2.06 - Exterior Elevations - Building A9 (Sanibel + Mendoza)
	04 - A2.07 - Exterior Elevations - Buildings A10, B10, C3, & D15 (Sanibel)
	04 - A2.08 - Exterior Elevations - Buildings A11, B11, C4, E10, & D14 (Sanibel)
	04 - A2.09 - Exterior Elevations - Building A12 (Sanibel)
	04 - A2.10 - Exterior Elevations - Buildings B1 & B14 (Sanibel + Mendoza)
	04 - A2.11 - Exterior Elevations - Buildings B6, D1, D2, D3, & D4, B7, B8, & B9 (Mirr.) (Mendoza Rear)
	04 - A2.12 - Exterior Elevations - Building C2 (Sanibel + Mendoza)
	04 - A2.15 - Exterior Elevations - Buildings D7, D8, D11, & D12 (Mendoza)
	04 - A2.17 - Exterior Elevations -  Building D13 (Sanibel + Mendoza)


	       ATT_Fire Assessment
	       ATT_Staff Report
	       ATT_Decision Record
	       ATT_Minutes
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	Page 2

	       ATT_Exhibit C
	Page 1

	       ATT_Exhibit D
	Sheets and Views
	5 LANDSCAPE WEST
	6 LANDSCAPE EAST
	7 ENTRIES


	AI_8338_ZC ORD 22-16 - City Sidewalk Requirements
	       ATT_Decision Record
	       ATT_Minutes
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI_8368_City Staffing Levels/Table of Organization
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Table of Organization
	2022 Org Chart April Fire addition.vsd
	Page-1


	AI_8371_City Salaries/Wage Levels
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_8370_Supplemental Appropriations
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI_8357_Alcore/The Landings of Huber Heights - Land Use Restriction Agreement Termination 
	       ATT_Land Use Restriction Agreement
	Title
	Table of Contents
	I. BASIC BOND INSTRUMENTS
	1.01 Trust Indenture by and between the Issuer and the
Trustee
	1.02 Loan Agreement by and between the Issuer and the
Borrower
	1.03 Promissory Notes by the Borrower to the Trustee
	1.04 Open-End Mortgage, Assignment of Leases and Rents and
Security Agreement
	1.05 UCC Financing Statements
	1.06 Continuing Disclosure Agreement between the Borrower
and the Dissemination Agent
	1.07 Tax Regulatory Agreement and No-Arbitrage Certificate
among the Issuer, the Trustee, the Borrower and AlcoreSenior, LLC
	1.08 Land Use Restriction Agreement among the Issuer, the
Trustee, the Borrower and AlcoreSenior, LLC

	II. PROJECT DOCUMENTS ORIGINATING WITH BORROWER
	2.01 Environmental Report
	2.02 Plans and Specifications
	2.03 Certified Cost Breakdown
	2.04 Inspecting Architect Agreement
	2.05 Construction Contract
	2.06 Contract with Ritz- for
Modular Units
	2.07 Management Agreement between the Manager and the Borrower
	2.08 Assignment of Management Agreement from the Borrower to the Trustee
	2.09 Collateral Assignment of Contracts, Plans and
Specifications and Other Materials
	2.10 Evidence of Insurance
	2.11 Insurance Consultant’s Report
	2.12 Title Insurance Policy
	2.13 Survey of Project Site (With Flood Hazard Certifications)
	2.14 General Contractor’s Certificate
	2.15 Ritz-Craft Certificate
	2.16 Inspecting Architect’s Certificate
	2.17 Manager’s Certificate
	2.18 Consent of Vogt Santer Insights, Ltd. Research
	2.19 Consent of Laney, Boteler & Killinger
	2.20 Payment and Performance Bond and Personal Guaranty
from Joseph DiCesare
	2.21 Payment and Performance Bond from
	2.22 Payment and Performance Bonds from Subcontractors

	III. CLOSING ITEMS TO BE DELIVERED BY BORROWER
	3.01 Borrower’s Closing Certificate
	3.02 Manager’s Closing Certificate

	IV. CLOSING ITEMS ORIGINATING WITH THE ISSUER
	4.01 Certified Copy of Intent Ordinance
	4.02 Certificate Regarding Public Hearing
	4.03 Closing Certificate
	4.04 Signature and No-Litigation Certificate
	4.05 Specimen Bonds
	4.06 IRS Form 8038
	4.07 Notice of Intent and Confirmation thereof and
Notice of Issuance and Confirmation thereof

	V. DOCUMENTS ORIGINATING WITH THE TRUSTEE
	5.01 Trustee’s Certificate of Acceptance and Authentication
	5.02 Certificate of Receipt, Delivery and Payment with respect
to the Bonds and Documents
	5.03. Evidence of Trust Powers and Incumbency Certificate

	VI. DOCUMENTS PROVIDED BY THE UNDERWRITER
	6.01 Preliminary Official Statement
	6.02 Final Official Statement signed by Issuer and Borrower
	6.03 Bond Purchase Agreement by and among the Issuer,
the Borrower and the Underwriter
	6.04 Blue Sky Compliance Letter

	VII. OPINIONS OF COUNSEL
	7.01 Opinion of Borrower’s Counsel
	7.02 Opinion of Underwriter’s Counsel
	7.03 Supplemental Opinion of Bond Counsel
	7.04 Final Approving Opinion of Bond Counsel




	       ATT_Assignment_Assumption Agreement
	       ATT_Termination Of Land Use Restriction Agreement
	TERMINATION OF LAND USE RESTRICTION AGREEMENT
	(MH Huber Heights Holdings LLC)
	[Signatures continue on the following page]
	[Signatures continue on the following page]

	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_8358_CRA Agreement - Flyer Red Properties II, LLC Operated As Warped Wing - 6602 Executive Boulevard
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	AI_8354_Supplemental Appropriations
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI_8355_County Assessments Authorization
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	AI_8356_Establishment Of New Budgetary Fund - Opioid Settlement Disbursement
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_8339_2022 Rehabilitation of Sewer Lines Project - Award Contract
	       ATT_Map
	       ATT_Bid Results
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_8340_2022 Water Main Replacement Program - Solicit Bids
	       ATT_Map
	       ATT_Resolution



